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W

August?, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

^ REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing agreement with Manchester Alcohol Rehabilitation Center, Vender
#177204-8005, to provide substance use disorder treatment and recovery support services, by
increasing the total combined price limitation by $247,950 from $16,709,496 to $16,957,446 with
no change to the contract completion date of September 30, 2020, effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor
Current

Amount

,  Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Budget
G&C Approval

Dismas Home of

New Hampshire,
Inc.

$258,750 $0 $258,750 ■

0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2:'12/05/18 Item #23

A3:6/19/19 Item #29E

FIT/NHNH, Inc. $2,123,396 $0 $2,123,396

0: 07/27/18 Item #7

A1: 12/05/2018 Item #2

A2:6/19/19 Item #29E

Grafton County
New Hampshire -
Department of
Corrections and

Alternative;

Sentencing

$493,000 $0 $493,000
0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2:6/19/19ltem #29E

Greater Nashua

Council on

Alcoholism
$1,379,000 $0 $1,379,000

0: 07/27/18 Item #7

A1: 12/05/18 Item #23

A2:6/19/19 Item #29E
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Headrest $680,350 $0 $680,350

0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2: 12/05/18 Item #23

A3:6/19/19ltem #29E

Manchester

Alcoholism

Rehabilitation

Center

$5,299,800 $247,950 $5,547,750

0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1; 07/27/18 Item #7

A2:12/05/18 Item #2

A3:6/19/19 Item #29E 3

Hope on Haven
Hill $775,500 $0 $775,500

0: 07/27/18 Item #7

A1: 12/05/18 Item #23

A2:6/19/19 Item #29E

North Country
Health Consortium $1,506,000 $0 $1,506,000

0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2: 12/05/18 Item #23

A3:6/19/19 Item #29E

Phoenix Houses of

New England, Inc. $2,088,750 $0 $2,088,750

0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1:=07/27/18ltem#7

A2: 12/05/18 Item #23

A3:6/19/19 Item #29E

Seacoast Youth

Services $73,200 $0 $73,20,0
0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

.Southeastern New

Hampshire Alcohol
& Drug Abuse

Services

$1,992,250 $0 $1,992,250

0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2: 12/05/18 Item #23

A3:6/19/19ltem #29E

The Community
Council of Nashua,

N.H.
$23,000 $0 $23,000

0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2:6/19/19 Item #29E

West Central

Services, Inc. $16,500 $0 $16,500
0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2:6/19/19 Item #29E

Total $16,709,496 $247,950 $16,957,446

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available In the following accounts for
State Fiscal Year 2020 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVORIAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG &
ALCOHOL SVCS, STATE OPiOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% Federal Funds, FAIN
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H79TI081685 CFDA 93.788)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account

1

Class Title
Job

Number

Current

(Modified)
Budget

Increased

(Decreas
ed)

Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2020
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057040 $16,709,496 $247,950 $16,957,446

Total $16,709,496 $247,950 $16,957,446

EXPLANATION

This purpose of this request is to increase the price limitation to provide additional
substance use disorder treatment and recovery support services. These funds will be used to
provide room and board payments in the amount of $100 per day for Medicaid-covered
individuals with Opioid Use Disorder (CUD) who are in residential treatment. Approximately 600
individuals will receive residential substance use disorder treatment services from July 2019
through September 2020. In addition, approximately 5,278 days of room and board will be
funded through this amendment. The contractor will also continue to offer their existing array of
treatment services, including individual and group outpatient, intensive outpatient, partial
hospitalization, transitional living, and high and low intensity residential services.

This amendment is part of the State's recently approved plan under the State Opioid
Response (SOR) grant, which identified access to residential treatment as a funding priority. The
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) approved New
Hampshire's proposal in September 2018. The Contractor will use these funds to ensure that
individuals with CUD receive the appropriate level of residential treatment and have continued
and/or expanded access to the necessary level of care, which increases their ability to achieve
and maintain recovery.

These services are part of the Department's overall strategy to respond to the opioid
epidemic, and other types of substance use disorders that continue to impact individuals,
families, and communities in New Hampshire. Currently there are thirteen (13) contracotrs
delivering an array of treatment services, including individual and group outpatient, intensive
outpatient, partial hospitalization, transitional living, high and low intensity residential, and
ambulatory and residential withdrawal management services, as well as ancillary recovery
support services.

In 2018, there were 467 confirmed drug overdose deaths in NH with 6 cases still pending.
These contracts will support the State's efforts to continue to respond to the opioid epidemic and
substance misuse as a whole.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, residential
treatment programs may have to limit the availability of beds for individuals with OUD and who
are on Medicaid, which would delay access to care for those individuals.

Area sen/ed: Statewide.
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Source of Funds; 100% Federal Funds from the United States Department of Health and
Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration State Opioid
Response Grant, CFDA #93.788.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4 to the Substance Use Disorder

Treatment and Recovery Support Services

This 4"^ Amendment to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #4") Is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Manchester
Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofrt corporation with
a place of business at 555 Auburn Street, Manchester, NH 03103.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 20, 2018 (Late Item G), as amended on July 27, 2018 (Item #7), as amended on December 5,
2018 (Item #23), as amended on June 19, 2019 (Item #29E), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration
of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of these
services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #4 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$5,547,750.

2. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 6, Subsection 6.2, to read:

6.2 With the exception of room and board payments for transitional living, the Contractor shall
not bill the Department for Room and Board payments in excess of $2,148,750.

Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center Amendment #4 Contractor Initials

RFA-2019-BDAS-01-SUBST-07-A04 Page 1 of 3 Date ^'25/19



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Name: Katja S. Fox
Title: Director

7/25/19

Date

Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center

Name: ElinTreanor

Title: cfo

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of New Hampshire County of Hiiisborouah on July 25.2019 , before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

! \ I IXI I II V \ f I
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of tlie Peace

.>? kjtx,My Commission Expires: y mv

I  I

Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center Amendment #4

RFA-2019-BDAS-01-SUBST-07-A04 Page 2 of 3

Contractor Initials

Date 7/25/19



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title;

Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center Amendment #4

RFA-2019-BDAS-01-SUBST-07-A04 Page 3 of 3

Contractor Initials

Date 7/25/19



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, WillUm M. Gardner. Seciciary of Slate of (be State of New Hanrpsbtre, do hereby certify that MANCHESTER ALCOHOLISM

REHABtLlTATrON CENTER is a New Hampshire Nor^rofit Corporation registered to tnmsoct business in New Hampshire oo

February 19, 1980.1 further certify thai all fees aod documents required by ibe Secretary of State's ofGce have been received and

is in good slarxling as for as this ofTlce u concerned.

Business [D: dl650

Certtficate Number :.00l)4498668

o

%

o

A
N

<1

rN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

1 hereto set my band aod cause to be afExed

the Sea] of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this I2th day of April A.D. 2019.

William M. Oardaer

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1. n^j Dudct , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency: cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of,
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on /fPT* I
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 3.S^^dav of , 20 .
(Date Contract Signed)

4. PjiATrtgiio/
(Name of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

is the duly elected Cfo
(Title of Contract Signatory)

(Signature "^f the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Countvof /Jtj

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

By

20i5_,

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

.XWWUIIM//////.

(NOTARY SEAL)

I  u I
Commission Expires: % A.

(Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)
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ACORD^ GERtlFIQATE lQF yABILIM' INSURANCE MTE (KHIDOrmrY)

THJ8 CERTIFICATE 19 ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION'ONLY'AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER; THIS
CERTinCATE DOES NOT AFRRMATIVELY OR NEOATTVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER fflE COVERAGE AFFORDED BYTHE POUaES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT COMSfiTUTC A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE iSSUINO INSURERI8) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFiCATE HOLDEK ' ' " '
IMPORTANT: If tha eartmcata hoMerls an ADDmONAL INSURE!), ,the>pollcy(lM)'muat have ADDITIONAL INSURED prevtslona or be endoreed.
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the larma andcohd^n's of tht policy, certain pellelaa may require an andoreamanL A atatamant on
this certlflcsts does not eonfor sny rlgh^ to.the certfflects holder in lieu of such shdorismenqs).

PSOOUCER

USI Insuranco Sefvtcoa LLC

3 Exacutive Park Driva, Suite 300

Bedford. NH 03110

666 8744123

A^SS: .:;T
iKsuReRtDAmMtDMaeovsuaa NAICt

wsuseo

Eaatar Seals NH, Inc.
666 Auburn Street

Mancheatsr, NH 03103

MSURSIB:

mtuiin'c:

Msuses 0:

'mtuaeni'i

rNSVPSPP:

THIS fS.TO CERTIFY.TMAnT><E-PQUp.lBS:'.0»::iNSURANCEfU8TEp.BELOW?HAVB;BEeN;ISSUeO.TO;THE INSURCO'NAMEDAaOVE'PORTME POUCYPERIOO
INOICATEO. Ncrrvvmm^tw ^quir^ekt.vt^ pR .cpNompN:6F.AMY;W d:mER'.c>dcuMEKr..wvrm rcspcct to viwcH TMa
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSU^ OR. MAY- PERTAIN..-THE'INSURANCE-AFF0RDED'BY'THE*'P0UCIE3-OCSCRIBEO'mEREJN'IS SUSJECt 'Tb /UJ. THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS ANO CONOITIONS OF «iCH pOUClES.\LjMrre';SHOVWiMAY'HAVE BSEHsREOli^ BY.'PAlb'CLAlMS

Ml — ^
^•x-1

.POU^NUMSSt'.,
COMMtlteiM. OCNCIUL UABtUTV

Cij

UWT*

PHPK18B66U 09/01/20'18 09/01/2018 EACH OCClWRgWCC t1
,CL/VWI Mi*iDf OCCUR

ProfMslonal Uab

oew, AOORECMTE itttff />PFUa PgR

POUCY I I LOG
OTHM:

wftmrwi

MEO eXP. (Any en>

PEftSONAltADV INJURY

GENERAL AOORCOATC

PRODUCTS • COMPAP AGO

.OOQ.000

ilOOiOOO

18.000

11:000.000

t3:000.000

i3.ooo;ooo

AUTOMOeU UABAJTV X X PHPK1866629

AHYAUTO

m^ONLY
2$^ ONLY

UtDRSUALMa

ncassuAs

.2L

060 I XiRETEWTIOHtliOK

OCCU

8CHE0ULE0
AUTOS
NOMOWHED
AUTOS ONLY

R.

CUW1 MADE

tVORXCM COMPCNSAnOM

ANO cMPtoreRr UAoaiTT

(llAAdewy In MH>
Hvh, MKifea
DtSpftlPTTOWOPOPgRATIOHSI

09/01/2018 09/01/2019

PHUB643260 09/01/2018

0 fliiiaii uuff

BOOLY INJURY (Pv pmen)

BOOtLY INAIRY (Pf mcMiro

MVeRTVOUUSI—^
fPfAocMfa

09/01/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE

AOOREGATE

]1"AIUZE. fSl
E^EACHACOOCHT

EL OtSEABE ♦ BA eMPLOYEE

ELDCSgAae ■ POUCY UNIT

■I.OOOiOOO

>16.000.000

>18.000.000

EDP PHPK1666833 08/01/2016 09/01/2019 $1,619,080
$600 Doductfbia
Spoclal Foto Incl Theft

cescyTWH op qtwIiOMS > i^twhs/vpocles tACCRO w; Ad jabwi Rwimia laWiiuM tmy tw iaichx w W9w'>p^ a riq^
'SupplemorittI Name8*:Ea8tar Seals ME. Inc.; Manchester AJcohpl:Rehabil(ta.ti6n Cento Inc., dba TTie Famum
Cantar, Easter Seals VT, Inc., & THe Hommakere Haal^'Seivlces. TTia Oenervl UabHtty policy includes a
Blanket Automatic Additional Irtturod Endoraament that pi«vfd«« A'ddlUprul lnaured and a Blanket Waiver of
Subrogation etatua to the Cartlflcate Holdar, only when there la e .written contract or written egreement
between the named Insured and the certlflcete holder that requlm aueh ato^, and only with regard to the
See Attached Oeecrlptiona)

state ofNH
OHHS;Bureau of LIcenalng.B Certification
Office of Bureau SuppOil'
120 Plaaaant.Btieet
Conco^, NH' 03301.

1  . . . -

\

SMpULO ANY OF THE ABOVC pCSCrUBEO POLICIES BE CANCELLeO BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THSiREOF, NOTtCB' WILL' BE beUVEREO IN
ACCOROANCe WTTH 'THE POLICY PROV1BION8.

AVTHCmUi) RSPRSSeNTATIVB '

ACORO26(201$n3) 1.of2
#329688S81/M23696266

The A^RO riim and logo are legtatered i^rkii bf ACORD
JXD2P
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above referenced on behatf of die named Iheurod. The General Liability policy contalna a epeelal endoreement
with "Primary end Non-Contributory" wording.

v.xriy: -Sn'.y>
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/iCORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (WM/DtywyY)

12/17/2018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OP INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the po!ley(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsemenL A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PROOUCCA

Bays Companies

133 Federal Street, 4ch Floor

Boston MX 02110

Moira Crosby
PHONE PAX
(AN: Nn POI- (AiC N«l-

mcrosby^bay scompanies. cos

MSUREftlll AFFOftOWO COVERAGE NAICE

MSURSA A The North River Insurance Cosoanv 21105

iNSiAteo

Baster Seals Hew Bampsbire,Inc

555 Auburn Street

Mancbeeter HB 03103

INSURER a

WSURER C

MSURCR 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:19-20 WC REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO VM1ICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED.HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
km TYPE OF INSURANCE jl.'MillV.'o! POLICY NUMBER

POUCY EFF
IMMIOO/YYYYI

POUCY exp
iMM/oorrrm UMITS 1

COWtfRCMLOljrERALUABUTY

« 1 1 OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE i

-  ' 1 CLAIMS.MAC DAMLGETO RENTED
PREMISES tEAoaurTNKAl 1

MED EXP (Any ona pNtCl) 1

PERSONAL A AOV INJURY

CENL AGGREGATE UUH APPUES PER; GENERAL AGGREGATE 1

POUCY LJ j|^ 1 Iloc
OTHER:

PRODUCTS-COMP^AGG S

s

1 AUTOMOBILE UABIUTV COM8INED 5IU61E LIUIT
! (Ea aceWtftt) t

ANY AUTO

HEOULED
FTOS
M-WNED
TOS

aOULY INJURY (Pw pMon) t

AU OWNED
Airros

HIRED AUTOS

sc
AU

BODILY INJURY (Pw MdOant) S

NC
AU

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par aedPanl)

t

1 S

UMBRELLA UAS

EXCESS UAD

OCCUR

OAIMSAIAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE s

AGGREGATE t

1 MD 1 1 RETENTION t 1 I

X

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS-UAea/rv

ANY PR0PRieT0R*»ARTNeR(6X£CyTlVE 1 ]
OFRCCRMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(UAiWAtory M NH) '
It vM. Macdba tfiMr
ASCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS iMot

N/A

«0<-7)XIS2-l 1/1/3019 1/1/3020

X 1KR 1 OTU.
* 1 STATUTE 1 ER

C.L EACKACOMNT 1  1.000,000

E.L. CXSEASE ■ EA EMPLOYEE S  1,000.000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY UMIT 1  1,000,000

j

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS 1 VENtCLBS (ACORD 101, AMKIorul RMMrta SctwduM. nay b* iRadMd IT mon Bpa«a la rvquirM)

laeured Includee Haacbeoter Xlcoboliea Rebabilitatlon Inc.. dba Farnua Center

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NE 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUOES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVtSIONS.

AUTHQRIZEO REPRESENTATTVE

James Hays/MCROSB " —.

ACORD 25(2014/01)

INS028 (301401)

01988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights rsssrved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Easier Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
and Subsidiaries (Easter Seals NH), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of
Augusl3l, 2018 and 2017, and the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets,
functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements. |

I

Managemenrs Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of Internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that arc free from material misstatemcnt, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatemcnt.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatemcnt of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion. '



To the Board of Directors

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial staterhents referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Easter Seals NH as of August 31,2018 and 2017, and the changes in its net assets and
its cash flows for the years then.ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Ofher Matter

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying other financial information is presented for purposes of additional analysis rather
than to present the financial position and results of operations of the individual companies and is not a required
part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
-pr^edures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Governmeni Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 4, 2018,
on our consideration of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries' internal control over financial'
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant,
agreements and other matters. TTie purpose of thai report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of Easter Seals New Hampshire's intemal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries' intemal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

f  LuC
Manchester, New Hampshire
December 4, 2018



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31, 2018 and 2017

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments, at fair value
Program, and other accounts receivable, less contractual allowance

of $12,719,900 in 2018, and $8,302,300 in 2017, and allowance for
doubtful accounts of $2,377,500 in 2018 and $2,004,100 in 2017

Contributions receivable, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $66,600 in 2018 and $87,500 in 2017

Current portion of assets limited as to use
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Assets limited as to use, net of current portion
Fixed assets, net

Investments, at fair value
Beneficial interest in trust held by others and other assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSFT^t
Current liabilities:

Line of credit

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Current portion of capital lease obligation
Current portion of interest rate swap agreerrients
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Other liabilities
Interest rate swap agreements, less current portion
Long-term debt, less current portion, net

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets

2018 2017

$ 2,365,508 $ 3,619,043
3,002,574 2.816,344

11,083,589 9,306,185

495,957
894,523
431.780

582,508
1.566,680
432.85?

18,273,931 18,323,617

1.660,727
28,795,786
12,777,572

206.608

1,523,728
28,448,341
12,027,698

458.909

^60.782.293

$  610,319 $

2,722,563 2,417,236
5,334,857 4,773,612
704,650 1,683,805

- 20,995
244.261 348,636

1.241.671 2.008.973

10,858,321 M.253.257

1,660,727 1,417,860
1,528,323 2,293,037

21.049.598 22.285.106

35,096,969 37,249,260

19.284,594 15,834,922
2,259,129 2,683,135
5.073.932 5.014.976

26.617.655 23.533.033

714.624 $6Q.7fi2 ?Ql

Sec accompanying notes.



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTI VITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31, 2018

Public support and revenue;
Public support;

Contributions, net
Special events, net of related

direct costs of$l,027,034
Annual campaigns, net of related

direct costs of $1 17,055
Bequests
Net assets released from restrictions

Total public support

Revenue:

Fees and grants from governmental
agencies and others, net

Other grants
Dividend and interest income
Rental income

Other

Total revenue

Total public support and revenue

Operating expenses:
Program services:

Public health education

Professional education

Direct services

Total program services

Supporting services;
Management and general
Fund raising

Total supporting services

Total functional expenses
Support of National programs

Total operating expenses

Increase (decrease) in net assets
from operations

. Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

$ 1,342,659 S 631,087 $ 51,350 $ 2,025,096

1,954,318

324,504 56,838

138,000
3.157.024 (3.157.024^

4,962,187 (514,781)

63,635,700
22,473,591

575,571

27,050
I22.$^8

86.834.600

91,796,787

254,896
23,007

79.618.852

79,896,755

8,566,845
1 142.077

9.708.922

89,605,677

39.036

89.644.713

2.152,074

4

5,71

15.71

(499,070)

(499,070) 51,350

1 ,954,318

381,342

138,000

51,350 4,498,756

63,635,700"
22,473,591

591,282

27,050
122.688

86.850.311

51,350 91,349,067

254,896
23,007

79.618.852

79,896.755

8,566,845
1-142.077

9.708.922

89,605,677
39.036

89.644.713

1 ,704,354



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2018

Other non-operating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Net unrealized and realized gains

on investments

Increase in fair value of beneficial

interest in trust held by others
Loss on sales and disposals of fixed assets
Other non-operating losses

Increase (decrease) in net assets before
■  effects of discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations -
see note 14

Total increase (decrease) in net assets

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted

$ . 869,089 $ - $ _

477,782 75.633

(9.100)
n 1.893V

1.305.878

7,606

ii62)

75.064

Total

S  869,089

553,415

7,606

(9,100)
(32.462^

7.606 1.388.548

3,457,952 (424,006) 58,956 3,092,902

(8.280^

3,449,672 (424,006) . 58,956 3,084,622

'5.834.922 2.683.135 5.014.976 23.533.033

$11241521 $ 2.259 IM $1221252 $21612.555

See accompanying notes.



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31, 2017

Public support and revenue:
Public support;

Contributions, net
Special events, net of related

direct costs ofS9l 1,140
Annual campaigns, net of related

direct costs of Si 15,846
Bequests
Net assets released from restrictions

Total public support

Revenue:

Fees and grants from governmental
agencies and others, net

Other grants
Dividend and interest income

Rental income

Other

Total revenue

Total public support and revenue

Operating expenses;
Program services:

Public health education

Professional education

Direct services

Total program services

Supporting services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total supporting services

Total functional expenses
Support of National programs

Total operating expenses

Increase in net assets from operations

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

$  312.482 $ 2,025,590 $ 108.733 $ 2,446,805

160,995 1.550,279 - 1,71 1,274

62,056

r2.278.674^

1,359,251

259,979

288.456
2.278.674

3,300,586 108,733

322,035

288.456

4,768.570

61,041,718
21,339,214

546,014

27,225
132.189

83.086.360

86,386,946

280,174

30,599
76.585.361

76,896,134

7,879,91 1
1.314.200

9.194.1 11

86,090,245

?g.326

86.128.571

10,746

10.746

1,369,997 108,733

258.375 1.369.997 108,733

61,041,718
21,339,214

556,760

27,225
132.189

83.097.106

87,865,676

280,174

30,599
76.585.361

76,896,134

7,879,911
'•314.200

9.194.1 1 1

86,090,245

38.326

86.128.57!

1.737,105



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2017

Other non-operating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Net unrealized and realized gains

on investments

Increase in fair value of benencial
Interest In trust held by others

Loss on extinguishment of debt - see
note 10

Loss on sales aod disposals of fixed assets
Other non-operating (losses) gairts

Increase In net assets before effects of

discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations -
see note 14

Total increase in net assets

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted

$  846,306 S $

426,221 68,662

(63,031)
(3.146)

mm)

195.363

1,453,738

f37.73n

1,416,007

'4.4I8.9I5

HO

69.232

1 ,439,229

6,743

6.743

1 15,476

1,439,229 1 15,476

4.899.500

Total

846,306

494,883

6,743

(63.031)
(3,146)

JjlMlD

L22U28

3,008,443

f37.73n

2,970,712

^  li.834.?2; i 2.683,135 SjmSZfi

See accompanying notes.



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended August 31, 2018

Salaries and related expenses
Professional fees

Supplies
Telephone
Postage and shipping
Occupancy
Outside printing, artwork and media
Travel

Conventions and meetings
Specific assistance to individuals
Dues and subscriptions
Minor equipment purchases

and equipment rental
Ads, fees and miscellaneous

Interest

Impairment
Depreciation and amorti2ation

Public

Health

Education

SI 54,060
24,294

5,740
322

4,155

13,131

377

25,854

835

26,128

Program Services

■ Profes

sional

Education

23,007

Direct

Services

$61,117,128
6,805,177
2,316,899
407,445

21,029
2,137,530

16.639
2,364,492

170,210
1,121,594

18,734

265,539
355,489

829,763

1.671.184

SuDDorting Services

Total Program
and Supporting

0.28% 0.03% 88.85%

Excludes expenses related to discontinued operations - see note 14.

See accompanying notes.

Total

$61,271,188
6,829,471

2,322,639
407,767
25,184

2,137,530
29,770

2,364,869
219,071

1,121,594
18,734

266,374
381,617

829.763

1.671.184

89.16%

Manage
ment and Fund-

General Raising Total 2018 2017

$5,640,588 $ 795,150 $6,435,738 $67,706,926 $64,079,038
1,788,439 179.045 1,967,484 8,796,955 8,622,061

59,138 34,427 93,565 2,416,204 2,237,582
214,507 3,538 218,045 625,812 618,922
20,926 8,648 29,574 54,758 61,251

328,405 61,165 389,570 2,527,100 2,344,933
3,206 17,718 20,924 50,694 85,288

21,991 5,703 27,694 2,392,563 2,331,929
16,649 22,009 38,658 257,729 257,381
8,599 - 8,599 1,130,193 1,122,534

43,834 2,920 46,754 65,488 37,212

93,885 3.568 97,453 363,827 350,979
18,373 4,281 22.654 404,271 432,543

194,859 - 194,859 1,024,622 986384
—

- - - 767,632
113.446 3.905 117.351 1.788.535 1.754.576

$8.566.845 $1,142,077 $9.708.922 $89,605,677 $86.090.245

9.56% 1.28% 10.84% 100.00% 100.00%



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended August 31, 2017

Salaries and related expenses
Professional fees
Supplies
Telephone
Postage and shipping
Occupancy
Outside printing, artwork and media
Travel

Conventions and meetings
Specific assistance to individuals
Dues and subscriptions
Minor equipment purchases

and equipment rental
Ads, fees and miscellaneous

Interest

Impairment
Depreciation and amortization

Public

Health

Education

$164,816
49,613
4,514

108

5,503

16,940
491

20,911

59

16,999

Program Services

220

Profes

sional

Education

$  -

30,599

Direct

Services

$57,633,534
6.980,655
2,133,879
420,160

26,188
2,002,857

34,198
2,293,457

.184,289
1,102,877

27,749

265,596
275,784

781,743
767,632

1.654.763

Total

$57,798,350
7,030,268
2,138,393

420,268
31,691

2,002.857
51,138

2,293,948
235,799

1,102,877

27,749

265,655
292,783
781,743
767,632

1.654.983

Supporting Services

Manage
ment and

General

$5,291,100
1,453,388

58,328
194,042

15,258
285,179

7,694

23,797
7,697
19,657
8,407

83,969
130.640

204.641

96.114

Fund-

Raising

989,588
138,405

40,861
4,612
14,302
56.897
26,456
14,184

13,885

1,056

1,355

9,120

3.479

Total

$6,280,688
1,591,793

99,189
198,654
29,560

342,076

34,150
37,981

21,582
19,657

9.463

85,324

139,760
204,641

99.593

$251121 $21522 $76.585.361 $76.896.134 $7.879.911 $1.314.200 $9.194.

0.33% 0.04% 88.95%

Excludes expenses related to discontinued operations - see note 14.

89.32% • 9.15% 1.53% 10.68%

Total Program
and Supporting

Services ̂ penses

2017

$64,079,038
8,622,061

2,237,582
618,922
61,251

2,344,933
85,288

2,331,929
257,381

1.122,534

37,212

350,979
432,543
986384

767,632
1.754.576

$86-090-245

100.00%

Sec accompanying notes.



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended August 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities:

Increase in net assets S 3,084,622 $ 2,970.712
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to )

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment
Bad debt provision
Bond issuance costs amortization

Increase In frir value of beneficial
interest in trust held by others

Net loss (gain) on sales and disposals of fixed assets
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Net unrealized and realized gains on investments

. Temporarily restricted contributions
Permanently restricted contributions

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Program and other accounts receivable
Contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities;
Purchases of fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

and property held for sale
Change in investments, net
Change in assets limited as to use

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of long-term debt and capital lease obligation
Issuance oflong-lerm debt, net of bond issuance costs
Borrowings on lines of credit
Temporarily restricted contributions
Permanently restricted contributions

1,788,535 1,754,576
- 767,632

1,640,474 2,284,863
6,109 5,069

(7,606) (6,743)
9,100 (3.329)
- 63,031

(869,089) (846,306)
(553.415) (494,883)
(631,087) (2,025,590)
(51,350) (108,733)

(3,417,878) ■  (2,350,573)
86,551 468,453
1,076 31,026

259,908 (363,547)
866,572 275,628

(979,155) (41,683)
242.867 225.770

1,476,234 2.605,373

(2,145,080) (4,467,192)

_ 290,155
(382,689) (200,721)
535.158 (1.568.3251

(1,992,61 1) (5,946.083)

(2,029,914) (18,950,657)
- 22,081,045

610,319 -

631,087 2,025,590
51.350 108.733

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities (737.1581 5.264.711

10



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Years Ended August 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents $ (1,253,535) S 1,924 001

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3.619.043 1.69.5 042

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year S 2.365 508 % 3 619043

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid S 1.021000 S d42 non

See accompanying notes.

II



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

' August 31, 2018 and 2017.

1. Corporate Organization and Purpose

Easier Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Easter Seals NH) consists of various separate
nonprofit entities: Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. (parent and service corporation); Easter Seals Maine,
Inc. (Easter Seals ME); The Harbor Schools Incorporated (Harbor Schools) through August 31,2018 (see
note 14); Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center; and Easter Seals Vermont, Inc. (Easter Seals
VT). Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. is the sole member of each subsidia^'. Easter Seals NH is
affiliated with Easter Seals, Inc. (the national headquarters for the organization).

Effective October 26, 2016, Agency Realty, Inc. was dissolved and all properties were transferred to
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Easter Seals NH's purpose is to provide (I) programs and services for people with disabilities and other
special needs, (2) assistance to people with disabilities and their families, (3) assistance to communities
in identifying and developing needed services for residents, and (4) a climate of acceptance for people
with disabilities and other special needs which will enable them to contribute to the well-bemg of the
community. Easter Seals NH operates programs throughout New Hampshire, Maine, and Vermont.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and the
subsidiaries of which it is the sole member as described in note 1. Significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Easter Seals NH considers all highly liquid securities purchased with an original maturity of 90 days or
less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of cash, overnight repurchase agreements and money
market funds, excluding assets limited as to use.

The management of Easter Seals NH has implemented a practice to establish cash reserves on hand. As
of August 31, 2018 and 2017, approximately 52,277.000 and 51,705,000, respectively, of cash and cash
equivalents, and approximately $3,003,000 and $2,816,000, respectively, of investments were on-hand
under this practice. Because such funds are available and may be used in current operations, they have
been classified as current in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position.

Easter Seals NH maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may
exceed amounts guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Financial instruments which
subject Easter Seals to credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents and investments. Easter Seals
NH's investment portfolio consists of diversified investments, which are subject to market risk.
Investments that exceeded lOVo of investments include the Lord Abbett Short Duration Income A Fund
with a balance of $2,847,749 and $2,816,344 as of August 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2018 and 2017

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued^

Assets Limited OS lo Use and Investmenis

Assets limited as to use consists of cash and cash equivalents, short-term certificates of deposit with
original maturities greater than 90 days, but less than one year, and investments. Investments are stated
at fair value. Realized gains and losses on investments are computed on a specific identification basis.
The changes in net unrealized and realized gains and losses on investments are recorded in other non-
operating expenses, gains and losses in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and
changes In net assets. Donated securities are stated at fair value determined at the date of donation.

Beneficial Interest in Trust

Easter Seals NH is the beneficiary of a trust held by others. Easter Seals NH has recorded as an asset the
fair value of its Interest in the trust and such amount is included in permanently restricted net assets, based
on the underlying donor stipulations. The change in the interest due to fair value change is recorded
within other non-operating expenses, gains and losses as permanently restricted activity.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, and expenditures for major renovations are
capitalized. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
underlying assets. Leasehold improvements and the carrying value of equipment financed by capital
leases are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated
useful life of the asset.

Fixed assets obtained by Easter Seals NH as a result of acquisitions on or after September I, 20I I are
recorded at estimated fair value as of the date of the acquisition in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles guidance for acquisitions by a not-for-profit entity. .

Donated property and equipment not subject to donor stipulated conditions is recorded at fair value at the
date of donation. If donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded as
restricted support or, if significant uncertainties exist, as deferred revenue pending resolution of the
uncertainties. In the absence of such stipulations, contributions of property and equipment arc recorded
as unrestricted support. See also note 7.

Intanmbie Assets and Lone-Lived Assets

Accounting rules require that intangible assets with estimable or determinable useful lives be amortized
over their respective estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values, and be reviewed by
management for impairment.

Amortization expense recognized in 2017 totaled $33,131 related to a patient list obtained in the
acquisition of Webster Place in 2012 (in May 2013, Webster Place was merged with • Manchester
Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center).

13



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2018 and 2017

2- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies fContlnued>

When there is an indication of impairment, management considers whether long-lived assets are impaired
by comparing gross future undiscounied cash flows expected to be generated from utilizing the assets to
^cir carrying amounts. If cash flows arc not sufficient to recover the carrying amount of the assets,
impairment has occu^d and the assets are written down to their fair value. Significant estimates and
assumptions arc required to be made by management In order to evaluate possible impairment.

Based on current facts, estimates and assumptions, management believed that the patient list was impaired
in 2017 and recorded £132,521 in impairment to write-off the remaining book value. Additionally,
management believed that certain fixed assets were impaired in 2017 and recorded $635,1 1 1 in
impairment related to those long-term assets. No other long-lived assets were deemed impaired at
August 31, 2018 and 2017.

Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs are being amortized to interest expense using the straight-line method over the
repayment period of the related bonds, or the expected time until the next refinancing, whichever Is
shorter. Interest expense, recognized on the amortization of bond issuance costs during 2018 and 2017
was $6,109 and $5,069 respectively. The bond issuance costs are presented as a component of long-term
debt on the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position.

Revenue Recomition

Revenue generated from services provided to the public is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts
from clients, third-party payers and others based upon approved rates as services are rendered. A
significant portion, of Easter Seals NH's revenues arc derived through arrangements with third-party
payers. As such, Easter Seals NH is dependent on these payors in order to carry out its operating activities.
There is at le^t a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the
near term. Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to
be recoverable or payable are included in other fees and grants in the year that such amounts become
known.

Revenues are recognized as earned, or attributable to the period In which specific terms of the funding
agreement are satisfied, and to the extent that expenses have been incurred for the purposes specified by
the funding source. Revenue balances in excess of the foregoing amounts are accounted for as deferred
revenue until any restrictions are met or allowable expenditures are incurred.

The allowartce for doubtful accounts is provided based on an analysis by management of the collectability
of outstanding balances. Management considers the age of outstanding balances and past collection
efforts in determining the allowance for doubtful accounts. Accounts are charged against the allowance
for doubtful accounts when deemed uncollectible. The bad debt provision in 2018 and 2017 totaled
$1,640,474 and $2,284,863 respectively, and is recorded against fees and grants from governmental
agencies and others and contributions. The decrease in bad debt provision in 2018 is due to a shift to
third-party payors for services provided by Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center and changes in
payor mix. See also note 5.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2018 and 2017

2. Summary of Significant Accounting FoMcies fContinued^

Easter Seals NH has agreements with third-party payers that provide for payment at amounts different
from its established rates. Payment arrangements include discounted charges and prospectively
determined payments. Contractual allowances for program and other, accounts receivable at August 31,
2018 and 2017 were $12,719,900 and $8,302,300, respectively. The total contractual adjustments
provided in 2018 and 2017 totaled $50,71 1,300 and $42,812,400, respectively, and are recorded against
fees and grants from governmental agencies and others. The increase in contractual adjustments in 2017
and 2018 are primarily due to growth in services provided by Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation
Center and an increase in services being covered by third-party payers.

Unconditional contributions are recognized when pledged.

Advertisins

Easter Seals NH's policy is to expense advertising costs as incurred.

Functional Allocation ofExpenses '

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets. Accordingly,
certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services based mainly on time
records and estimates made by Easter Seals NH's management.

Charity Care {Unaudited)

Easter Seals NH has a formal charity care policy under which program fees are subsidized as determined
by the Board of Directors. Free and subsidized services are rendered In accordance with decisions made
by the Board of Directors and, at established charges, amounted to approximately $8,642,000 and
$6,701,000/Qr the years ended August 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Income Taxes

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., Easter Seals ME, Easter Seals VT, Harbor Schools and Manchester
Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center are exempt from both federal and state income taxes under Section
501(cX3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Agency Realty, Inc., through to the date of its dissolution (see
note I) received a determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service stating that it qualifies for lax-
exempt status under Section 501(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Tax-exempt organizations could be required to record an obligation for income taxes as the result of a lax
position historically taken on various tax-exposure items including unrelated business income or tax
status. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
assets and liabilities arc established for uncertain tax positions taken or positions expected to be taken in
income tax returns when such positions are judged to not meet the "more-likely-than-not" threshold, based
upon the technical merits of the position. '
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2018 and 2017

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (ContmuecH

Management has evaluated tax positions taken by Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and its subsidiaries
on their respective filed tax returns and concluded that the organizations have maintained their tax-exempt
status, do not have any significant unrelated business income, and have taken no uncertain tax positions
that require adjustment to or disclosure in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Use ofEsiimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United Slates of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates are used in accounting for
the allowance for doubtful accounts, contractual allowances, workers* compensation liabilities and
contingencies.

Derivaiives and Hedeirtp ActivUies

Accounting guidance requires that Easter Seals NH record as an asset or liability the fair value of the
interest rate swap agreement described in note 10. Easter Seals NH is exposed to repayment loss equal
to the net amounts receivable under the swap agreement (not the notional amount) in the event of
nonperformance of the other party to the swap agreement. However, Easier Seals NH docs not anticipate
nonperformance and does not obtain collateral from the other party.

As of August 31. 2018 and 2017, Easter Seals NH had recognized a liability of $1,772,584 and
$2,641,673, respectively, as a result of the interest rate swap agreements discussed in note 10. As a result
of changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments, Easter Seals NH recognized an
increase in net assets of $869,089 and $846,306 for the years ended August 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of activity and changes in net assets.

Increase in Net Assets from Operations

For purposes of display, transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major or central to the
provision of services are reported as revenue and expenses that comprise the increase in net assets from
operations.' The primary transactions reported as other non-operating expenses, gains and losses include
the adjustment to fair value of interest rate swaps, the change in the fair value of beneficial interest in
trust held by others, gains and losses on sales and disposals of fixed assets, and net realized and unrealized
gains and losses on investments.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2018 and 2017

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

in May 2014, the FASB issued No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (ASU 20)4-09),
which requires revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services arc transferred to customers in
amounts that reflect the consideration to which Easter Seals NH expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods and services. ASU 2014-09 will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance when it
becomes effective. ASU 2014-09 is effective for Easter Seals NH on September 1,2019. ASU 2014-09
permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. Management is
currently evaluating the impact that ASU 2014-09 will have on Easter Seals NH's consolidated financial
statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which requires that lease
arrangements longer than twelve months result in an entity recognizing an asset and liability. The
pronouncement is effective for Easter Seals NH beginning September 1, 2020, with early adoption
permitted. The guidance may be adopted retrospectively. Management is currently evaluating the impact
this guidance will have on Easter Seals NH's consolidated financial statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-14, Not-for-Prqfit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of
Financial Statements ofNot-for-Prqfit Entities (ASU 2016-14). Under ASU 2016-14, there is a change
in presentation and disclosure requirements for not-for-profit entities to provide more relevant
information about their resources (and the changes in those resources) to donors, grantors, creditors, and
other users. These include qualitative and quantitative requirements in net asset classes, investment
retum, expenses, liquidity and availability of resources and presentation of operating cash flows. ASU
2016-14 is effective for Easter Seals NH on September 1, 2018. Management is currently evaluating the
impact of the pending adoption of ASU 2016-14 on Easter Seals NH's consolidated financial statements.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidancefor
Contributions Received and Contributions Made. Due to diversity in practice, ASU 2018-08 clarifies the
definition of an exchange transaction as well as the criteria for evaluating whether contributions are
unconditional or conditional. ASU 2018-08 is effective for Easter Seals NH on September 1, 2019, with
early adoption permitted. Easter Seals NH is currently evaluating the impact that ASU 2018-08 will have
on its consolidated financial statements.

i

Subsequent Events

Events occurring afler the statement of fin^cial position date are evaluated by management to determine
whether such events should be recognized or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.
Management has evaluated events occurring between the end of Easter Seals NH's fiscal year end and
December 4,2018, the date these consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. See also
note 15.



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLiDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Augusl3l,20l8and 2017

3. Classification of Net Assets

In accordance with the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), net assets
arc classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Gifts are
reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit the use of donated assets. Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by
Easter Seals NH has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. When a donor restriction
expires (when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated statements
of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. Permanently restricted net
assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained by Easter Seals NH in perpetuity, the income from
which is expendable to support all activities of the organization, or as stipulated by the donor.

Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions arc met within the same year as received are reported
as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with UPMIFA, Easier Seals NH considers the following factors in makings determination
to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment fiinds: (a) the duration and preservation of the
fund; (b) the purpose of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund; (c) general economic
conditions; (d) the possible effect of inflation and deflation; (e) the expected total return from income and
the appreciation of investments; (f) other resources of the organization; and (g) the investment policies of
the organization.

Endowment Net Asset Composition bv Type ofFund

The major categories of endowment funds at August 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018

Camping program
Other programs
Operations

Total endowment net assets

2017

Camping program
Other programs
Operations

Total endowment net assets

Temporarily
Restricted

$ 4,760

61,066

Permanently
Restricted Total

S6S.826

$ 4,052
52,585

$ 365,969 $ 370,729
464,175 525,241

4.055.536 4.055.536

H.885.W ^4.95I.5Q6

:  365,969
430,204

3.994.823

$ 370,021
482,789

3.994.823

S 56,637 S4.79Q.996 S4.847.633

18



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2018 and 2017

3. Classification of Net A sscts (Continued^

Chanoes in Endowment Net Assets

During the years ended August 31,2018 and 2017, Easter Seals NH had the following endowment*related
activities;

Temporarily
Restricted

Permanently
Restricted Total

Net endowment assets. August 31, 2016

Investment return:

Investment income, net of fees
Net appreciation (realized and unrealized)

Contributions

Appropriated for expenditure

Net endowment assets, August 31, 2017

Investment return:

Investment income, net of fees

Net appreciation (realized and unrealized)
Contributions

Appropriated for expenditure

Net endowment assets, August 31,2018

S  15,046 $4,640,631 $4,655,677

25,641

20,017

imi)

150,365

25,641
20,017

150,365
f4.Q671

56,637 4,790,996 4,847,633

75,165
25,632

f9l.6081

S fi5.876

94,684

75,165

25,632
94,684

iiLM)

In addition to endowment net assets, Easter Seals NH also maintains non-endowed funds. The major
categories of non-endowment funds, at August 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018

Veterans program
Other programs
Operations

Total non-endowment net assets

2017

Veterans program
Other programs
Operations

Total non-endowment net assets

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted

Total Non-

Permanently Endowment
Restricted Net Assets

19.284.594

$1,129,223
291,994
772.086

X19.284.594 $2.193.303

$  - $ 715,361
184,462

15.834.922 1.726.675

$15^222 X2.626.498

$

188.252

$188.252

S

223.980

$223.980

$ 1,129,223
291,994

20.244.932

X21.666.149

$  715,361
184,462

X18-6RS.4Q0

19



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2018 and 2017

3. Classification of Net Assets (Continued^

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor requires Easter Seals NH to retain as a fund of permanent duration.
Deficiencies of this nature are reported in unrestricted net assets. There were no deficiencies between the
fair value of the investments of the endowment funds and the level required by donor stipulation at
August 31, 2018 or 2017.

/nvestmeni and Soendim Policies

Easter Seals NH has adopted investment and spending policies- for endowment assets that attempt to
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-
restricted funds that Easter Seals NH must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period. Under this
policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that is
intended to produce results that exceed the price and yield results of an appropriate market index while
assuming a moderate level of investment risk. Easter Seals NH expects its endowment funds to provide
an average rate of return over a five year period equal to the rate of 2% over the inflation rate. Actual
returns in any given year may v^ from this amount.

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-retum objectives, Easter Seals NH relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current
yield (interest and dividends). Easter Seals NH targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater
emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk
constraints.

Easter Seals NH may appropriate for distribution some or all of the earnings and appreciation on its
endowment for funding of operations. In establishing this policy, Easter Seals NH considered the
objective to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified
term as well as to, so long as it would not detract from Easter Seals NH's critical goals and initiatives,
provide additional real growth through new gifts and investment return.

4. Contributions Receivable

Contributions receivable from donors as of August3l, 2018 and 2017 are $599,597 and $946,055,
respectively, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $66,600 and $87,500, respectively. The long-
term portion of contributions receivable are recorded in other assets in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position. Gross contributions are due as follows at August 31, 2018:

2019 $562,557
2020 63,940
2021 36,200
2022 3.?9P

$666.197

20



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2018 and 2017

5. Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center Revenues

Revenues related to providing health services are recorded net of contractual allov/ances, discounts and
■  any provision for bad debts. Substantially all such adjustments in 20l8ar)d:-2dl7arerelated to Manchester

Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center. An estimated breakdown of Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation
Center's revenue, net of contractual allowances, discounts and provision for bad debts recorded in fees
and grants from governmental agencies and others recognized in 2018 and 2017 from major payor
sources, is as follows:

2018

Private payers (includes coinsurance
and deductibles)

Medicaid

Medicare

Self-pay

201

Private payors (includes coinsurance
and deductibles)

Medicaid

Medicare

Self-pay

Gross

Revenues

$33,571,171
31,615,594

85,060
275.991

Contractual

Allowances

and

Discounts

Provision

for

Bad Debts

$(20,973,855) $(1,057,046)
(27,988,142) (148,056)

(8,159)
(168.4601 (85.8721

Revenues. Net

$11,540,270
3,479,396

76,901
21.659

S(1.29Q.9741 $l5.ll8.2?fi

$33,264,634

23,941,745
577,683
632,930

$(21,055,057)
(20,604,836)

(18,639)
(98.1801

$(1,855,504)
(164,539)

(87)
(209.1281

$10,354,073
3,172,370

558,957
325.622

SH1.776.7J2) Sf2.2292581 $14 41 1097

6. Leases

Ooeraiinp

Easter Seals NH leases certain assets under various arrangcrrlents which have been classified as operating
leases. Total expense under all leases (including month-to-month leases) was approximately $1,016,000
and $ 1,046,000 for the years ended August 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Some of these leases have
terms which include renewal options, and others may be terminated at Easter Seals NH's option without
substantial pcnalt>;. Future minimum payments required under the leases in effect at August 31, 2018,
through the remaining contractual term of the underlying lease agreements, are as follows:

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

$741,937
456,177

311,365
224,162
31,706



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2018 and 2017

6. Leases fContinuedl

Capiial

In 2015, Easter Seals NH entered into a three year lease agreement with a bank for certain computer
equipment. This lease ended in 2018. Payments made under this agreement for the years ended
August 31, 2018 and 2017 were $20,995 and $60,617, respectively. TTie assets arc fully amortized as of
August 31, 2018. The carrying value of assets recorded under the capital lease totaled $ 17,533, net of
accumulated amortization of $ 161,286 at August 31,2017. Amortization expense related to the above
capital lease is a component of depreciation expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of
functional expenses. Interest expense recognized on the capital lease in 2018 and 2017 was insignificant.

7. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist of the following at August 3

2018 2017

Buildings $ 30,906,387 S 27,501,343
Land and land improvements 3,331,184 2,989,333
Leasehold improvements 140,442 120,539
Office equipment and fumiture 9,380,281 8,609,250
Vehicles 2,641,876 2,750,511
Construction in progress 2.806.165

46,577,856 44,777,141
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization n7.782.0701 n 6.328.8001

Depreciation and amortization expense related to fixed assets totaled $ 1,788,535 and $ 1,721,445 in 2018
and 2017, respectively.

During 2012, Easter Seals NH received a donated building with an estimated fair value of approximately
$1,100,000. Under the terms of the donation, for a period of six years, Easter Seals NH must continue to
use the building as a child care center. Should Easter Seals NH cease to operate the program, or wish to
sell or donate the property, Easter Seals NH must first provide the donor with the opportunity to purchase
the property for $1. The contribution representing the fair value of the building was recorded as deferred
revenue at August 31, 2017. As of December 2017 the terms of the donation were met and Easter Seals
NH recognized the remaining balance of $937,292 in unrestricted contributions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2018 and 2017

S. Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Investments and assets limited as to use, at fair value, arc as follows at August 31:

Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable equity securities
Mutual funds

Corporate and foreign bonds
Government and agency securities

Less: assets limited as to use

Total investments, at fair value

2018

S 1,200,834
1,716,059

14,084,488
873,487
460.528

18,335,396
(2.555.250^

2017

$ 1,873,318
1,450,878

13,244,995
940,042
425.217

17,934,450
(3.090.408^

SIS,780,146 Sl4.a44Q42

The composition of assets limited as to use at August 31, 2018 and 2017 is set forth in the table shown
below at fair value. The portion of assets limited as to use that is required for obligations classified as
current liabilities is reported in current assets.

Under a deferred compensation plan (see note 9):
Investments

Maintained in escrow to make required payments
on revenue bonds (sec note 10):

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets limited as to use

2018 2017

$1,660,727 $1,417,727

m521 1.672.681

simm

The principal components of investment income and net realized and unrealized gains included in
continuing operations and other non-operating expenses, gains and losses arc summarized below.

Unrestricted Investment income and unrealized
and realized gains on investments:

Dividend and interest Income >
. Net unrealized gains
Net realized gains

Restricted investment income and unrealized
and realized gains on investments:

Dividend and interest income
Net unrealized gains
Net realized gains

2018

575,571
164,958
312.824

15,711

14,335
61.298

91.344

2017

$ 546,014
305,131
121.090

1 ,053,353 972.235

10,746
51,569
17.093

79.408

Sl.144.6?? ^10^1643
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2018 and 2017

9. Retirement Plans

Easter Seals NH maintains a Section 403(b) Plan (a defined contribution retirement plan), which covers
substantially all employees. Eligible employees may contribute any whole percentage of their annual
salary. Easter Seals NH makes a matching contribution for eligible employees equal to 100% of the
participants' elective deferrals limited to 2% of the participants' allowable compensation each pay period.
The combined amount of employer and employee contributions Is subject by law to annual maximum
amounts. The employer match was approximately $579,000 and $479,000 for the years ended August 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. offers, to certain management personnel, the option to participate in
an Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan to which the organization may make
a discretionary contribution. The employees' accounts are not available until termination, retirement,
death or an unforeseeable emergency. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. contributed approximately
$99,500 and $106,000 to this plan during the years ended August 31,2018 and 2017, respectively. The
assets and liabilities associated with this plan were $1,660,727 and $1,417,727 at August31, 2018 and
2017, respectively, and are included within assets limited as to use and other liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position.

10. Borrowings

Borrowings consist of the following at August 31:

2018 2017
Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A, lax exempt, issued through the New

Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (NHHEFA),
with an annual LIBOR-based variable rate equal to the sum of
(a) 0.6501 times one-month LIBOR, plus (b) 0.6501 times 2.45%
(2.95% at August 31, 2018), due in annual principal payments
increasing from $40,417 to $62,917 with a final payment of
$6,875,413 due in May 2027, secured by a pledge of all gross
revenues and negative pledge of cash, investments and real estate. $ 12,226,664 $ 12,705,000

Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B, tax exempt, issued through NHHEFA,
with a fixed rate at 3.47%, annual principal payments continually
increasing from $15,810 to $21,180 with a final payment of
$5,404,249 due in May 2027, secured by a pledge of all gross
revenues and negative pledge of cash, investments and real estate. 7,724,289 9,052,520

Various notes payable to a bank with fixed interest rates ranging from
2.24% to 2.50%, various principal and interest payments ranging
from $1 1 1 to $2,923 payable monthly through dates ranging from
September 2018 through September 2021, secured by vehicles with
anetbookvalueof$267,979at August3l,20l8. 179,929 312,440
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 20)8 and 2017

10. Borrowings (Continued)

2018 2017

Mortgage note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 3.25%. Principal
and interest of $12,200 payable monthly, due in February 2030,
secured by an interest in certain property with a net book value of
$4,883,943 at August 31, 2018. $ 2.285.333 $ 2.3S5.I74

22.416.215 24,425,134

Less current portion 1,241,671 2,008,973
Less net unamortized bond issuance costs 124.946 131.055

$2Lm25 S22.285.1Q6

Principal payments on long-term debt for each of the following years ending August 31 are as follows:

2019 $ 1,241,671
2020 857,166
2021 881,731
2022 876,813
2023 914,374
Thereafter 17.644.460

Lines ofCredit and Other FinancinB Arraneemenls

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. had an agreement with a bank for a $500,000 nonrevolving equipment
line of credit. The line of credit was used to fund the purchase of New Hampshire titled vehicles for use
by Easter Seals NH through April 2, 2014. The interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings was at a
fixed rate at the then prime rate minus 0.75% for maturities up to a five-year term. Upon maturity of this
agreement, the balances outstanding under the note payable at August 31,2014 were converted to various
term notes secured by vehicles, as described above. Included in long-term debt are three notes payable
totaling $7,185 and four notes payable totaling $58,244 at August 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. also has an agreement with a bank for a $500,000 revolving equipment
line, which can be used to fund the purchase of New Hampshire titled vehicles for use by Easter Seals
NH on demand. Advances are converted to term notes as utilized. The interest rate charged on
outstanding borrowings is at a fixed rate equal to the then Business Vehicle Rate at the time of the advance
for maturities up to a five year term. Included in long-term debt arc twenty-four notes payable totaling
$172,744 and twenty-five notes payable totaling $254,196 at August 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively,
that originated under this agreement. Availability under this agreement at August 31, 2018 and 2017 is
$327,256 and $245,804, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2018 and 2017

ID. Borrowings (Continued^
I

On August 31, 2015, Easter Seals NH entered into a revolving line of credit with a bank. Borrowing
availability is up to $4 million (a portion of which is secured by available letters of credit of $38,000).
Outstanding advances are due on demand. The interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings was at
LIBOR rounded up to the nearest one-eighth of one percent plus 2.25%, subsequently amended twice
(once in January 2017 to LIBOR rounded up to the nearest one-eighth of one percent plus 2.10% and in
May 2018 to LIBOR rounded up to the nearest one-eighth of one percent plus 1.90%) (4.03% at
August 31, 2018). Under an event of default, the interest rate will increase from LIBOR plus 1.90% to
LIBOR plus 5.25%. The line is secured by a first priority interest in all business assets of Easter Seals
New Hampshire, Inc. with guarantees from Easter Seals VT and Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation
Center. The agreement requires that collective borrowings under the line of credit be reduced to
$ 1,000,000 for 30 consecutive days during each calendar year. Amounts outstanding under this revolving
line of credit agreement at August 31, 2018 were $610,319. There was no outstanding balance at
August 31, 2017.

NHHEFA 2016A and 2016B Revenue Bonds

On December 20, 2016, Easter Seals NH issued $13,015,000 in Series 20I6A Tax Exempt Revenue
Bonds. These bonds were used to refinance the Series 2004A Revenue Bonds.

Also, on December 20, 2016, Easter Seals NH issued $9,175,000 in Series 20I6B Tax Exempt Revenue
Bonds. The bonds were issued to refinance an existing mortgage and to.obtain funds for certain planned
capital projects.

In connection with the refinancing of the 2004A revenue bonds in 2017, Easter Seals NH incurred a loss
on extinguishment of debt totaling $63,031, primarily related to the write-off of certain unamortized bond
issuance costs.

Mortgage Notes Payable

On February 18, 2015, Easter Seals NH and Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center entered into a
$2,480,000 mortgage note payable to finance the acquisition of certain property localed.in Franklin, New
Hampshire. The initial interest rate charged is fixed at 3.25%. Monthly principal and interest payments
are $12,200, and all remaining outstanding principal and interest is due on February 18, 2030. The note
is secured by the property.

Interest Rate Swap Agreement

Easter Seals NH has an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in connection with the Series 2004A
NHHEFA Revenue Bonds. On December I, 2016, an amendment to this agreement was executed in
anticipation of the refinancing of the 2004A revenue bonds to change the interest rate charged from 3.54%
to 3.62% and the floating rate from LIBOR times 0.67 to LIBOR limes 0.6501. The swap agreement had
an outstanding notional amount of $12,226,664 and $12,705,000 at August3l, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, which reduces in conjunction with principal reductions until the agreement is terminated in
November 2034.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31. 2018 and 2017

10. Borrowings (Continued)

The fair value of the above Interest rate swap agreement totaled $1,772,584 and $2,641,673 at August 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively, $244,261 and $348,636 of which was current at August 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. During the years ended August 31, 2018 and 2017 net payments required by the agreement
totaled $323,938 and $401,992, respectively. These payments have been Included In interest expense
within the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets. See note 13 with
respect to fair value determinations.

Debt Covenants

In connection with the bonds, lines of credit and various other notes payable described above, Easter Seals
NH is required to comply with certain financial covenants including, but not limited to, minimum liquidity
and debt service coverage ratios. At August 31,2018, Easter Seals NH was in compliance with restrictive
covenants specified under the NHHEFA bonds and other debt obligations.

11. Donated Services

A number of volunteers have donated their lime in connection with Easter Seals NH's program services
^d fundraising campaigns. However, no amounts have been reflected in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements for such donated services, as no objective basis is available to measure the value.

12. Related Party Transacttons

Easter Seals NH is a member of Easter Seals, Inc. Membership fees to Easter Seals, Inc. were $39,036
and $38,326 for the years ended August 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and arc reflected as support of
National programs on the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets.

13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at their measurement date. In
determining fair value, Easter Seals NH uses various methods including market, income and cost
approaches, and utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in factors used in the valuation. These
factors may be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable. Easter Seals NH
utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable factors and minimizes the use of
unobservable factors.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2018 and 2017

13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments f^Continutdt

Certain of Easter Seals NH's financial instruments are reported at fair value, which include beneficial
interest held in trust, investments and the interest rate swap, and arc classified by levels that rank the
quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair value:

Level 1 - Valuations for financial instruments traded in active exchange markets, such as the New
York Stock Exchange. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market
transactions involving identical instruments.

Level 2 - Valuations for financial instruments traded in less active dealer or broker markets.
Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar instruments.

Level 3 - Valuations for financial instruments derived from other methodologies. Including option
pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not based on market
exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions
and projections in determining fair value.

The following describes the valuation methodologies used to measure financial assets and liabilities at
fair value. The levels relate to valuation only and do not necessarily indicate a measure of investment
risk. There have been no changes in the methodologies used by Easter Seals NH at August 31. 2018 and
2017.

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Cash and cash equivalents arc deemed to be Level I. The fair values of marketable equity securities, and
mutual funds that are based upon quoted prices in active markets for. identical assets are reflected as
Level 1. Investments in certain government and agency securities and corporate and foreign bonds where
securities arc transparent and generally are based upon quoted prices in active markets are valued by the
investment managers and reflected as Level 2.

Beneficial Interest in Trust Held bv Others

The beneficial interest in trust held by others has been assigned fair value levels based on the fair value
levels of the underlying Investments within the trust. The fair values of marketable equity securities,
money market and mutual funds are based upon quoted prices in active markets for Identical assets and
arc reflected as Level 1. Investments in marketable equity securities and mutual funds where securities
are transparent and generally are based upon quoted prices in active markets are valued by the Investment
managers and reflected as Level 2.

Interest Rate Swap Asreemeni

The fair value for the interest rate swap liability is included in Level 3 and is estimated by the counterparty
using industry standard valuation models. These models project future cash flows and discount the future
amounts to present value using markcl»based observable inputs, including interest rates.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2018 and 2017

13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments ̂ Continued)

At August 31,2018 and 2017, Easter Seals NH's assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis were classified as follows;

Uv?! 1 Lev?l2 Level 3 Total
2018

Assets:

Assets limited as to use and investments

at fair value;

Cash and cash equivalents S 1,200,834 S — S _ $ 1,200,834
Marketable equity securities:

Large-cap 1,182,262 - _ 1,182,262
International 533,797 — _ 533,797

Mutual funds, open-ended:
Short-term fixed income 4,387,471 — 4,387,471
Intermediate-term bond fund 1,037,110 - _ 1,037,1 10
High yield bond fund 81,169 — _ 81,169
Foreign bond 30,620 — — 30,620
Government securities 377,563 — _ 377,563
Emerging markets bond 56,094 — _ 56,094
International equities 1,091,145 - — 1,091,145
Domestic, large-cap 1,1 13,968 -

— 1,113,968
Domestic, small-cap 269,615 — — 269,615
Domestic, mulli alt 736,276 - 736,276
Real estate fund 197,057 — _ 197,057

Mutual funds, closed-ended:
Domestic, large-cap 3,172,644 _ _ 3,172,644
Domestic, mid-cap 588,528 - 588,528
Domestic, small-cap 428,019 - _ 428,019
International equity 517,209 —

_ 517,209
Corporate and foreign bonds - 873,487 873,487
Government and agency securities - 460.528 460.528

S17.001.181 $1 s - Sli335.396

Beneficial interest in trust held by others:
Money market funds $  7,096 s s _ S  7,096
Marketable equity securities:

'  Large-cap 71,948. _ _ 71,948
Mutual funds:

Domestic fixed income 23.924 1 23.924

S  79.044 $ 23.924 $ S  102.968

Liabilities:

Interest rate swap agreement $ s $1.772.584 S 1.772.584
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANClAl. STATEMENTS

August 31, 2018 and 2017

13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments fContinuedl

Level

2017

Assets:

Assets limited as to use and investments

at fair value:

Level 2 Level 3

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,873,318 a
Marketable equity securities:

Large-cap 1,139,744 —

International 31 1,134 —

Mutual funds, open-ended:

Short-term fixed income 4,254,127
Intermediate-term bond fund 1,098,931 _

High yield bond fund 52,926 _

Foreign bond 34,863 -

Government securities 491,892 _

Emerging markets bond 64,867
International equities 977,737 -

Domestic, large-cap 859,050 —

Domestic, small-cap 339,680 _

Domestic, multi alt 861,055 _

Real estate fund 188,220 _

Mutual funds, closed-ended:

Domestic, large-cap 2,949,475 —

Domestic, mid-cap 499,421 —

Domestic, small-cap 240,364
Fixed Income and bond 4,577 _

International equity 327,810 _

Corporate and foreign bonds
-  ' 940,042

Covcmment and agency securities

Beneficial interest in trust held by others:
Money market funds

Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap

Mutual funds:

Domestic fixed income

Liabilities:

Interest rate swap agreement

42S.2I7

S16.569.I91 SI.36S.2S9 $_

$  7,943 $ - $

66,063

21.357

S,

Total

$ 1,873,318

1,139,744

31 1,134

4,254,127

1,098,931

52,926

34,863
491,892
64,867

977,737
859,050

339,680

861,055
188,220

2,949.475
499,421
240,364

4,577

327,810
940,042
425.217

$  7,943

66,063

2Lm

— 5

S 2.641.673
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2018 and 2017

13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of Easter Seals NH's Level 3 liabilities
for the years ended August 31, 2018 and 2017:

Interest

Rate Swap

Ending balance, August 31, 2016 $(3,487,979)

Unrealized gain, net 846.306

Ending balance, August 31, 2017 (2,641,673)

Unrealized gain, net 869.089

Ending balance, August 31, 2018 $n.772 S«4'>

14. Discontinued Operations

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include various programs and entities that arc
reported as discontinued.operations, as follows:

•  On January 25,2012, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NH voted to close Harbor Schools
and cease all operations of this subsidiary. Effective August 31, 2018 the dissolution of Harbor
Schools was finalized.

•  On June 23 2017, Easter Seals NH sold the last property at 57 Webster Street.

TTte management of Easter Seals NH has determined that the closure of each of these programs/entities
met the criteria for classification as discontinued operations. The decisions to close the programs/entities
were based on performance factors.
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EASTCR SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2018 and 2017

14. Discontinued Operations (Continued^

The summary statement of fmancial position for Harbor Schools as of August 31, 2017 was as follows:

Harbor

. Schools

Total assets < S20l,786

Net assets:

Unrestricted 149,764
Temporarily restricted 28,196
Permanently restricted 23,826

There were no remaining balances as of August 31,2018 for Harbor Schools noted above for purposes of
summary statement of financial position presentation.

Summary statements of activities for each of the above discontinued prcgrams/enlities for the years ended
August 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Harbor Schools New Hampshire

2018 2017 2018 2017

Total public support and revenue $ 1,203 $ 1,123 $ - $ -
Operating expenses - (10,035) - (34,741)
Other non-operating expenses (1,771) (553) - -
Gain on sale of properties, net ■ - - - 6.475

Loss from discontinued operations S (5681 S f9.4651 S (28.2661

In addition, the accompanying consolidated financial statements include losses from various other
discontinued operations totaling $7,712 in 2018.
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CASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-  August 31,2018 and 2017

15. Acquisition of The Homemakers Health Services. Inc.

On May 4, 2018, Easter Seals NH entered into a letter of intent to affiliate with The Homemakers Health
Services, Inc. (the Organization). On September I, 2018, Easter Seals NH acquired the Organization for
no consideration. The Organization was not controlled by Easter Seals NH prior to this agreement. This
affiliation will be accounted for in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles guidance on
acquisitions by a not-for-profit entity. The Homemakers Health Services, Inc. had total net operating
revenue of approximately $289,000 (unaudited) for the two months ended August 31, 2018, and
$2,330,000 for year ended June 30, 2018. Tlie financial position of The Homemakers Health Services,
Inc. as of September I, 2018 (unaudited), is as follows;

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets

Fixed assets, net

Total assets

Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Debt

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Unrestricted net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

(Unaudited!

S  1 19,865

148,613
'030-882

$1222^

$  51,250
107,746
125.685

284,681

'■014.679
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31, 2018

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments, at fair value
Accounts receivable from affiliates
Program and other accounts receivable, net
Contributions receivable, net
Current portion of assets limited as to use
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Assets limited as to use, net of current portion

Fixed assets, net

Investments, at fair value

Beneficial interest in tnist held by others
and other assets

Harbor
• New Schools, Elimin-

Hamoshire Vermont Maine Inc. ation.s Total

S 2,327,419 $  29,169 $  8,920 S - s $ 2,365,508
3,002,574

-
- - 3,002,574

2,335,205 1,450,563 -
- (3,785,768) __

10,427,498 566,808 89,283 _ 11,083,589
492,283 1,020 2,654 - 495,957
894,523 - - - 894,523
389.913 13.440 28.427 _

431 780

19,869,415 2,061.000 129,284 - (3,785,768) 18,273,931

I.W 1,337 19,390 -
-

- 1,660,727

28,725,627 51,923 18,236
- - 28,795,786

12,777,572 -
-

-• - 12,777,572

206.608
206 608

S63.22Q.5S9 S  147.520 5(3.785.768^ 561.714.624
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Harbor

Current liabilities;

Line of credit

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accounts payable to affiliates
Deferred revenue
Current portion of interest rate swap agreements
Current portion of long-term debt

* New

Hamoshire Vermont Maine

Schools,
Inc.

Elimin

ations

$  610,319
2,709,560
5,295,718

685,999
244,261

1.241.671

$

12,816
8,054

11,540

S

187

31,085

3,785,768
7,111

S - S

(3.785,768)

Total current liabilities 10,787,528 32,410 3,824,151 _ (3.785,768)

Other liabilities

Interest rate swap agreements, less current portion
Long-term debt, less current portion, net

1,641,337
1,528,323

21.049.598

19,390 -

- -

Total liabilities 35,006,786 51,800 3,824,151 _ (3,785,768)

Net assets (deficit):
Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

20,883,776
2,256,065
5.073.932

2,075,949
4,564

(3.675,131)
(1.500)

- -

Total net assets (deficit)
28J213.773 2.080.513 G.676.63n

S2.132,3I3 S_ 147.520 Sn.785.76R^

•  Includes Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center.
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Total

S  610,319

2,722,563
5,334,857

704,650
244,26!

1.241.671

10,858,321

1,660,727
1,528,323

21.049.598

19,284,594

2,259,129
5.073.932

26.617.655



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31, 2017

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments, at fair value
Accounts receivable from affiliates

Program and other accounts receivable, net
Contributions receivable, net
Current portion of assets limited as to use
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Assets limited as to use, net of current portion

Fixed assets, net

Investments, at fair value

Beneficial interest in trust held by others
and other assets

Harbor
• New Schools, Elimin

Hamoshire Vermont Maine Inc. ations Tpta!

$ 3,589,555 S  19,385 $ 10,103 $ S S 3,619,043
2,816.344 - - —

— 2,816,344
1,489,181 1,668,124 - 149,764 (3,307,069) -

8,599,952 691,294 14,939 - — 9,306,185
568,342 920 13,246 - — 582,508

1,566,680 - - — — 1,566,680
389.372 12.775 30.710 —

_ 432.857

19,019,426 2,392.498 68,998 149,764 (3,307,069) 18,323,617

1,511,218 12,510 - - - 1,523,728

28,359,254 75,573 13,514 -
- 28,448,341

1 1,975,676 - - 52,022 - 12,027,698

458.909 458.909

S6I.324.483 S2.480.58l S S201.786 S (3.307.069^ S60.782.293
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSFT?^

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Accounts payable to afTiliates
Deferred revenue
Current portion of capital lease obligation
Current portion of interest rate swap agreements
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Other liabilities

Interest rate swap agreements, less current portion
Long-term debt, less current portion, net

Total liabilities

Net assets (deficit):
Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets (deficit)

• New

Hampshire

$ 2,388,870
4,750.875

1,635,253
20,995

348,636
2.008.973

11,153,602

1,405,350
2,293,037

22.285.106

37,137,095

16,553,419
2,642,819
4.991.150

Vermont

S  25,812 $

33,557

59,369

12,510

2,401,641

7,061

Maine

2,554

22,737

3,307,069
14,995

3,347,355

71,879 3,347,355

(3,269.902)
5,059

Harbor

Schools,
Inc.

149,764

28,196
23.826

24.187.388 2.408.702 (3.264.843^ 201.786

^■^24483 $2d5im S 82.5I7 S20l.78fi

Elimin-
ations

(3,307,069)

Total

$ 2,417,236
4,773,612

1,683,805
20,995

348,636

(3,307,069) 11.253,257

1.417,860
2,293,037

-  22.285.106

(3,307,069) 37,249,260

15,834,922
2,683,135
5.014.976

23.533.033

Includes Agency Realty, Inc. through October 26, 2016 (sec note I) and Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31, 2018

Public support and revenue:
Public support:

Contributions, net
Special events, net
Annual campaigns, net
Bequests

Total public support

Revenue:

Fees and grants from governmental agencies
and others, net

Other grants
Dividend and interest income

Rental income

Intercompany revenue
Other

Total revenue

Total public support and revenue

Operating expenses:
Program services:

Public health education

Professional education

Direct services

Total program services

* New

Hampshire

S 1,913,486
1,898,837
371,433
138.000

4,321,756

58,082,135

21,165,950
591,280
27,050

741,597
110.189

80.718.201

85,039,957

246,678
23,007

72.888.726

73,158,41 1

Vermont

28,113
394

4,761

33,268

5,261,341

1,060,871
2

12.475

6.334.689

6,367,957

7,099

6.001.327

6,008,426

Maine

143,732

292,224

246,770

24

539.018

682,750

i;ii9

761.733

762,852

Harbor

Schools,

Inc.

83,497 $

55,087

5,148

Elimin

ations

(741,597)

Total

$ 2,025,096

1,954,318
38i,342
138.000

4,498,756

63,635,700
22,473,591

591,282

27,050

122.688

(741.5973 86.850.311

(741,597) 91,349,067

254,896
23,007

(32.9343 79.618.852

(32,934) 79,896,755
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• New

Hampshire Vermont Maine

Harbor

Schools,
Inc.

Elimin

ations Total
Supporting services:

Mans^ement and general
Pundraising

$ 8,536,262
869.629

5 614,425
73.295

$  124,821
199.153

S $(708,663) $ 8,566,845
1.142.077

Total supporting services 9.405.891 687.720 323.974 (708.663) 9.708.922

Total functional expenses 82,564,302 6,696,146 1,086,826 - (741,597) 89,605,677

Support of National programs 39.036 39.036

Total operating expenses 82.603.338 6.696.146 1.086.826 (741.597) 89.644.713

increase (decrease) in net assets from operations 2,436,619 (328,189) (404,076) -
- 1,704,354

Other non>operattng expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Net unrealized and realized gains on investments
Increase in fair value of beneficial interest in trust held by others
Loss on sales and disposals of fixed assets
Other non-operating expenses

869,089
553,415

7,606

(9,100)
f32.4623

-

-

-

-

869.089
553,415

7,606

(9.100)
(32.462)

*

1,388,548 - - - - 1,388,548

Loss from discontinued operations (7.712) (568) (8.280)

Increase (decrease) in net assets before effects
of dissolution of an affiliate

Dissolution ofan a^iliate
3,825,167
201.218

(328,189) (411,788) (568)
(201.218)

- 3,084,622

Total increase (decrease) in net assets 4,026,385 (328,189) (41 1,788) (201,786) - 3,084,622

Net assets (deficit) at beginning of year 24.187.388 2.408.702 (3.264.843) 201.786 23.533.033

Net assets (deficit) at end of year S28.213.773
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31,2017

Public support and revenue:
Public support:

Contributions, net
Special events, net
Annual campaigns, net
Bequests

Total public support

' Revenue:

Fees and grants from governmental agencies
and others, net

Other grants
Dividend and interest income
Rental income

Intercompany revenue
Other

Total revenue

Total public support and revenue

Operating expenses:
Program services:

Public health education

Professional education
Direct services

Total program services

* New

Hampshire

$ 2,330,292
1,627,232

292,955
288.456

4,538,935

54,830,934

19,998,951
556,758

27,225
759,869
129.094

76.302.831

80,841,766

272,981
30,599

69.254.921

69,558,501

Vermont

22,084

3,917

10,473

36,474

5,065.405

1,002,769

2

LOOO

6.069.176

6,105,650

7,179

5.620.706

5,627,885

Maine

193,161

1,145,379
337,494

2jm

1.484.968

1,678,129

14

1.751.400

1,751,414

Harbor

Schools,
Inc.

94,429 $

80,125
18,607

Elimin-

ations

(759,869)

Total

$ 2,446,805
1,711,274

322,035
288.456

4,768,570

61,041,718
21,339,214

556,760

27,225

132.189

(759.8691 83.097.106

(759,869) 87,865,676

280,174

30,599
(41.6661 76.585.361

(41,666) 76,896,134
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SuppOTting services:
Management and gencnd
Fundraising

•New

Hampshire Vermont Maine

Harbor

Schools,
Inc.

Elimin

ations Total

$ 7,879,911
1.314.200

$ 7,854,998
1.039.446

S 551,880
75.463

$  191.236
199.291

$ $(718,203)

Total supporting services 8.894.444 627343 390.527 (718.2031 9.194.1 11

Total functional expenses 78,452,945 6,255,228 2,141,941 — (759.869) 86,090,245

Support of National programs
38.326 _

38.326

Total operating expenses
78.491.271 6.255.228 2.I4I.94I (759.8691 86.128.571

Increase (decrease) in net assets from operations
2,350,495 (149,578) (463,812) — 1,737,105

Other non-operating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Net unrealized and realized gains on investments
Increase in fair value of beneficial interest in

trust held by others
Loss on bond refinance

Loss on sales and disposals of fixed assets
Other non-operating expenses

846,306
494,883

6,743
(63,031)
(3,674)

(10-4171

-

528

-

- 846,306
494,883

6.743
(63,03!)
(3,146)

(10.4171

1,270,810 - 528 _ 1,271,338

Loss from discontinued operations
(28.2661 (9.4651 (37.7311

Total increase (decrease) in net assets
3,593,039 (149.578) (463,284) (9,465) 2,970,712

Net assets (deficit) at beginning of year
20.594.349 2.558.280 (2.801.5591 211.251 20.562.321

Net assets (deficit) at end of year
S24.187.388 12.408.702 S(3.264 84^1 S201.786 $

•  Includes Agency Realty. Inc. through October 26, 2016 (see note 1) and Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended August 31, 2018

Salaries and related exp)enses
Professional fees
Supplies
Telephone
Postage and shipping
Occupancy
Outside printing, artwork

and media

Travel

Conventions and meetings
Specific assistance to individuals
Dues and subscriptions
Minor equipment purchases-

and equipment rental
Ads, fees and miscellaneous

Interest

Depreciation and amortization

• New

Hamoshire Vermont Maine

Harbor

Schools,
Inc.

Elimtn-

ation.s Total

$61,637,499 $5,345,519 $ 723,908 $ - $ $67,706,926
8,697,878 669,966 170,708 - (741,597) 8,796,955
2,371,309 33,136 I I,759 . - - 2,416,204
574,477 35,251 16,084 - - 625,812
52,277 1,689 792 -

— 54,758
2,293,069 170,645 63,386 - - 2,527,100

42,146 4,051 4,497 _ 50,694
2,061,630 306,760 24,173 - — 2,392,563
238,764 15,397 3,568 - _ 257,729

1,053,536 41.070 35,587 -
— 1,130,193

64,350 - 1,138 -
- 65,488

347,406 14,929 1,492 _ 363,827
357,091 22,997 24,183 - - 404,271

1,024,622 - - - - 1,024,622
1.748.248 34.736 5.551 _ _ 1.788.535

$6,696,146 $1,086,826 S - sr741.5971

♦  Includes Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATrNG STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Yea/ Ended August 31,2017

Salaries and related expenses
Professional fees

Supplies
Telephone
Postage and shipping
Occupancy
Outside printing, artwork

and media

Travel

Conventions and meetings
Specific assistance to individuals
Dues and subscriptions
Minor equipment purchases-

and equipment rental
Ads, fees and miscellaneous

Interest

Impairment
Depreciation and amortization

Harbor
• New Schools, Elimin

Hamoshire Vermont Maine Inc. ations

$57,687,981 $4,925,625 $1,465,432 $ - $
8,463.640 640,027 278,263 - (759,869)
2,180,957 38,894 17,731 _

566,435 37,125 15,362 _

57,742 1,295 2,214
2,022,811 154,091 168,031 - -

71,825 6,754 6,709
1,990,758 313,059 28,112 _

214,857 31,141 1 1,383 _

1,025.235 33,829 63,470
34,018 200 2,994 • -

338,335 11,384 1,260
335.912 24,820 71,811 _

986,384 _
_

767,632 —

1.708.421 36.984 9.169

$6.255.238 $2,141,941 $ - $f759.8693

Total

$64,079,038
8,622,061
2,237,582
618,922
61,251

2,344,933

85,288
2,331,929

257,381
1,122,534

37,212

350,979

432,543
986,384

767,632
1.754.576

Includes Agency Realty, Inc. through October 26, 2016 (sec note I) and Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center.
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2019 Farnum Center Board of Directors

Chairman

Timm Runnion

Past Chair

Ian MacDermott

Vice Chair

Tom Bullock

Treasurer

Paul Voegelin

Rob Wieczorek

Lori Levesque

Shawna Colantuone

George Powell

Twila Mclnnis

Sandy Dahri

Matt Boucher
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Ltoenaioo

9/71 - 8/75

9/70-7^)

2/69-8/70

9/67- 1/69

f'' '
. . • A, '

A Aduhs, Inc.

screening of

CrippW Ghll*.„

Pojitipn: F«aKto.I?irtclor.,.Ettste ,

5SSg§gSSS:2r"*'"«

Rom Piiblii Sclkio'U
Kecafi,NH 03431

Pos^ition; Special Educitien Coniuliina
of small towni in New•*s®p8hire. Ro^Joasiible to 6 school boartfa mmI »>!*• Ki.« u

Drom of Si«W iducoCSfB^

Eobllc Schools
Oaiy.IN

ftwjdom Tether, SpOdjl Edp^^
Cl«! sroom teacher, M.R..Suimn^ ̂graih.for tenable M.R.

Charlottcrville Public Schools
Chiirtottcevillt, VA

Poalion: T«che, mJL - Dop«wi« Ch^
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IVaiior
Easter Sials New Hampshire, Inc.

555 Aubcm Street
Manchester. NH 03103

CAREER SUMMARY:

services to CttrtoSi • ^ q«ality.and'cost cfiectivcservices to'CTntoroai

SKILLS & ̂ERIEtlGE:

BiJl^ receivables, ooDeciloos, ftodlng wurws. ihirf Mftv
»  |nsurencc$,oontrecta.gnai^Ie^^^ P«rty.reimbu«cmcm

FinanciaJ iraijcang and consuhatioa
0  Strategic and business planning .
s  Lurisonwitb^ofDiri^

WORK HrStORV:

2012 - fVeseoi

1994 ̂ 2012

1988- 1994

1984-1988

NH

E«^SealjNewHim;alp

corpomie,mum-«tate entity,

fisce^ for | Op itfUibnitioUp bti^— ri,.
;a1so. te^ble ^tcei^on, naliitiaiinco. ctiaoiiteservKe'(unctions.

iic.; Mnbibcster. NH
Yice JTmoei|^pyp^p«j^'

lor fimace ftmctioni ind infonnntion systems

Sccie., CKH, b... Mm^best^. n;,

1? "^"iWlltie, of numngmpConvoted nnancial applicaii^Sto
mJegrtttcdButomaicdfjwcms. Invo.N^^



1982-1984

^PCtiemal corporaie
merg^ and acquisftio^

■•-' . .IV' ■■ • ''■ ■& ■ ■ •".•■ •. M
IA

»r5^.r

-•VTl'^'?'-
.••V

ks-'T':: --. v; .v;.'»^!j---

'•• .EDUtjdnibiy^''^^'" :-:;■ 1.>;;■:■ ,.\r-»'n;Vr ';V:ft; yj-;^ ••?..• .-■-.•''ill- ..JK.' -r-V •' .-rr.: M ••'..•■•« .'■ •••■♦r.S« ■ • •:
•• • V-€.!V., r:s -U •»•••• .•«•;•».■;•.•!.•,• T-.- •.•../•-•. .. }.:■■..

■ ■ • -- ■ ■ .-...<'^

I98p.-. , . ,5Mtl^,atUe^-Wallh^v^
3echclorofxi v
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SCRVliCEi

"•{4 r.' ■-, "i,> I *■
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EXPERIENCE

Chief Strategy Officer

NANCY L. ROLLINS

Eflstmeals, NH^ VT, ME; Famum Cehter/Farnum North-NH.
555 Auburn Sow

M&nchester, NH :03103

•November 2016 -Present

Rcsponstble for stratyc development across, all organizaiional. services and supports Provides
.nterBOvemmental ralaHons woricihg -with the,senior.mariagement team to develop an^^plan^ a

wil h®" a'U footprint, spwifically in thetrees of Health end Services, Poundaribns ■ end • Stole. Government. Colloboretes with the
m^egement ejm to develop, end implement pieru forthe bRerationel infiwructureofs^em? p^esl«

f  8™^ 'nd typid ̂ ponse-to heeds within ,he immunity SeeS^wth opiwrwitlties trough partnerahips. mergers end.ecquisitidhs'df compatible organizations to meet
the needs of individuals wd their famillM.acrosi the lifesban who have disab^ii^ nr i ^
quality initiative to include reviews of program service - anaivzes 'data .nrt rf^y^i L " ̂
strategies to mov^ towards quality perfofman'ce' measurement m all servicw and supportsSe^« as a member of tl|e Exocutive Leadership Team. Report, directly to the President/ Chief Executive

Goodwill Industries of Northeni New Eaclaad
38 Locke Rood, #2 I
Concord. NH 03301 1

New Hampahirp S^le Birector for S.r.tepie.-neVe|,pmtrirprid.Piiblir PoHfy . Januao'. 20 M - Ociober

Responsible for collaboration with existing state and local networks to identify, develop or create ooten.i.l
businesses and programs serving the State ofNaw Hamnekiv a.. a. . .. "
Goodwill ofNorthem New England's (Goodwill NND sUte'gic S^n consistent wiih
communities that thrive through the ftillest particlpitlbh ofthc^ iw'trzc
about current trends and t^meiing issues in puSu^
and relates them to existing and potential Goodwill NNE businew ahH business practices

;i^'ss3r,::rx'r-rsrr.r' " -r ̂with diverse challengcs| achieve petpontU shtbility and comtn'Snify'c'ng^gemcn"
Se^M as a member of the Senior Management Team. Report directly to the President/ Chief Executive



State ofNew Hampablre
Pcpartraent otH^fthia^dPHi^^^^^
Diyisipn of
129pleasantStrert •••.'! •": ... - .

;. ConcorxJ;New;Hainp.sbire.b3301- • i<- '■ ■■■■." ■ -v

range

setting". ^ . - . V . . ..

• St.:?g:.a&atea^

Acd • ■■ •'*' ■ "■ 'r - ' ■ •■ .

servc.es

■^nctjonial
(M^icaid). prograni

for 'h^Divi5ip;n.,6f .GomSiuniv. Bued, C»iwServices.fDCBC«!>
T')'-M?lS5'erSX'.''SS:^S!ip:3nEeIonsupbbi6'»ndM

•p 6p;dKcddi^®:chfS;oOT^needs.'jO'.;- • ";. - .W?' "'""Hi".", www.•)l<<e^(|@dl!!e^j$l|!>te.l0 ca^.
Sta.te;of;NOT/kj^ni|nKire """;;;Vr'rr"-"'- v': V.- r,

1 "TOViUi - •:••; tvi/Wv; A ■■/■v.ir'l •••.•-■ y.u. .•..•..•..•• ^: Cf/-.. : 1 •• •

.; ., 2- ' ■ ■



protewon. children in need of semoes (CHINS), and ,commhQity.b8sed ™venile/-iustice iuvenile

'"r- aammietretive responsibnity for Jtewide doZchlldi^child deyelopmenrservici-.tha, .re emploS
»>.«nnu.l. budget of $124 million dollars. The Di^^idnmeintaiM ^ice sites statewide w.th'a staff.of 370, In addition the Division contracts or vendS^

servi(» to over 1,600 cpmmuiuty-ba^ ptovideis or residential care facilities. On September 16 2001 the

of hISiS r^rt ̂thoComrpissioncr of the
community, State and nauortil levels. « ciy or areas on the

State of New Hanipstiire

Department of He^tb|and.Human Servfca
Division for Ghildi^ lYonth, and FamUies
6 Hazen Drive i

Concord. NH 03301 August 1994

Deputy Director

-July 1995

^::::er^"'a«'oSf Administrative
services. Oversees the

nt/*f«;(rk» ' L j " - DurcAu or AGministrativc

Bu^u nf ^ TlXions, aiid payment of— Bureau of Children and Families which is r»s'iv$neiKi»including twelve district offices providihg child welfua, childtdn indeed of sOrviL (CrilNsTwd
juvenile juitjcc setviees; and ttia Bureau of .Residential,Services that is resimnslbla fOr .th,
the Youth Detention facilily, a long-twro-juvmile detention facility; the Youth Servioes Unit a^ii term'
dT^'cVir .>ate.opereted resLdal ftcln^f^;disturbed children and youth. Serve as a liaison to variouc iiVnt r ,j i •
child welfare, juvenilejSice. and children's to

Slate'of New Hainpabli t
Departinent of Health and Human iServices
Division of Mental Health 'and bevelopmcnta) Services
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301
Fcbrvaiy 1993 - July 1994

Administrator of Children's Mental Health.Wjry,.
Coordinate planning efforts for development of Communiiv Mental'H^«lfh^'-c.i^!;... -children and adolcscentf, directed contact n.gotlationT wi'.h pt^lt agancicsSo^d
initiatives to recommend and implement policies and standards for the ef\hi»n/^* ' . r ^
sctvicas and supports .for children «.d rteu f.Xs
organimlons to resolvc| operational prbblams in the ckre and training of fa^lirand'thMr'd'
consumers; serve as a liaison to various local state and fedemi ««•? • ^ child/adolesccni
health servJees. ' agencies relative to children's mental



State ofNcw Hampshire ,
Departm^t
Dlytslpn €f %ptaJ

.  105.PlM^tStr^l',• ;• • ••! :;. -: • V'^;-.' • -''.v.:-' •
Concord, NH 03301 Iviaf^ r990 -Juiy'J W

irit^giricy
and

l65.PlSs%^Sfreet' . - - , . ,

- rV'/.l- •4-\t'■ • • . I • {«>•;•• ̂  vr,-. 1
• Program Planriihg'ind'.ReviewSoftcifl '•

am

oversee

,yu„Q,ng project .for .me developmeifi. of .a statewii
^R'^fe'X?l?>;5t?.'noflca:cror,seripus!y.emo^^^

Wvcr^ai^db^Upj;^^ ■ ■ -■ May 1978,-,pebhiuj;;l989;|,-V
Chjco^-^pJeSjcentProgj^ .'•vrvi'-e^ •'
Chic6ii^,;WMS[chu5cm^^ ■■ .,vv. ••

■  . Director. ChiiyAdoleswhfQutoati^^^^^^ .-XVr,:
Admlnteiive: ■

■  ■ •' •hv'^l^i«iWe for..:deve^^^^^ pf ^l -program.Mrvices'jiiirelu^^^ group
arid family .therapy:, Adyehturc-Bascd Treatment

-  their f^die5.\ Fonncd;.p^^^ wiih.af^* human sei^rce ncS^rits.
Provide.->ln*senvice tfa[nIritt-'.wdrk«Kon®' r/N l/viil .i- .

•rvsv: .' .



' .V ̂  /.M^u Uk*wi.w
•  !,»)■■» y\kK-^.

implOTented. mental h^^lh and substance, abuse treatment services on site at-the'Westover Job Coros
£::r£:;r:2sr-
Cliuicfil:

Provide indivWu^.^up, and.femily therapy to-lcw afld.moderat©-incomef«miliM ^ ■ w
«rOMPS ..dpleseems who have serious emotional disturbancei

OTi«.J^I,tated staff .case duposrt.on. m^ice training ind utiliaation review of children's mental

Hartford NeighborK^ Cantcn
Mitchell House |
Hartford, Connecticut

Youth Counselor

Full-tirne undc^raduatc

September 1974 - May 1975

Springfield Girls C(uh/|Fimny Center
Springfield, Massachuseas September 1973 - May 1974
ChildCare.Woi^er
Provided a mulii-culiural after school recreational program for preschoolers.

EDUCATION

Master of Social xyni^ ^
University of.Connecticui
School.of Social Work I
West Hartford, Connecticut

Deg^e conferred, May 1985
Concentration in Public } olicy and Admlnlstration-Mihor in Group Work
Bachelor ofSdencft^ Ctim.lAnrfis
Springfield College |
Springfield. Massachusetts

Degree conferred, May 1985
Concentration inCommuiily, Leadership and Or^izational Development



Primary Focus ori.Human Services Administr^pn

TEACHING EXPERIENCE .

.  Damrwuth College Medical School - r ' -' •
Department of Psychifl^
Dartmou^Hltchcock Medical Cchtcr_

• Lebanon,'NwHam^hire■ i-- -> u. mn
■  Ad/,^CIFCKUI^^^ .

Bu^uibT€ducailoh«)d-^ram "
■ ■■ ■

Bmin injury, ̂ sbcl.atipn.bfrHfe • ••'ScpHembcr20 i'O'

Oovcrnpr's Intera^ncy Council on Homclessh^'(lC'lV);Empi6ym^ .
'  . ; ' ;u"fci • ?4.»^trTe « •

• February 2015 •Prcscnl
_  Jv;-'.. ■ - ••'w.■•^*.'' • ;,. .- ijtCenterpn Agmg.en'd Gpmmunlty . "• Scpternbcr 20r4^viRrcs.chf''' • •

;  o.Vvc'T'- :H > •■.
I^gisletlye Task; Fbrce.on .Work and Family, Goyemor Appoihimen: September 2014- Present

'  '■ I ; ■' i

■ NH Center fot;-Npn:profitt Policy^ v-,

New-Hampsjiife^ie Rchabmiaiipn Advispry'Council..Goycmc^^^^

Welfare

New Hampshire-State Mental Health Cbuncll ■

New Hampshire,Children;s BbhayibraFHea!th'C^ ■ ■



s.»;

August 20) 3

Intcfugcncy Coordinating Council for Women Offenders .January 2006 - Doccmbef

NttionBl As^Mon of State Mental Policy Directors (NASMHPD) Janoory 2006- December 2013
NASMWP rcprwntative to the Children's Mental Health Subcommittee
Chair. NASMKI^D President's Task Force on •Returning Veteran's
Board Member Mcmbcr-aNLirge 2011.2013
Boaid Member h4ASMHP0'.Reseaf^hrlhstitutc. Inc. (NRJ)20I l-Present
NASMHPD Res^h Infinite. Inc. (NRI). Bbiird Vice.Prc$ldent20ri.26l3

Carter Sy.nposium.on Mental HeelthPolicy, and Si^pgrtfor ChUdrtn Exposed to Domestic Violence Child
W.tffart md.J\x^^i\t JmtlctAtlan.ta..OeorBia..Oct. 26 and 27.20II
NASMHPD'Boaid Vice-PrMideni 2012-2013

en Affili.te of the Americn

SMHRCY Rcprwntativc to Children's Mental Health Subcommittee and
NAPCWA ̂ecutive Committee. 1991 - 1994
NH State Child Welfare Representative, 1995- l^scni

N^^WA b'" M"bber-«t.Urge, Vice-President, J.nu.ry 2002- Dec 2004NAPCWA^tata Represenwwe to the APHSA -sponsored ta.svrites of the Interstate Compeel for
The Placement of Children. Dec. 2004 - Nov. 2005

NAPCWA President, January 2005 - Jariuaiy 2006

New England -AKociation of Child Welfare Commissioners and Drrectore
Judge Baker Children's Center,-Boston. Mass.

Commince Memlxr, 1995-January 2006
Vice-president. 2001. January 2006

NH Chapter of the National Association of Social Workers
25 Walker Street j
Concord, New Hampshire

Stole Advisory Board - Member- at-iar^

Univers.lty of New Hampshire
School of HMlth.and Human Services
Department of ̂ifll Work|

Community Advisory Board Member

September 19^-2003-

Septcmber 1998 - September 2002

National Technical ̂ sistMce Center for Children's Mental Health-
Georgetown University Child Development Center

Advisory Committee Menibcr

State Mental Health Repr^larlve for Children end Youth (SMHRCY)
NH Slate Representative, 1989 .1994
Executive Committee, 1992- 1994

1995 - 1998



Community 2CW0: Pippeer V^t^.Unll^ Way
Membefi Subs^iyrico AbuM^Subcomm ■■ '

■■/Childi^andAdolescMtsSul^mm ;.■ .
1-. ' .. ..  •••■j I . ••. .• ■ »• ;■ ••WesternMA. AIDS SciyiM Provider Coalition, 1987- I9S9

SfJ:

cryie ASSoeiATiciNs

.  : 'V!?e.^iroflh^(^msjigj^ 20U^ai6 .

New.l:^ndqn.2«n.mg AdjustmenO/v^^ by.the Town Bootd of SelKimui
;  './ , . 2613-201,4

"  "•. 201.2 —vnl^

:.Mun,ber'of-Sdiilt: Andrew's ,
iAppointcd to the.Vestry, January 2014 -201-7

•NewU)ndon,i$OMdpfSdl?ctme^^^ Elected.-May 26)4-Present
„  n ' Ghair, May 2015 .20r6 '
Bpard-ReprMentatiye to the Biicjget GpminittM^^^

New Hampshire MmlcipaJAssocjaH^^^^^ 2015-Present
Awards

ofNe^qni^ire seriHch ntetnbeft bboS^e du^^^SSS -"it

Awirdedthe imple^^^ ■

■• -. I.'



•Operation WdTOmc: lonie' a niilic^ / ci wto .p^ei^h of New
Hampsbre Guard se^ce membcre retiring .frprn;ira)q and Afghijustan. Presented by KcnnctH
Clark, Major General, —i j .. .. _ •'New Hampshire National Gu^d, The Adjutant General. 24 May 2005.

which recognizes those who, through their hard work

seltl^nrnfrh M''h T'"*' "ntTibulions toward the prevention, intervention, andtreatment of child-abuse and neglect. Individuals who receive this award have demonstrated a
the safetji hnd wpll beingiof children and to supporting

Oilirihu^^d V^'A 15® National Cdnferenw on
£ runi" V 9h!. Cor^^piier,.phiJ(hen;s Bureau, Administrationfor Children, Y^th and Famihw, U.S. Departinehl of Healtii aiid'Huntan Services
Washington, D.C.. 2l| April 2005. '



Tiira lyt Sh&rby, FS0EI

r f

■StnibrViwPmiifcril-HomaB.IteMwfi^-.-'v

. .1$^;2012 ■. • •.•-.•.U'! .'.v-v ■ ; . ■ . • ■ ^.■■'■e^ -i-T ••/..■^'..•j •»•!"! • , • » . . v -r . r • .•»,. W, 1

'. compcnsfttiok.bencfiti
• staff iovcioommt for elver" 71 :« ■ -^ • • •

EaitoSetoNH,'^. ■'. • •

H^mu'Rapor^ DarecUn'
H^oreC«!.er Seryfelbe^-MoKheoter, NH

^^<^.-:^!^xpnmi2iixion of 450 for*^«;4ey alTlIuii^' R«o\ates

'■'' ■..; ':•>• ':• '.>•>V ^ •'• ■
'•■ •.•'-• ' •■-. -. ^ .." •-■' '•/ •.. "•
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Lead the
0 beneiSl adminisiratioii to

-•ahM^on woricew

education

Bachdorof Science^pegrec, Koeoe'Sl^eGoU^e. i9W
Minor in Human Rcsouicca and Safety Muiagnhort
MS Orguiizatioiia! l^ership, Southern University (in process)

ORGANIZATIONS

Manchc^ Area Hrajan Resource Association
Divcnrity Chair2010

Society for Human Resource Manageahcnt
BIA Human Resotirm

Health Care Woifdorce Pcvclopinenl CoouDittee 2009; 2010
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EastersealsNH T''!;;-;' ' '
Sr. Vice Prcstdent of Dftvelnpm^nt \ . w onn^.gp day ,0 day oparatibna orfiStteeals Davaiopmem:a«d Com™n^pi,io,„ office (14 person jn NrK

Analyw infomaiion compiled by Aevclopment Coordinatprs.MA^^^pms^pects (0 identify major.gift P^ospcctsimde^tendth^^^^^ pVoip^ts by makirig.personal
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which
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Senior Director of Development Nov 2014 SJ^^|^y«i^^;ofWln«rt»-yl,j,(4,ttff.n«mb«,).ind.pd»^^^^

developmwistalT: . • •■■ " ' -
•  Plan, jmpjementiiromote and e.valwte easigned public relations, events or activities and otber-ftihdraisine

vehiclesxpnducied.by ahdTpr the Ag'ency. * - .. - &•  Miniff^ll-g^^or'tpdci^ «r^t(;'j|^lj|9!^/^if^.Kstdi;i9n, logistics and new program development
•  Organ|^c9gr^iMttehdappary yolunteefs'-Btspecial fvents. /;. •., 'v.:C .<:■ . vv /f^iV.

Create and manage database of.potcntiarparticlpanu and;cp'mpahies.for,eyents and.pftivlde.rcp^^ as-.trquircd.

SaM(Afiseim:€pile^^^ ' 1 y:''"""
Dxecuti've'DlrectirniDievaiopm^ . ' ^ ^ W

staff^mimrsl fir S.iht
lAdyancemeni

•ii:;iManege|^al|.glrticri ahd database coor'dinatlon'
OSH^fcT stewardship prograiris '- developing a stewardship plan rcsultlng in
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PirectoriAnnual-Giving■*..
ManagcW^millioh^nufl^

•  Supervision of five person annual giving staff
i  from 100 - 120 alunuii yearly ranging from $ 1,000 lo J10 000Established new reunion giving program and young alumni giving program
•  increaseda!umniparticii5ationfTOifil7%in20i0to2iyoprojcctcdin20l3 '

.  • Create and implement annual appeal schedule and mailings I

July 2009 - Doccmber 2010Associate Director. Annunl Civinp
Support; implement and cr]iiance the Saint Anselm Fiind

.  • Engage and personally solicit annual* ftind gifts from 100 - 120 alumni yearly
•  Create annual fund marketing pieces and soHcltarion letters for ftindraising purposes
•  Menage and support Reunion Giving programs for 4*5 classes yearly•  Support Office of Alumn| Relations at college prognifTis and events

ASSlfftant Plrectdr Annual Gjvlnp/DiriictoV. Saint An-.Hm-PboD^a-thon j^nc 2003 - June 2009Suppon and enhance the Saint Anselm Fund as well as being risiiiiorisibic for all'day-tcday activities of Saint Anselm
College Phonc-a-thon program

Uad and facilitated Senior Class Gift Prq^m, incrcumg student participation three consecutive yean
Manage end supervised staff of60-,6.5 siudcnti in.requestiiig.donyohs frdm all college alumni

•  ' Implemenied a new training prtf^m for all'callers nsulting in higher ovcran-alumni participation
•  Assisted the Manager of Advancement Services in creating a new database to streamline the input and updating

of alumni records f y a
•  Increased dollars raised by the phone-a-thon from S95.0.DD to S170.000

. . . . Sepimbw 2004-June 2005Work with Vtce President of Alurrmi Relations In planning, implementation an'd follow-up oh all college events
•  Created arid designed invitarions wd brochures.'for college alumni events

'  Md othm'^^ managed volunteers to work Nwous college events including Reunion Weekend. Homecoming,
•  Efrectivclyrcspondeil to and communicated with alumni regarding general alumni inquiries

SriapDragon Assoc/ales, jBied/prd,/Vff

Worked with the President and Vile President of company In ,all day-torday.activitics of thc'VompaTy ~
Contacted possible clientjS (businesses) lo provide reciting services resulting in 2-3 new leai

•  Searched for. contacted wd interviewed top quality professionals for client positions leads per week

education
Masiers In Business Administration
Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester. NH

Bachelor of Arts in Business
Saint Anselm College, Manchester, NH

January 2008

May 2004

OTHER REIATED EJCPERIENCE

Moore Center Services Devclopm mt Board
Diocesan School Board-New Hampshire
Goffsto'wn Junior Baseball Board!

ScpL 20i0-Sept. 2016
June 2014-• present
January 2016 - present
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Director of a.dmjg and alcpM proRram fop'offehderfi.in th<.

•  Pfpyjdi; .ijainihgto'?!! sUffJnvolvingdaig anAalcohprand mental health issues



Southern New Hampshire Services
Manchester Academy Pro'gram, Manchester, N.H. 1998-2003
Clinical Director of a community based altcrriatlvc scmchcing program for aduli offenders.
•  Provided substance abuse evaluations to the Gourt systcm.
•  Made recommcnda Ions to Superior arid District Courts regarding offender's treatment

and sentencing.
•  Case fnanagemeni of.offenders.

Promoted to Director of thcjManchester Academy Program 2003-2008
«  Supervision of ell staff.
•  Maintained administrative and fiscal records.

•  Reporting and data compliance for the NH Department of Corrections.

Manchester Academy Program, Manchester, N.H. 1998-2003
Clinical Director of a community based allcmativc sentencing program for adult offenders.
•  Provided substance abuse evaluations to the Court system.
•  Made recommendations to Superior and District Courts regarding offender's treatment

and sentencing.
•  Case management of offenders. •

Promoted to Director of the|Manchester-Academy Program - 2003-2008
•  Supervision of all staff.

- I

•  Maintained administrative and fiscal records.

Reporting and data compliance for the NH Dcpaftmcnt of Gorrections.

Odyssey Family Center, Canterbury, N.H. 1993-1998
Supervisor at a long-tefm drug and alcohol treatment program for pregnant and post partum,
women.

Supervised direct care staff.
Provided drug and ajcohol treatment services, individual and group counseling.
Provided intake evaluations and to case load management.
Coordinated outreach screening and continuing care services for clients and their
children. I
Maintained administrative and fiscal records.

N.H. Department of Corrections, Probatlon/Parolo Field Services 1991-1992
•  Sci up and co-facilitated counseling support groups for womeh bcing paroled to their

home communities.

Counseled women with drug and alcohol issues, parenting issues, financial problems, and
domestic violence and sexual abuse issues.

Made referrals to di|Verse support groups and worked with women in developing
strategies for staying out of the criminal justice system.

N.H. State Prison for Women, Goffstown, N.H. 1987-1993
Internship through Springfield College
•  Provided individual|counseling an,d group therapy^as a drug arid .alcohol counselor.
•  Performed crisis intervention withlnlhe prisomsystern.
•  Provided transitiohi I support for women retuming to their home communities.

EDUCATION

Psy.D,, Forensic Psychology, Eisner Institute, 2009.
Double Masters Degree, Ps:j'cho!ogy/HumBn Services Administration, Springfield College, 1998



Bachelor of Science begrw .in Criminal Justicci- Sf^jn^field p.pl|ege, 1994
LlCENSE^^bCERTiFJCATinN '
Master Licc.^^;Alwh9M
Clinically certified by the Department of Transpprta|ion lo.perfbrm evaluations (SAP)

, ■ .. '■■ ■ C. \ ■ ■ . i
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CMKIS'l'lNK WEBER, LAD.C

Licensed Alcohol nn<l Druj^ Abuse Counselor. License -vRU since 2010.

EDUCATION:'

• •Associiuc Degree in Science in Addiclion^Counscjing: Ncw.l.lampshire 'dechnical
Insliuiic, Concord, New l lanipshirc.'
•• Duclvelor of Science in PsyclVblogy./lJnivefsily pTNew l-Uimpshirc.

ly I /,V I I V/.( .

L20.I.0 N1 IADAC'A Chnir.pf IVplcssionn! DcYclopmenl Connniiioc
-20l'2,NH.Ceni_er lor E.xcellence Clinieol Sitpervlsion Collahoruiivc

AKKrLIA'I'iO.NS.:

-■-201
--Circiiler'Kljinehesicr Subsuvnee Abuse Co.Hubomiive
••NlATNT'oiliibOriilive . . ' .
• •(!6ncorcr I Ipspilnl Inlcrn: IJeh(»yiorHl I Icallli/Snbslnnec Abuse .Services.
•:Aclull Drug Cquri Plunning Iniliniivc
.•Ni l Militury Alcohol & Drug Commilicc.

WORK EXIMCRIENCE:

Scrcniiy lOncc .Crisis Center, Manchester New Mnmpshirc:
Clrisis Sile i'echniclHn: Kcbruury 2006 ip April 2007. Deioxincuiion
Subslahcii'AlHlsc Counselor: April 2007 id November 2008.

K.E.A.R (Resources for f:vnluniing Alcohol Problems), Munchesier New Hiunpshirc:
DWI Aftercure Fiieilitator: May 201 1 lo Seplembcr 201 I.

Easier Seals l''ai':nunvCcnfcr, Manchester New Hampshire:
Residential SubsUince Abuse Gouivselor: Novenibcr 2008 lo Pebruury 2012.
QuipiUienl Siibstnncc Abuse Counselor: f-cbruory 2012 lo July 2012.

Proeram'CoordimUor Concord OITice: July 2012 lo l-cbruury 2012

Oiiiniuie'ni.Prournni (^odrciiiuiior Mtinchcslcr: Fcbruury 201 2 lo June 20 I 2-
"OlhCr areas of locus: ATll 'und wrrS/VMS'Adminisiraior. Doincsiie Violence '

l*raciicc Mannuer: June 2012 to preseni



Vendor Name:

KEY A!piN(pl^|VE^i^|F«gN|)JEL

NH Department of Health; and Muman SerYjc

Easter Seals, NH, Inc..

Name of PrograrrVSerlyl.ce; . — MaricliesekvU^^^

■B^|H
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Haepclenta^foqi

HHsdmSSefl

t. ...r. ; .
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.CheryJWIlklOirSVfeSubs^nce./^iiise Sofvlces^^ .$1.75:000 .  ■.: 25:005^
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEAL TH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-9544 l-800-«52.334S ExL 9544

Fax; 603-271-4332 TDD Accexs; 1-000-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 6. 2019

His Excellency/Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House I

Concord. New Hampshire-03301

REQUESTEDACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral' Health, to
exercise a renewal option and amend an existing contract to the twelve (12) vendors listed below in bold,
to provide substan^ use disorder treatment and recovery support services, statewide, by increasing the
total combined price limitation by $7,872,584 from.$8,278,098 to an amount not to exceed $16,150,682
and extend the corhpletion date from June 30, 2019 to September .30, 2020 effective upon the date of
Governor and Executive Council approval. 70.76% Federal, 10.56% General, and 18.69% Other Funds.

Cohtrary to alt other vendors listed below in bold, Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism will
expire on October 31, 2019.

Funds are anticipated to be available in SFY 2020 and SFY 2021, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets. \Afith authority to adjust amounts within
the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office.

Summary of contracted amounts by Vendor;

Vendor Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Budget
G&C Approval

Dismas Home of New

Hampshire, Inc.
$243,400 $9,600

$253,000

0:06/20/18 Late Item G
A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2:12/05/18 Item #23
FIT/NHNH, Inc.

$854,031 $1,217,151
$2;071,182

O: 07/27/18 Item #7

A: 12/05/2018 item #23

Grafton County New Hampshire
- Department of Corrections and
Alternative Sentencing $247,000 $246,000 $493,000

0:06/20/18 Late Item G
A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

Greater Nashua Council on

Alcoholism.
$1,514,899 ($135,899)

$1,379,000

0: 07/27/18 Item #7

A1:12/05/18 Item #23

Headrest

$228,599 $382,401
$611,000

0:06/20/18 Late Item G
Ai: 07/27/18 Item #7
A2:12/05/18 Item #23

Manchester Alcoholism

Rehabilitation Center ■

j

$2,210,171 $3,089,629
$5,299,800

0:06/20/18 Ute Item G
AI: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2:12/05/18 Item #23

/\

z



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
ar;d the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

Hope on Haven Hill

$497,041 $227,959
$725,000

0: 07/27/18 Item #7

A1:12/05/18 Item #23

North Country Health
Consortium

$401,606 $1,017,394
$1,419,000

0:06/20/18 Late Item G
A1: 07/27/18 Item #7
A2:12/05/18 Item #23

Phoenix Houses of New
England, Inc.

$817,521 ^$1,108,479
$1,926,000

0:06/20/18 Late ItemG
A1: 07/27/18 Item #7
A2:12/05/18 Item #23

Seacoast Youth Services
$73,200 $0.00

$73,200
0:06/20/18 Late Item G
A1; 07/27/18 Item #7

Southeastern New Hampshire
Alcohol & Drug Abuse Services

$969,140 $891,860
$1,861,000

0:06/20/18 Late Item G
A1: 07/27/18 Item #7
A2:12/05/18 item #23

The Community Council of
Nashua, N.H.

/

$162,000 ($139,000) $23,000

0:06/20/18 Late Item G
A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

West Central Services, Inc.
$59,490 ($42,990)

$16,500
0:06/20/18 Late ItemG
A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

Total
$8,278,098 $7,872,584 $16,150,682

05-95-92.920510-33820060 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVORIAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS. GOVERNOR
COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCSDEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVORIAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCrCLINICAL
SERVICES (66% Federal Funds, 34% General Funds FAIN TI010035 CFDA 93.959)

0|-95-92-920510-7046w^^^^^^ AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVORIAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS STATE^
OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% Federal Funds, FAIN H79TI081685 CFDA 93.788)

Please see attached financial details.

EXPLANATION

This purpose of this request is. to extend the agreements with the Contractors listed above to
provide substance use disorder treatment and recovery support services, statewide.
These funds will be used to provide $100 room and board payments for Medicaid-covered individuals
With opioid use disorder in residential treatment. Funds in this amendment will assist with serving the
fvledicaid population challenge of different reimbursement rates between fVledicaid and Commercial
payere. The vendors above will also continue to offer their existing array of treatment services, including
individual and group outpatient, intensive outpatient, partial hospitalization, transitional living high and
low intensity residential services. • » v

This amendrnent is part of the State's recently approved plan under the Slate Opioid Response
(SOR) grant which identified access to residential treatment as a funding priority. The Substance Abuse
and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) approved NH's proposal in September 2018 The
vendors above will use these funds to ensure that individuals with OUD receiving the appropriate level of
residential treatment have continued and/or expanded access to the necessary level of care which
increases their ability to achieve and maintain recovery.
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Approximately 6.000 individuals will receive substance use disorder treatment services from July
2019 through September 2020. In addition, approximately 40.184 days of room and board will be funded.

The-original agreement, included language in Exhibit C-l, that allows the Department to renew
the contract for up to two (2) years, subject to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory
performance of service, parties' written authorization and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council. The Department is in agreement with renewing services for one (1) and three (3) months of the
two (2) years at this time.

Substance use disorders develop when the use of alcohol and/or drugs causes clinically and
functionally significant impairment, such as health problems, disability, and failure to meet major
responsibilities at work, school, or home. The existence of a substance use disorder is determined using
a clinical evaluation based on Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders. Fifth Edition criteria.

These Agreements are part of the Department's overall strategy to respond to the opioid epidemic
that continues to negatively impact New Hampshire's individuals, families.' and communities as well as.
to respond to o^er types of substance use disorders. Under the current iteration of these contracts, 13
vendors are delivering an array of treatment services, including individual and group outpatient, intensive
outpatient, partial hospitalization, transitional living, high and low intensity residential, and ambulatory
and residential withdrawal management services as well as ancillary recovery support services. In 2018,
there were 467 confirmed drug overdose deaths in NH with 6 cases still pending. These contracts will
support the State's efforts to continue to respond to the opioid epidemic and substance misuse as a
whole.

Should the Governor and Executive Council determine to not authorize this Request, the vendors
would not have sufficient resources to promote and provide the array of services necessary to provide
individuals with substance use disorders the necessary tools to achieve, enhance and sustain recovery.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds; 70.76% Federal Funds from the United States Department of Health and
Human Services. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. Substance Abuse
Prevention and Treatment Block Grant. CFDA #93.959. Federal Award Identification Number TI010a35-
14, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration State Opioid Response Grant CFDA
#93.788, and 10.56% General Funds and 18.69% Other Funds from the Governors Commission on
Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Prevention. Intervention and'Treatment. ' •

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner

The Depertmenl of Heelth end Human Services' Miss/on is
toJoin communilies end families in providing 0f^>0f1unities for ctlizens to echfevo health and independence



Attachment A

Financial Details

0».|5.fM»4t0^3M0^EAlTH AND JOClAL SSRVICeS. HEALTH AND HUMAN 8VCS OEPT OF. HHS: OW FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH
®"'*^y®'0RUO*ALCOMOL5VC5.OOVERNOftC0MMaa>ONFUNOS(I00*OOwrFundii

Convnuhtty Coundl
ofNashu*^
Na»/iuB CoTvn

MantalHMBh

Suu FIscAi Year CI^Accounl TWe Budget Amount IncrveeW (Decreeee)

P010020e2

RevMed Modtfled

201« 102>900734
Svc

M.9S7 <S39.236) S9.621

2020 I02-900734 CcntncU lor Pme
Svc .u.2oa S3.200

2021

Sub-iotAl

102-900734
Svc

>Aa.»97

OU

(935 004)

9963

913.793

Suit Fleeel Year CU^Acceunt Thle Bttogat Amewnl Incneae/ (Oecreaee)

PO1062978

Revtoed ModtOed

2019 102-500734
Svc

972.301 <924.946) 947.435

2020 102-500734
Contracts lor Prog

Svc 925.070 925.070

2021

Siib-ioul

102-500734 Coneacts tor Prog
Svc

972381

96.417

97.141

98.417

979.522

EastorSaMsotNH
ManchMltr

Atoehebm Rehab

Slate FlacAJ Year Claae/Accounl riOe Budget Armuni lncreaae7(Decr«eae)

P01062980

Rtvlaed Modified

2019 102-500734
Svc

9337.280 90 9337.280

2020 102-900734 Ccnbacts tor Prog
Svc 9483.229 9403329

2021

SutMotal

102-500734 Cdnbada tor Prog
Svc

9337.280

9120.960

9604.197

9120.960

9941,405

State Flecal Year Claaa/Accotait Tllle Budget Amount bxreea«/<C>ecretae)

P01063550

Revlaad Modified

2010 102-500734 Conoacu tor Prog
Svc 9194,759 9194.759

2020 102-900734
Sw 9251.712 9251.712

2021

Sub-total

102-900734 Conbaeu tor Prog
Svc

9104.759

902.800

9314.002

902.890 •

9909.301

AttKhnemA

flAMtdtlOMa
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Suta fbcai Ytar Ctasa/Aecouat nu« InerMsartOaeraaM)

P0ice2077

RavtsaO ModifM

2010 I02-S0073<
Cantraos tor Pno

Svc 574.492 50 574.402

2020 t02-9007»4 Contracts lor Prog
Svc 574.121 574.121

2021

Sub-toul

102-5007)4 Contracts >or Prog
Svc

574.402

iia.oio '*

502.731

5I«.«10 .

I157J23

Omatar Nashua
Coundlon

Stata Fiscal Yaar CUaa/Account Thia GudgalAmeure kKraaaallOacraaMi

PO1053242

Ravtoao MMIOad

2010 ■02-5007)4 Conpicis lor Prog
Svc 5158.372 10 5155.372

2020 102-5007)4 Contracts lor Prog
Svc 504.405 554.493

2021 ■  102-5007)4 Cermets lor Prog
Svc

5158 372

SO

554.405

50

5252.587

Suta Fiscal Yaar Ctaia/Accoum This Incrsaaaf (Dacrsaaa)

PO1002970
RavlsaO Motflflad

2010 102-9007)4
Svc 544,515 SO 544.5)5

2020 102-5007)4 Cormets tor Prog
Svc 514.750 514.760

2021

Su^aotsl

102-5007)4
Svc

544.635

53.550

515.510

53.850

553.245

Stata Fiscal Yaar CUsa/Aeceunt Thia

PO1053243
RavUad MoOlfM

2019 ' 102-9007)4 Cermets tor Prog
Svc 554.0)5 (544.268) S3S.767

2020 102-5007)4 Cermets tor Prog
Svc S31.445 S3 I.MS

2021

Subtotal

102-500734
Svc

584.035

56.022

(54.601)

55,022

570.234

AnsdtmamA
HMAcWDttaa
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Financial Details

Neth Country
HooKh CotMnlum Vendor Com; t9e»97-800l

state riecal Year Ciass/Aeceuni Title BwtfQSI Amount increeM/(Oscreaea>
Revtssd Medlflsd

201« 102-500734 Centrsos tor Prog
Svc

988.979 90 988.979

2030 IQ2-S00734
Contracts tor Prog

Svc 9117,119 9117,118

2031 102-S007S4
Contracts tor Prog

Svc
929,199 929.199

SuS-ietal 988.979 9149J17 9232,995

' Ptteer^x HouM* o(

New Enotend. bte. VendorCode: I77SS9-B001 POt062995

Stita fiscal Year Cisss/Aceeuni TIU* Budget Amount increass/(Oecreaee)
Revised Modlftod

2019 103-500734
Contracts Iw Prog

Svc
970i4« 90 r0,248

2030 102-500734 - Contracts tor Prog
Svc 9101,395 9I0I.3S5

3021 I02-900734
Contracts tor Prog

Svc 92S>9 925,349

Sub-ioul 970249 9129,744 9199,990

Seacoeai Youdi

Servlcea VendorCode: 203944-0001
PO1082984

Suit fiscal Year Clasa'AccouAl TUe Budget Amouril Increastt (Oscreaea) Revised ModMsd

2019 102-500734
Contraeu tar Prog

Svc
922,079 90 932JI79

2020 102-500734
Contracts tor Prog

Svc 90 . SO -

2021 102-500734
Contraeutor Prog

S«c SO 90

Subtotal 922.079 90 922,078

Soudteasiam NH

Aicohol and Onto
Services VendorCode 155292-6001

POl0829eg

Suta fiscal Year Clase/Aeeouni nue Budget Amount Increass/(Decreate)
Revlsad Modified

2019 102-500734 Corttacu tor Prog
Svc

9177,Tgg (S10J90) 9187.409

2030 102-500734 Corttacu tor Prog
Svc 9120.847 9120,847

3031 102-500734 Ccrttacts tor Prog
Svc 930.192 930,182

9uS4o(al 9177.799 9140,419 9318218

AtachmtniA

Rneneltl Ottell



Anachment A

Financial Details

Wmi C*nni

Scfvten Vendor Coda: mA$4-B00t poioe298a

Stiti Fiscal Year ClaaaiAccouni Thle ' Budget Amouni Incraaaei (Decrease)
Ravbed Modified

Budoel

2019 102-000734
Contrscislor Prop

Svc
St7.»43 <$l4.a97) $3.0SS

2020 I02-S00734
Contracts lor Prog

Swe
$3,200 $3,209

2021 102-300734
Contracts lor Prog

Svc
sao2 $«02

Suh-toul $17,942 ($10.S40) $7,096

Total Gov. CoRvn U.41|^ I1.4M.M5 $2.»W.103

OM>-M->»S10i»HOOOO HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AMD HUMAH SVCS DERT Of, HHS; CMV FOR BEHAVORlAL HEALTH.

BUREAU OF DRUG S ALCOHOL SVCS. CLIHICAL SERVICES (»e% Federal Funds. U% General Funds FAIN TWIOOM CFOA «3.t99)

CORvnurAy Coundl

oINashue-Gr

Nashua Conn

MentalHeefth VtndorCode: IMIIZ-BOOI PC1MTM2

Sute Fieeal Year ClaaaiAccouni Title Budget Amourit tncreaaal lOacraaaa)
Ravbed Modified

Budoet

2019 102-500734
Contracts lor Prog

Svc
$113,143 ($112,764) $379

2020 102-500734
Coiwacts lor Prog

Svc
$6,791 $6,791

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$2,037 $2.M7

SutHotal 1113.143 ($103,936) $9,207

State Fbeei Year CiaaslAccouni Tllb Budgat Amount tncreaaal (Decrasae)
Rtvbwl Modified

Budoet

2019 102-500734 '
Contracts lor Prog

Svc
$167,619 ($135,054) $32,565

2020 >102-500734
Conoacu lor Prog

Svc
$54,330 $54,330

2021 102-500734
Ccniracu lor Prog

Svc
$13,563 '  $13,563

SuMotat $167,619 ($67,141) $100,476

AtUdunentA

Finendil Oct*a



Attachment A

Financial Details

Easier 8Mb o< KH

Mantfiaatar

Aloohdbm Rahati

Ce^vnun Vendor CoOa: 1772O4.«0OS P01062080

State Flecei Year Claaa/Aacoutrt nue Budget Amount liKreasa/ (Oacitsaa) Ravlaad Modified

Budaal

2010 102-S007M
Contracts for Prog

Svc
9761^ 9387.620 91.176.712

2020 102-S007M
Comraas lor Prog

Svc
91.022.771 91.022.771

2021 102>S007)4
Cormcta for Prog

Svc 9296,032 9296.032

SutMoUl ■ 1781.063 91.676.432 92.457.915

FfT/NHNH Vendor Coda; 1ST720«001 PO1063S96

SUU Fbeel Year Claaa/Aecouni TUle eudget Amount tTKraetaf {Oaeraaaa)
Ravlaad ModKlad

»I0 102-S00704
Corrtracts tor Prog

Svc
9491.016 927.629 9476.641

2020 102-800734
ConCTDCls tor Prog

Svc
9532.798 9532.756

2021 102-900734
Contraca tor Prog

Svc
9133.110 9133.110

SwtHotal 9491.016 9683S03 91.144.700

Gmfton Couniy Vendor Coda: 177307-6003 P01062077

8Uta Flaeal Year ClatafAacount Title Budget Amount Incraa sal < Dacrasea)
Ravlaad Medtflod

2010 102-500734
Contracts tor Prog

Svc
tmiot (943.000) 9I29J06

2020 . 102-500734 Contracts tor Prog
Svc

9156.876 9156.070

2021 102-500734
Ccntraca tor Prog

Svc
939.300 938.390

Subtotal 9172.908 9193.260 9329.777

Craaier Nashua
Coundon

AlcehoOsffl Vendor Coda: 166574-6001 TO1063242

State Fbcal Year Ctaaa/AccecfU TUe Budgal Amount toeraasaf (Oaeraaaa) Ravlaad Modified

2010 102^734 Contracts tor Prog
Svc

9436.227 9401 9438.626

2020 102-500734
Contracts tor Prog

Svc
9136,909 9136.905

2021 102-900734
Contracts lor Prog

Svc
90 1 90

Sub-IMal 9436.227 9136.006' 9973.133

Haadmii. bv Vendor Coda: I7S22V6001 P01062070

State Fiaeal Year Ctaaa/AccDum TUe Budgat Amount tocreaaa/ (Oaeraaaa)
Ravlaad MedMad

2010 102-900734
Contracts tor Prog

Svc
9103.364 (949.009) 953.369

2020 102-900794
Conoacu tor Prog

Svc 931.240 .. 931.240

2021 102-900734
Ccmacts for Prog

Svc
98.190 98.150

SuMetal 9103.364 (910.609) 992.795

Atttehmttn A

nriAwldOraD

Pi(«Se<l}



Attachment A

Pinanclal Details

Stito Yotr CIma/Account TItto BwOgot Arrwunt tieratso; (DocrosM)
Rovfaod MotflAod

Bwdeot

20i« I02-900n4
Contrvcu lor Prog

Sve
siM.eoe (S135J73) S59^

2020 l02-9007> '
Contrveu lor Prog

Svc
S66.999 SOO^

2021 102-900734
Contracts lor Prog

Svc
(ie.«7B SIS.07S

8wb-toul siKeoe (S5I.B40) SI42.7M

' NerV) Country

Suit Fbeal Yotr Clost/Accouni TIUo Budgol Amount meratsol (OocrotM)
Rovlood ModinoO

Buda*!

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
5200.72B t60.5»4 • 6261.322

2020 102-500734
Ceniracu for Prog

Svc
6247.662 6247.662

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
661.801 661.601

Sub-totsl 1200.726 6390.277 6591.005

Phoonfa HeuoM ct

Suit Flacsl Yftr XltulAccount Titfo Budgot Amount kKratsW (DocrooM)
RovlMd Modmod

Buddtt

2019 102-500734
Corwacts tor Prog

Svc
6167.679 684.079 6246.754

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
6214.609 6214.609

2021 102-5007^ Coraraets tor Prog
Svc

653.651 653.691

SuMotsI 6167.679 6352.339 6915.010

Anachmtfil A

Flnandil OotaO
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Attachmeni A

nnandalOetails

Smcow Youth

SUto Fioco) Ytor CUM/Aceouni Trat .Budgoi Amount lnerMMl(D«cr«»M)
R»vls«d UodlfloO

»t» t02-S007»4 Conneu lor Prog
Svc

551.124 50 551.(24

2020 (02-500724
Contracts tor Piog

Svc 50 50

2021 102-500724
Contracts tor Prog

Svc 50 50

-  8ub-loui 551.(24 50 551.(24

SouOwasteth NH
Alcohol and Drug

Stats Ftoeaf Ysar CUsa/Acceum ' TWt Sudgai Amount IrKraaaa; (OaeraaM) Ravtsad Modmtd

20(9 102-500724
Contracts (or Png

Svc
5411.741 (5202.150) 5200.591

2020 102-500724
ContracU tor Prog

Svc 5255.252 5255.252

202 ( (02-500724 Contracts tor Prog
Svc 563.B20 503.020

SutMotat 541l.74t 1110.041 5527.702

Wmi Contra!

Suta Fiscal Yasr Clasa/AcceuM '  no* Budgat Amount bicraasa/ (Oacrsasa) Ravlsad Modinad

. 20(9 102-500734
Contracts tor Preg.

Svc
541.540 (540.023) 5915

2020 (02-500724
Contracts tor Prog

Svc 50.791 50.791

2021 (02-500724
Contracu tor Prog

Svc 51.008 51.098

Sub-taul 541.540 (522.144) 59.404

Total ClMcai Sva 53 2S7M2 t3.253m iOMO.aos

ARachmtnt •

nooncWOMtn

Pl|«70(12



Attachment A

Hnandal Details''

W.W^.t28410.70400000 HEALTO AND SOClAt SERVICES. HEALTH AHO HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: OIV FOR BEHAVORiAL HEALTH
BUREAU Of ORUO S ALCOHOL SVCS. STATE OPtQIO RESPOMSE CRANT {100* FeOmI Fund*. FAIN HTfTIOilSMCFOA M.7M) '

Cemmunfey Coundl
oiNMhM-Gr

Nashua Comm

ManlalHatfh VtMorCoda: IsanZ-BOOl

SUti FIseal YaSf Cia^sa/Accouni nue Budget Amount Increase/ (Daerease) Revised Madtned

2010 102-S007W Contracts tor Prog
Svc

SO SO SO

2020 102-S007>
ConlracU lor Prog

Svc . SO SO ^  SO

2021 102-S00734
Corwaos lor Prog

Svc
SO SO SO .

Suthiotal so SO SO

Oismas Hema M NH Vendor CoM:TBO

Statt Ftscal Ytar Ciasa/Aecount THIe Budget Amount hncreaee/ (Oecrasse)
Revised Modified

2019 1C2-SO07M
Contracts for Prog

Svc >
. S3.400 S11.600 SI 9.000

3020 102-900734 Contracts tor Piog
Svc

SO S91.COO 551.000

2021 102-900734
Comacu ler Prog

Sw
SO S7.000 S7.000

SuMaul S3.400 seo.eoo

EaslarSaib'elNH
Manchatlar

Muheism Rehab

Ctnfamuni Vendor Code: 177204-6005
1

Suit FisealYfir ClassIAceounI Title Budget Amount Meraste/ {Oecrasse] Revised Madtned

2010 102-900734
Cdrmets for Prog

Svc
Sl.091.aoo (5307.600) S764.000

2020 102-900734
Contracts for Pieg

Svc
SO si.ooi.eoo Sl.OOIBOO

2021 102-900734
CdMracts far Prog

Svc
so S2SXI00 $29,000

S1.091.800 S600.000 S 1.000.600

ARKhmam*

riAandal OtaU
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Attachment A

Financial Details

FrT/NHNH VfOof Cwf: 157730-BOOt

sut* ntcAi YMf Ctesa/Aecount TWa DwdgaiAmourM bKiaaaa' (OacraaaaJ
Ravlaad Medtflad

2019 1O2-SO0T34
Comets tor Prog

Svc
S20»^5e to 9208.258

2020 I02-SC0734
CoWKS tor Prog

Svc
10 8208.898 t20e.858

2021 -  102-9007M
Comcta tor Prog

Svc
so to to .

Subtotal t20t.29« 8208.896

Orafton County VandorCoda: I77397-B002

$Uia FlKil Y«ar ' CUaaiAceount . . TltW Budgat Amoum IncraaaW (Dacraaaa) Ravtaad Modmad

2019 1Q2-90D7M
Cormets tor Prog

Svc
to to SO

2020 102-5007)4
Comcta tor Prog

Svc
to to so

2021 102-5007)4
ComctstorProg

Svc
SO to to

Sub-loul to to 80

CraAUrNaahua

Coundon

AleoAettam VandorCoda: 1S6374.B001

SUia Flaeal Ytar Ctaaa/Accoufti Tttla Budgat Amount lrKraaaW<Oacrttta|
Raviaad Mddlflad

2019 102-5007)4 Contracts tor Prog
Svc

1890.300 (8537.300) 8353.000

2020 102-5007)4
Conaacta tor Prog

Svc
SO 8200.000 8200.000

2021 102-9007)4
Cermeta tor Prog

Svc
SO to SO

Sub^oui 9890.300 (8337.300) 8553.000

SUta Flaaal Yaar Claaa/Accouni TItIa Budgat Amount hKraasW (Dacraaaa)
Raviaad ModlOad

2019 102-9007)4 '
Contracts tor Prog

Svc
880.600 870,000 8150.600

2020 102-500734
Contracts tor Ptcg

Svc
to S299.000 S2B9.000

2021 102-5007)4
Contraes tor Prog

-Svc
to 89.400 85.400

880.600 S374.400 8455.000

AttKhni«nt A

nntneUI D*uB
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Anachment A

Financial Details

- v-^-

HoptonHavflHOl Vandof Code:27ail»-eOOl

8ut« FtsMi YMr CUaaf Account TWe Budget Amount lneraeee/<Oecreese}
Revleed Modified

2019 102-S00734
CdntracttlorProg

Svc
S2ia.400 (542.400) 5176.000

2020 102-500734
Ccniracia tor Prog

Svc -
to 5302.000 5302,000

2021 102-500734 Ccntracts lor Prog
Svc

.to ' 525.000 525.000

Swb-loul /

5218.400 5284.600 5500.000

NorOiCeunoy
HMim C«n*cnium Vtndor Code; 158557-0001

Suit Fisctl Ytar Ctcaa/AccouM

• _ .

TWe Budget Artteunt Irwraeeal (Oecreeee) Revteed Modified

2010 102-500734
CerttBcu tor Prog

Svc
tt 14.200 S102.600 5217.000

2020 102-500734
ConOscu tor Prog

to 5372.000 5372.000

2021 .  102-500734
Corwacts tor Prog

Svc
SO 56.000 56.000

Sub^oui S114.300 5480.800 5595.000

Phoenix HouMi of
N«m England, tnc. Vendor Code: l77S89-B00l

'

8Ul> Fbcal Yaar CMaa/Aecownt Tide Budget Amount tncreetef (DecreeM)
Revleed Modified

2019 102-500734 Cer«aos tor Prog
Svc

5584.000 (5146.600) 5438,000

2020 102:500734 Ccntracu for Prog
Svc

to 5751.000 5751,000

2021 102-500734 Cortoacu tor Prog
Svc

to 525.000 525,000

SwUotal 5584.600 5829.400

Seaeaasi Youtf)

SanHcM Vendor Code; 203944-6001

8Uta Fbcaf Yaar Claae/Acceuni TUe Budget Amount iTKreeae/(OecreeM)
Revteed Modified

2019 102-500734 Coritfaae tor Prog
Svc

to SO 50

2020 102-500734 Contracis tor Prog
Svc

to 50 50

2021 102-500734 ContncU tor Prog
Svc

to to

SutMOUl
to to to

AtlKhfn«fll A

HamwW OmiB

^tlOofta
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Hnandat Details

$ou9Mast«ni NH

AKofKl and Omg
SarvlcM

8ut» FlaCAlYaar CUta/A«eeuni' Till* . BudgMAmownt. lrKrat*MD«cra«M
Rtvlsad Modinao

20ig 102-9007)4 Connas for Preg
Svc

S37«.000 ' <914.600) 9)69.000

2020 102-9007)4
Conncts tor Prog

Svc
SO 9929.000 9629.000

2021 102-5007)4
' Corwacu tor Prog

Svc
SO 925.000 929.000

Sub-teui S)79.eoo 96)9.400 91.015.000

WastCanni

5«viea< Vwidpr Coda; 1776S4.B001

Stat* Fbcal Yaar CUas/AccouM ntio Budgat AmoutM Incraaaa/ Oacraaaa
Pavltad Modtriad

2010 102-9007)4
Conoaoa tor Prog

Svc
SO SO SO

2020 102-9007)4
Corwacta tor Prog

Svc
SO SO so

2021 102-9007)4
ConVacta tor Piog

Svc
90 SO SO

SuMotal SO SO so
Teul SOA Gram 9).571.m 93.t94.7M S«T2S«12

Grand Total All S6 27aoaa 17 872994 918.150.M2

AR»C<MntMA
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Attachment A

Financial Details

Grand ToW bv V«ndior Wit 2019 2020

PO Vandcn Currant Prfca Lbnlutlon IncraasatDacraiaa

P0t067082

Commuriiy Coundl of N«hu*-Gr
Nashua Corran M«nui HaaRh

VandorCoda:

I&4I12-B001 8162 000 (6152.0001 610.000

P010S3978 Olvnas Horn* et NH

vandor Moa;

2900ei-K»l 6243 400 (6148 400)

PO1M2M0

Eastar Saab of HH Martchastar

AtoOheSsm Rahab Cir/Fam m

VandorCoda;
r \T73MUSM 62.210171 669.629 62.597.600

POioft:usa FIT/NHNH

VandorCoda:

15773(W»01 66S4.031 627 825

POioewT Orafton rounN
VandorCoda:

t77397-B003 6247 000 (64.1000)

PO1063242

Craatar Nashua Caund on
AJcohettsm

Vandor Coda:

l6AS74.BOOt 61.S14.B99 (6538 600)

POlMTSrft Haadresl be

VandorCoda:

i7S2?e.Rn)i 6228 5M 620001

POlOe3243 Hooa on Havan HH

VandorCoda: .
27SI10-ROOI 6467.041 (6222.041)

POtOe2088 Nor®) Courtbv Hast®) Consortkan
VandorCoda:

1SSSS7-e00l 6401606 6183 394

POltMTfiSS

Pheanta Housa* of Na«* Engiwid.
be.

VandorCoda:

t775«»-800l 6617.621 (662.521)

POIM2M4 Saaeoast Youth Sarvfeaa
VandorCoda:

203944-ROOt - 673 200 60

P0lM2dM
SoUhaasiam NH Atcohol and

OnwSarvteM

VandorCoda

1SS2«7.fU»l 6060 140 (6228 140)

POIM2088 Wast Caram Sarvteaa

Tow

VandorCoda:

1776S4.BOOI 630 490

66.276096

(655.490)

161 127.442)

610.000

67.924 126

62.500

61.075.000

AnxhrrwrKA
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substanco Use Disorder Trftatment and Recovery Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3 to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and

Recovery Support Services Contract

This 2"^ Amendment to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #3) is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Manchester
Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with
a place of business at 555 Auburn Street, Manchester, NH 03103.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 20, 2018 (Late Item G) and amended on July 27, 2018 (Item 7) and December 5, 2018 (Item
#23), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in
the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, completion
date, price limitation and payment schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3 the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of the
contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council;
and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to modify the contract completion date and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #3 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 30, 2020.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$5,299,800.00.

3. Delete Exhibit A, Amendment #2, Scope of Service in Its entirety and replace with Exhibit A,
Amendment #3, Scope of Services.

4. Delete Exhibit B, Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment in its entirety
and replace with Exhibit 6, Amendment #3 Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

Msncnester Alcoholism RehsbiHiaUon Confer Amendment <3

RPA-2019-BOAS-01-$U8ST<07-A03 Page 1 of 3



\

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date KatjaS. Fox
Director

f

5/gB/19

Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center

Date Name: Eiin Treanor

Title: cfo

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of New Hampshire County of Hiiisborough on Mav28.2QiQ before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satlsfactority proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document In the
capacity indicated above.

ni.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace vwWV''"'"//////,

^  ~ - MY ♦
COMMISSION

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace = uj5 ^
%  2024 $

My Commission Expires:

Manchester Atcoholism RehabtRletlon Center Amendment #3
RFA-201©-aDAS-Ot-SUBST-07.A03 Page 2 of 3



X

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date Name:

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitatioo Center Amendment #3

RFA-2019-8OAS-Ot-SUBST-O7^03 Page 3 of 3



Now Hampshire Dopartment of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #3

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire
General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.2. For the purposes of this Contract, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
Subrecipient in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200 et seq.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support
Services to any eligible client, regardless of where the client lives or works in New
Hampshire.

1.4. Standard Compliance

1.4.1. The Contractor shall meet all information security and privacy requirements as set
by the Department.

1.4.2. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

1.4.2.1. The Contractor shall establish formal information sharing and referral
agreements with the Doorways, compliant with all applicable
confidentiality laws, including 42 CFR Part 2 in order to receive
payments for services funded with SOR resources.

1.4.2.2. The Department shall be able to verify'that client referrals to the
Doorways have been completed by Contractor prior to accepting
invoices for services provided through SOR funded initiatives.

1.4.2.3. The Contractor shall only provide Medication Assisted Treatment
(MAT) with FDA-approved MAT for Opioid Use Disorder (OUO). FDA-
approved MAT for OUO includes:

1.4.2.3.1. Methadone.

1.4.2.3.2. Buprenorphine products, including:

1.4.2.3.2.1. Single-entity buprenorphine products.

1.4.2.3.2.2. Buprenorphine/naloxone tablets.

1.4.2.3.2.3. Buprenorphine/naloxone films.

1.4.2.3.2.4. Buprenorphine/naloxone buccal
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preparations.

1.4.2.3.3. Long-acting injectable buprenorphine products.

1.4.2.3.4. Buprenorphine implants.

1.4.2.3.5. Injectable extended-release naltrexone.

1.4.2.4. The Contractor shall not provide medical withdrawal management
services to any individual supported by SOR Funds, unless the
withdrawal management service is accompanied by the use of
injectable extended-release naltrexone, as clinically appropriate.

1.4.2.5. The Contractor shall ensure that clients receiving financial aid for
recovery housing utilizing SOR funds shall only be in a recovery
housing facility that is aligned with the National Alliance for Recovery
Residences standardsand registered with the State of New Hampshire,
Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services in accordance with current NH
Administrative Rules.

1.4.2.6. The Contractor shall assist clients with enrolling in public or private
health insurance, if the client is determined eligible for such coverage.

1.4.2.7. The Contractor shall accept clients on MAT and facilitate access to
MAT on-slte or through referral for all clients supported with SOR Grant
funds, as clinically appropriate.

1.4.2.8. The Contractor shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White HIV/AIDs
program, for clients identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS.

1.4.2.9. The Contractor shall ensure that all clients are regularly screened for
tobacco use. treatment needs and referral to the QuItLine as part of

^  treatment planning.
1.4.3. The Contractor shall submit a plan for Department approval no later than 30 days

from the date of Governor & Executive Council approval that specifies actions to
be taken In the event that the Contractor ceases to provide services. The
Contractor shall ensure the plan includes, but is not limited to:

1.4.3.1. A transition action plan that ensures clients seamlessly transition to
alternative providers with no gap in services.

1.4.3.2. Where and how client records will be transferred to ensure no gaps and
services, ensuring the Department is not identified as the entity
responsible for client records; and

1.4.3.3. Client notification processes and procedures for 1.5.3.1 and 1.5.3.2.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. Covered Populations

2.1.1. The Contractor shall provide services to eligible individuals who:
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2.1.1.1. Are age 12 or older or under age 12. with required consent from a
parent or legal guardian to receive treatment, and

2.1.1.2. Have income below 400% Federal Poverty Level, and

2.1.1.3. Are residents of New Hampshire or homeless in New Hampshire, and

2.1.1.4. Are determined positive for substance use disorder.

2.2. Resiliency and Recovery Oriented Systems of Care

2.2.1. The Contractor shall provide substance use disorder treatment services that
support the Resiliency and Recovery Oriented Systems of Care (RROSC)
by operationalizing the Continuum of Care Model
(http://w>w.dhhs.nh.gov/dct>cs/bdas/continuum-of-care.htm).

2.2.2. RROSC supports person>c6ntered and setf-directed approaches to care
that build on the strengths and resilience of individuals, families and
communities to take responsibility for their sustained health, wellness and
recovery from alcohol and drug problems. At a minimum, the Contractor
shall:

2.2.2.1. Inform the Integrated Delivery Network(s) (IDNs) of services available
in order to align this work with ION projects that may be similar or impact
the same populations.

2.2.2.2. Inform the Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN) of services
available in order to align this work with other RPHN projects that may
be similar or impact the same populations.

2.2.2.3. Coordinate client services with other community service providers
involved in the client's care and the client's support network

2.2.2.4. Coordinate client services with the Department's Doorway contractors
including, but not limited to:

2.2.2.4.1. Ensuring timely admission of clients to services

2.2.2.4.2. Referring any client receiving room and board payment to
the Doorway;

2.2.2.4.3. Coordinating all room and board client data and services
with the clients' preferred Doorway to ensure that each
room and board client served has a GPRA interview

completed at intake, three (3) months, six (6) months, and
discharge.

2.2.2.4.4. Referring clients to Doorway services when the Contractor
cannot admit a client for services within forty-eight (48)
hours; and

2.2.2.4.5. Referring clients to Doorway services at the time of
discharge when a client is In need of Hub services

2.2.2.5. Be sensitive and relevant to the diversity of the clients being served.
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2.2.2.6. Be trauma informed; i.e. designed to acknowledge the impact of
violence and trauma on people's lives and the importance of
addressing trauma in treatment.

2.3. Substance Use Disorder Treatment Services

2.3.1. The Contractor shall provide one or more of the following substance use disorder
treatment services;

2.3.1.1. Individual Outpatient Treatment as defined as American

Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) Criteria. Level 1.

Outpatient Treatment services assist an individual to achieve

treatment objectives through the exploratioh of substance use

disorders and their ramifications, including an examination of
attitudes and feelings, and consideration of alternative

solutions and decision making with regard to alcohol and other
drug related problems.

2.3.1.2. Group Outpatient Treatment as defined as ASAM Criteria.

Level 1. Outpatient Treatment services assist a group of
individuals to achieve treatment objectives through the
exploration of substance use disorders and their ramifications,

including an examination of attitudes and feelings, and
consideration of alternative solutions and decision making with
regard to alcohol and other drug related problems.

2.3.1.3. Intensive Outpatient Treatment as defined as ASAM Criteria.
Level 2.1. Intensive Outpatient Treatment services provide
intensive and structured individual and group alcohol and/or
other drug treatment services and activities that are provided
according to an individualized treatment plan that includes a
range of outpatient treatment services and other ancillary
alcohol and/or other drug services. Services for adults are

provided at least 9 hours a week. Services for adolescents are

provided at least 6 hours a week.

2.3.1.4. Partial Hospitalization as defined as ASAM Criteria. Level 2.5.

Partial Hospitalization services provide intensive and

structured individual and group alcohol and/or other drug
treatment services and activities to individuals with substance

use and moderate to severe co-occurring mental health
disorders, including both behavioral health and medication
management (as appropriate) services to address both

disorders. Partial Hospitalization is provided to clients for at
least 20 hours per week according to an individualized
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treatment plan that includes a range of outpatient treatment

services and other ancillary alcohol and/or other drug services.

2.3.1.5. High-Intensity Residential Treatment for Adults as defined as

ASAM Criteria, Level 3.5. This service provides residential

substance use disorder treatment designed to assist

individuals who require a more intensive level of service in a
structured setting.

2.3.1.6. Residential Withdrawal Management services as defined as
ASAM Criteria, Level 3.7-WM a residential service. Withdrawal

Management services provide a combination of clinical and/or

medical services utilized to stabilize the client while they are
undergoing withdrawal.

2.4. Recovery Support Services

2.4.1. Upon approval of the Department, the Contractor shall provide recovery
support services that will remove barriers to a client's participation in
treatment or recovery, or reduce or remove threats to an Individual

maintaining participation in treatment and/or recovery.

2.4.2. The Contractor shall provide recovery support services only In
coordination with providing at least one of the services in Section

2.3.1.1 through 2.3.1.6 to a client, as follows:

2.4.2.1. Intensive Case Management

2.4.2.1.1. The Contractor may provide individual or group
Intensive Case Management in accordance with
SAMHSA TIP 27: Comprehensive Case

Management for Substance Abuse Treatment

{https://store.samhsa.gov/product/TIP-27-

Comprehensive-Case-Management-for-
Substance-Abuse-Treatment/SMA15-4215) and
which exceed the minimum case management
expectations for the level of care.

2.5. Enrolling Clients for Services

2.5.1. The Contractor shall determine eligibility for services in accordance with Section
2.1 above and with Sections 2.5.2 through 2.5.4 below:

2.5.2. The Contractor shall complete intake screenings as follows:

2.5.2.1. Have direct contact (face to face communication by meeting in person,
or electronically, or by telephone conversation) with an individual
(defined as anyone or a provider) within two (2) business days from the
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date that individual contacts the Contractor for Substance Use Disorder
Treatment and Recovery Support Services. All attempts at contact
shall be documented in the client record or call log.

2.5.2.2. Complete an initial Intake Screening within two (2) business days from
the date of the first direct contact with the Individual, using the eligibility
module in Web Information Technology System (WITS) to determine
probability of being eligible for services under this contract and for
probability of having a substance use disorder. All attempts at contact
shall be documented in the client record or call log.

2.5.2.3. Assess clients' income prior to admission using the WITS fee
determination model and

2.5.2.3.1. Assure that clients' income information is updated as
needed over the course of treatment by asking clients
about any changes in income no less frequently than every
4 weeks. Inquiries about changes in Income shall be
documented in the client record

2.5 .3. The Contractor shall complete an ASAM Level of Care Assessment for all services
in Sections 2.3.1.1 through 2.3.1.2 within two (2) days of the initial Intake
Screening in Section 2.5.2 above using the ASI Lite module, in Web Information
Technology System (WITS) or other method approved by the Department when
the individual is determined probable of being eligible for services.

2.5.3.1. The Contractor shall make available to the Department, upon request,
the data from the ASAM Level of Care Assessment in Section 2.5.3 In
a format approved by the Department.

2.5.4. The Contractor shall use the clinical evaluations completed by a Licensed or
unlicensed Counselor from a referring agency.

2.5.5. If the client does not present with an evaluation completed by a licensed or
unlicensed counselor, the Contractor shall, for all services provided, complete a
clinical evaluation utilizing CONTINUUM or an alternative method approved by the
Department that includes DSM 5 diagnostic information and a recommendation for
a level of care based on the ASAM Criteria, published in October, 2013. The
Contractor shall complete a clinical evaluation, for each client;

2.5.5.1. Prior to admission as a part of Interim services or within three (3)
business days following admission.

2.5.5.2. During treatment only when determined by a Licensed Counselor.

2.5.6. The Contractor shall either complete clinical evaluations In Section 2.5.4,above
before admission or Level of Care Assessments in Section 2.5.3, above before
admission along with a clinical evaluation in Section 2.5.4, above after admission.

2.5.7. The Contractor shall provide eligible clients the substance use disorder treatment
services in Section 2.3 determined by the client's clinical evaluation in Section
2.5.4 unless:
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2.5.7.1. The client choses to receive a service with a lower intensity ASAM
Level of Care; or •

2.5.7.2. The service with the needed ASAM level of care is unavailable at the
time the levelof care is determined In Section 2.5.3, in which case the

-  client may choose:

2.5.7.2.1. A service with a lower Intensity ASAM Level of Care;

2.5.7.2.2. A service with the next available higher Intensity ASAM
Level of Care;

2.5.7.2.3. Be placed on the waitlist until their service with the
assessed ASAM level of care becomes available as in
Section 2.5.3; or

2.5.7.2.4. Be referred to another agency in the client's service area
that provides the service with the needed ASAM Level of
Care.

2.5.8. The Contractor shall enroll eligible clients for services In order of the priority
described below:

2.5.8.1. Pregnant women and women with dependent children, even If the
children are not In their custody, as long as parental rights have not
been terminated, Including the provision of interim services within the
required 48-hour time frame. If the Contractor is unable to admit a
pregnant woman for the needed level of care within 24 hours, the
Contractor shall:

2.5.8.1.1. Contact the Doorway of the client's choice to connect the
client with substance use disorder treatment selvices; or

2.5.8.1.2. If the client refuses referral in 2.5.8.1.1., assist the pregnant
woman with identifying alternative providers and with
accessing services with these providers. This assistance
shall include actively reaching out to identify providers on
the behalf of the client; and

2.5.8.1.3. Provide interim services until the appropriate level of care
becomes available at either the Contractor agency or an
altematlve provider. Interim sen/Ices shall Include:

2.5.8.1.3.1. At least one 60-minute individual, or group
outpatient session per week;

2.5.8.1.3.2. Recovery support services as needed by the
client;

2.5.8.1.3.3. Dally calls to the client to assess and respond
to any emergent needs.
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2.5.6.2. Individuals who have been administered naloxone to reverse the

effects of an opioid overdose either in the 14 days prior to screening or
In the period between screening and admission to the program.

2.5.8.3. Individuals with a history of injection drug use including the provision of
interim services within 14 days.

2.5.8.4. Individuals with substance use and co-occurring mental health
disorders.

2.5.8.5. Individuals with Opioid Use Disorders.

2.5.8.6. Veterans with substance use disorders

2.5.8.7. individuals with substance use disorders who are involved with the

criminal justice and/or child protection system.

2.5.8.8. Individuals who require priority admission at the' request of the
Department.

2.5.9. The Contractor shall obtain consent in accordance with 42 CFR Part 2 for
treatment from the client prior to receiving services for individuals v^ose age is
12 years and older.

2.5.10. The Contractor shall obtain consent in accordance with 42 CFR Part 2 for
treatment from the parent or legal guardian when the client is under the age of
twelve (12) prior to receiving services.

2.5.11. The Contractor shall include in the consent forms language for client consent to
share information with other social service agencies involved in the client's care,
including but not limited to:

2.5.11.1. The Department's Division of Children. Youth and Families (DCYF)

2.5.11.2. Probation and parole

2.5.11.3. Doorways

2.5.12. The Contractor shall not prohibit clients from receiving services under this
contract when a client does not consent to information sharing in Section 2.5.11
above except that clients who refuse to consent to information sharing with the
DoonA^ays shall not receive services utilizing State Opioid Response (SCR)
funding.

2.5.13. The Contractor shall notify the clients whose consent to Information sharing in
Section 2.5.11 above that they have the ability to rescind the consent at any time
without any impact on services provided under this contract except that clients
who rescind consent to information sharing with the Regional Hub shall not
receive any additional services utilizing State Opioid Response (SOR) funding.

2.5.14. The Contractor shall not deny services to an adolescent due to:

2.5.14.1. The parent's inability and/or unwillingness to pay the fee;
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2.5.14.2. The adolescent's decision to receive confidential services pursuant to
RSA318-B:12-a.

2.5.15. The Contractor shall provide services to eligible clients who:

2.5.15.1. Receive Medication Assisted Treatment services from other providers
such as a client's primary care provider;

2.5.15.2. Have coroccurrlng mental health disorders; and/or

2.5.15.3. Are on medications and are taking those medications as prescribed
regardless of the class of medication.

2.5.16. The Contractor shall provide substance use disorder treatment services
separately for adolescent and adults, unless otherwise approved by the
Department. The Contractor agrees that adolescents and adults do not share the
same residency space, however, the communal pace such as kitchens, group
rooms, and recreation may be shared but at separate times.

2.6. Waitlists

2.6.1. The Contractor shall maintain a waitlist for all clients and all substance use
disorder treatment services including the eligible clients being served under this
contract and clients being served under another payer source.

2.6.2. The Contractor shall track the wait time for the clients to receive services, from
the date of initial contact in Section 2.5.2.1 above to the date clients first received
substance use disorder treatment services in Sections 2.3 and 2.4 above, other
than Evaluation in Section 2.5.4

2.6.3. The Contractor shall report to the Department monthly:

2.6.3.1. The average wait time for all clients, by the type of service and payer
source for all the services.

2.6.3.2. The average wait time for priority clients in Section 2.5.8 above by the
type of service and payer source for the services.

2.7. Assistance with Enrolling in Insurance Programs

2.7.1. The Contractor shall assist clients and/or their parents or legal guardians, who
are unable to secure financial resources necessary for initial entry into the
program, with obtaining other potential sources for payment, such as;

2.7.1.1. Enrollment in public or private insurance, including but not limited to
New Hampshire Medicaid programs within fourteen (14) days after
intake. ;

2.7.1.2. Assistance with securing financial resources or the clients' refusal of
such assistance shall be clearly documented in the client record

2.8. Service Delivery Activities and Requirements
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2.8.1. The Contractor shall assess all clients for risk of self-harm at all phases of
treatment, such as at initial contact, during screening, intake, admission, on
going treatment services and at discharge.

2.8.2. The Contractor shall assess all clients for withdrawal risk based on ASAM (2013)
standards at all phases of treatment, such as at Initial contact, during screening,
intake, admission, on-going treatment services and stabilize all clients based on
ASAM (2013) guidance and shall;

2.8.2.1. Provide stabilization services when a client's level of risk Indicates a
service with an ASAM Level of Care that can be provided under this
Contract; If a client's risk level indicates a service with an ASAM Level
of Care that can be provided under this contract, then the Contractor
shall integrate withdrawal management into the client's treatment plan
and provide on-going assessment of withdrawal risk to ensure that
withdrawal is managed safely.

2.8.2.2. Refer clients to a facility where the services can be provided when a
client's risk Indicates a service with an ASAM Level of Care that is

higher than can be provided under this Contract; Coordinate with the
withdrawal management services provider to admit the client to an
appropriate service once the client's withdrawal risk has reached a level
that can be provided under this contract, and

2.8.3. The Contractor shall complete individualized treatment plans for all clients based
on clinical evaluation data within three (3) days or three (3) sessions, whichever
is longer of the clinical evaluation in Section 2.5.4 above, that address problems
in all ASAM (2013) domains which justified the client's admittance to a given
level of care, that are in accordance the requirements in Exhibit A-1 and that:

2.8.3.1. Include in all individualized treatment plan goals, objectives, and
interventions written in terms that are:

2.8.3.1.1. Specific, clearly defining what shall be done.

2.8.3.1.2. Measurable, including clear criteria for progress and
completion.

2.8.3.1.3. Attainable, within the individual's ability to achieve.

2.8.3.1.4. Realistic, the resources are available to the individual.

2.8.3.1.5. Timely, something that needs to be completed within a
stated period for completion that Is reasonable.

2.8.3.2. Include the client's involvement in identifying, developing, and
prioritizing goals, objectives, and Interventions.

2.8.3.3. Are update based on any changes in any American Society of Addiction
Medicine Criteria (ASAM) domain and no less frequently than every 4
sessions or every 4 weeks, whichever is less frequent. Treatment plan
updates shall include:
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2.8.3.3.1. Documentation of the degree to which the client Is meeting
treatment plan goals and objectives;

2.6.3.3.2. Modification of existing goals or addition of new goals
based on changes in the clients functioning relative to
ASAM domains and treatment goals and objectives.

2.8.3.3.3. The counselor's assessment of whether or not the client
needs to move to a different level of care based on changes
In functioning In any ASAM domain and documentation of
the reasons for this assessment.

2.8.3.3.4. The signature of the client and the counselor agreeing to
the updated treatment plan, or if applicable, documentation
of the client's refusal to sign the treatment plan.

2.8.3.4. Track the client's progress relative to the specific goals,
objectives, and Interventions In the client's treatment plan by
completing encounter notes in WITS.

2.8.4. The Contractor shall refer clients to and coordinate a client's care v^th other

providers.

2.8.4.1. The Contractor shall obtain in advance if appropriate, consents from
the client, including 42 CFR Part 2 consent, if applicable, and in
compliance with state, federal laws and state and federal rules.
including but not limited to:

2.8.4.1.1. Primary care provider and If the client does not have a
primary care provider, the Contractor shall make an
appropriate referral to one and coordinate care with that
provider if appropriate consents from the client. Including
42 CFR Part 2 consent. If applicable, are obtained in
advance in compliance with state, federal laws and state
and federal rules.

2.8.4.1.2. Behavioral health care provider when serving clients with
co-occurring substance use and mental health disorders,
and if the client does not have a mental health care
provider, then the Contractor shall make an appropriate
referral to one and coordinate care with that provider if
appropriate consents from the client, including 42 CFR Part
2 consent, if applicable, are obtained in advance in
compliance with state, federal laws and state and federal
rules.

2.8.4.1.3. Medication assisted treatment provider.

2.8.4.1.4. Peer recovery support provider, and If the client does not
have a peer recovery support provider, the Contractor shall
make an appropriate referral to one and coordinate care
with that provider If appropriate consents from the client.
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including 42 CFR Part 2 consent, if applicable, are obtained
in advance in compliance with state, federal laws and state
and federal rules.

2.8.4.1.5. Coordinate with local recovery community organizations
(where available) to bring peer recovery support providers
into the treatment setting, to meet with clients to describe
available services and to engage clients in peer recovery
support services as applicable.

2.8.4:1.6. Coordinate with case management services offered by the
client's managed care organization. Doorway, third party
insurance or other pravider, if applicable. If appropriate
consents from the client, Including 42 CFR Part 2 consent,
if applicable, are obtained in advance In compliance with

■ State, federal laws and state an^federal rules.

2.8.4.2. Coordinate with other social service agencies engaged with the client,
including but not limited to the Department's Division of Children, Youth
and Families (DCYF), probation/parole, and the Doonrvays as
applicable and allowable with consent provided pursuant to 42 CFR
Part 2. The Contractor shall clearly document in the client's file if the
client refuses any of the referrals or care coordination in Section 2.8.4,
above.

2.8.5. The Contractor shall complete continuing care, transfer, and discharge plans for
all Services in Section 2.3, except for Transitional Living, in Section 2.3.1.1, that
address all ASAM (2013) domains; that are in accordance with the requirements
in Exhibit A*1 and that;

2.8.5.1. Include the process of transfer/discharge planning at the time of the
'  client's intake to the program.

2.8.5.2. Include at least one (1) of the three (3) criteria for continuing services
when addressing continuing care as follows:

2.8.5.2.1. Continuing Service Criteria, A: The patient is making
progress, but has not yet achieved the goals articulated in
the individualized treatment plan. Continued treatment at
the present level of care is assessed as necessary to permit
the patient to continue to work toward his or her treatment
goals; or

2.8.5.2.2. Continuing Service Criteria B: The patient is not yet making
progress, but has the capacity to resolve his or her
problems. He/she is actively working toward the goals
articulated in the individualized treatment plan. Continued
treatment at the present level of care is assessed as
necessary to permit the patient to continue to work toward
his/her treatment goals; and /or
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2.8.5.2.3. Continuing Service Criteria C: New problems have been
identified that are appropriately treated at the present level
of care. The new problem or priority requires services, the
frequency and intensity of which can only safely be
delivered by continued stay in the current level of care. The
level of care which the patient is receiving treatment is
therefore the least Intensive level at which the patient's
problems can be addressed effectively

2.8.5.3. Include at least one (1) of the four (4) aiteria for transfer/discharge,
when addressing transfer/discharge that include:

2.8.5.3.1. Transfer/Discharge Criteria A: The Patient has achieved the
goals articulated in the individualized treatment plan, thus
resolving the probiem(s) that justified admission to the
present level' of care. Continuing the chronic disease
management of the patient's condition at a less intensive
level of care is indicated; or

2.8.5.3.2. Transfer/Discharge Criteria B: The patient has been unable
to resolve the probiem(s) that justified the admission to the
present level of care, despite amendments to the treatment
plan. The patient is determined to have achieved the
maximum possible benefit from engagement in services at
the current level of care. Treatment at another level of care
(more or less intensive) in the same type of services, or
discharge from treatment, is therefore indicated; or

2.8.5.3.3. Transfer/Discharge Criteria C: The patient has
demonstrated a lack of capacity due to diagnostic or co-
occurring conditions that limit his or her ability to resolve his
or her problem(s). Treatment at a qualitatively different level
of care or type of service, or discharge from treatment, is
therefore indicated; or

2.8.5.3.4. Transfer/Discharge Criteria D: The patient has experienced
an intensification of his or her probiem(s), or has developed
a new problem(s). and can be treated effectively at a more
intensive level of care.

2.8.5.4. include clear documentation that explains why continued
services/transfer/ or discharge is necessary for Transitional Living.

2.8.6. The Contractor shall deliver ail services in this Agreement using evidence based
practices as demonstrated by meeting one of the following criteria:

2.8.6.1. The service shall be included as an evidence-based mental health and
substance abuse intervention on the SAMHSA Evidence-Based
Practices Resource Center https://www.samhsa.gov/ebp-resource-
center;
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2.8.6.2. The services shall be published in a peer-reviewed journal and found
to have positive effects; or

2.8.6.3. The service is based on a theoretical perspective that has validated
research.

^  2.8.7. The Contractor shall deliver services in this Contract in accordance with:

2.8.7.1. The ASAM Criteria (2013). The ASAM Criteria (2013) can be
purchased online through the ASAM website at:
http://www.asamcriteria.org/

2.8.7.2. the Substance Abuse Mental Health Services Administration
(SAMHSA) Treatment Improvement Protocols (TIPs) available at
http://store.samhsa.gov/list/series7namesTIP-Series-Treatment-
Improvement-Protocols-TIPS-

2.8.7.3. The SAMHSA Technical Assistance Publications (TAPs) available at
http://store.samhsa.gov/list/series7namesTechnical-Assistance-
Publlcations-TAPs-&pageNumber=1

2.8.7.4. The Requirements in Exhibit A-1.

2.9. Client Education

2.9.1. The Contractor shall offer to all eligible clients receiving services under this
contract, individual or group education on prevention, treatment, and nature of:

2.9.1.1. Hepatitis C Virus (HCV).

2.9.1.2. Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV).

2.9.1.3. Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD).

2.9.1.4. Tobacco Treatment Tools that include:

2.9.1.4.1. Assessing clients for motivation in stopping the use of
tobacco products;

2.9.1.4.2. Offering resources such as but not limited to the
Department's Tobacco Prevention & Control Program
(TPCP) and the certified tobacco cessation counselors
available through the QuitLine.

2.10. Tobacco Free Environment

2.10.1. The Contractor shall ensure a tobacco-free environment by having policies and
procedures that at a minimum:

2.10.1.1. Include the smoking of any tobacco product, the use of oral tobacco
products or "spit" tobacco, and the use of electronic devices;

2.10.1.2. Apply to employees, clients and employee or client visitors;

2.10.1.3. Prohibit the use of tobacco products within the Contractor's facilities at
any time.
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2.10.1.4. Prohibit the use of tobacco in any Contractor owned vehicle.

2.10.1.5. Include whether or not use of tobacco products is prohibited outside of
the facility on the grounds.

2.10.1.6. Include the following if use of tobacco products is allowed outside of
the facility on the grounds;

2.10.1.6.1.A designated smoking area(s) which is located at least
twenty (20) feet from the main entrance.

2.10.1.6.2. All materials used for smoking in this area, Including
cigarette butts and matches, shall be extinguished and
disposed of in appropriate containers.

2.10.1.6.3. Ensure periodic cleanup of the designated smoking area.

2.10.1.6.4. If the designated smoking area is not properly maintained, it
can be eliminated at the discretion of the Contractor.

2.10.1.7. Prohibit tobacco use in any company vehicle.

2.10.1.8. Prohibit tobacco use in personal vehicles when transporting people on
authorized business.

2.10.2. The Contractor shall post the tobacco free environment policy In the
Contractor's facilities and vehicles and included in employee, client, and visitor
orientation.

2.10.3. The Contractor shall not use tobacco use, in and of itself, as grounds for
discharging clients from services being provided under this contract.

3. Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall meet the minimum staffing reguirements to provide the scope of
work In this contract as follows:

3.1.1. At least one licensed supervisor, defined as:

3.1.1.1. Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADC);

3.1.1.2. Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC) who also holds the
Licensed Clinical Supervisor (LCS) credential; or

3.1.1.3. Licensed mental health provider.

3.1.2. Sufficient staffing levels that are appropriate for the sen/ices provided and the
number of clients served including but not limited to:

3.1.2.1. Licensed counselors defined as MLADCS, LADCs and individuals
licensed by the Board of Mental Health Practice or Board of
Psychology. Licensed counselors may deliver any clinical or recovery
support senrlces within their scope of practice.

3.1.2.2. Unlicensed counselors defined as Individuals who have completed the
required coursework for licensure by the Board of Alcohol and Other
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Drug Use Providers, Board of Mental Health Practice or Board of
Psychology and are working to accumulate the work experience
required for licensure. Unlicensed counselors may deliver any clinical,
or recovery support services within their scope of knowledge provided
that they are under the direct supervision of a licensed supervisbr.

3.1.2.3. Certified Recovery Support workers (CRSWs) who may deliver
intensive case management and other recovery support services
.within their scope of practice provided that they are under the direct
supervision of a licensed supervisor.

3.1.2.4. Uncertified recovery support workers defined as individuals who are
working to accumulate the work experience required for certification
as a CRSW who may deliver intensive case management and other
recovery support services within their scope of knowledge provided
that they are under the direct supervision of a licensed supervisor.

3.1.3. No licensed supen/isor shall supervise more than twelve staff unless the
Department has approved an alternative supervision plan (See Exhibit A-1
Section 8.1.2).

3.1.4. Provide ongoing clinical supervision that occurs at regular intervals in
accordance with the Operational Requirements in Exhibit A-1. and evidence
based practices, at a minimum:

3.1.4.1. Weekly discussion of cases with suggestions for resources or
therapeutic approaches, co-therapy, and periodic assessment of
progress;

3.1.4.2. Group supervision to help optimize the learning experience, when
enough candidates are under supervision;

3.2. The Contractor shall provide training to staff on;

3.2.1. KnoNvledge, skills, values, and ethics with specific application to the practice
issues faced by the supervisee;

3.2.2. The 12 core functions;

3.2.3. The Addiction Counseling Competencies: The Knowledge, Skills, and Attitudes
of Professional Practice, available at http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TAP-21-
Addiction-Counseling-Competencies/SMA15-4171 and

3.2.4. The standards of practice and ethical conduct, v/ith particular emphasis given
to the counselor's role and appropriate responsibilities, professional
boundaries, and power dynamics and appropriate information security and
confidentiality practices for handling protected health information (PHI) and
substance use disorder treatment records as safeguarded by 42 CFR Pad 2.

3.3. The Contractor shall notify the Department, in writing of changes in key personnel and
provide, within ftve (5) working days to the Department, updated resumes that clearly
indicate the staff member is employed by the Contractor. Key personnel are those staff

Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center Exhibit A, Amendment #3 Contractor initials

RFA-2019-BDAS-OI-SU8ST-A03 Paoe 16 of 24 Date 5/26/19



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #3

for whom at least 10% of their work time Is spent providing substance use disorder
treatment and/or recovery support services.

3.4. The Contractor shall notify the Department in writing within one month of hire when a new
administrator or coordinator or any staff person essential to carrying out this scope of
services is hired to work in the program. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the
resume of the employee, which clearly indicates the staff member is employed by the
Contractor, with the notification.

3.5. The Contractor shall notify the Department in writing within 14 calendar days, when there
is not sufficient staffing to perform all required services for more than one month.

3.6. The Contractor shall have policies and procedures related to student intems to address
minimum coursework, experience and core competencies for those interns having direct
contact with individuals served by this contract. Additionally. The Contractor shall have
student Intems complete an approved ethicS;course and an approved course on the 12
core functions and the Addiction Counseling Competencies; The Knowledge. Skills, and
Attitudes of Professional Practice in Section 3.2.2. and appropriate information security
and confidentiality practices for handling protected health information (PHI) and
substance use disorder treatment records as safeguarded by 42 CFR Part 2 prior to
beginning their internship.

3.7. The Contractor shall have unlicensed staff complete an approved ethics course and an
approved course on the 12 core functions and the Addiction Counseling Competencies:
The Knowledge. Skills, and Attitudes of Professional Practice in Section 3.2.2, and
information security and confidentially practices for handling protected health information
(PHI) and substance use disorder treatment records as safeguarded by 42 CFR Part 2

" within 6 months of hire.

3.8. The Contractor shall ensure staff receives continuous education in the ever changing field
of substance use disorders, and state and federal laws, and rules relating to
confidentiality

3.9. The Contractor shall provide In-service training to all staff Involved in client care within 15
days of the contract effective date or the staff person's start date, if after the contract
effective date, and at least annually thereafter on the following:

3.9.1. The contract requirements.

3.9.2. All other relevant policies and procedures provided by the Department.

3.10. The Contractor shall provide in-service training or ensure attendance at an approved
training by the Department to clinical staff on hepatitis C (HCV). human
immunodeficiency virus (HIV), tuberculosis (TB) and sexually transmitted diseases
(STDs) annually. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a list of trained staff.

4. Facilities License

4.1. The Contractor shall be licensed for all residential services provided with the
Department's Health Facilities Administration.
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4.2. The Contractor shall comply with the additional licensing requirements for medically
monitored, residential withdrawal management services by the Department's Bureau of
Health Facilities Administration to meet higher facilities licensure standards.

4.3. The Contractor is responsible for ensuring that the facilities where services are provided
meet all the applicable laws, rules, policies, and standards.

5. Web Information Technology

5.1. The Contractor shall use the Web Information Technology System (WITS) or an
alternative electronic health record approved by the Department to record all client activity
and client contact within (3) days following the activity or contact as directed by the
Department.

5.2. The Contractor shall, before providing services, obtain written informed consent from the
client on the consent form provided by the Department.

5.2.1. Any client refusing to sign the informed consent in 5.2;

5.2.1.1. Shall not be entered into the WITS system; and

5.2.1.2. Shall not receive services under this contract.

5.2.1.2.1. Any client who cannot receive services under

this contract pursuant to Section 5.2.4. shall be

assisted in finding alternative payers for the

required sen/ices.

5.3. The Contractor agrees to the Information Security Requirements Exhibit K.

5.4. The WITS system shall only be used for clients who are in a program that Is funded by or
under the oversight of the Department.

6. Reporting

6.1. The Contractor shall report on the following:

6.1.1. National Outcome Measures (NOMs) data in WITS for:

6.1.1.1. 100% of all clients at admission

6.1.1.2. 100% of all clients who are discharged because they have completed
treatment or transferred to another program

6.1.1.3. 50% of all clients who are discharged for reasons other than those
specified above in Section 6.1.1.2.

6.1.1.4. The above NOMs In Section 6.1.1.1 through 6.1.1.3 are minimum
requirements and the Contractor shall attempt to achieve greater
reporting results when possible.

6.1.2. Monthly and quarterly contract compliance reporting no later than the 10th day
of the month following the reporting month or quarter;
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6.1.3. All chtical Incidents to the bureau in writing as soon as possible and no more
than 24 hours following the incident. The Contractor agrees that:

6.1.3.1. "Critical incident" means any actual or alleged event or situation that
creates a significant risk of substantial or serious harm to physical or
mental health, safety, or well- being, including but not limited to:

6.1.3.1.1. Abuse;

6.1.3.1.2. Neglect;

6.1.3.1.3. Exploitation;

6.1.3.1.4. Rights violation;

6.1.3.1.5. Missing person;

6.1.3.1.6. Medical emergency;

6.1.3.1.7. Restraint; or

6.1.3.1.8. Medical error.

6.1.4. All contact with law enforcement to the bureau in writing as soon as possible
and no more than 24 hours following the Incident;

6.1.5. All Media contacts to the bureau in writing as soon as possible and no more
than 24 hours following the incident;

6.1.6. Sentinel events to the Department as follows:

6.1.6.1. Sentinel events shall be reported when they involve any individual who
is receiving services under this contract;

6.1.6.2. Upon discovering the event, the Contractor shall provide immediate
verbal notification of the event to the bureau, which shall include:

6.1.6.2.1. The reporting individual's name, phone number, and
agency/organization;

6.1.6.2.2. Name and date of birth (DOB) of the individual(s)
involved in the event;

6.1.6.2.3. Location, date, and time of the event;

6.1.6.2.4. Description of the event, including what, when, where,
how the event happened, and other relevant information,
as well as the identification of any other individuals
involved;

6.1.6.2.5. Whether the police were involved due to a crime or
suspected crime; and

6.1.6.2.6. The identification of any media that had reported the
event;
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6.1.6.3. Within 72 hours of the sentinel event, the Contractor shall submit a
completed "Sentinel Event Reporting Form" (February 2017),
available at . https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbcs/documents/reportlng-
form.pdf to the bureau

6.1.6.4. Additional Information on the event that Is discovered after filing the
form in Section 6.1.6.3. above shall be reported to the Department, In
writing, as It becomes available or upon request of the Department;
and

6.1.6.5. Submit additional information regarding Sections 6.1.6.1 through
6.1.6.4 above If required by the department; and

6.1.6.6. Report the event in Sections 6.1.6.1 through 6.1.6.4 above, as
applicable, to other agencies as required by law.

6.2. For room and board payments associated with Medicaid clients with OUD, the Contractor
shall coordinate client data and services with the Doorways to ensure that each client
served has a Government Performance and Results Modernization Act (GPRA) interview
completed at intake, three (3) months, six (6) months, and discharge.

6.3. The Contractor shall coordinate all services delivered to Medicaid clients with OUD for
whom the contractor is receiving room and Ixiard payments for with the Doorways
Including, but not limited to accepting referrals and clinical evaluation results for level of
care placement directly from the Doorways.

7. Quality Improvement

7.1. The Contractor shall participate In all quality Improvement activities to ensure the
standard of care for clients, as requested by the Department, such as, but not limited to:

7.1.1. Participation in electronic and In-person client record reviews

7.1.2. Participation in site visits

7.1.3. Participation in training and technical assistance activities as directed by the
Department.

7.2. The Contractor shall monitor and manage the utilization levels of care and service array
to ensure services are offered through the term of the contract to:

7.2.1. Maintain a consistent service capacity for Substance Use Disorder Treatment
and Recovery Support Services statewide by:

7.2.1.1. Monitoring the capacity such as staffing and other resources to
consistently and evenly deliver these services; and

7.2.1.2. Monitoring no less than monthly the percentage of the contract funding
expended relative to the percentage of the contract period that has
elapsed. If there is a difference of more than 10% between expended
funding and elapsed time on the contract the Contractor shall notify
the Department within 5 days and submit a plan for con'ecting the
discrepancy within 10 days of notifying the Department.
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8. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

8.1. In order to enable DHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrrty, the Contractor
agrees to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet. Profit and Loss Statement, and
Cash Flow Statement for the Contractor. The Profit and Loss Statement shall Include a
budget column allowing for budget to actual analysis. Statements shall be submitted
within thirty (30) calendar days after each month end. The Contractor shall be evaluated
on the following: ^

8.1.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

8.1.1.1. Definition: The days of operating expenses that can be covered by
the unrestricted cash on hand.

8.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short term Investments diyided
by total operating expenditures, less depreciation/amortization and In-
kind plus principal payments on debt divided by days in the reporting
period. The short-term Investments as used above shall mature within
three (3) months and should not include common stock.

8.1.1.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall have enough cash and
cash equivalents to cover expenditures for a minimum of thirty (30)
calendar days with no variance allowed.

8.1.2. Current Ratio:

8.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total current assets

available to cover the cost of current liabilities.

8.1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current liabilities.

8.1.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum
current ratio of 1.5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

8.1.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio;

8.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor's ability to cover the
cost of its current portion of its long-term debt.

8.1.3.2. Definition: The ratio of Net Income to the year to date debt service.

8.1t3.3. Formula: Net Income plus Depreciation/Amortization Expense plus
Interest Expense divided by year to date debt service (principal and
interest) over the next twelve (12) months.

8.1.3.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements
identifying current portion of long-term debt payments (principal and
interest).

8.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum
standard of 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

8.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets:
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8.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an indication of the Contractor's ability to
cover its iiabilitles.

8.1.4.2. Definition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total assets.

8.1.4.3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total iiabilitles) divided by total
assets.

8.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements.

8.1.4.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum

ratio of .30:1. with a 20% variance allowed.

8.2. in order to enable DHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the Contractor
agrees to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss statement for
the month and year-to-date for the agency and the Profit and Loss statement for the
month and year-to-date for the program being funded with this contract.

8.3. In the event that the Contractor does not meet either:

8.3.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the standard regarding
Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months; or

8.3.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity standards for
three (3) consecutive months, then

8.3.3. The Department may require that the Contractor meet with Department staff to
explain the reasons that the Contractor has not met the standards.

8.3.4. The Department may require the Contractor to submit a comprehensive
corrective action plan within thirty (30) calendar days of notification that 8.2.1
and/or 8.2.2 have not been met.

8.3.4.1. The Contractor shall update the corrective action plan at least every
thirty (30) calendar days until compliance is achieved.

8.3.4.2. The Contractor shall provide additional information to assure
continued access to services as requested by the Department. The
Contractor shall provide requested information in a timeframe agreed
upon by both parties.

8.4. The Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and by email within twenty-four
(24) hours of when any key Contractor staff learn of any actual or likely litigation,
investigation, complaint, claim, or transaction that may reasonably be considered to have
a material financial Impact on and/or materially Impact or Impair the ability of the
Contractor to perform under this Agreement with the Department.

8.5. The monthly Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Statement, Cash Flow Statement, and all other
financial reports shall be based on the accrual method of accounting and include the
Contractor's total revenues and expenditures whether or not generated by or resulting
from funds provided pursuant to this Agreement. These reports are due within thirty (30)
calendar days after the end of each month.

9. Performance Measures
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The following performance measures are required for client services rendered from SOR
funding only.

9.1. The Contractor shall ensure that 100% of clients receiving room and board payments
under this contract that enter care directly through the Contractor who consent to
information sharing with the Doorways receive a Hub referral for ongoing care
coordination.

9.2. The Contractor shall ensure that 100% of clients referred to them by the Doorways who
shall be covered by room and board payments under this contract have proper consents
in place for transfer of information for the purposes of data collection between the
Doorways and the Contractor.

The following performance measures are required for client services rendered from all
sources of funds.

9.3. The Contractor's contract performance shall be measured as in Section 9.5 below to
evaluate that services are mitigating negative impacts of substance misuse, including but
not limited to the opioid epidemic and associated overdoses.

9.4. For the first year of the contract only, the data, as collected in WITS, shall be used to
.  assist the Department in determining the benchmark for each measure below. The

Contractor agrees to report data in WITS used in the following measures:

9.4.1. Initiation: % of clients accessing services within 14 days of screening;

9.4.2. Engagement: % of clients receiving 3 or more eligible services within 34 days;

9.4.3. Retention: % of clients receiving 6 or more eligible services within 60 days;

9.4.4. Clinically appropriate services: % of clients receiving ASAM level of care within
30 days;

9.4.5. Treatment completion: % of clients completing treatment; and

9.4.6. National Outcome Measures (NOMS) The % of clients out of all clients
discharged meeting at least 3 out of 5 NOMS outcome criteria:

.9.4.6.1. Reduction In /no change in the frequency of substance use at
discharge compared to date of first service

9.4.6.2. Increase in/no change in number of individuals employed or in school
at date of last service compared to first service

9.4.6.3. Reduction in/no change in number of individuals an'ested In past 30
days from date of first service to date of last service

9.4.6.4. Increase in/no change in number of individuals that have stable
housing at last service compared to first service

9.4.6.5. Increase in/no change in number of individuals participating in
community support services at last service compared to first sen/ice

10. Contract Compliance Audits
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10.1. In the event that the Contractor undergoes an audit by the Department, the Contractor
agrees to provide a corrective action plan to the Department within thirty (30) days from
the date of the final findings which addresses any and all findings.

10.2. The Contractor shall ensure the corrective action plan shall include:

10.2.1. The actlon(s) that shall be taken to correct each deficiency;

10.2.2. The actlon(s) that shall be taken to prevent the reoccurrence of each deficiency;

.  10.2.3. The specific steps and time line for Implementing the actions above;

10.2.4. The plan for monitoring to ensure that the actions above are effective; and

10.2.5. How and when the vendor shall report to the Department on progress on
implementation and effectiveness.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amouni not to exceed the Price Limitation. Block 1.8,
of the General Provisions, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A,
Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded by:

2.1. New Hampshire General Funds;

2.2. Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention, Treatment, and
Recovery Funds;

2.3. Federal Funds from the United States Department of Health and Human Services, the
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Senrices Administration, Substance Abuse
Prevention and Treatment Block Grant (CFDA #93.959);

2.4. Federal funds from the United States Department of Health and Human Services.
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration State Opioid Response
Grant (CFDA #93.788) and

2.5. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Services in
compliance with the federal funding requirements.

3. Non Reimbursement for Services

3.1. The State shall not reimburse the Contractor for services provided through this contract
when a client has or may have an alternative payer for services described the Exhibit A,
Scope of Work, such as but not limited to:

3.1.1. Services covered by any New Hampshire Medicaid programs for clients
who are eligible for New Hampshire Medicaid

3.1.2. Services covered by Medicare for clients who are eligible for Medicare

3.1.3. Services covered by the client's private insurer(s) at a rate greater than the
Contract Rate in Exhibit B-1 Amendment #2, Service Fee set by the Department.

3.2. Notwithstanding Section 3.1 above, the Contractor may seek reimbursement from the
State for services provided under this contract when a client needs a service that is not
covered by the payers listed in Section 3.1.

3.3. Payments may t>e withheld until the Contractor submits accurate required monthly and
quarterly reporting.

3.4. Notwithstanding Section 3.1 above, when payment of the deductible or copay would
constitute a financial hardship for the client, the Contractor must seek reimbursement
from the State for that deductible based on the sliding fee scale, not to exceed $4,000
per client per treatment episode.

3.4.1. For the purposes of this section, financial hardship is defined as the
client's monthly household income being less than the deductible
plus the Federally-defined monthly cost of living (COL).

Manchester Alcohottsm Rehabilitation Center Exhibit B. Amendment #3 Vendor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit B, Amendment #3

3.4.1.1. If the ihdivldual owns a vehicle:

Monthly COL

Family Size

1 2 3 4 5+

$ 3,119.90 $ 3,964.90 $ 4,252.10 $ 4,798.80 $ 4,643.90

3.4.1.2. If the individual does not own a vehicle:

Family Size

1 2 3 4 5

Monthly COL $ 2,570.90 $ 3,415.90 $ 3,703.10 $ 4,249.80 $ 4,643.90

4. The Contractor shall bill and seek reimbursement for actual services delivered by fee for
services in Exhibit B-1, Amendment #2 Service Fee Table, unless otherwise stated. The
Contractor agrees:

4.1. The fees for sen/ices, excluding Clinical Evaluation, are all-inclusive contract rates to
deliver the services and are the maximum allowable charge in calculating the amount to
charge the Department for services delivered as part of this Agreement (See Section 5
below).

4.2. To bill for Clinical Evaluation services separately from all other per day units of services.-

4.3. Payments may be withheld until the Contractor submits accurate required monthly and
quarterly reporting.

5. Calculating the Amount to Charge the Department Applicable to All Services in Exhibit B-l,
Amendment #2 Sen/ice Fee Table.

5.1. The Contractor shall:

5.1.1. Directly bill and receive payment for services and/or transportation provided

under this contract from public and private insurance plans, the clients, and

the Department

5.1.2. Assure a billing and payment system that enables expedited processing to the
greatest degree possible in order to not delay a client's admittance into the
program and to immediatety refund any overpayments.

5.1.3. Maintain an accurate accounting and records for all services billed, payments
received and overpayments (if any) refunded.

5.2. The Contractor shall determine and charge accordingly for'services provided to an eligible
client under this contract, as follows:

Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center

RFA-201 e-BOAS-01 -SUBST-07-A03

Exhibit B, Amendment #3

Page 2 of 7

Vendor Initials

Date 5/26/19



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit B, Amendment #3

5.2.1. First: Charge the client's private insurance up to the Contract Rate, in Exhibit B-
1, Amendment #2 when the insurers' rates meet or are lower than the Contract
Rate in Exhibit B-1 Amendment #2.

5.2.2. Second: Charge the client according to Exhibit B, Amendment #3, Section 9,
Sliding Fee Scaie, when the Contractor determines or anticipates that the
private insurer shall not remit payment for the full amount of the Contract Rate
in Exhibit B-1. Amendment #2.

5.2.3. Third: If, any portion of the Contract Rate in Exhibit B-1 Amendment #2 remains
unpaid, after the Contractor charges the client's insurer, if applicable, and the
client then the Contractor shall charge the Department the balance, which is the
Contract Rate in Exhibit B-1 Amendment #2, Service Fee Table less the amount
paid by private insurer and the amount paid by the client, unless the client's
copay or deductible is charged to the Department in accordance with 3.3 atx)ve.

5.3. The Contractor agrees the amount charged to the client shall not exceed the Contract
Rate in Exhibit B-1,'Amendment #2 Service Fee Table multiplied by the corresponding
percentage stated in Exhibit B, Amendment #3, Section 9 Sliding Fee Scale for the client's
applicable income level.

5.4. The Contractor shall assist clients who are unable to secure financial resources

necessary for Initial entry into the program by developing payment plans.

5.5. The Contractor shall not deny, delay or discontinue services for enrolled clients who do
not pay their fees in Section 5.2.2 at}Ove, until after worldng with the client as in Section
5.4 above, and only when the client fails to pay their fees within thirty (30) days after t>eing
informed in writing and counseled regarding financial responsibility and possible
sanctions including discharge from treatment.

5.6. The Contractor shall provide to clients, upon request, copies of their financial accounts.

5.7. The Contractor shall not charge the combination of the public or private insurer, the client,
and the Department an amount greater than the Contract Rate in Exhibit B-1, Amendment
#2.

5.8. In the event of an overpayment, wherein the combination of all payments received by the
Contractor for a given service (except in Exhibit B, Amendment #3, Section 5.7.1 and
5.7.2) exc^ds the Contract Rate stated in Exhibit B-1 Amendment #2, Service Fee
Table, the Contractor shall refund the parties in the reverse order, unless the
overpayment was due to insurer, client or Departmental error.

5.9. In instances of payer error, the Contractor shall refund the party vi4^o erred, and adjust
the charges to the other parlies, according to a correct application of the Sliding Fee
Schedule.

5.10. In the event of overpayment as a result of billing the Department under this contract
when a third party payer would have covered the service, the Contractor must repay the
state In an amount and within a timeframe agreed upon between the Contractor and the
Department upon identifying the error.

Manchutv Alcoholism RahabQRallon Center Exhibit B.Amerxlmenl 03 Vendor Initiats
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit B, Amendment 03

6. Additional Billing information for: Room and Board for Medicaid clients with Opioid Use
Disorder (OUD) in residential level of care.

6.1. The Contractor shall invoice the Department for Room and Board payments up to
$100/day for Medicaid clients with OUD in residential level of care.

6.2. With the exception of room and board payments for transitional living, the Contractor shall
not bill the Department for Room and Board payments in excess of $1,900,800.

6.3. The Contractor shall maintain documentation of the following;

6.3.1. Medicaid ID of the Client;

6.3.2. WITS ID of the Client (if applicable)

6.3.3. Period for which room and board payments cover;

6.3.4. Level of Care for which the client received services for the date
range identified in 6.3.3

6.3.5. Amount being billed to the Department for the service

6.4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice by the twentieth {20th) day of each month, which
identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred for room and
board in the prior month. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty
(30) days of receipt of each invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this
Agreement. Invoices must be submitted in a Department approved manner.

6.5. The Contractor shall ensure that clients receiving services rendered from SOR funds
have a documented history of/or current diagnoses of Opioid Use Disorder.

6.6. The Contractor shall coordinate ongoing client care for all clients with documented history
of/or current diagnoses of Opioid Use Disorder, receiving services rendered from SOR
funds, with Doorways in accordance with 42 CFR Part 2.

7. Additional Billing Information: Intensive Case Management Services:
7.1. The Contractor shall charge in accordance with Section 5 above for

intensive case management under this contract only for clients who have been
admitted to programs in accordance to Exhibit A, Scope of Services and after
billing other public and private insurance.

7.2. The Department will not pay for intensive case management provided to
a client prior to admission.

7.3. The Contractor will bill for intensive case management only when the
service is authorized by the Department.

8. Sliding Fee Scale

8.1. The Contractor shall apply the sliding fee scale in accordance with Exhibit B, Amendment
#3, Section 5. atx)ve.

Msnchfttter AlcohoSsm RehsbUhatlon C«nter ExhIM B. Amendment #3 Vendor IrAials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit B, Amendment #3

8.2. The Contractor shall adhere to the sliding fee scale as follows;

Percentage of Client's Income of the Federal
Poverty Level (FPL)

Percentage of Contract
Rate In Exhibit B-1 to
Charge the Client

0%-138% 0%

139%-149% . 8%

150%- 199% 12%

200% - 249% 25%

250% - 299% 40%

300% - 349% 57%

350%. 399% 77%

8.3. The Contractor shall not deny a child under the age of 18 services because of the parent's
unwillingness to pay the fee or the minor child's decision to receive confidential services
pursuant to RSA 318-B:12-a.

9. Submitting Charges for Payment

9.1. The Contractor shall submit billing through the Website Information Technology System
(WITS) for services listed in Exhibit B-1, Amendment #2 Service Fee Table. The
Contractor shall:

9.1.1. Enter encounter note(s) into WITS no later than three (3) days after the
date the service was provided to the client

9^1.2. Review the encounter notes no later than twenty (20) days following the
last day of the billing month, and notify the Department that encounter notes are
ready for review.

■ 9,1.3. Correct errors, If any, In the encounter notes as identified by the
Department no later than seven (7) days after being notified of the errors and notify
the Department the notes have been corrected and are ready for review.

9.1.4. Batch and transmit the encounter notes upon Department approval for the
billing month.

9.1.5. Submit separate batches for each billing month.

9.2. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after sixty (60) days of the last day
of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

9.3. To the extent possible, the Contractor shall bill for services provided under this contract
through WITS. For any services that are unable to be billed through WITS, the contractor
shall work with the Department to develop an alternative process for submitting invoices.

M«nchettef Alcoholism Rohsbllltation Centor
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit 8, Amendment #3

9.4. The Contractor shall only bill room and board for SUD clients with Opiold Use Disorder
that are Medicaid coded for residential services.

10. Funds in this contract may not be used to replace funding for a program already funded from
another source.

11. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-funded
programs and services.

12. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with any
Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services or products have not t>een satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this agreement.

13. The Contractor shall submit final invoices to the Department no later than forty-five (45) days
after the contract completion date.

14. The Contractor shall ensure any adjustments to a prior invoices are submitted with the original
Invoice, adjusted invoice and supporting documentation to justify the adjustment.

15. Limitations and restrictions of federal Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment (SAPT)
Block Grant funds

15.1. The Contractor agrees to use the SAPT funds as the payment of last resort.

15.2. The Contractor agrees to the following funding restrictions on SAPT Block Grant
expenditures to:

15.2.1. Make cash payments to intended recipients of substance abuse services.

15.2.2. Expend more than the amount of Block Grant funds expended in Federal
Fiscal Year 1991 for treatment services provided in penal or correctional
institutions of the State.

15.2.3. Use any federal funds provided under this contract for the purpose of
conducting testing for the etiologic agent for Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)
unless such testing is accompanied by appropriate pre and post-test counseling.

15.2.4. Use any federal funds provided under this contract for the purpose of
conducting any form of needle exchange, free needle programs or the distribution
of bleach for the cleaning of needles for intravenous drug abusers.

15.3. The Contractor agrees to the Charitable Choice federal statutory provisions as
follows: ,

Federal Charitable Choice statutory provisions ensure that religious
organizations are able to equally compete for Federal substance
abuse funding administered by SAMHSA, without impairing the
religious character of such organizations and without diminishing the
religious freedom of SAMHSA beneficiaries (see 42 USC 300x-65

Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center Exhibit B. Amerxlment« Vendor Ir^lilals '^7^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit B, Amendment #3

and 42 CFR Part 54 and Part 54a. 45 CFR Part 96, Charitable Choice
Provisions and Regulations). Charitable Choice statutory provisions
of the Public Health Service Act enacted by Congress in 2000 are
applicable to the SAPT Block Grant program. No funds provided
directly from SAMHSA or the relevant State or local government to
organizations participating in applicable programs may be expended
for inherently religious activities, such as worship, religious
instruction, or proselytizatlon. if an organization conducts such
activities, it must offer them separately, in time or location, from the
programs or sen/ices for which it receives funds directly from
SAMHSA or the relevant State or local government under any
applicable program, and participation must be voluntary for the
program beneficiaries.

M<nch«sier Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center Exhibit B. Amendment #3 Vendor tnitlels
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J<rrrey A. Meyers

Commluioncr

Kslja S. Fox
Ulrcclor

NQV2iaBPtt 2126DAS
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

liEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-27I-6.110 1-8004520345 Eit 6738

Fti; 603-271-6105 TDDAccus: 1-800-735-2964
www.dbhs.nh.gov

November 14. 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House.

Concord, New Hampshire O3301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Qeparlment of Health and Human Services. Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
Services, to enter Into a sole source amendment to eight (8) of the thirteen (13) vendors listed
below in bold, to provide substance use disorder treatment and recovery support services,
statewide, by increasing the total combined price limitation by $3,362,900 from $4,915,198 to
an amount not to exceed $8,278,098 with no change in the completion date of June 30, 2019.
effective upon the dale of Governor and Executive Council approval. 59.35% Federal. 13.50%
General, and 17.15% Other Funds.

Summary of contracted amounts by Vendor:

Vendor Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Budget
G&C Approval

DIsmas Home of New Hampshire,
Inc.

$240,000 $3;400 $243,400 0:06/20/18 Late

ttem G '

A: 07/27/16 Item

#7

FIT/NHNH. Inc. $854,031 $0.00

1

$854,031 0: 07/27/18 Hem
m

A; 11/14/18 Hem

#14

Grafton County New Hampshire -
Department of Corrections and
Alternative Sentencing

$247,000 $0.00 $247,000 0:06/20/1 B Late
Hem G

A:07/27/18.Hem
#7

Greater Nashua Councfl on

Alcoholism
$624,599 $830,300 $1,514,899 0: 07/27/18 Item

#7

Headrest $147,999 $80,600 $228,599 0:06/20/18 Late

Item G

A: 07/27/18 Hem

#7

Manchester Alcoholism

RehabJIitation Center

$1,118,371 $1,091,800 . $2,210,171 0:08/20/18 Late
Item G

A: 07/27/18 Item
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d7
Hope on Haven Hill $278,641 $218,400 $497,041 0:07/27/18 Item

47

North Country Health Consortium $287,406 $114,200 $401,606 0:06/20/18 Late
Item G

A: 07/27/18 Item

47
Phoenix Houses of New England,
Inc.

$232,921 $584,600 $817,521 0:06/20/18 Late
Item G

A: 07/27/18 Item

.47C-n(k- '
Seacoast Youth Services $73,200 $0.00 $73,200

S

"0:06/20/18 Late
•Item G

A: 07/27/18 Item

47
Southeastern New. Hampshire
Alcohol 8k Drug Abuse Services

$589,540 $379,600 $969,140 0:06/20/18 Late

Item G

A: 07/27/18 Item

47
The Community Council of Nashua
N.H. .

$162,000 $0.00 $162,000 0:06/20/18 Late
Item G

A 07/27/18 Item
#7

West Central Services. Inc. $59,490 $0.00 $59,490 0:06/20/18 Late
ItemG

A 07/27/18 Item
#7

Total $4,915,198 $3,362,900 $8,278,098

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG &
ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

05-95.92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG &
ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL SERVICES (80% Federal Funds, 20% General Funds FAIN
T1010035CFDA 93.959)

05-95.92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS; DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG &
ALCOHOL SVCS. STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% Federal Funds. FAIN
H79TI081685CFDA 93.788)

Please see attached financial details.

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the increase to the price limitallon for eight (8)
vendor exceeds ten (10) percent of the total contract value.

Substance use disorders develop when the use of alcohol and/or drugs causes clinically
and functionally significant impairment, such as health problems, disability, and failure to meet
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major responsibilities at work, school, or home. The existence of a substance use disorder is
determined using a clinical evaluation based on Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders. Fifth Edition criteria.

This amendment will allow the above eight (8) vendors listed above in bold to continue
and potentially expand access to residential treatment services provided to Medicaid-covered
individuals with oploid use disorder (ODD). Funds in this amendment will be used to cover $100
of room and board payments for Medicaid bcnenciaries with OUD in low and high intensity
residential treatment services. These funds will support existing residential programs to
continue serving the Medicaid population, which has been cited as a challenge by treatment
providers as a result of differing rales of reimbursement between Medicaid and Commercial
payers. The vendors above will also continue to offer their existing array of treatment services
including individual and group outpatient, intensive outpatient, partial hospitalizatlon. transitional
living, high and low Intensity residential services.

This amendment is part of the State's recently approved plan under the State Oploid
Response (SCR) grant, which identified access to residential treatment as a funding priority.
The Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) approved NH's
proposal in September, with the expectation that funds are in services for communities within
the third month of grant award. The eight (8) vendors above will use these funds to ensure that
Individuals with, OUD receiving high or low intensity residential trealmeni have continued and/or
expanded access to the necessary level of care, which Increases their ability to achieve and
maintain recovery.

Additionally, the Department will continue to monitor the performance of the Vendors
through monthly and quarterly reports, conducting srte visits, reviewing client records, and
engaging in activities identified in the contract monitoring and quality Improvement work
referenced above. Contractor financial health is also being monitored monthly.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request residential '
treatment programs may have to limit the availability of beds for Individuals with OUD on
Medicaid. which would delay access to care for those Individuals.
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Area served; Statewide.

Source of Funds: 69.35% Federal Funds from the United States Department of Health
and Human Services. Substance Abuse and Mental. Health Services Administration. Substance
Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant. CFDA #93.959. Federal Award Identification
Number TI010035-14. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration State
Opiold Response Grant. CFDA #93.788. and 13.50% General Funds and 17.15% Other Funds
from the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Prevention; Intervention
and Treatment.

In the event thai the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Katja S. Fox

Director

Approved by: /^

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner

7h» 09fic/inwn or HMHh and Homcn So/vfcos' Msston a to >)/n canmuntOas a/to ramatos
in pnvkJinQ oppertunHias for dtixans to achiaw haaffh and iidbpa/toanca.
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Financial Details

OMM»-9W510-M820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVC8 OEPT OF, HHS: OfV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH
BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVC8. GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funea)

Community Council
o(Naihu»^r

Nashua Comm

MantsI Hoatlh Vendor Coda: 154112-eOOi

/

Slat* Fiscal Yaar Ciaaa/Accounl Title Sudgat Amount Increase/ Decrease
Revised Modlfled

Budoal

20tS 102-500734
Corurecla (or Prog

Svc
S48,8S7 $0 $46,657

Sub-loisl - . $48,657 $0 $46,657

Diamaa Homo ol NH Vander Ced«:TBO

.;Sut4 Fiscal Ysar Claas/Aceeunt Title Budget Amount Incraaae/ Decreaaa
Revised Modlded

2019 102-500734
Conmcls for Prog

Svc
$72,361 $0 $72,361

8w6-tetal $72,361 $0 $72,361

Eaaiar Saab o( NH

Manchaatar

Alcohoitam Rehab

Cir/Famum Vartdor Coda; 177204-6005

SUiaFlacal Vaar Claas/Aecount . . Title Budget Amount Increaaa/ Oacreaaa
Revised Modified

Budoet

2019 102-500734
Ccntracti for Prog

Svc
$337,266 SO $337,286

Sub-ieiai $337,266 $0 $337,266

FIT/NHNH Vendor Coda: 157730-B001

Stati Flacal Year Claas/Account Title Budget Amount increase/ Oecreeae
Revlted Modified

2019 102-500734
Cent/acia (or Prog

Svc
$194,759 $0 $194,759

Suthtolal $194,759 $0 $104,759

Grafton County Vendor Code; 177397-8003

Cleae/Account Title Budget AmounI increaaa/ Oecrtaae
Revised Modined

Budget

2019 102-500734
Coniracxa lor Prog

Svc
$74,492 $0 $74,492

Sub-ietar $74,492 SO $74,492

Greaier Nashua

CouncDon .

AlcohoOsm Vendor Coda: 166574-8001

Claaa/Accouni .  Title Budge! Ameunl Increase/Oacrease
' Revised Modified -

Budget

2019 102-^734 Contracis (or Prog
Svc

$188,372 SO $166,372

&wb>ioul $188,372 $0 $166,372

r

Haadrtat. Inc Vendor Coda; I7522»«00l

Staii Ffacal Year ' Claee/Accouru Tliie Budget Amount Increase/Oecreete
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Controcu (or Prog

Svc
$44,635 $44,635

Svb-iotil $44,635 $0 $44,635

Altlchm«nt A

F'lAAACljl OcUU

P*l* I •> *
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Financl»l Deiads

HopaooKavafiKO . Vendor Corfo: 275119^1

Bute Fiscal Vtar Cisea/Account Till# Budget Amount Increeaef Decreaa
Revlaad Modified

2019 102-900754 Conirseis lor Prog
•Svc $54,039 $0 $54,035

North Country
KaaCh CortsMlum Vendor Code: 150597-8001

$0 $54,035

Stsia fiscal Year ClasB/Aceewni TliJe Budgsl Amount Incrsassl Oecresae Revttad Medlflad

2019 102-500734 Conuacts lor Prog
Svc $56,075 $55,676

Phoenb HouMaol
New Eftgiartd, Inc. Vendor Cede: 1775598001

1  $0 1  $55.676 -

Stats Fiscal Year Ctass/Aceeuni Tide Budget Amount Increase/ Decrease
Rcvlaed Modified

2019 . 102-900734 Contracts lor Prog
Svc $70,246 $70,246

deacoasi Youth

Servlcss VendorCode; 203944-B001

10 $70,246

Suts Fiscal Year Claaa/Ac count Title Increese/ Oeersase
Reviaed Modified

2019

Subtotal

102-500734 Conlrects for Prog
Svc $22,076 $0 $72,076

Southeastern NH

Alcohol and Drug
Sarvlcea VendorCode 155292^001

$0 $22,076

State Fiscal Ysar Ctaas/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/Decrease
Revleed Modified

2019 102-500734 Conirseis lor Prog
Svc $177,799 $0 $177,799

Weal Central

Services Vendor Cede: 177554-8001

$0 $177,799

Stale Fiscal Year Claee/Acceuni Title ' Budget Amount Increeee/ Decrease Reviaed Modified

2019

Sub-tolal

"102-600734 Contracts for Prog
Svc $17,942

$17,942

$0

$0

$17,042

tl.419.550 to ' 11.419.550

^  SERVJCeS. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HHS" DfV FOR BCHAVORIAL HEALTHBUREAU OF DRUG S ALCOHOL SVCS. CLINICAL SERVK:ES (W%FederN Furul.. 29%G.n.r.. fund; FAIN TIO,0035 CFDA^^^^^^ '

Communily Council
el Nashua^

Nashua Comm

Ii4enial health Vendor Coda: 154112.8001

V

State Flacal Year Clats/Ac count Tide Budget Amewni 'ncreeee/Decreeae
Re>4ecd Modified

2019 102-500734 Ceni/ects lor Prog
Svc $113,143

$113,143

$C

$0

$113,143

$113,143

AltKSfMW A

FInanclel Detail
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Ffninclil Oeulls

Olsm«a Homo of NH V*ndorCode:TBO

StAtt Fiscal Yotr Class/Account Title Budget Amount Iftcreass/Oecrsast
Paviaad MediHsd

2019 102-5007S4 Contmcis lor Prog
Sve

9197.819 90 9187,619

Eaitof Saab of NH

Manchastaf
'' AlcehoQsm Rohab

Ctr/Fanwm Vendor Cods: 1772O4-B0OS

90 9187.619

Slats Fiscal Ysar Class/Account Tills Budget Amount IncrssiW Oscrssss
Ravtssd ModlOad.

2019 102-9007)4 Conirecta for Preg
Svc 9781.083 90 9781.083

-Fir/NHKH Vender Cods; 197730-8001

9781.093 90 5791.093

Slsta Fiscal Yaai Claas/Accouni Tills Budget Amount Inerssas/ Oscrssae
Rsviaed ModiOed

2019 102-900734
Svc

9491.016 90 9451.019

SutMotal 9491.018 - 90 9451 Oi8'

Gmften County VandorCods: 177397-8003

Stsia Fiscal Yasr Clasa/Accevni TlUs Budget Amount IrKrsass/Oscraasi
RsvtisdModlfled -

2019 102-500734
Contiects (or Prog

Svc 9172,908 90 9172.508
SuMetsI

9172.908 90 9172,508

Omaia.' Nashua
Council on

Alcohoilsni Vartdor Coda: 198974-8001

Siaia Fbcat Ysar Class/ZUceunt TlUa Budget Amount Increase/Oacraaas'
' Rsvtaad Modlfled

2019 ' 102-500734
CerS/ecia lor Prog

Svc
9436,227 90 9438.227

Haadrast. Inc vandor Coda: 179229-8001

90 9436.227

Slats Fiscal Ysar Claaa/Accounl Tills Budget Amount IfKreais/ Oscreaae
Revfaed MedlOed

2019 102-900734
CorUrscU lor Prog

Svc
9103.394 90 9103.384

Hopa on Haven MU Vendor Cede; 2791194001

■  90 9103.364

Slats Fiscal Ysar Class/Account Tltls Budget Amount Incraaae/Oecrsase
Ra«4aed Medlflad

2019

Sutsioial •

102-900734
Svc 9104.906 90 SI94.806

•  NoAhCoumry
Health Consorthan VandorCeda; 199557-8001

90 9194.606

Stale Fiscal Year Claas/Acceuni Tlile Budget Amount ncreaae/ Oecrease
Ravtaed ModiDad

2019

SuMotal

102-900734 Contracts (or Prog
Svc 9200.728

9200.728

SO

90

9200.728

9200.728

AtlKlMMti A

fbUKlAl OcUl

Aaft)o'6



Attachment A

Financial Details

^wanix HouMs of

Now Engtoftd. tnc. .VanSor Coda; 177U94001

Stata'Fisca) Vaar Clata/Accouni Tltla Budget Amount Incraasa/ Oacraasa
Ravlaad Modified

2019 ' .  102-500754 Contracts for Prog
Svc

S162.675 50 5102.875
8ut>*lolsl

. 5162.675 50 5182.675

Saacoasi Youth

Sarvleaa Vandor Coda: 205044-B001

Suta Fiscal Yaar Claaa/Accoimi Tltla Bwdgat Arnount . incrsaaaf Oacraasa
Ravtaad Modlflad

2019 102-500754
Contracts for Prog

Svc
531,124 50 551.124

8ub>lolsl 551.124 50 551.124

Southaaiiam NH
Alcehel and Drug

SanAcas VandorCoda 155302-800)

Stata Flacai Taar Clasa/AecounI Tltla Budgal Amount Incraasa' Oacraasa
Ravtaad Atodlhad

2019 102-500754
ConlrsciS for Prog

Svc
5411.741 50 5411.741

Sub-total 5411.741 50 5411.741

Wasi Canual

SanAcas Vandor Coda; 177554-eMi

Stala Flacai Yaar Ctaaa/Acceuni Tltla Budgal Amount Incraasa/ Oacraasa
Ravtaad Modlflad

2010 102-500754 ' CorAracts for Prog
Svc'

541.546 50 541.548

SubAotil 541.548 50 541.548

Total CUnlcil Svi 53.287.382 u. 53.287.3*82

I05.95.8M2051O.704COO0O HEAtTM AND 80CUU. SERVtCES. HEALTM AND HUMAN SVCS 06PT OF. MH8- OfV FOR BEMAVORIAL HEALTH
BUREAU OF DRUG 6 ALCOHOL SVCS. STATE OPtOtO RESPONSE GRANT (100% Fadaral Fundi. FAIN H7«Ttoeie8S CFDA 03.708)

Commuoliy Council
of Nashua^r

Nashua Convn

MantsiHaatih ' VandorCoda: 1541124001

Siaia Flacai Yaar Claaa/Accowni Tills Budget Amount Incraaaaf Oacraasa Ravtaad Modlflad

2019 102-500734
Coniracis for Piog

Svc-
SO 50 SO

Oiamat Hem# ol NH Vandor CodarTBO

50 50

Stata Fiscal Yaar Claaa'Accounl Till# Budgal Amount Incraaaaf Oscraaaa
Ravlaad Modlflad

2010 102-500734 Cont/acli for Prog
SvC

50 53.400 U400

Eastar SaaisofNH

Manchattar

AlcohcOtrn Rahab

Ctr/Famum VandorCoda: 177204-B00S

53.4W 53.400

Slala Fiscal Yaar | Clati/Accouni Tltla Budgal Amount |Incraaaaf Oacraasa | Ravlaad Modlflad 1

Budgal 1
AitachmeM A

FiAMKlNDeuil

Pagr'of 8



Attachment A

Financiil Details

2019 1  102-500734 1 Coniracu (or Prog
1  Svc SO si.o9i.aoo 1  $1,091,600

Frr/NHNH Vendor Code: 157730^001

1  Sl.09l.600 1  S1.091.600

8tJl« FUCAl VtAr Class/Acceuni Title Oudget Amount Increase/ Decresse Revised Medined

2019 102-500734
Svc

5208.256 SO - S206.256

Gnfton Counfy Ver^Cede: 177397-6003

so 5206.256

8ut« FUcai Y«Ar Class/Account Title Budget Amount increase/ Oecreasa
. RevteedModlRed

2019 103-500734 Contracte (or Prog
SvC

SO SO ' SO
Siib-lota) -

SO SO SO

GrMler Nashua

CeuncDoh
AlcohoOam Vendor Cede: 166574-6001

Slalt Fiscal Yaar Class/Accoum' Title Budget Amount Increaael Oecrtaie Revlaed Medlfled

2019 102-500734 Contrecis (or Prog
Svc

SO 5890.300 5690,300

HaatfraH Inc Vendor Coda: 175226-6001

5690.300 5890.300

8UU Fiscal Yaar Class/Account Tide increase/ Decresse
Re\4sed Mediried

2019

Sub-total

102-500734
Corweeta (or Prog

Svc
SO sao.600 580.600

Hops on Haven HOI Vender Code: 275119600)

180.600 ;  S80.600

Siau Fiscal Yaar CIsss/Acceuni Title Budget Amount tncreeae/ Decresse
Revised Medined .

2019 102-500734 Contrecis for Prog
SvC SO 5216.400 . »16.400

Noflh Country
Haahh Conaortlum Vendor Code: tS85S7-e001

5216.400 5218.400

8uia Fiscal Yaar Ciass/Accouni Tills Btidgel Amount Increase/ Decresse
Rivtsed Modified

2019

Sub-total

102-500734 CorUrecis for Prog
Svc SO 1114.200

PUPHUl \

5114,200

Phoenix Houses el
Haw England, S>c. Vendor Code; 1775696001

5114.200 /  5114.200

Slata Fiscal Year Cless/Acceum Tide Budget Amount ncreese/ Oecreeie
Revised Modintd

2019 102-500734 Contracts (or Prog
Svc SO SS84.600 5584.600

Seacoasi Youth

Sarvicas Vendor Code: 203944-6001

.  S564.600 ) 5584.600

State Fiscal Year | ClaSB/Account | Title 1 Budget Amount mcrtese/ Deereese
Revtsed MedKled

Budeat

At1*chni*ftt A

rinM(lilD«Ul

^•tcSe<6



Attachment A

Financial Details

2019 1  102500704 Coniracu for Prog
1  Svc 1  SO J

1 1 1  SO SO • •■.--SO

Southtailim NH
AJcohol and Drug

S«(vtc«s Vendor Coda 155292-6001

Statt Fiscal Yaar Claaa/Account ntle Budget Amount Increase/ Dacraasa Revised Mediried

2019 '102400704 Cortlrects lor Prog
Svc SO S379.600 $379,600

WailCantral
S«Mc«t Vendor Coda: I776$4.800i

$578,600 $579,600

Statt Fiscal Y«sr Claaa/Account ntis Budget Amount Incraaaa/ Dacraasa Aevisad Modified

2019 102-500754 .Corttiecia tor Prog
Svc SO '  SO SO

Sut^toUt SO SO SO
Total 80R Grant S20S.256 t3.362.9M 13.571.156

Grand Total AJI 14.915.186 13.362.800 18.278.098

-

Grand Total try VtixSor

PO Vandora Curreni Price LMiatJon' increase/Docreasa

0
Communfty Council of Naalwa-
Gr NaaNra Comm Mental Health

Vendor Code:
154112-6001 Sie2.000 .  SO $162.000

0 Olunaa Home of NH Vendor Code;TBO S240.000 13.400 S243400

0
Eaatsf Saala of NH Mancheatar
AlcoheGiin Rahab CtrlFamum

Vendor Coide:
177204-6005 It.116.371 Si 091.600 $2,210 171

0 . Frr/NHNH
Vendor Code:
1S77306001 S654.051 SO $654,051

0 Grafton Ceurttv
VendorCede:
177597-6003 ' S247.000 SO $247,000

0
Greater Nashua Councfl on
Alcoholism

Vendor Code:
1MS74-B00I 1624.599 S690 300 S1.514 699

0 HeedrasL Inc
Vendor Code:
175225-6001- 1147.999 S80.60Q S228.899

Hooe en Haven K31
VendorCode:
275119-6001 S276.641 S218.400 $497,041

0 North Counliv Health Consortium
Vender Code:
lSA557-e00t S267.40e SI14.200 $401 606

0
Phoenix Houses of New Englend.
inc.

' VendorCode:
. 177589-BOOl S252.92t S564 600 1617 521

0 Scaceisi Youth Services
VendorCode:
203944-B0O1 $73,200 SO $73 200

0
Southeastern nh Alcohol and
>uo Servieea

- VendorCode
155292-6001 S569.540 $579,600 $969 140

0 Nesi Cantral Services
-Vendor Code:
177654-6001 S59490 SO SS9 490

ratal- S4.91S.198 S3.362.900 $6276096

AiiKhmeniA

Financial Oci«H



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Sutwtanco Uee Disorder Tfeatmont end Recovery Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and
Recovery Support Services Contract

This 2"^ Amendment to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #2") dated this 30th day of August. 2018. Is by and between the
State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" Of "Department") and Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center, (hereinafter referred to as
"the ContractoO. a nonprofrt corporation with a place of business at 555 Auburn Street Manchester NH
03103.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Coundl
on June 20. 2018 (Late Item G) and amended on July 27. 2018 (Item #7). the Contractor agreed to
perforrn certain services based upon the terms and conditions specrfred in the (Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

\

WHEREAS, the State ar>d the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
completion date, price limitation and payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provlsbns. Paragraph 18, the Stale may modify the scope
of wort* and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval
from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parlies agree to modify the scope of services and increase the price limitation to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained In the Contract and set forth herein, this parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1,8. Price Limitation, to read:

$2,210,171.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read;
Nathan D. White, Director.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10. State Agency Telephone Number, toread:

603-271-9631.

4. Delete arxJ Replace Exhibit A. Scope of Services with Exhibit A. Amendment #2 Scope of
Services.

5. Delete and Replace Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment with Exhibit B.
Amendrront #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

6. Oetele and Replace Exhibit 8-1. Service Fee Table, with Exhibit 8-1, Amendment #2 Service
r  Fee Table.

ManehMtef Alcohoism Reh«b>llutiofl Center Amendment«
RPA-2019-60AS-01-SUBST-01 Ptp* i of 3



N0W Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substonco U»o DIflordef Tfoatmont and Recovory Support Scrvlcos

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services ̂

t i

Date KatjaS.Fox

Director

Contractor Name Manctiestor Atoohoiivn RehebUtoiion Center

11/14^18

Date Name: EltnTreanof'

Title; CFO

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of NewHempsnire . Countv of HIHeborouQh Kpfnr»th«
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person Identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name Is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indtcated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Narne and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

^  ) '
CYNDQA ROSS. Not&jy PuhOe

My Commission Expires:

ManchcstcrAJcohelismRehaWiiationCentef Amendment«
RFA-201S-BOA5O1-SU8ST-01 Page 2 ef 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Subatancd Qgo Disorder Troatmont end Rocovofy Support Sorvlceo
The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form substance and
execution. «

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

s

ito rW ] INam?'

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Name:

Title:

Manchester AlcohoGsmRehabililatlon Center AmendnwntR
RTA-msaoAS-oi-suasT-ot Pap* 3 of 3



Now Hompshiro Dopsrtment of Hoslth and Human Sorvicos
Substance Ueo Disorder Troatmont and Recovsry Support Sorvleoa

Exhibit A, Amondmont 02

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The-Contractor will submit a detailed descriptton of the language assistance

services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date. '

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on
the Services described herein, the Stale Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements ur^er this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this Contract, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
Subrecipient in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200 et seq.

1.4. The Contractor will provide Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery
Support Services to any eligible client, regardless of where the client lives or worVs
in New Hampshire.

1.5. Standard Compliance

1.5.1. The Contractor must meet all Information security and privacy requirements as
set by the Department.

1.5.2. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

1.5.2.1. The Contractor must establish formal information sharing and referral
agreements wiih the Regional Hubs for Substance Use Services,
compliant with all applicable conridentiality laws. Irtcluding 42 CFR
Part 2 In order to receive payments for services funded with SOR
resources.

1.5.2.2. The Department must be able to verify that client referrals to the
Regional Hub for Substance Use Services have been completed by
Contractor prior to accepting invoices for services provided through
SOR funded initiatives.

1.5.2.3. The Contractor shall only provide Medication Assisted Treatment
(MAT) vrith FDA-approved MAT for Opiold Use Disorder (OUO). FDA-
approved MAT for OUO includes:

1.5.2.3.1. Methadone.

1.5.2.3.2. Buprenorphlne products, including:

1.5.2.3.2.1. Single-entity buprenorphine products.

Manchoatar Aloohofism Rehabililalion Center A. Amandmont« Conirador Intosti

RFA.2OlS-0OASei SUBST-O7 PiflalafM Data



New Hempehiro Department of Heaitti end Human Services
Substance Ueo Disorder Treatment end Recovery Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment 02

1.5.2.3.2.2. Buprenorphine/naioxone tablets.

1.5.2.3.2.3. Buprenorphine/naioxone films.

1.5.2.3.2.4. Buprenorphine/naioxone buccal
preparations.

/

1.5.2.3.3. Long-acting Injeot^le buprenorphlneproducts..

1.5.2.3.4. Buprenorphine implants.

1.5.2.3.5. Injectabie extended-release naltrexone.

1.5.2.4. The Conlrector shall not provide medicai withdrawal management
services to any individual supported by SOR Funds, unless the
withdrawal management service is accompanied by the use of
injectabie extended-release naltrexone. as clinically appropriate.

1.5.2.5. The Contractor shall ensure that clients receiving financial aid for
recovery housing utilizing SOR funds shall only be In a recovery
housing facility that Is aligned with the National Alliance for Recovery
Residences standards and registered with the State of New
Hampshire, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services in accordance with
current NH Administrative Rules.

1.5.2.6. The Contractor must assist clients with enroliing In public or prrvate
health Insurance, if the client is determined eligible for such coverage.

1.5.2.7. The Contractor shall accept clients on MAT and facilitate access to
MAT orvslte or through referral for all clients supported with SOR
Grant funds, as clinically appropriate.

1.5.2.8. For dients identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS, the Contractor
shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White HIV/AIDs program.

1.5.2.9. The Contractor shall ensure that all dients are regularty screened for
tobacco use, treatment needs and referral to the QuitLine as part of
treatment planning.

2. Scope of Services
2.1. Covered Populations

2.1.1. The Contractor will provide services to eligible individuals who;

2.1.1.1. Are age 12 or ohJer or under age 12. with required consent
from a parent or legal guardian to receive treatment, and

2.1.1.2. Have income below 400% Federal Poverty Level, and

2.1.1.3. Are residents of New Hampshire or homeless in New
Hampshire, and

2.1.1.4. Are determined positive for substance use disorder.

2.2. Resiliency and Recovery Oriented Systems of Care

Mancheatof AlcohoBam Rahabililalton Center ExNbn A. Armndnieni e2 Contnctor irVilxti
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Now Hampohtro Departmont of Health ond Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment U2

2.2.1. The Contractor must provide substance use disorder treatment services
that support the RGSlliency and Recovery Oriented Systems of Care
(RROSC) by operationalizing the Continuum of Care Model
(http://www.dhhs.nh .gov/dcbcs/bdas/conlinuunvof-care. htm).

2.2.2. RROSC supports person-centered and setf-directed approaches to care
that build on the strengths and resilience of individuals, families and
communities to take responsibility for their sustained health. weDness and
recovery from alcohol and drug problems. At a minimum, the Contractor
must:

2.2.2.1. Inform the Integrated Delivery Network(s) (IDNs) of services
available in order to align this work wrth IDN projects that may
be similar or Impact the same populatioris.

2.2.2.2. Inform the Regional Public Health Networks (RPHNs) of
services available in order to align this work with other RPHN
projects that may be similar or Impact the same populations.

2.2.2.3. Coordinate client services with other community service
providers involved in the client's care and the dient's support
network

2.2.2.4. Coordinate dient sen/ices with the Department's Hub
contradors Including, but not limited to:

2.2.2.4.1 Ensuring timely admission of clients to services;

2.2.2.4.2. Referring any dient receiving room & board
payment to the Hub;

2.2.2.4.3. Referring clients to Hub services when the
Contrador cannot admit a ctienl for services
within forty-eight (48) hours; and

2.2.2.4.4. Referrir>g clients to Hub services at the time of
discharge when a client is in need of Hub
services.

2.2.2.5. Be sensitive and relevant to the diversity of the dients being
served.

2.2.2.6. Be trauma informed; I.e. designed to acknovdedge the impad
of violence and trauma on people's lives and the Importance
of addressing trauma in treatment.

2.3. Substance Use Disorder Treatment Services

2.3.1. The Contractor must provide one or more of the following substance use
disorder treatment services: ^

Manchester Alcoholism Rehebililation Center ExhWi A. Amirvimeni S2 Conif»ctor. inltiaii
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New Hampehire Oepartmont of Health and Human Servlcea
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Extiibit A, Amendment P2

2.3.1.1. individual Outpatient Treatment as defined as American

Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) Criteria. Level 1.
Outpatient Treatment services assist an Individual to achieve

treatment objectives through the exploration of substance use
disorders and their ramifications, including an examination of
attitudes and feelings, and consideration of alternative
solutions and decision making with regard to alcohol and
other drug related problems!

2.3.1.2. Group Outpatient Treatment as defined as ASAM Criteria,
Level 1. Outpatient Treatment/services assist a group of
individuals to achieve treatment objectives through the
exploration of substance use disorders and their

ramifications. Including an examination of attitudes and

feelings, and consideration of alternative solutions and
decision making with regard to alcohol and other drug related
problems.

2.3.1.3. Intensive Outpatient Treatment as defined as ASAM Criteria,
Level 2.1. Intensive Outpatient Treatment services provide

-  intensive and structured Individual and group alcohol and/or
other drug treatment services and activities that are provided
according to an individualized treatment plan that Includes a
-range of outpatient treatment services and other ancillary
alcohol and/or other drug senrices. Services for adults are

provided at least 9 hours a week, ̂ rvices for adolescents
are provided at least 6 hours a week.

2.3.1.4. Partial Hospitalization as defined as ASAM Criteria, Level 2.5.
Partial Hospitalization sen/ices provide intensive and
structured individual and group alcohol and/or other drug
treatment services and activities to individuals with substance

use and moderate to severe co-occurring mental health

disorders, including both behavioral health and medication

management (as appropriate) sen/ices to address both
disorders. Partial Hosprtalization is provided to clients for at

least 20 hours per week according to an Individualized
treatment plan that includes a range of outpatient treatment
sen/ices and other ancillary alcohol and/or other drug
services.

2.3.1.5.

2.3.1.6. High-intensity Residential Treatment for Adults as defined as

ASAM Criteria, Level 3.5. This service provides residential

substance use disorder treatment designed to assist

MancnesterAIcohoriSffl Rflh«b<litation Center EjMbn A, Amtndmvni tz Conmaor tnUstt.
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Now Hampohiro Department of Health and Human Servicoa
Substance Use DIeordor Treatment and Recovery Support Sorvlcea

Eahlblt A, Amendment 02

individuals who require a more intensive level of service in a
structured setting.

2.3.1.7. Residential Withdrawal Management services as defined as
ASAM Criteria. Level 3.7-WM a residential service.

Withdrawal Management services provide a combination of
clinical and/or medical services utilized to stabilize the client

while they are undergoing withdrawal.

2.3.2. The Contractor may provide Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment

only in coordination with providing at .least one of the services In Section

2.3.1.1 Ihrough2.3.1.7toacltent.

2.3.2.1. Integrated Medication Assisted Treatntent services provide
for medication prescriptbn and monitoring for treatment of
opiate and other substance use .disorders. The Contractor

shall provide non-medical treatment services to the client in

conjunction with the medical services provided either directly
by the Contractor or by an outside medical provider. The
Contractor shall be responsible for coordination of care and

meeting all requirements for the service provided. The
Contractor shall deliver Integrated Medication Assisted

Treatment services in accordance with guidance provided by
the Department, 'Guidance Document on Best Practices: Key
Components for Delivery Community-Based Medication
Assisted Treatment Services for Opioid Use Disorders in New

Hampshire.

2.4. Reserved

2.5. Enrolling Clients for Services

2.5.1. The Contractor will determine eligibility for services in accordance with
Section 2.1 above and with Sections 2.5.2 through 2.5.4 below:

2.5.2. The Contractor must complete intake screenings as follows:

2.5.2.1. Have direct contact (face to face comrn^unication by meeting
in person, or electronically or by telephone conversation) with
an individual (defined as anyone or a provider) wHhin two (2)
business days from the date that individual contacts the

Contractor for Substance Use Disorder Treatment and

Recovery Support Services. Aa attempts at contact must be

documented In the client record or a call log.

2.5.2.2. Complete an initial Intake Screening within two (2) business
days from the date of the first direct contact with the
individual, using the eligibility module In Web Information

Msnchestof Aleohofivn Reh«bllllatlon Canter EihtM a. Amandmani $2. Contractor Infitat*
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Now Hampohire Dopartment of Heolth and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment 02

Technology System (WITS) to determine protiabjiily of being
eligible for services under this contract and for probability of
having a substance use disorder. Alt attempts at contact must
be documented in the client record or a call log.

2.5.2.3. Assess clients' Income prior to admission using the WITS fee
determination model and

2.5.2.3.1. Assure that clients' income Information Is
updated as needed over the course of

treatment by asking clients about any changes
in Income no less frequently than every 4
weeks. Inquiries about changes In income must
be documented in the client record.

2.5.3. The Contractor shall complete an ASAM Level of Care Assessment for all
services In Sections 2.3.1.1 through 2.3.1.7 and 2.3.2, within two (2) days
of the Initial Iritake Screening in Section 2.5.2 above using the ASI Lite
module, in Web Information Technology System (WITS) or other method
approved by the Department when the individual is deterpined probable of
beirig eligible for services.

2.5.3.1. The Contractor shall make available to the Department, upon
request, the data from the ASAM Level of Care Assessment
In Section 2.5.3 in a format approved by the Department.

2.5.4. The Contractor shall, for all services provided, complete a clinical
evaluation utilizing Continuum or an alterruillve method approved by the
Department that include DSM 5 diagnostic information and a
recommendation for a level of care based on the ASAM Criteria, published
in October, 2013. The Contractor must complete a dinical evaluation, for
each dient:

2.5.4.1. Prior to admission as a part of interim services or within 3
business days following admission.

2.5.4.2. During treatment only when determined by a Licensed
Counselor.

2.5.5. The Contractor must use the clinical evaluations completed by a Licensed
Counselor from a referring agency.

2.5.6. The Contractor will either complete clinicaJ evaluations in Section 2.5.4
above before admission gr Level of Care Assessments in potion 2.5.3
above before admission along with a clinical evaluation in Section 2.5.4
above after admission.
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2.5.7. The Contractor shall provide eligible clients (he substance use disorder
treatment services in Section 2.3 determined by the client's cJinica!
evaluation In Section 2.5.4 unless;

2.5.7.1. The client choses to receive a service wHh a lower ASAM
Level of Care; or

2.5.7.2. The service with the needed ASAM level of care is
unavailable at the time the level of care Is determined in
Section 2.5.4, in which case the client may choose: "

2.5.7.2.1. A service with a lower ASAM Level of Care;

2.5.7.2.2. A service with the next available higher ASAM
Level of Care;

2.5.7.2.3. Be placed on the waitlist until their service with

the assessed ASAM level of care becomes

available as in Section 2.5.4; or

2.5.7.2.4. Be referred to another agency in the client's
service area that provides the service with the

needed ASAM Level of Care.

2.5.8. The Contractor shall enroll eligible clients for services in order of the
priority described below:

2.5.8.1. Pregnant women and women with dependent children, even if
the children are not In their custody, as long as parental rights
have not been terminated. Including the provision of Interim
services within the required 48 hour time frame. If the

Contractor is unable to admit a pregnant woman for the
needed level of care within 24 hours, the Contractor shall:

2.5.8.1.1. Contact the Regional Hub In the client's area to
connect the client wKh substance use disorder

treatment services.

•  2.5.8.1.2. Assist the pregnant worran with Identifying
alternative providers and with accessing
services with these providers. This assistance
must include actively reaching out to identify
providers on the behalf of the client.

2.5.8.1.3. Provide Interim services until the appropriate
level of' care becomes available at either (he
Contractor agency or an alternative provider.
Interim services shall include:
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2.5.8.1.3.1. At least one 60 minute individual

or group outpatient session per

week;

2.5.8.1.3.2. Recovery support sen/ices as
needed by the client;

2.5.6.1.3.3. Daily calls to the client to assess

and respond to any emergent
needs.

2.5.8.2. Individuals who have been administered naloxone to reverse

the effects of an opiold overdose either In the 14 days prior to
screening or in the period t>etw8en screening and admission
to the program.

2.5.8.3. Individuals with a history of injection drug use including the
provision of interim services within 14 days.

2.5.8.4. individuals with substance use and co-occurring mental
health disorders.

2.5.8.5. Individuals with Opioid Use Disorders.

2.5.8.6. Veterans with substance use disorders

2.5.8.7. Individuals with substance use disorders who are Involved

with the criminal justice and/or child protection system.

2.5.8.8. Individuals who require priority admission at the request of
the Department.

2.5.9. The Contractor must obtain consent In accordance with 42 CFR Part 2 for

treatment from the client prior to receiving services for individuals whose
age is 12 years and older.

2.5.10. The Contractor must obtain consent in accordance with 42 CFR Part 2 for
treatment from the parent or legal guardian when the client is under the
age oflweive (12) prior to receiving services.

2.5.11. The Contractor must Include in the consent forms language for client
consent to share information with other social service agencies involved In
the client's care, including but not limited to:

2.5.11.1. The Department's Division of Children, Youth and Families
(DCYF)

2.5.11.2. Probation and parole

2.5.11.3. Regional Hub(s)
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2.5.12. The Contractor shall not prohibit clients from receiving services under this
contract when a client does not consent to Information sharing in Section
2.5.11 above except that clients who refuse to consent to information
sharing with the Regional Hub(s) shall not receive services utilizing State
Opioid Response (SOR) funding.

2.5.13. The Contractor shall notify the dienis whose consent to information
sharing In Section 2.5.11 above that they have the ability toi'Tescind the
consent at any time wilhout any Impact on services provided under this
contract except that clients who rescind consent to information sharing
with the Regional Hut>{s) shall not receive any additional services utilizing
State Opioid Response (SOR) funding.

2.5.14. The Contractor shall rvot deny services to an adolescent due to:

2.5.14.1. The parent's inability and/or unwillingness to pay the fee;

2.5.14.2. The adolescent's decision to receive confidential services

pursuant to RSA 318-B:12-a.

2.5.15. The Contractor must provide services to eligible clients who:

2.5.15.1. Receive Medication Assisted Treatment services from other

providers such as a client's primary care provider;

2.5.15.2. Have co-occurring mental health disorders; and/or

2.5.15.3. Are on medications and are taking those medications as
prescribed regardless of the class of medication.

2.5.16. The Contractor must provide substance use disorder treatment services

separately for adolescent and adults, unless otherwise approved by the
Department. The Contractor agrees that adolescents and adults do not
share the same residency space, however, the communal pace such as
kitchens, group rooms, and recreation may be shared but at separate
times.

2.6: Waitlists

2.6.1. The Contractor will maintain a waitlist for all clients and all subster>ce use
disorder treatment services Including the eligible clients being served
under this contract and clients being served under another payer source.

2.6.2. The Contractor will track the wait time for the clients to receive services,
from the date of initial contact in Section 2.5.2.1 above to the date clients

first received substance use disorder treatrr«nt services In Sections 2.3

and 2.4 above, other than Evaluation in Section 2.5.4

2.6.3. The Contractor will report to the Department monthly:
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2.6.3.1. The average wait time for all clients, by the type of service
and payer source for all the services.

2.6.3.2. the average wait time for priority clients in Section 2.5.6
above by the type of service and payer source for the
services.

2.7. Assistance with Enrolling in Insurance Programs

2.7.1. The Contractor must assist clients and/or their parents or legal guardians,
who are unable to secure financial resources necessary for initial entry Into

the program, virith obtaining other potential sources for payment, such as;

2.7.1.1. . Enrollment in public or private Insurance. Including but not
limited to New Hampshire Medicaid programs within fourteen
(14) days after intake.

2.7.1.2. Assistance with securing financial resources or the clients'

refusal of such assistance must be clearly documented in the
client record.

2.8. Service Delivery Activities and Requirements

2.8.1. . The Contractor shall assess all clients for risk of self-harm at all phases of
treatment,- such as at initial contact, during screenirtg, intake, admission,
on-going treatment services and at discharge.

2.8.2. The Contractor shall assess all clients for withdrawal risk based on ASAM

(2013) standards at all phases of treatment, such as at initial contact,

during screening, intake, admission, on-going treatment services and
stabilize all clients based on ASAM (2013) guidance and shall;

2.6.2.1. Provide stabilization, services when a client's level of risk

indicates a service with an ASAM Level of Care that can be

provided under this Contract; If a client's risk level indicates a

service with an ASAM Level of Care that can be provided
under this contract, then the Contractor shall Integrate
withdrawal management into the client's treatment plan and
provide on-going assessment of vrithdrawal risk to ensure that

withdrawal is managed safely.

2.8.2.2. Refer clients to a facility where the services can be provided
when a client's risk indicates a service with an ASAM Level of

Care that is higher than can be provided under this Contract;
Coordinate with the withdrawal management services
provider to admit the client to an appropriate service once the

client's withdrawal risk has reached a level that can be

provided under this contract.
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2.6.3. The Contractor must complete individualized treatment plans for all clients
based on clinical evaluation data within three (3) days or three (3)
sessions, whichever is longer of the clinical evaluation (in Section 2.5.4
above), that address problems In all ASAM (2013) domains which Justified
the client's admittance to a given level of care, that are In accordance the

requirements in Exhibit A-1 and that:

2.6.3.1. Include In all Individualized treatment plan goals, objectives,
and Interventions written in terms that are:

2.6.3.1.1. specific, (clearly defining what will be done)'

2.8.3.1.2. measurable (Including clear criteria for progress
and completion)

2.8.3.1.3. attainable (within the indrvidual's ability to
achieve)

2.8.3.1.4. realistic (the resources are available to the

Individual), and

2.8.3.1.5. timety (this is something that needs to be done
and there Is a stated time frame for completion

that is reasonable).

2.8.3.2. Include the client's involvement in Identifying, developing, and
prioritizing goals, objectives, and Interventions.

2.8.3.3. Are update based on any changes In any American Society of
Addiction Medicine Criteria (ASAM) domain and no less
frequently than every 4 sessions or every 4 weeks, whichever
is less frequent. Treatment plan updates rnusi include;

2.0.3.3.1. Documentation of the degree to which the client
is meeting treatment plan goals and o^ectives;

2.8.3.3.2. Modiftcation of existing goals or addition of new
goals based on changes in the clients
functioning relative to ASAM domains and
treatment goals and objectives. ^

2.8.3.3.3. The counselor's assessment of whether or not

the client needs to move to a different level of

care based on changes In functioning in any

ASAM domain and documentation of the

reasons for this assessment.

2.8.3.3.4. The signature of the client and the counselor

agreeing to the updated treatment plan, or if
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appiicabie. documentation of the client's refusal

to sign the treatment plan.

2.6.3.4. Track the client's progress relative to the specific goals.
objectives, and intenrentions in the client's treatment plan by
completing encounter notes In WITS.

2.8.4. The Contractor shall refer clienls to and coordinate a dienl's care with

other providers.

2.8.4.1. The Contractor shall obtain in advance if appropriate,
consents from the client, including 42 CFR Part 2 consent. If

applicable, and in compliance with state, federal laws and
state and federal rules, including but not limited to:

2.8.4.1.1. Primary care provider and if the client does not

have a primary care provider, the Contractor
will make an appropriate referral to one and

coordinate care with that provider if appropriate
consents from the client, Including 42 CFR Part

2 consent, if applicable, are obtained in

advance in compliance with state, federal laws

and state and federal rules.

2.8.4.1.2. Behavioral health care provider when serving
clients with co-occurring substance use and

- mental health disorders, and if the client does

not have a mental health care provider, then the
Contractor will make an appropriate referral to
one and coordinate care with th^ provider if
appropriate consents from the client. Including
42 CFR Part 2 consent, if applicable, are
obtained in advance in compliance with state,

federal laws and state and federal rules.

2.8.4.1.3. Medication assisted treatment provider.

2.8.4.1.4. Peer recovery support provider, and If the client

does not have a peer recovery support
provider, the ^Contractor wiU make an

appropriate referral to one and coordinate care

with that provider if appropriate consents from

the client, including 42 CFR Part 2 consent, if

applicable, are obtained In advance in

compliance with state, federal laws and state

and federal rules.
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2.8.4.1.5. Coordinate with locdl recovery community

organizations (where available) to bring peer
recovery support providers intp the treatment
setting, to meet with clients to describe

available services and to engage clients in peer
recovery support sen/ices as applicable.

2.8.4.1.6. Coordinate with case management services
offered by the client's managed care
organization or third party Insurance, if

applicable. If appropriate consents from the

client, including 42 CFR Part 2 consent, if

applicable, are obtained In advance In

comptiance with state, federal laws and state

and federal rules.

2.6.4.1.7. Coordinate with other social service agencies
engaged with the client, Including but not limited

to the Department's Division of Children. Youth

and Families (DCVF), probation/parole, and the

Regional Hub(s) as applicable and allowable
with consent provided pursuant to 42 CFR Part

2.

2.8.4.2. The Contractor must clearty document In the client's file If the

client refuses any of the referrals or care coordination in

Section 2.8.4 above.

2.8.5. The Contractor must complete continuing care, transfer, and discharge

-plans for aa Services in Section 2.3 that address all ASAM (2013)
domains, that are in accordance with the requirements In Exhibit A-1 and

that:

2.8.5.1. Include the process of transfer/discharge planning at the time

of the client's intaKe to the program.

2.6.5.2. Include at least one (1) of the three (3) criteria for continuing

services when addressing continuing care as follows:

2.8.5.2.1. Continuing Sen/Ice Criteria A: The patient is

miaking progress, but has not yet achieved the
goals articuldted In the Individualized treatment

plan. Continued treatment at the present level

of care is assessed as necessary to permit the

patient to continue to work toward his or her

treatment goals; or
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2.8.5.2.2. Continuing Service Criteria B: The patient is not
yet making progress, but has the capacity to
resolve his or her problems. He/she is actively
wor1(ing toward the goals articulated in the
indtviduailzed treatment plan. Continued

treatment at the present level of care is

assessed as necessary to permit the patient to
continue to work toward his/her treatment
goals; and /or

2.6.5.2.3. Continuing Service Criteria C: New problems
have been identrfied that are appropriately
treated at the present level of care. The new

problem or priority requires services, the

frequency and Intensity of which can onty safely
be delivered by continued stay in the current
level of care. The level of care which the

patient Is receiving treatment is therefore the
least intensive level at which the patient's
problems can be addressed effectively

2.8.5.3. Include at least one (1) of the four (4) criteria for
transfer/discharge, when addressing transfer/discharge that
include:

2.6.5.3.1. Transfer/Discharge Criteria A: The Patient has
achieved the goals articulated in the
individualized treatment plan, thus resolving the
problem(s) that justified admission to the

present level of care. Continuing the chronic
,  disease management of the patient's condition

at a less Intensive level of care is indicated; or

2.8.5.3.2. Transfer/Discharge Criteria B: The patient has
been unable to resolve the probiem(s) that
justified the admission to the present level of
care, despite amendments to the treatment

plan. The patient is determined to have

achieved the maximum possible benefit from
engagement in services at the current level of

care. Treatment at another level of care (more
or less intensive) in the same type of services,
or discharge from treatment, is therefore

indicated; or
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2.6.5.3.3. Transfer/Discharge Criteria C: The patient has
demonstrated a lack of capacity due to

diagnostic or co-occurring conditions that limit
his or her ability, to resolve his or her
problem(s). Treatment' at a qualitatively
different level of care or type of service, or
discharge from treatment, is therefore ir>dicated;
or

2.8.5.3.4. Transfer/Oischarge Criteria D; The patient has

experienced an Intensification of his or her

problem(s). or has developed a new

problem(s), and can be treated effectively at a
more intensive level of care.

2.8.6. The Contractor shall deliver all services In this Agreement using evidence
based practices as demonstrated by meeting one of the following criteria:

2.8.6.1. The service shall be included as an evidence-based mental

health and substance abuse Intervention on the SAMHSA

Evidence-Based Practices Resource Center

https://www,samhsa.gov/ebp-resource-centef

2.8.6.2. The services shall be published in a peer-reviewed joumal
and found to have positive effects; or

2.8.6.3. The substance use disorder treatment service provider shall
be able to document the services' effectiveness based on the

following:

2.8.6.3.1. The service is based on a theoretical

perspective that has validated research; or

2.8.6.3.2. The service is supported by a documented

body of knowledge generated from similar or
related services that indicate effectiveness.

2.8.7. The Contractor shall deliver services in this Contract in accordance with:
I

2.8.7.1. The ASAM Criteria (2013). The ASAM Criteria (2013) can be
purchased online through the AS/\M website at;
http://www.asamcrlteria.org/

2.8.7.2. The Substance Abuse Mental hfeaith Services Administration

(SAMHSA) Treatment Improvement Protocols (TIPs)

available at http://store.samhsa.gov/list/series?name=TIP-
Series-Treatment-lmprovement-Protocols-TlPS-
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2.8.7.3. The SAMHSA Technical Assistance Publications (TAPs)
available at

http://store.samhsa.gov/llst/series7namesTechnlcal-

Asststance-Publications*TAPs*&p3geNumber=1

2.0.7.4. The Requirements in Exhibit A-1.

2.9. Client Education

2.9.1. The Contractor shall offer to all eligible clients receiving services under this
contract, individual or group education on prevention, treatment, and
nature of:

2.9.1.1. Hepatitis C Virus (HCV)

2.9.1.2. Human ImmunodeTiclency Virus (HIV)

2.9.1.3. Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD)

2.9.1.4. Tobacco Treatment Tools that Include:

2.9.1.4.1. Assessing clients for motivation In stopping the
use of tobacco products;

2.9.1.4.2. Offering resources such as but not limited to the

Department's Tobacco Prevention & Control
Program (TPCP) and the certified tobacco

cessation counselors available through the
QuilLine; and

2.10. Tobacco Free Environment

2.10.1. The Contractor must ensure a tot>aoco-free environment by having policies
end procedures that at a minimum:

2.10.1.1. Include the smoking of any tobacco product, the use of oral
tobacco products or 'spir tobacco, end the use of electronic

devices;

2.10.1.2. Apply to employees, clients and employee or client visitors;

2.10.1.3. Prohibit the use of tobacco products within the Contractor's
facilities at any time.

2.10.1.4. Prohibit the use of tobacco in any Contractor owned vehicle.

2.10.1.5. Include whether or rK)l use of tobacco products is prohlbhed
outside of the fadltty on the grounds.

2.10.1.6. Include the following if use of tobacco products is allowed
outside of the facility on the grounds:
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2.10.1.6.1. A designated smoking area(s) which is located
at least twenty (20) feet from the main entrance.

2.10.1.6.2. All materials used for smoking In this area,
including cigarette butts and matches, 'will be

extinguished and disposed of. in appropriate
containers.

2.10.1.6.3. Ensure periodic cleanup of the designated
smoking area.

2.10.1.6.4. If the designated smoking area is not property
maintained, it can be eliminated at the

.  discretion of the Contractor.

2.10.1.7. Prohibit tobacco use in any company vehicle.

2.10.1.8. Prohibit tobacco use in personal vehicles when transporting
'  people on authorized business.

2.10.2. The Contractor must post the tobacco h^ee environment policy In the
Contractor's fadlrties and vehicles and included In employee, client, and
visitor orientation.

2.10.3. The Contractor shall not use tobacco use, in arid of itsetf, as grounds for
discharging clients from services being provided under this contract.

3. Staffing
3.1. The Contractor shall meet the minimum staffing requirements to provide the scope

of work In this RFA as follows:

3.1.1. At least one licensed supervisor, defined as:

3.1.1.1. Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLAOC); or

3.1.1.2. Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC) who also holds

the Licensed Clinical Supervisor (LOS) credential; or

3.1.1.3. Licensed mental health provider

3.1.2. Sufficienl staffing levels that are appropriate for the services provided and

the number of clients served. Including, but not limited to:

3.1.2.1. Licensed counselofs defined as ML>\DCs, LADCs, and

Individuals licensed by the Board of Mental Health Practice or

the Board of psychology. Licensed counselors may deliver
any clinical or recovery support services within their scope of
practice.

3.1.2.2. Unlicensed counselors defined as individuals who have

completed the required coursework for licensure by the Board
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of Alcohol and Other Drug Use Providers, Board of Mental
Health. Practice or Board of Psychology and are worfting to
accumulate the work experience required for licensure.

Unlicensed counselors may deliver any clinical or recovery
support services within their scope of knowledge provided
that they are under the direct supervision of a licensed
supen/isor.

3.1.2.3. Certified Recovery Support workers (CRSWs) who may
deliver intensive case management and other recovery
support services within their scope of practice provided that
they are under the direct supervision of a licensed supervisor.

3.1.2.4. Uncertified recovery support workers defined as Individuals
who are working to accumulate the work experience required
for certificdtion as a CRSW who may deliver intensive case
management and other recovery support services within their
scope of knowledge provided that they are under the direct
supervision of a licensed supervisor.

3.1.3. No licensed supervisor shall supervise more than twelve staff unless the
Department has approved an aitemative supervision plan (See Exhibit A-l
Section 8.1.2).

3.1.4. Provide ongoing clinlcdl supervision that occurs at regular inten/als in
accordance with the Operallonal Requirements In Exhibit A-1 and
evidence t>ased practices, at a minimum;

3.1.4.1. Weekly discussion of cases with suggestions for resources or
therapeutic approaches, co-therapy, and periodic assessment
of progress:

3.1.4.2. Group supervision to help optimize the learning experience,
when enough candidates are under supervision;

3.2. The Contractor shall provide training to staff on:

3.2.1. Knowledge, skills, values, and ethics with specific application to the
practice issues faced by the supervisee;

3.2.2. The 12 core functions;

3.2.3. The Addiction Counseling Competencies: The Knowledge, Skills, and
Attitudes of Professional Practice, available. at

http://8tore.samhsa.gov/productn"AP-21 -Addiction-Counseting-
Competencles/SMAl5-4171; and

3.2.4. The standards of practice and ethical conduct, with particular emphasis
given to the counselor's role and appropriate responsibilities, professional
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boundaries, and power dynamics and appropriate Information security and
conridentiallty practices for handling protected health information (PHI) and
substance use disorder treatment records es safeguarded by 42 CFR Part
2.

3.3. The Contractor shall notify the Department, in writing of changes in key personnel
and provide, within five (5) working days to the Department, updated resumes that
cleariy indicate the staff member is employed by the Contractor. Key personnel are
those staff for whom at least 10% of their work time is spent providing substance
use disorder treatment and/or recovery support services.

3.4. The Contractor shall notify the Department in writing within one month of hire when
a new administrator or coordinator or any staff person essential to carrying out this
scope of senrices is hired to work in the program. The Contractor shall provide a
copy of the resume of the employee, which clearty indicates the staff member is
employed by the Contractor, vnth the notification.

3.5. The Contractor shall notify the Department In writing within 14 calendar days, when
there is not sufficient staffing to perfomi all required services for more than one
month.

3;6. The Contractor shall have policies and procedures related to student interns to
address minimum coursework. experience and core competencies for those Interns
having direct contact with individuals served by this contract. Additionally. The
Contractor must have student interns complete an approved ethics course and an
approved course on the 12 core functions and the Addiction Counseling
Competencies: The Knowledge. Skills, and Attitudes of Professional Practice in
Section 3.2.2. and appropriate information security and confidentiality practices for
handling protected heatth information (PHI) and substance use disorder treatment
records as safeguarded by 42 CFR Part 2 prior to beginning their internship.

3.7. The Contractor shall have unlicensed staff complete an approved ethics course and
an approved course on the 12 core functions and the Addiction Counseling
Competencies: The Knowledge. Skills, and Attitudes of Professional .Practice In
Section'3.2.2,.and information security and confidentially practices for handling
protected health Information (PHI) and substance use disorder treatment records as
safeguarded by 42 CFR Part 2 within 5 months of hire.

3.8. The Contractor shall ensure staff receives continuous education In the ever
changing Held of substance use disorders, and state and federal laws, and rules
relating to conridentiality

3.9., The Contractor shall provide in-service training to all staff involved in client care
within 15 days of the contract effective date or the staff person's start date, if after
the contract effective date, and at least every 90 days thereafler-on the following:

3.9.1. The contract requirements.
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3.9.2. All other relevant policies and procedures provided by the Department.

3.10. The Contractor shall provide in-service training or ensure attendance at an
approved training by the Department to clinical staff on hepatitis C (HCV). human
immunodeficiency virus (HIV), tuberculosis (TB) and sexually transmitted diseases
(STOs) annually- The Contractor shall provide the Department with a list of trained
staff.

4. Facilities License
4.1. The Contractor shall be licensed for all residential services provided with the

Department's Health Facilities Administration.

4.2. The Contractor shall comply with the additional licensing requirements lor medically
monitored, residential withdrawal management services by the Department's
Bureau of Health Facilities Admlnlslration to meet higher facilities licensure
standards.

4.3. The Contractor Is responsible for ensuring that the fkilities where services are
provided meet all the applicable laws, rules, policies, and standards.

5. Web Information Technology
5.1. The Contractor shall use the Web Information Technology System (WITS) to record

all client activity and client contact wHhin (3) days following the activity or contact as
directed by the Department.

5.2. The Contractor shall, before provtdtng services, obtain written informed consent
from the client stating that the client understands that:

5.2.1. The WITS system is administered by the State of New Hampshire;

5.2.2. State employees have access to all lnformation that is entered into the
WITS system;

5.2.3. Any information entered Into the WITS system becomes the property of the
State of New Hampshire.

5.3. The Contractor shall have any clier^t whose information is entered into the WITS
system complete a WITS consent to the Department.

5.3.1. Any client refusing to sign the informed consent in 5.2 and/or consent in
5.3:

5.3.1.1. Shall not be entered into the WITS system; and

5.3.1.2. Shall not receive services under this contract.

5.3.1.2.1. Any client who cannot receive services under
this contract pursuant to Section 5.3.1.2 shall

be assisted in finding alternative payers for the
required services.
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5.4. The Contractor agrees to the Information Security Requirements Exhibit K.

5.5. The WITS system shall only be used for clients who are in a program that is funded by
or under the oversight of the Department.

6. Reporting
6.1. The Contractor shall report on the following;

6.1.1. National Outcome Measures (NOMs) data in WITS for:

6.1.1.1. 100% of all dienls at admission

6.1.1.2. 100% of all clients who are discharged because they have
completed treatment or transferred to another program

6.1.1.3. 50% of all clients who are discharged for reasons other than
those specified above in Section 6.1.1.2.

6.1.1.4. The above NOMs in Section 6.1.1.1 through 6.1.1.3 are
minimum requirements and the Contractor shall attempt to
achieve greater reporting results when possible.

6.1.2. Monthly and quarterly web based contract compliance reports no later than
the 10th day of the month following the reporting month or quarter;

6.1.3. All crittcal inciderits to the txjreau in writing as soon as possible and no
more than 24 hours following the incident. The Contractor agrees that:

6.1.3.1. 'Critical incident' means any actual or alleged event or
situatbn that creates a signrficant risk of substantial or
serious harm to physical or mental health, safety, or well*
being, including but not limited to:

6.1.3.1.1. Abuse;

6.1.3.1.2. Neglect;

6.1.3.1.3. Exploitation;

6.1.3.1.4. Rights violation;

6.1.3.1.5. Missing person;

6.1.3.1.6. Medical emergency;

6.1.3.1.7. Restraint; or

6.1.3.1.8. Medical error.

6.1.4. All contact with law enforcement to the bureau in writing as soon as
possible and no more than 24 hours following the incident;

6.1.5. All Media contacts to the bureau in writing as soon as pos&'ble and no
more than 24 hours following the incident;
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6.1.6. Sentinel events to the Department as follows:

6.1.6.1. Sentinel events shall be reported when they involve any
Individual who is receiving services under this contract:

6.1.6.2. Upon discovering the event, the Contractor shall provide
immediate verbal notification of the event to the bureau,
which shall include:

6.1.6.2.1. The reporting individual's name, phone number,
and agency/organization;

6.1.6.2.2. Name and date of birth (DOB) of the
indlvidual(s) involved in the event;

6.1.6.2.3. Location, date, and time of the event;

6.1.6.2.4. Descfiption of the event. Including what, when,
where, how the event happened, and other
relevant information, as well as the identification

of any other individudls Involved;

6.1.6.2.5. Whether the police were Involved due to a
alme or suspected crime; and

6.1'.6.2.6. The idenlificalion of -any media that had
reported the event;

6.1.6.3. Within 72 hours of the sentinel event, the Contractor shall
submit a completed "Sentinel Event Reporting Form'
(February 2017). available at

https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbcs/documents/reporting-fomi.pdf
to the bureau

6.1.6.4. Additional Information on the event that is discovered after
filing the form in Section 6.1.6.3. atx)ve shall be reported to
the Department, In writing, as it becomes available or upon
request of the Department; and

6.1.6.5. Submit additional information regarding Sections 6.1.6.1
through 6.1.6.4 above if required by the department; and '

6.1.6.6. Report the event In Sections 6.1.6.1 through 6.1.6.4 above,
as applicable, to other agencies as required by law.

7. Quality Improvement
7.1. The Contractor shall participate in all quality improvement activities to ensure the

standard of care for clients, as requested by the Department, such as. but not
limited to:

7.1.1. Participation In electronic and in-person dient record reviews
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7.1.2.. Participation In site visits

7.1..3. Pertidpation in training and technical assistance activities as directed by
the Department.

7.2. The Contractor shall monitor and manage the utilization levels of care and service
array to ensure services are offered.ihrough the term of the contract to;

7.2.1. Maintain a consistent sen/ice capacity for Substance Use Disorder

Treatment and Recovery Support Services statewide by:

7.2.1.1. Monitoring the capacity such as staffing and other resources

to consistently and evenly deliver these services; and

7.2.1.2. Monitoring no less than monthly the percentage of the
contract funding expended relative to the percentage of the
contract period that has elapsed. If there is a difference of

more than 10% between expended funding and elapsed lime
on the contract the Contractor shall notify the Department
within 5 days and submit a plan for correcting the discrepancy
within 10 days of notifying the Department.

6. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity
8.1. In order to enable DHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the Contractor

agrees to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet. Prorrt and Loss Statement,
and Cash Flow Statement for the Contractor. The Profit and Loss'Statemenl shall

include a budget column allowing for budget to actual analysis. Statements shall be
submitted within thirty (30) calendar days after each nxinth end. The Contractor will

be evaluated on the following:

8.1.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

8.1.1.1. Definition: The days of operating expenses that can be
covered by the unrestricted cash on hand.

8.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short term investments

divided by total operating expenditures. less
depreciation/amortization and in-kind plus principal payments
on debt divided by days in the reporting period. The shorl-
term investments as used above must mature within three (3)
months and should not include common stock.

6.1.1.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall have enough
cash and cash equivalents to cover expenditures for a

minimum of thirty (30) calendar days with no variance
allowed.

8.1.2. Current Ratio:
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8.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total current assets

available to cover the cost of current liabilities.

8:1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current
liabilities.

8.1.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a

minimum current ratio of 1.5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

8.1.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

8.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor'a ability to
cover the cost of its current portion of its long-term debt.

8.1.3.2. Definition; The ratio of Net Income to the year to date debt
service.

8.1.3.3. Formula: Net Income plus Depredation/Amortization
Expense plus Interest Expense divided by year to date debt
service (principal ar>d interest) over the next twelve (12)
months.

8.1.3.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial
Statements identifying current portion of long-term debt
payments (principal and interest).

8.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a

minimum standard of 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

8.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets;

8.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an indication of the Contractor's ability
to cover Its liabilities.

8.1.4.2. Definition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total

assets.

8.1.4.3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities) divided
by total assets.

8.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial
Statements.

8.1.4.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a

minimum ratio of .30:1, with a 20% variance allowed.

8.2. in the event that the Contractor does not meet either:

8.2.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the'standard regarding
Cunent Ratio for two (2) consecutive months; or

8.2.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity standards
for three (3) consecutive months, then
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8.2.3. The Department may require that the Contractor meet with Department
staff to explain the reasons that the Contractor has not met the standards.

8.2.4. The Department may require the Contractor to submit a comprehensive
corrective action plan wHhin thirty (30) calendar days of notification that
8.2.1 and/or 8.2.2 have not been met.

8.2.4.1. The Contractor shall update the corrective action ptan at least
every thirty (30) calendar days until compliance is achieved.

8.2.4.2. The Contractor shall provide additional information to assure
continued access to services as requested by the
Department. The Contractor shall provide requested
information In a timeframe agreed upon by both parties.

8.3. The Contractor shall Inform the Department by phone and by email within twenty-
four (24) hours of when any key Contractor staff learn of any actual or likely
litigation, investigation, complaint, claim, or transaction that may reasonably be
considered to have a material financial impact on and/or materially imjsact or impair
the ability of the Contractor to perform under this Agreement with the Department.

8.4. The monthly Balance Sheet. Profit & Loss Statement, Cash Flow Statement, and all
other financial reports shall be based on the accrual method of accounting and
include the Contractor's total revenues and expenditures whether or not generated
by or resulting from funds provided pursuant to this Agreement. These reports are
due within thirty (30) calendar days after the end of each month.

9. Performance Measures
The following performar>ce measures are required for client services rendered from SOR
funding only.

9.1. The Contractor must ensure that 100% of dienls receiving residential level of care 3.5
covered by room and board payments under this contract that enter care directly
through the Contractor who consent to Information sharing with the Regional Hub for
SUO Services receive a Hub referral for ongoing care coordination.

9.2. The Contractor must ensure that 100% of clients referred to them by the Regional Hub
for SUD Services for residential level of care 3.5 who will be covered by room and
board payments under this contract have proper consents in place for transfer of
information for the purposes of data collection between the Hub and the Contractor.

The following performance measures are required for client services rendered from all
sources of funds. > '

9.3. The Contractor's contract performance shall be measured as in Section 9.4 below to

evaluate that services are mitigating negative impacts of substance misuse, including
but not limited to the opioid epidemic and associated overdoses.
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9.4. For the first year of the contract only, the data, as collected in WITS, will be used to

assist the Department in determining the benchmark for each measure below. The
Contractor agrees to report data In WITS used in the following measures:

9.4.1. Initiation: % of clients accessing services within 14 days of screening;

9.4.2. Engagement: % of clients receiving 3 or more eligible services within 34
days:

9.4.3. Retention: % of clients receiving 6 or more eligible senrices within 60 days;

9.4.4. Clinically appropriate services: % of clients receiving ASAM level of care
within 30 days;

9.4.5. Treatrnent completion: % of clients completing treatment; and National
Outcome Measures (NOMS) The % of clients out of all clients discharged
meeting at least 3 out of 5 NOMS outcome criteria:

9.4.5.1. Reduction in /no change in the frequency of substance use at
discharge compared to date of first service

9.4.5.2. Increase in/no chartge in number of Individuals employed or
in school at date of last service compared to first service

9.4.5.3. Reduction in/no change in number of Indrviduals arrested In

past 30 days from date of ftrst service to date of last service

9.4.5.4. Increase in/no change in number of individuals that have

stable housing at last service compared to first service

9.4.5.5. Increase in/no change In number of Individuals partlcipattng in
community support services at last sen/ice compared to first
service

10. Contract Compliance Audits
10.1. In the event that the Contractor undergoes an audit by the Department, the Contractor

agrees to provide a corrective action plan to the Department within thirty (30) days
from the date of the fmal findings which alddresses any and all findings.

10.2. The Contractor shall ensure the corrective action plan shall include:

10.2.1. The action(s) that will be taken to correct each deficiency;

10.2.2. The actlon(s) that wiO be taken to prevent the reoccurrence of each
deficiency;

10.2.3. The specific steps and time line for Implementing the actions above;

10.2.4. The plan for monitoring to ensure that the actions above are effective; and

How and when the vendor will report^ to the Department on progress on
implententation and effectiveness
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block
1.8. of the General Provisions, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to
Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded by;
2.1. New Hampshire General Funds;

2.2. Govemor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention. Treatment,

and Recovery Funds;

2.3. Federal Funds frpm the United States Department of Health and Human

.Services, the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration,

Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant (CFOA #93.959);

. 2.4. Federal Funds from the United States Department of Health and Human

Services. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, State
Opioid Response Grant (CFDA #93.788) and;

2.5. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services
in compliance with the federal funding requirements.

3. Non Reimbursement for Services

3.1. The State will not reimburse the Contractor for services provided through this
contract when a client has or may have an alternative payer for services
described the Exhibit A, Scope of Work, such as but not limited to:

3.1.1. Services covered by any New Hampshire Medicaid programs for
clients who are eligible for New Hampshire Medicaid

3.1.2. Services covered by Medicare for clients who are eligible for
Medicare

3.1.3. Senrices covered by the client's pnvate In5urer(s) at a rate greater
than the Contract Rate In Exhibit B-1, Amendment #2 Service Fee

Table set by the Department.

3.2. Notvirithstanding Section 3.1 above, the Contractor may seek reimbursement
from the State for services provided under this contract when a client needs a
service that is not covered by the payers listed in Section 3.1.

3.3. Notwithstanding Section 3.1 above, the Contractor must seek reimbursement
from the State for services provided ur>der this contract when a client needs a
service that is covered by the payers listed in Section 3.1, but payment of the
deductible or copay would constitute a financial hardship for the client.
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3.4. The Contractor shall provide a final budget for State Fiscal Year 2021 no later
than March 31, 2020 for Department approval, which shall be submitted for
Governor and Executive Council approval no later than June 30.2020.

4. The Contractor shall bill and seek reimbursement for actual ser^ces delivered by fee for
services in Exhibit B<1, Amendment 02 Service Fee Table, unless otherwise stated.
4.1. The Contractor agrees the fees for services are all-inclusive contract rates to

deliver the services (except for Clinical Evaluation which Is an activity that is
billed for separately) and are the maximum allowable charge in calculating the
amount to charge the Department for services delivered as part of this
Agreement (See Section 5 below).

5. Calculating the Amount to Charge the lOepartment Applicable to All Services in Exhibit
B-1, Amendment 02 Service Fee Table.

5.1. The Contractor shall;

5.1.1. Directly bill and receive payment for services and/or transportation
provided under this contract from public and private insurance
plans, the clients, and the Department

5.1.2. Assure a billing and payment system (hat enables expedited
processing to the greatest degree possible in order to not delay a ^
client's admittance into the program and to immediately refund any
overpayments.

5.1.3. Maintain an accurate accounting and records for ail services billed,
payments received and overpayments (tf any) refunded.

5.2. The Contractor shall determine and charge accordingly for services provided
to an eligible client under this contract, as follows:

5.2.1. First: Charge the client's private insurance up to the Contract Rate,
in Exhibit B-1, Amendment 02. when the insurers' rates, meet or are

lower than the Contract Rate in Exhibit B-1. Amendment 02. Except
when the client's deductible or copay creates a financial hardship as
defined In section 3.3.

5.2.2. Second: Charge the client according to Exhibit B. Amendment 02.
Section 8. Sliding Fee Scale, when the Contractor determines or
anticipates that (he private insurer will not remit payment for the full
amount of the Contract Rate in Exhibit B-1, Amendment 02.

5.2.3. Third: If. any portion of the Contract Rate In Exhibit B-1, Am6r>dm8nt
02, remains unpaid, after the Contractor charges the client's insurer
(If applicable) and the client, the Contractor shall charge the
Department the balance (the Contract Rate in Exhibit 8-1,
Amendment 02. Service Fee Table less the amount paid by private
insurer and (he amount paid by the client).
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5.3. The Contractor agrees the amount charged to the client shall not exceed the
Contract Rate in Exhibit B«1. Amendment 02.'Service Fee Table multiplied by
the corresponding percentage stated in Exhibit B. Amendment #2. Section 8
Sliding Fee Scale for the client's applicable Income level.

5.4. The Contractor will assist clients who are unable to secure financial resources

necessary for initial entry into the program by developing payment plans.

5.5. The Contractor shall not deny, delay or discontinue services for .enrolled
clients who do not pay their fees in Section 5.2.2 above, until after working
with the client as in Section 5.4 above, and only when the cflent fails to pay
their fees within thirty (30) days after beirtg Informed in writing and counseled
regarding financial responsibility and possible sanctions including discharge
from treatment.

5.6. The Contractor will provide to clients, upon request, copies of their financial
accounts.

5.7. The Contractor shall not charge the combination of the public or private
Insurer, the client and the Department an amount greater than the Contract
Rate in Exhibit B-1. Amendment #2. except for:

5.7.1. Low-Intensity Residential. Treatment as defined as ASAM Criteria.
Level 3.1 (See Section 7 below).

5.8. In the event of an overpayment wherein the combination of all payments
received by the Contractor for a given service (except in Exhibit B.
Amendrnent #2. Section 5.7.1) exceeds the Cpniract Rate stated in Exhibit B-

V.. 1. Amendment #2 Service Fee Table, the Contractor shall refund the parties in
the reverse order, unless the overpayment was due to insurer, client or

Departmental error.

5.9. In instances of. payer error, the Contractor shall refund the party who erred,
and adjust the charges to the other parties, according to a correct application
of the Sliding Fee Schedule. ^

5.10. In the event of overpayment as a result of billing the Department under this
contract when a third party payer would have covered the service, the
Contractor must repay the state in an amount and within a timeframe agreed
upon between the Contractor and the Department upon identifying the error.

6. Additional Billing Information (or: Room and Board for Medicaid clients wth Optold Use
Disorder (OUD) in residential level of care 3.5.
6.1. The Contractor shall invoice the Department for Room and Board payments

up to $100/day for Medicaid clients with OUD in residential level of care 3.5.

6.2. The Contractor shall n^intaln documentation of the following:,

6.2.1. Medicaid ID of the Client;
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6.2.2. WITS ID of the Client (if applicable)

6.2 .3. Period for which room and board payments cover;

6.2.4. Level of Care for which the client received services for the date range
identified in 6.2.3

6.2.5. Amount being billed to the Department for the service

6.3. The Contractor will submit an Invoice by the twentieth (2()th) day of each
month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses
Incurred for room and board in the prior month. The State shall make

payment to the Contractor within thirly (30) days of receipt of each invoice for
Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement. Irivoices must be
submitted in a Department approved manner.

6.4. The Contractor shall ensure that clients receiving services rendered from SOR
funds have a documented history of/or current diagnoses of Oplold Use
Disorder.

6.5. ^ The Contractor shall coordinate ongoing client care for all clients with
documented history of/or current diagnoses of Opioid Use Disorder, receiving
services rendered from SOR funds, with regional HUB (s) for Substance Use
Disorder services in accordance with 42 CFR Part 2.

7. Additional Billing Information for: Integrated Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT)
7.1. The, Contractor shall invoice the Department for Integrated Medication

Assisted Treatment Services for Medication and Physician Time as in Section
5 above and as follows;

7.2. Medication:

7.2.1. The Contractor shall seek reimbursement for the Medication

Assisted Treatment medication based on the Contractor's usual and

customary charges according to Revised Statues Annotated (RSA)
126-A:3 III. (b), except for Section 6.2.2 below.

7.2.2. The Contractor will^ be reimbursed for Medication Assisted
Treatment with Methadone or Buprenorphine In a certified Opiate
Treatment Program (OTP) per New Hampshire Administrative Rule
He-A 304 as follows;

7.2.2.1. The Contractor shall seek reimbursement for

Methadone or Buprenorphine based on the Medicaid

rate, up to 7 days per week. The code for Methadone

in an OTP is H0020. and the code for buprenorphine in
'  anOTPlsH0033.

7.2.3. The Contractor shall seek reimbursement for up to 3 doses per
client per day.

Manchester Alcoholism RehabilHatiofl Center EjMbIt B. Amendmen) S2 VonOor Inttltla
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recoveiy Support Services

Eihlbit B. Amendment 02

7.2.4. The Contractor shall maintain documentation of the following:

7.2.4.1. WITSCllentID#:

7.2.4.2. Period for which prescription is intended;

7.2.4.3. Name and dosage of the medrcallon;

7.2.4.4. Associated Medicaid Code;

7.2.4.5. Charge for the medication.

7.2.4.6. Client cost share for the service: and

7.2.4.7. Amount being billed to the Department for the service.

7.3. Physician Time:

7.3.1. Physician Time is the lime spent by a physician or other medical
professional to provide Medication Assisted Treatment Services,
including but not limited to assessing the client's appropriateness for
a medication, prescribing and/or administering a medication, and
monitoring the client's response to a medication.

7.3.2. The Contractor shall seek reimbursement according to Exhibit 8-1.
Amendment 02 Service Fee Table.

7.3.3. The Contractor shall maintain documentation of the following:

7.3.3.1. WITS Client ID#;

7.3.3.2. Dale of Service;

7.3.3.3. Description of service;

7.3.3.4. Associated Medicaid Code;

7.3.3.5. Charge for the service;

7.3.3.6. Client cost share for the service; and

7.3.3.7. Amount being billed to the Department for the service.

7.4. The Contractor will submit an invoice by the twentielh (20'^) day of each
month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses
incurred for medication assisted treatment in the prior month. The Slate shall
make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement. Invoices
must be submitted utilizing the WITS system.

8. Charging the Client for Room and Board for Low-Intensity Residential Treatment

8.1. The Contractor may charge the client fees for room and board, in addition to;

Manchester AlcoholivnRehBbllitAtion Center Exhibit B. Ameodmeni Vendor imuib
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Now Hampohire Oopartment of Health and Human Servlcoe
Subotanco Uoe Olaordor Treatmont and Recovery Support Sorvlcea

Exhibit 6. Amendment 02

8.1.1. The client's portion of the Contract Rale in Exhibit B-1, Amendment
02, using the sliding fee scale

8.1.2. The charges to the Department

8.2. The Contradof may charge the client for Room and Board, inclusive of lodging
and meals offered by the program according to the Table A below:

8.3.

8.4.

Table A

If the percentage of Client's
Income of the Federal
Povertv Level (FPLI la:

Then the Contractor
may charge the client
up to the following

amount for room and
board per week:

0%-138% SO
139%-149% S8
150%-199% $12
200%. 249% $25
250% - 299% $40
300% - 349% $57
350% - 399% $77

The Contractor shall hold 50% of the amount ctwrged to the client that will be
returned to the client at the time of discharge.

The Contractor shall maintain records to aiccount for the client's contribution to
room and board.

9. Sliding Fee Scale
9.1. The Contractor shall apply the sliding fee scale In accordance with Exhibit B.

AmerKtment #2, Section 5 above.

9.2. The Contractor shall adhere to the sliding fee scale as follows:

Percentage of Client's
Income of the Federal
Poverty Level (FPL)

Percentage of
Contract Rate In

Exhibit B-1 to Charge
the Client

0%.138% 0%
139%-149% 8%
150%-199% 12%

200% - 249% 25%
250% - 299% 40%
300% - 349% 57%
350% - 399% 77%

MencheatarAJcohoCsmRehfibilildtton Center ExhUt e. Amendment #2
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New Hempehire Department of Health and Human Servlcee
Subatsnce Use Disorder Treatment end Recovery Support Services

Exhibit B, Amendment 02

9.3. The Contractor shall not deny a minor child (under the age of 18) services
because of the parent's unwillingness to pay the fee or the minor child's
decision to receive confidential services pursuant to RSA 318-B:12-a.

10. Submitting Charges for Payment
10.1. The Contractor shall submit blliinfl through the Web Infonnation Technology

System (WITS) for services listed In Exhibit B-1. Amendment #2, Service Fee
Table. The Contractor shall;

10.1.1. Enter encounter note(s) into WITS r>o later than three (3) days after
the date the service was provided to the client

10.1.2. Review the encounter notes no later than twenty (20) days following
the last day of the billing month, and notify the Department that
encounter notes are ready for review.

10.1.3. Correct errors, if any. In the encounter notes as rdentrfied by the
Department no later than seven (7) days after being notified of the
errors and notify the Department the notes have been corrected and
are ready for review.

10 1-4 Batch and transmit the encounternotes upon Department approval
for the billing month.

10.1.5. Submit separate batches for each billing month.

10.2. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after sixty (60) days of
the last day of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

10.3. Tp the extent possible, the Contractor shall bill for services provided under this
contract through WITS. For any services that are unable to be bined through

WITS, the contractor shall work with the Department to develop an alternative
process for submitting Invoices.

11. Funds in this corilract may not be used to replace funding for a program already funded
from another source.

12. The Contractor will keep detailed records of their acth/iiles related to Department funded
programs and services.

13. Notwithstanding anything to (he contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed In
accordance with the tenms and conditions of this agreement.

14. Contractor vrlll have (orty-rive (45) days from the end of the contract period to submit to
the Department final Invoices for payment. Any adjustments made to a prior Invoice will
need to be accompanied by supporting documentation.
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Now Hampshire Department of Heelth and Human Services
Sutntanco Use Dtsorder Treatment and Recoyory Support Servlcea

Exhibit B, Amendment U2

15. Limitations and restrictions of federal Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment
(SAPT) Block Grant funds;
15.1. The Contractor agrees to use the SAPT funds as the payment of last resort.-

15.2. The Contractor agrees to the following funding restrictions on SAPT Block

Grant expenditures to:

15.2.1. Make cash payments to intended redpients of substance abuse
services.

15.2.2. Expend more than the amount of Block Grant funds expended in

Federal Fiscal Year 1991 for treatment services provided in penal or

correctional institutions of the State.

15.2.3. Use any federal funds provided under this contract for the purpose

of conducting testing for the etiologic agent for Human

Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) unless such testing is accompanied
by appropriate pre and post-test counseling.

15.2.4. Use any federal funds provided under this contract for the purpose
of conducting any form of needle exchange, free needle programs
or the distribution of bleach for the cleaning of needles for

intravenous drug abusers.

15.3. The Contractor agrees to the Charitable Choice federal statutory provisions as
follows:

Federal Charitable Choice statutory provisions ensure that religious
organizations are able to equally compete for Federal substance

abuse funding administered by SAMHSA, without Impairing the
religious character of such organizations and without diminishing the
religious freedom of SAMHSA beneficiaries (see 42 USC 300x-65
and 42 CFR Part 54 and Pad 54a. 45 CFR Part 96. Charitable

Choice Provisions and Regulations). Charitable Choice statutory
provisions of the Public Health Service Act enacted by Congress In
2000 are applicable to the SAPT Block Grant program. No funds
provided directly from SAMHSA or the relevant State or local

government to organizations participating in applicable programs
may be expended for inherently religious activities, such as worship,
religious instruction, or prosetytizallon. If an organization conducts
such activities, it must offer them separately, in time or location,
from the programs or services for which it receives funds directly
from SAMHSA or the relevant State or local government under any
applicable program, and participation must be voluntary for the
program beneficiaries.

Manchetter-AlcohoQsm Rehabilitation Conter' &(hibue.AnitnOmenta2 Vendor lnltist».
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sorvlcos
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit B*1, Amendment #2

Sarvice Fee Table

1. The Contract Rates in the Table A are the maximum allowable charge used in the Methods
for Charging for Services under this Contract in Exhibit 6.

Table A

Service

Contract Rate:

Maximum Allowable

Charge Unit

1.1.

Ciinical Evaiuation $275.00 Per evaluation

1.2.

Individual Outpatient $22.00 15 min

1.3.

Group Outpatient $6.60 15 min

1.4.

Intensive Outpatient $104.00

Per day: only on those
days when the client
attends individual and/or

group counseling
associated with the

program.

1.5.

Partial Hospitalization $223.00

Per day: and.onty on those
days when the dient
attends individual and/or

group counseling
associated with the

program.

1.6.
High-Intensity Residential Adult,
(excluding Pregnant and
Parenting Women), for clinical
services and fxx)m and board $154.00 Per day

1.7.

High-Intensity Residential for
Medicaid clients wHh 0U(>

Enhanced Room and Board $100.00 ' Per day

1.8. Medically Monitored Iripatient
Withdrawal Management (ASAM
Level 3.7 WM) $215.00 Per day

1.9. Recovery Support Services:
Individual Intensive Case

Management

1

$16.50 15 min

1.10. Recovery Support Services:
Group intensive Case
Management $5.50 15 min

Maoceetier AlconoOsm Rerktbfitaflon Center'
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Jujy10,20ie

His ExceDsncy. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honoretrie Courtdl

State Mouse

Coneord, New Hampshire O3301
REQUESTED ACTION

Action 91] Authorize the Departmertt of Health end Human Services. Bureau of Onig end Alcohol
Services, to ertter into retroaeUve Agreementa with three (3) of the IhMeen (13) Vendors listed belcw
in bold, to provide sutstance use disorder treatment and recovery support services statewide, by
Increastng the combined price limitation by $1,549,015. from $3,157,927. to en amoimt not to exceed
$4,708,942 affecUve retroactive to July 1, 2016, upon approval of tha Governor and Executive CcuncO
through June 30.2019. S5.87%.Foderal. 13.97% General, and 30.16% Other Funds.

Action 92) Authorize the Department of Health and Humen Servicos. Bureau of Drug end Alcohol
Services, to emsnd contracts with ten (10) of the thirteen (13) vendors not Dsted In bold, to modify the
provision of substance use dtaorder treatmenl end recovery support services with no change to the
price GmUatlon or completion dale, effective upon the date of Governor and Executive CpuncQ
approval. These ten (10) conbsds were approved by the Governor end Executive Council on Jum 20,
2018 (t.ate item G).

Summary of contracted emountfi by Vendor.

Vendor
Current

Amount

lr«rease/
Decrease

Revised

Budget

Olsmu Home of New Hampshtre. Inc. $240,000 .  SO $240,000

FfT/NHNH, Inc. SO $845,775 $645,778

Graft on County New Hampshire - Department of
CorrecUans and ARematlve Sentencing $247,000 SO $247,000

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism $0 S624,S99 S624.596

Headrest $147,999 SO $147,999

Manchester Alcoholism RehabOilaUon Center $1,110,371 ,$0 $1,118,371

Hope on Haven Hill SO $278,641 1278.841

North Country Health Consortium $287,406 SO $287,408

Phoenix Houses of New England, inc $232,921 SO $232,921

Sescoast Youth Services $73:200 SO S73,200

Southeastern New Hampshire Acohol & Drug Abuse
Services $589,540 SO $569,540

The Community Coundi of Nashua. N H. S162.000 SO $162,000

West Centml Services, Inc. 559,490 SO $59,490

Total SFY19 $3,157,927 $1,549,015 $4,708,942



Hb CkccBsncy, Oovsrnor Chrtslopher T. Sununu
and Ihe-Honorsble Counci

Paoo2or4

Funds to.supporl this request are available In State Rscal Year.2019 In (he roHowtng accounts,
with, the authority to adjust encumbrances between State Rscal Years, through the Budget Office
without approval of the Governor and Executive Councii, (J needed and Justified.

05^5-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN 8VCS
DEFT OF, HHS: DtV FOR OEHAVORIAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF ORUO & ALCOHOL SVCS.
GOVERNOR COIVIMISSION FUNDS <100% Other Funds)

.0&-gi5-92-920S10-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEFT OF. HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVC6,
CLINICAL services (80% Federal Funds. 20% General Funds FAIN 11010035 CFOA 93359)

Please see attached financial^taiie.

EXPUNAT10N

Action 01)

Requested Action 01 Is retroactive because the bepartrt^t and FIT/NHNH, Inc. were
■ continuing to work on thb scope 6i work-'and therefore, the contract was not corhpleled In Ume to place
the Item on the, agenda for the June 20,2018 Governor end ̂ ecuthm Courwa.meetlng; The contract

Greater hbshua CouncO on AlcohoQsm and Hope .on l^ven Hiil are being submitted after the
release of audit reports to aOow for Council review prior to; entering Irito en Agreement, and to add
contract' monUortng language to address the audit flndir)93. If these ectlom were not taken
retroactively, the result wdidd have been a gap in critical substa^ use disorder'treatment arvl
recovery support 8or\4ces in tha State's two largest dtlea.

The Department requests approval of three (3), agreements. Ten (10) agrelaments were
previously .approved by Governor and Executive Council on June. 20. 2018 l^te Item G. These
dgreemehts allow the Vendors Hsled lo provide an array of Substance Use plsorder Treatment end
Recovery Support Services statewide to children and adults with substance use disorders, who have
Income, below.400% of the Federal Poverty level and are residents of New; Hampshire or are homeless
In New Hampshire. Substance use disorders occur when the use of alcohol and/or drugs causes

.cTmically arxl rurwtionally significant impairment, such as health problems, disability, and faDure to meet
major responsibilities at work, school, or home. The existence of a substance use disorder is
deterrrtined using a cfiniGal evaluation based on Diagnostic artd Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders.
Rflh Edillon cfileria.

These Agreements are part of the Depertinenfs overall strategy lo resportd to the opiokl
epidemic that continues to r^gatlvely impact New Hampshire's individuals, famUlaa, and commur^ies
88 weO as to respond to other types of substance use disorders. Under the current Iteration of these
contracts,- fifteen (15) verKlors-are delivering an array .of trealrrrent services. Induding Individual and
group culpatlenL Intensive outpatient, parttal hcspltaQzation, transitional fMng. high and low Intensity
residential, and ambulatory arrd resfdentlal withdrawal maragement services as well as ancfQary
recovery support services. While the array of services offered by each vendor varies sllghUy, together
they enrolled 2994 Ind'ivtduals in service groups covered by the contract between May 1.2017 and April
30, 2018. in 2016 there were 485 drug overdose, deaths tn New Hampshire with the death toll for 2017
at 428 as of April 20, 2018; however, the 2017 statistics are expected to increase stightly as cases ere
stiil pending analysis. This reduction in deaths indicates that (he overall strategy Including preventlbn.
intervention, treatment, and recovery support servtces may be ha>Hng a positive Impact

The Departmerit published a Request for AppQcab'ons ibr Substance Use Disorder Treatrrient
and Ftecowry Support Services (RFA-20l9-6DAS-01-SUBSrn on the Department of Health and
Humans Services website April 20, 2018 through May 10. 2018. The Department received sixteen (16)
applications. These proposals were reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with program specific
'Knowledge. The Oepadment selected fourteen applications (two (2) submitted by Graffon County were
cornbined into one contrsci) to provide these services (See attached Summary Score Sheet).
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His ExeeOoncy, Govsmor Oulstopher T. Sununv
end Oto HonoreUoCoundl.

P30o3or4

Some Of the Vendors' eppllcations scored lower than anticipated: however, thts was largely due
to the Vendors pfovtding e limited array of services and not to their experfence and/or capadly to
provide those services. In addition the Bureau of £)i:ug end Atcohol Services Is working with the Bureau
of Improvement and Integrity b Improve the contract monitoring and quality Improvement process as
well as taking steps to reposition staff to assist with this.

The Contract includes language, b assist pregnant and parenting women by providing interim
s^ces If they are on a wafUlrt; to ensure clients contribute to the cost of servlcos ̂  assessing diant
Inoome al Intake and on a monthly basts; end to ensure care ooordinatlon for the cHents by assisting
them wtth accessing services or working with a cHent's exisUng provider for physical health, behavtorel
health, medication assisted triutihent end peer recovery sui^x)ft services.

The Department will 'monitor the performance of the Vendors through monthly and quarterly
reports, conducting site visits, revlewfng dient records. and.-engBging In actlvtties Identified In the
contract monitoring and quialHy improvement work referenced above.' In addiUon, the Oepartmem b
collecting basellna data on access, engag^ent. dinlcal approprlatene&s, retention, completion, and'
outcomes that wfD be used b create performance improvement goals in future cofltracte. Finally,
contractor flnandal health b also being moriltored monthly.

AH thirteen (13)'ooritracts Include language that reserves the right to renew each contmct for up
to twq (2) additional years, subj^ to the. continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of
contracted servioes and Governor and Execubve Councii approval.

Should the Governor'and Ex^tlve Cound determine to not authortze. Ihb Requested Action
#1. the vendors would not.have sufftdent resources to promote and provide the array of aeivlces
necessary to provide Individuals with substance use disorders the necessary toob b achieve, enhance
and sustain recovery. -

Action #2}

Requested Adton #2 seeks approval to amend ten .(10) of the thirteen (13) agreements for the
provision of substance use disorder treatrhent and recovery support services by modifying the scope to
reduce the burden oh .the wndors in meettog contred requirements.

The changes !o the contracts Indude removal of the requirement to continue providing services
after the contract price Dmitatlon Is reached. elloWng for assistance to cUents enroDir^ In Insurance
through the use of referrals b trained community providers, and an easing of supervision requirements
that to not expected to negatively Impact dtenl care. Corrective action for comptiance audils was also
inctodcd. "pie changes were also made b the three (3) contracts being put forth In Action #1. These
changes aire being made as a part of the Department's response to provider's concerns over
relmbufsemBni rates with the goal of reducing the gap between the cost of providing services arxJ the
rate paid by the Oepartmenl by reducing the admfribtrative burden assodaled with service delivery
without comprorrridng cCent care.

These contracts were originally competitlvety bid.

Should the Governor and Executive Coundl delefmlne to not authorize this Request Action #2,
the gap between the cost of care and reimbursemeht rales will remain the same, which venire have
Indicated may result In having b limit services provided under the conlrad.' In addition, (here would
not be a requiremenl of a corrective actions plan should there be an audit which does not eUcw for a
system to assbt with improvement In services provided.



Kb ExteBency, Oovemor Chftitophsr T. Sununu
onj 9m Hi^abb Council

Pegs 4 M 4

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Funds: 55.87% Federal Funds from the United States Depadment of Health and
Human Ser^ces, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administatlon. Substance Abuse
Preventior) and Treatment Bbck Grant, CFOA 4f9d.9S9. Federal Awaid IdentifiGatlon Number
T101005&>14, and 13.97% Generai Furuls end 30.16% Other Funds from the Governor's Commission
on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Prevention. Intervention and Treatment

tn the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not t)e
requested to support thb program.

Respectfully submitted,

Xada S. Fox
Oliector

Approved by:>
Jeffrey A. Meyers

^  Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Sutetencg^Jgfl^lgWdef^fMtmcnt'rind Recovcfy Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment 01 to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and
Recovery Support Services Contract-'

This 1** Amendment to Ihe Substance Use Disorder Treatmerit and .^ecov^ Support Services contract
(hereinafter referred to as /Amendment 01') dated this 26th day of June.' 2018. is by end between the
State of New Hampshire; Department olf Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and Manchester Alcoholism R^abfiltatlon Center, (hereinafter referred to as
"the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 555 Auburn Street. Manchester. NH
03103.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an aflreemenl (the "Contract^ approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 20; 2018 (Late Hem G). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
ar>d corxfitions specified In the Contract as amerxied and In consideration of certa'in sums specified; and

SMHEREAS, the State end the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope
of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon writteri agreement of the parties and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to modify the scope of seAriccs to support continued delivery of these
services with no change to the price limhalion or completion date;

NOW THEREFORE. In ooAskjeration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contrad and set forth herein, the parties thereto agree to amend as follows:

V Delete Exhibit A. S^pe of Services., Section 2,' Scope of Services. Subsection 2.7. Assistance
with EnrolUng In Insurance Programs, In its entirety, and replace wHh the following:

"2:7. Assistance wtth'Enrolling In Insurance Programs

2.7.1. The Contractor must assist clients arxl/or their parents or legal guardians, who are
unable to secure financial resources necessary for Initial entry into the program, with •
obtaining other potential sources for payment, either directly or through a closed-loop
reterral to a community provider. Other-potential sources for payment Indude, but
are not limited to:

2.7.1.1. EnroDmenl in public or private'liuurance'induding. but not^llmlted to New
Hampshire Medicald programs within fourteen (14) days after Intake.

2. Delete Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 3, Staffing, Subsection 3.9, In Its entirety, and
replace as follows;

3.9. The Contractor shall provWa in-service training to all staff Involved In dient care vrithW
fifteen (15) days of the.cbhiradtretfedive date or the ataff peiwn's start date, If after the
contract effective date, on the foilowing:

3.9.1. The contract requirements.

3.9.2. All other relevant polldes and procedures provided by the Department.
3.- Add Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 10, Contract Compliance Audits, as follows:

10. Contrad Compliance Audits

10.1 In th'e event that the Conlrador undergoes an audit by the Department, the
Contractor agrees to provide a corrective action plan to the Department within thirty
(30) days from the date of the final findings wtilch addresses any and ad findings.

MantfcsterAteonoOwnRenebCuaonCentB; Amertfmonsi
nFA-201WAS-01-SUS8T



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
fiu^tencgjjgo^teofdef Treatment end Recovery Support Scfvlccs

10.2 The corrective action plan shall Include:

10.2.1 The actlon(s) that will be taken to correct each deficiency;
10.2.2 The aclion(8) that will be taken to prevent the reoccurrence of each

deficlericy,

10.2.3 The specific steps and time tine for imptementlng the ectfons above;
10.2.4 The plan for monitoring to ensure that the actions above are effective: and
10.2.6 How and when the vendor will report to the Department on progress on

(mpierrientatlon and effectiveness.

4. Delete Exhibit A-1, OperaUonal Requirements, Section B, Clinical Supervision. Subsection 8.1
ParagraphS.I.S, In Itsentirety, and replace as follows:
0.1.3. Unllcer^sed counselors shall receive at. least one (.1) hour of supervision for every forty

(40) hours of direct client contact;

5. Delete Exhibit B. Methods and Condlllortt Precedent to Payment Section 9. In Its entirety.

The rest of mis page left intentionaHy blank.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Dteorder Tmatment and Recovery Support Sofylcrt

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Coundl approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

Dale KatjaS. Fox

Director

Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center

Date Name:

Title: ^

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature;

State of County of before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person Identified diredty Sbove, or satisfactorfty proven to
be the person whose name Is signed above, and acknowledged thai s/he executed this documeri In the
capacity Indicated above.

Signature of Notary PubRc or JusBue ul tlie Puate

CVNTKIA ROSS, Notsy PUfaCe
.^CommfntonBoOwitecfi 12.2019

r.- Name and T^ of Notary or Justiee uf tliu Puate

• • • * • ^

\r-^ My. Commission Expires:

U«ft0)eMerXioohaflimAeh«bffiaSonC«nter
RFA^SeOAS-OVSuaST Pt0e3ol4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Usia Dtaefder Treatment end Recovenf Support Scivlcea

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office. Is approved as to form ubstanoe end
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

1

Date

kji6
Name: fX
TiUe:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive CourKll of
the State of New Hampshire al the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

THIe:

M«n0««terAlcahoflsmRtfv«bQsOon Cefller
aFA-20rO-BOA&^1«aU8$T

Amendmerttl
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KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Vendor Name: Cstter Seab NH, Joe.

Name of Program/Service: Maaebcser AlcohoUtm RebabUiatioa Ceoter •

BUDGET PERIOD; 1  1

Nemo & TWO Key Adminlstrattvo Personnel

Annual eaiaiy or

Key

Admlnlotretlve
Pereoftrtol

Psro^Atago'of
. SalafyPftldby

Contract

.  Total Sala^
Amourtt Paid by

Contract

Lanv Gammon, President & CEO S387.107 .  0.00% ' $0.00

filn Treenof. CFO S244.eO0 0.00% $0.00

Nancy RoUhs. COO $117,000 0.00% $0.00

Tina Shartjv. CHRO si45.ese 0.00% $0.00

Joseph Emmons. 8VP Devetopmenl $120,000 0.00% $0.00

• Cheryl WIlUe, GVP SututancfiAhiLvtServtcefl $175,000 25.00% $43,760.00

ChfWlne Weber. VP OoefBtlohs Famum Center $103,000 43.00% $44^a00

$0 .  0.00% $000

$0 0.00% $0.00

. SO 0.00% so.oo

SO 0.00% $0.00

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to oxceod Totai/SaJaiy Wa
so

309, Line Item ̂  d
0.00%

ludgot request)
. $aoo

I86J)W.OO

Key AdmWstreOve Pefflonnfil are tojHsve) agoncy leadership (Executive Director, CEO. CFO, etc.).
Tl^ pormnet MUCT be Qsted, even If np BaterV la paid fwin the Prpvtde thsir'name,
tiOe. annuaJ salary and percentage of annual salary paid from the agreement.
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STATE OF N£W UAM7SHIRB

DEFARTMEPnr OF QEALTB AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEBAVJORALHEALTB

BURBAUOPDRUGANDALCOBOLSERyjCES -

105 n,&ASANt BTRfTT, CONCOBO, NH 03301
603-3TUIJ0 l-<0^651.33iSBit5T3l

.  ' Fftu 6Q3-171-<10S TDD Accoir 1400-7)5-3964 '

June 19,2016

His Excellency^ Governor Ctifistopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Cbunctl.

Stateliouse ,
Ooncordi New Hampehlre 033p'l

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorfae the" Department of Health 6nd Human Sefvtcae, Bureau of Drug and -Alcohol
&Mcea. to- enter Into ̂ ernents with multiple Vendors, Jlsted below, to provide eubstance use
d^fder trMtrront and rpooveiy support services statewide, la an emounl not to exceed $3,157,927
effectiye July 1, 2(rt6 or upon Governor and Executive "Councfl iappfoval whichever Is. later through
June 30.2019. 55.87% Federal. 13.97% General, and 30.16%'Other Funds. ■ ■

Summary of contracted amounts by Vendor

Vendor Budgeted Amount
uismas Home of Now Hampshire. Iric. $240,000
Orafton fiqunW New Hampshire - Department of Corrections and Alternative
Sentdndhp^^^- $247,000
Headreat $147,999
Manchester Alcoholism Rehabllilation Center $1,118,371
North Oountfv Health Consortium

'  S2S7.408
■Phoenbc Houses of New Enofand. Inc. $232,921
Seaooast Youth Ser^ces $73,200
ijoulheaslem New Hamoshlre Alcohol & Drug Abuse Services' $569,540The Comntunltv Council of Nashua. N.K $162,000
West Central Ser^ces. Inc.. $59,490
TotelSFYIQ"- ^ $3,157,927

FurvJs to bupport this request are available In state FlscaJ Year 2019 In the following aocounts,
• wlin the authority to adjust encumbrances between State RscaJ Years through ttie^Budoet Office

wtthout approval of the Governor and Executive Counca. K needed and Justified.
Please see attached fln^clal details.

EXPLANATION .

«• approval of ten (10) agreements with a combined price limitation ofaDow the Vervfors fisted to provide en array of-Substance Use Disorder Treatmenf
and Reoovary Su;^rt Servlcas statewide to children and adults with sutiatance usa disofders, who
havejncon^ 400% of the Federal Poverty love) and are resWents of New HaqipsWra or ia

^homeless in New Hampshire, Substance use disorders occur vvhen the use of alcohol and/or drugs
rai^^cUnlcany and functtonafly Sfgntftcant lmpal/ment, such as health problems, disability, and failure
(0 meat m^Jor respenslbOltlas at worlc. school, or home. The existence of a substance usq disorder Is



Hb ExceDmcy. Qqycmof CMslophof T. Surtunu
end Oie'Htmofsbld Coi0>e9

Pago2of3

based on Diaflnosdc and Statistical Manual of Mental DIsofdere.
Hflh ̂ dWon crltefte. .Three (3) more agreements wID be submitted by the Department at a future
Governor and Executive Council m6e&>Q.

These Agreements ore pEarl of the Department's overall slrategy to respond to the oplold
epidemic that continues to negatively Impact New Hampshlre:fi fridlvWuab, famnies, and communities
as vreii as to respond to other types of substance use dborders. Under the current llcfBtlon of these
contracts, fifteen (15) vendors are ̂ Hvcring an array of treatment 8^lce|B» Including IndMdual and
grc^ Quotient Intensive outpeOent, partial hospnallzatton, transfUonal Uvlng. high and low Intensity
rcsldonuaJ. end ombutetofy end reeidentlaJ wtthdrswsl managemcnl servteos es .well «s ancfllary
recovery eupport services. While the array of services offered each vendor varies sQghtly, together.

Individuals In service groups, covered by the contract betw^ May 1.2017 and April
30j roi8. In 2016 there were 485 drug oveidose dealhs .In New Hampshire with the .death ton for 2017

April 20.2016; however, the 2017 statistics are expected to Increase slightly as ere
stD! pending analysis. This reduction h deaths Indicates that the overall strategy Including prevention,
tnteri^tlon. trMtfnent, end recoveiy support servlces'ls having a positive- Impact • '

^  bepartment published d Request for AppHcatlons:for Substan^ Use Disorder Treatment
and FUcovery ̂ pport Services (RFA^OIO-BDAS-OI^UBST)" on the Department of Health" wd

Services website April 20,, 2018 through May 10.2016. The Department received sbrteen (16)
pppnatlofTs. These proposaie were reviewed end scored by a iwrn of Individuals wtth program specific
Kn^edga. ,The Department selected fourteen eppOcations (two (2) submltt^ by Greflon County were
complned Into one contract).!© provide these services (See attached Summdry Score Sheet).

Some of the. Vendors' appUbaUoris scored lower than anticipated; however, this was largely due
to the vendors, providing a limited array of services and not to their e)Wlehce and/or capadfy to
pn^e those 6er\Ace3. In addltlon lhe Bureau of Drug and AIcolwl Servlces.ls working with the Bureau
of Improvemerit and Integrity to.Irhpreve the corrtrect monltortng end Quality Improvemant process es
well as taJdry steps to re^Won staff to esslst with this.

^  The Cohtract includes language to asstsi pregnant and parenting women by providing fntartm'
servloes If they.are on a waitDs^ to ensure cUenls contribute to the cost of servlcas by assessing cCent ■
jnoome at Intake and on a monthly basis; and tp erisure care coordination for the diehts by assfstlrtg
mem wtth acoesslng sendees or working \Mth a .dienfs edstlng provider for piiyslcal health, behavtoral
health, medication assisted treatment and peer recovery support servlcas.

TTw Department will monitor the performance of the Vendors through monthly end Quarterly
rep^, conducting "site vtsfts, reviewing client records, and engaging In actlvilles Identified In the
extract monltbring and quality Improvement work referenced above. In addition, the Department Is
co^ng ba^e data.on access,•engagemam. clinical approprtateness. retention,, completion, end
outcomes tnm wDI be used to create pOTormance Improvement goals In future cbniracb.«Rnany '
con.liBctor financial health Is also being monitored monthly. ~

•  contract (ncfudes language that recenres the right to renew each oOntract for up to two (2)
awllional years; subject to the continued availability of furids, satisfactory performance of contracted
serMoes end-Governor end'Executlve Coundl approval

*  ■

^Should the Governor and Execulhre Council determine to not authorlzo this Request, the
vend^ would rwt have suffident resources to promote and provide the array of services rrecessary to
provide Individuals with substance use disorders the necessary tools to achieve, enhance And sustain
fcoovery.



>.

Hb £xc«!lancy. ODvemor Chrbtophor T. Sununu
ttftd tha Honor&bte Coundl

PegedoO

Area eerved: StalewUe.

Souree of Funds: 56.87% *=ederal Funds from ihe Uniled States Department cf-Heallh and
^man^rvlces. Substance Abuse, and Mental Health Services AdmlrUstrallon: Sutistance Abuse

Award Identifcatfon Number

a2^. • ̂  General Fur)d8 and 30.16% Other Funds from the Govemor'a Commissionon Ataonol and Other Drug Abuse Prevention. Intervenlibn and Treatment

In the event that the Federai -Funds become no longer avsnabte. General Funds wtll rwt be
requested to support this prooram.

^  Respectfully submitted.

*2s>

Approved

Katies. Fox
Director

rey A. Meyere
Commissioner

^ pmtfne QAMrAnfito ftv cfltcDTU to «c»e«« A««0) 0itf Mvtndtonca
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FORM NOSOSR P J7|ittiS&s SAaS)

Subject UK PlMfdCf TmUmpt^nd Recavf^fv Support Scfvicci fRFA.20i»Cl>A8.Ql.SUBgqaQ

Notice; Thii a|reemcni and all of its etischnenU ihail beoooe public upon Bibokhaion lo Owbdot lad
Executive Council for approval. Any infiartnation thil U private, coofidmdal or pragndBy roust
be clevly identified to the agency and agreed to in vntlng prior to ligsbg the oottosdL

AGRBBMENT
The Stole o fNew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually, agree as biknft

GBNBRAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Dcpa/tmmt of Health and Human Scrvicps

1.2 Stale Agency Address. ^
129 Pleasuti Street '

Concofd,NH0330l-M57

,IJ .CootrectorNime '

Manchcster'AlpohoUsin RehabilltAlion Center
1.4 Contractor Addros

555. Auburn Street •

MazKtotaNH 03(03 . . .

IJ Oontnctor Phone

.Number
603^21-3441

1.6 Aeooont Number'

05-95-92-9205l<>-3382-102-

500734; 05-95-92-920510-
3384-102-500734

1.7 Cosipletbn Date

June 30; 2019

'IJ .Mce LImitstioa

S[.il^7l
»•

15 CoflO«ctio|l Officer br Scale Agency
B-Mario Relneraanrt, Esq.
Director of Contracts and Procurcnent

1.10 StaieAgencyTdqiboneNumber
603-271-9330

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Nsne and Title ofContractor Sgnatory

E/in Troanof, CFO

1.1-3 - Ackoowledgonenl; State of NH .Counlyof HIOsboreuQ}!

On ^ 'r -^^^bebre the' uodcnignbl ofCoer, persoaally appear^ the penoD Idoififled b bIo^'l:13, or aatefibdority
proven tb be tte pcnoo whose name is algncd in block l.ll,6nd odcnowlodged th'il abe exmied this doq0Da)tb'ihecuBiiy .
Indicoled in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature ofNotaiy Pdblioor Justicp of the Peaoe

[Son

/

\.

1.13.2 NirncMTWcpfNotaoorJustiitoofJhj^j^ROSS,NoteryF!Bti5e
Idy Cemmhalon Expires March 12.2019

Md State Agency SigoWtre

%
1.16 Approval by tb^NH.ODe

Date-

By:

partment of Adoibbtntbn. Division of Pcnonae'

Direeior.On;

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency ̂gBstory

tnooair^ oppt\cohle) '

1.17 Approval jSy.tbe Aoomey OenereJ (Form, SubsUnoe aod.Executton) (\f applkahU)

By:
^0

I.It Approval ly theQovemor and Executive

Br

iai

On:

Pege 1 of 4



t EMFLOYMBNTOFCOIfTRACTOR/SBRVlCBSTO
0B PEHFORMBD. The Stale ofNew Ksrapihlre, uling
Ihroutb thee^EBcy ideslifltd la teck I.I (*Scite'^, envies
cDetnetar IdentUled in block IJ rCooiretloO to peribrm,
^ ite OOAlittior stoO perbnn, ihe work or ule of goods, or
bbl\ tdeaUfUd and more pvtkularfy dacrfbod tn (he ottached
EXHIBfT A wtdd) b loec^nted bcraln by rcferenoe
(-Servioi'^

3. EnrECTrVCOATeATOMPLirnONOFSERVIces.
3.1 NpMdthsUndlngany provCdan ofthb Agreement to the
conlrvy. end fuldect to apptove) of the Oovcmor and
Bxendlve Cbufldi ofthe Sbu of New Hampshire. If
■ppUisbb, this Agrecocni, ead ell ohllgstiqns ofthe paitia
hemioder. thalJ become eltxtive oo Ihe dote the Oovcmor
tad fixBcutlve CouocD i^trove ihU Agrcetnent ta lodlcstcd lo
block 1.Ik, uakss po lu^ ipfirovtl b required, in which case
the Agrc«R»i shah become cfTccdve on (he date (be
AgreemeaiUsigned by the State Agency as shown ioblocb .
1.14 C^ecUvo Daie'>
3.2 Iflbe ConsroAoreemmenoea tho Scrvfca prior lo (he
EflbeU'vc Dat^ til Sendees ptrfOiUMi by (he Comndor prior
to the Effective Date thai) be perfumed et (he sole risk the
Qrtjtdor, end In the ovcni (ha (ks Agrtcrsent docs na(
become cffec'Uve, the Sunn ihsil beve oo IbbUhy ̂ o the
Oonucetor, Including wiibout Uml(fitio(\ any oUiguloo (o pay
Ihe COntrectof fbr any costs InciirTcd or Scrvtees performed.
CbnUutor must complete ell Sovloes \jy (he Completion Dale
specUiedbibioek 1.7.

4. CONSrTlONALNATVRE OF AGREEMENT.
Notw1(hslandbfi any provjion of (his Agrccmeni to the
cootnry, ail cbUgolUms of.lhc State hcreuader, Ineludtog.
without Umliadoa, (be cootlnuaace of payments hereunder. ore
contingent upon the avaUabillty and oomlnued appropriation
of flmds, and b no event shall the Slate be liable lor any
p^rnuRd bereuadcT Ineacessorsueh avsJlebleappR^rlited

lotheoveotofaitdixt^orlCRnbslloQof
appropriated Hauls, (he Stale i^l lave the rigM to wltMtold
psyroem uaili such ftinds become available; If ever, and shall
have the rigbi to (ennlnalcthb Agreement Immediately upon •
gMngthsCbntroctornedeeofai^tenAlnaliaD. TheState
shall not be loqutred to iitnsfer fiiodi ftom any other account
to the Account tdoidficd to blodt 1.6 In (he evexd fiinds to (hat
■Accoanl are reduoed u unavoIbbJc

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE UMITATION/
PAYMENT.
S.1 The commt prie^ method of payoicnt, and terms Of
peyrnem ire Idemified end mertpartlcubriy described In
EXKlBrr B wticb U Incorporated berdo by rdereace.
SJThcpsyTDentby iheStateof (heeenrrsetprioc th^ betlte .
only and the complete relmburieffient to the Contractor tor oil
eipemes, of wtiatevcr natuia incurred by (he Contractor In (he ■
pertetnaott bcreoC end shall be the only and the eompktc
compeRSCltoa to the Contractor for ihe Scrvleea. The State
shall have oo Usblltly to the Contmctor other (hen the centrta
price.

PBge2

S J The State reservu the right to pflkt Dom any antoanb
otherwise payable to the Contractor ooder thb Agreement
those liqsldsted amouois required or pemlited by Nil. RSA
10:7 through RSA 60;7< or any other piovirioo oflaw. ■
S.4 Notwithriandng any provl^ in (Us Apeemat a (be
oonlrory, and notwUhstanding unetpccted circumstance^ In
00 event shall the total of all payments authortaed, or acmaUy
made hereunder, exceed Ihe Mce Limitation set forth to blodt
l.E

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WfTR LAWS
AND RECULATICNSr EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In conaeetlen with the pcrfonnaacB ofthe Scrvloc3,tbe
Cootraclor ihaQ comply with all statutes, taws, reguhUons,
lod orden of foderal, stats; county or CDuaklpal atidtorides
which Impose toy obllgaiion or duty upon (be Contiacior.
tocludln^ but not limited to. civil rights end equal ^porlunlty ■
laws. This may Include the rcqulrtmeitt to utlUie auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons «whh oommunlcailon
dirobliltles, Including vUlon, hearing end speech, can
eoramunlcats mlh, receive Informatloo Bom, and convey
InGsnnalloa to the Contreetof. In addHiot^ the Contractor
shall comply wlih all applicable eopyri^
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Coptrsetar shall
not discriminate sgalns employees or epptlcaats for
emplc^ment because ofrace, color, rclig^ oeed, age, so,
bandl^. sextm) orioitallon, or natlortal orfko and wUJ take
afTlrmsllve action to prevent such dltcrimtootton.
6J If (Ms Agreement Is Rinded to any part by monies of(he
United States, (ho Centmcior fhUl oomply til the
provisions of Executive Older No. 11246 C^quil
Employment Opportuniy!), as supplemented by the
reguleilotu.ortte United Sttiesl>epeitment of Labor (41
C.FJL Part 60), and with any roles, regulsripin and guldcltoa
as the State ofNew Hunpahire or the United States Issue to
totplcroent these reguhtJons. The.CDnlrtclor foitber agrees to
penph the State or United States access to any of(be
Coolitctor'i books, recordshrtd aocomis for the purpose of
•scertatolng oompllance wllb all rules, regul^ns and orden,
and the co^mnts, toms and condJtlans of (Ms AgrcemenL

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 Tbc Conlraoor shall at Its own expense provide alt
pemtmel necessary to perfeno the S^tees. The Ccrdmcior
wamsts that all pertoanel engaged to (be Scrvka sbiU be
quaOfled ID perform Ok Scnrica, and shin be proporly. .
Ilceeied and otherwise authoriied to do so undier 'ell a^cable
lawa.
72 Unless oth^rwe authorhcd to writing, durlog ihelerm of
this Agreement, and (br a period of six (6) raodtivs afier the
Compktlen Date In block 1.7,-tho ContnObr shall not hire, '
and shall not permit any aubcootrtctor or other penorx firm or
corponUon urith whom it Is e'ogeged to a comMned effort to
perform tho Servica to hire, any person wtm b a Stato
employee or offlcIaL wbo Is mattjiaJly iowohred to the
pmcuruneat, admlnlstrilloo or pcrfonaanec of (Ms

of 4
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AgreoncnL Thbprovidofllh8Jlturvfvetennlnationof<hii
Asrctmcm.
7 J T>t» Oomrutlns OfCcer tpedfied (n block 1S, or bb or
faertwxuor,ihillbc(b«Slite'»rcpruentAdve. lo the event
ofaoytiltpute cooocrrvlfis orthbAsvoncnl.
the Conlnctiag OfOocr*! decision be flnci for the Stotc.

fl. EVSm' OP DEPAULT/TIBMEOIKS.

1.1 Any one or more ofthe AUowIng octs or ombtlou of the
Coatrectur ihiU constkule en event of defruJi hereundo*
CEvouefOe&uh"):
S.).l Mtufo to perf^ the Scrvlcca udiftctoHljrciroD
fcboduh;
8.1.2 ftllure to tubnlt argr report required benuoder; onyor
8.1J bllve to pcrfomi tnjr other covcosot, tenn or ooodilioa
ofthis Agreement.
L2 Upon the oeooitnee ofuy Event of Dtftult, the State

bks any one, or tsoro, or «lt of the fî Uoorlng eettonr
8JLl ghre the Contrseior • wrlttso ootico ipediyini the Event
ofOcftutl end requirfag it to be remedied '^Ihle, In the
ebBoiee of t greater or leeerspedfleadon of thne, thiny (80)

from the ditc of the fldtlcc; and IfthcEvcnt ofDefkult b
.not timely remedied, lemtate Ihb Apecfflcnt, effective two
(2) dqrt after gMng the Contractor notice of lerndnallon;
82^ ghre (be Coetnelor a written notice tpecUying the Even)
of Default Bfid catkrtdlag all paymenb to be rmdc uoda thb
Agrterotnt and ordering that tlM portion ofthe contract p/kc
wMeb would otherwise aocroe to the Cenlnctof during the
period ftom the date of Aicb notice until such time as the Stele
detemdnea that the Cootfector has cumd the Event ofDefruU
shall oever be pald.to.the.Coairtetor:
IJ J at ofTai^rRSi toy otho obUgilkmj the State may owe to
(he GacMctor arQr damages the State lufteis by reason of any
Evcm of Oefirall; end/or
8.2.4 treat the AgrecmeiU as brcacbed and punoc ai^ of iU
remeidies at law or In equhy, or both.

9. DATA/ACCBSS/CONPISBimALITY/
ERSCltVATlON.
9.1 Aj used In ihb Agreement, the word "data" shall mean ill
Infonnsbon and ihlngi developed or obtabed during the
pcrftmiaooe oC Of acqoircd or developed by rcaaon of, thb
Agrectnod, bdudng, but not limited to. ail stupes, reports,
files, bnnol^ nov^ otapA ̂ aita, sound rtcordmga, video
reemdingi, pictorial nprodocdocLi, drawtep, aoalysei.
gnp^ rqrrtsentati.onA computer prograna, computer
prlmbotA ttOieA letter^ memotwda, papert. aad-docamcnis,
aO whetbo finished or unfinbh^.
92 All dus tad properly his been teeelvcd fioffi
(he Stale or purchased with ftudi provided for that porpose
trader thb Apoemed, shall be the property ofthe Sate, and
shall be ranmrcd to Ihe-State upoo dcntsnd or epon
thnninstiea ofthb Agreemetd br any reason.
92 Owfldfntlanty ofdata dball be governed by Nil. RSA
chapter 9I'<A or oshacadstleg lew. Dlstlasereofdau
requbts prior written approval of the State.

Page

10. TERhnNATION. la the event of an early tenolnatlon of
thb Agreement for aay resson other than the'completion ofthe
Services, the Contractor ihail deliver lo IM Cootnetlag
Officer, not blcr.tloo fifteen (15) days afbr the data of
termination, a report OTenninatlGn ReporOdacriblng In
detail airS^lccs pcriformed, end the ccatrtttprice earned, to
and laduding the date of immimUon. Tbc fonn, futjcd
matter, content, and numba ofcopies of the Te^natioo
Report shell be Idcntial to those of aoy Floal ftepon
dcsolbed In the tttschcd OCHIBIT A.

11.CONTBACTOR'8 relation TO THB STATE. In
the perfbmaoce of (his Agmcmeoi the Cooractor b le qH
respects an independent oontrector, and b oehher an agnt nor
en employee of the Stele. fkithertheCbalrscaornorcayoflu
ofQccn, cioployecs, agents or mcmbcn ̂afi have euthei^ to
bind the Stale or receive eny bcoeftts, worixri* compensation
or other cmolumeats provided by the Stale to Its erapbyee..

12 AS$IGNMENT/DBLEOATTON/SUBCON'nUCT8.
The Contnetor shall not ̂ tgn, or othervibe tranter eny
Ifllercst In ihb Agrttmeni without the prior wrineo notleo and ■
conscnt.of(heSieie. None ofthe Senriees shall be

suboontrected by the Contiactor whhoul thc prlor written
notice and ooQSCBi of the State.

U. INDEMNinCATION. The Contrtetbr shsl] dcftn^
IndcDuUiy and hold harmless (he Staler its otllons and
cnqiloyees, fiom and against any end all losses suffered by (he-
State; Its offtccrs end employeu, and any and all ctalms,.
UablllUes or penalties anert^ a^nct the Sute, Its offim
and enpli^teea, by or on behelfof any person, en secounl of,
based or resulting froov orbing out of (or which may bo
chimed to arise out oQ the acts or oml^oru of (ha
Comrector. Kptvifihslending the foregoliQ, nothing herdn
contalood shall be.dcemed to eoRStltute a wdvcr of the
sovereign Imnmolty of ihe Slata, which immusl^ b hereby ■
reserved to tlk Slate. Thb oovcnaol in pan^raph I) shall
surrive the cermlrtation of this AgreemenL

14. INSURANCE.
|4.I Tba Cmvtraetor shaQ, at Its sole expense, oblsin and
malntalo la Ibree, and shall require any aabeontraetor or
assignee to obtain end malntalo In forcA the foltowlng
Insursnea:

14.1.1 eottprchenilve general BaWfiQr bttarance against ell
ctotms ofbodily Inlury, death or property dimagA In sanunts
of oot ka than $ I lOOOioOQper ocGurrenoc end SSjboOjOOO
as^B3te;aad
14.tJtpe^eauseoflouooverigc form covering all
property subject to subpara^ph 92 hernia, b an trrwunt oot
less than 80% ofthe wtole repboeacnt value eftha propofty.
142 The polidcs dcserfbcd bi Mbpangraph 14.1 hci^ shhil
be on policy forms and eadortecDaus approved fbr ose la the
Slate ofNew Hsnpdilra by the NJL Dtpiriructd of
Insurance, and issued by lasurcn lloorued In the State ofNew
Hanpshlfo.

3of4 , - .
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14 J TYio Contnctpr stall furnish to the Conuutins Officer
McAiiQ^ In btock 1.9, or his or her sueousor. t ccrUfleBte(s)
oftasaxBACe fbr ill toAnnoe required under (his AgrtemenL
Gontfttipr shall also ftirBlsh to the OontrsellnK Offleer

.  idenlffied la block 1.9. or his or her sueousor, oertiriate(s) of
insunnce (br all renewel(s) oftosuranec required under tfais
Afrecotent is lalcr ihio iM^y OO) (by prior to the explntlon
dsteoffsch ofttie Insumnccpoltcta. Ihe eertllicaie(f) of
losureaM eod eoy rtnewab thereof shaO be iitaehed oad ore
btoorponsedherelnbyrererefKe. E«ehcer(]ficile(i)of
Icounace shall eontib a citose requtilt^ (he luorer to
provide (he ContrKUnp Officer Ueatlbed la block 1.9, or his
or her lueeessor, no leu than (Nrty (30) day prior written
noiioe of canccDsUon or ootlificallon of (he poUcy.

IS. WORKERS' OOUPENSATION.
15.1 By fllsrUnfl this aBreaeoii, the ConttectoV qrees,
certlfie* end waneztts thai the COnlnctor Is In GDiepliaoca vriih
or Gcnpl from, the requirement of NK RSA chapter Ut'A
("Ifertiri'CogiptfualM').
JSJ To dte odcat (be Contra^ U subjea to (he
requlR3Bcnts ofXii. RSA chi^(cr 281 -A, Contnetor aha]]
malfltain, and require any nbooRMctor or to teeure
end maiaislo, papmox of Workers' OentpcaaMlon In
eonncciton wbb oelMtles utblch tic person praposto to
ondertakepanuinttothis ApeemcnL Contractor ihafl
finish the ConmcUng Officer tdcatllled In bbek 1.9, br hb
Or her otcceuor. proof of Worken* CompeAution la the
maantr described to NJ1. RSA chapter 2B1-A and aoy
applkabie rci«Md(s} tbereo( which ihali be attaehed aad ore
tooorponted herein ̂  refcrcece. The State shall not be
responsible tor paymesf of any Wofken* Cofppensah'ofl
•pr^umi or fbr any otbv dalm or benefU br Contractor, or
any aubqoctractor or employee ofCooinetor, which might
eriM under applicable Scale ofNew Hon^shlre Workers'
' Coppcnsailon bws in cooooetlon with the perfonniaeB of (he
Scrvico under (Ms-Agrecnent

Id. WAIVER O.PBREACR No bltorc by the Stale to
cnbree any provbloos hereof oftor any Event of Dcbulishoa
be deemed a waiver of ha rlghu with regard to thkt Event of
Ocboh, or any aubsequeru Event ofOefiult. No eaprea
bHura to cftforoe any Event of Default fhall be deemed a
waiver ofthe right of the State to cafbrce ach end all oftbe
pro^rialora hereofupon any Airfher or other Everit of Dc&ult
on the port of the Contractor.

IT. NOTICE. Arqr notloe by a party hereto to the other parly
dull be deemed to have been duly delivered or glVen at the
dme ofmaOtos by certified mall, postage prepaid to a United
SUla Pon Office addressed to the parties at the addrcues
given to btodcj IJ and 1.4, herein..

IE AMENOMBKT. This Agreement may be areendjed,
waived or ditcharied only by en Imtiumenl in writtogslgAod
by the paAks her^ end only after ifffovnl of such
amcndrauH, waiver or dlaAarge by the Govotar and
EaeeuUve CboncU ofthe Slate of New Hampshire unless no

such Dppnovai U required under the elrcunutanees pursvont to
State hw, luk or pollgr.

19. CONSTRUCTION OP ACRSEMBNT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed In acoordxoce with the
laws of the State ofNe.w Hampshire, b/kI b btodtng upon end
tmirei to the benefit of the parties and their re^ective
aueecson and asigns. The vmrdtog used to thti Afireeraent
is the wordtog chosen by the parties to eapRSS thcrr in^m?fl
Irteni, and no rule of coastrucilon shall be applied against or
to fiivor'ofany party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not totcrto to
benefit toy third pnnla and this Agrwntnt ahall not be
construed to confer any auch benefit,

'31. HBADINCS. The headings Ihroagbout the Agyeereent
ve for reference purpose only, and (he words contained
thereto ̂ 11 to no way be held to expbto^ modify, ampniy or
aid in the Interprciattoi^ constiucikm or meaning of tte
provlsioftS of (Ms Agrement

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Addliton&l provbtons act
forth In the attached EXHIBIT C arc ineorpontcd hereto by
rtfercoce.

12. SEVfiRADILITV. IniheevcalanyofiheprovbioQsef
this Agreement are held bye colun ofcompetes! jurbdklion to
be oontraiy u arty itste or federal tow, the rcmiintog
provisions ofthii Agreement will ren^n to full force aad
elTeei.'

24 ENTIRE AGRCBMBNT. This Agreeoeok which may ^
be executtd'to a ntirob9ofeounterparta.cnd)Ofwtdch shall
be deemed an oHglna]. constitutes the entire Agieemeni and
undmtandlng between the parties, and supcreeda aO prior
Agreements and undentsndtogs relating hereto.

Page 4 of4
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Date wme



Now Httnpohire Oopaitment of Heallh and Human ServUoa
SuSntanco Use Oisordar Troatment and Rocovory Support Servteaa

ExtilbltA

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed dascrtptron of the language ssstotance

services they wID provide to persons with limited. EriglJsh proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to Uwlr programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
coritroct effective date.

1Z The Contractor agrees thai, to the extent future teglslaOve adioa by the New
Hampshire Genera) Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
(he Services described herein, the. State Agency has the r^hl to modify Service
pnortties and expenditure requirements urtder this Agreement ao as to achieve
compRaxe therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this Contract, the Department has Identtfled the Contractor as a
Subrectplent In eccordanoe with the provblons of 2 CFR 200 et eeq.

1.4. The Contractor wUI provide Sutntence Use Disordef Treatment and Recovery
\  Support Services to any eiiglble client, regardless of where the dlent lives or works

in New Hampshire.

1.5. The Corrtr&ctor wW provide resWentla) sendees in fedWIcs located In FranUIn and
Manchester Nev/ Hampshire.'

2. Scope of Services
• 2.1. Covered Populations

2.1.1. The Contrsctor wQI provide services to elig&le indlvfduale whov
j  • t •

2.1.1.1 Are age 12 or oider or under age 12. wtth required consent
from a parent or legal guardian to receive treatment, artd

-  2.1.1Z Have Inoome below 400% Federal Poverty Level, end

2.1.1.3. Are residents of New Hampshire or homelese In New
Hampshire, and

2.11.4. ' Are determined positive for substance use disordar.

22. ReslllencyandRecoveryOrtentedSystemsofCare

2.2.1 The Contractor must provide eubetanoe use disorder treatment services
that fiupport' the Re^lency ar^ Recovery Ortented Systems of Cere
(RROSC) by operationallzing the Continuum of Care Model
(hflpyAwww.dhhs.nh.Bflv/dcbc8/bdas/confinuum-ofcare.htm),

222. RROSC supports person-centered er)d setf-dlrected approaches to care
that buQd on the strengths and resilience of Indlvlduels. famines and
oommunBles to take r^onstblEty for their sustained health. weOness and

MincfaoBct Ateghaflun (UMtfatfon CCntef ErtUA 'Contndv UOae.-gT'
nF/vaiSBQASm-euBSTin pbssiotia 0,^ Mi/is



New HompshUo Dspartreefit of Kaafth and Human Sorvices
Substsneo Uea Ofsorder Treatmont and Rooovory 6gpport Services

ExhIfaUA

recovery from alcohol and drug problems. At a mir^mum; the Contractor
must

2.2.2.1. Inform (he Integrated Dellvery hl8tvM)r1((s) (IDNs) of services
available In order b aDgn this work with ION projects that may
be filnillar or Impact the same populations.

2.2.2.2. Inform ttie Regional Public Heaib Networks (RPHN) of
servtoes avaDable In order to align (hb work wtth other RPHN

projects that may be stmOer or Impact the same populations.

2^.2.3. Coordinate dlent services wHh other commuriliy service
provtdere Involved in the client's care and the cDents support
network i

2.2J2.4. Coordinate client servldes with the Department's Regional
Access Point contractor (RAP) jhat provides eervloes

■  including, but not Qmfted to:

22.2.4.1. Ensuring timely admiselon of clients to services
\  .

2.22.4.2. 'Referring clients- to RAP services when the
. Contractor, cannot admit a cBent for aervtoes

within fcrty^lght (46) hours

2L22.4.3. Referring cSents to RAP servtm at the time of

discharge when a dlmt fa In need of RAP
,  services, and

22.Z5. Be sensitive and relevant to the diversity of the. dlents being
served.

2.2.2.6. Be trauma Informed: Le. designed to acknowledge, the Impect
of violence and trauma on people's.lives end the Importance
of addressing treuma In treatment

23. Substance Use Disorder Treatment Services
(  ̂ •

2.3.1. The Contractor mud provide one or more of the foQowtng substance use

disorder treatment services:

23.1.1. individual Outpatient Treatn^ as defined as American
Sodety of Addiction Medtdne (ASAM) Crfterla. Level 1.
Outpatient Treatmenf services assist sn indtvtdua) to achieve
treatment objectives through the exploration of substance use
disorders erx) their ramfficaQons. Indudiilg an exardnaUon of
attiludes and feeltngs, and oonstderatton of alternative
solutions and decision making wQh regard to aicohol and
other drug related problems.

Mxnctosltf AteoMIlfflncriabSteOanCeTtDr UtMA OarOwtorMUila

RFMoiseoAfrovaussTor ptaiawM r^w wvis



Now Hampshire Ospartmeni of Hoatth and Human 6trvle«s
Substance Uae Dleerdar Troatment and Roeovory Support Services

2.3.1.2.

2.3.1.3.

2.3.1.4.

EkhibUA

Group Oulpaltem Treatman! as defined as ASAM Crflerta,
Level 1. Outpdlent Treaiment services ossfsl a Qroup of
bidMduale to achlave treatment ob^ecthres throuflh the
exploration of substance use ' disorders and - thair
ramifications, Including an examination of attitudes ar\d
feeflngs, artd constderation of alternative solutions end
decision making with regard to alcohol and other drug related
problems.

Intensive Outpatient Treatment'as defined as ASAM Crtteria,
Level 2.1. Intcnjlyo Outpatient Treatment services provide
Intensive end slructiired Indiyfdual and group aicoho) and/or
other drug treatrr^t services and ac^es that are provided
accbrdtng to an IndivlduaQzed treatment plan that includes a
range of outpatient treatment services arKJ other ancillary

• alcohol and/or othv drug services. Servfoes for adults are
' provided at least 6 hours a week. Services for edolesoenta
are prmdded at least 6 lioum a week.

. Partial HospltaDzatlon as defmed as ASAM Crfterfa, Level 2.S.
Partial Hospltabatfon .services provide Intensive and
structured Individual and group etcohoJ end/or other drug
treatment services and activities to tndhrtduals with substance
use arxf moderate to severe co^ccurrlng mental health
disorders. Including both behawlorBl l«a!th and medication
management (es approprfata) eervfoes to address both
disorders. PerllaJ KospllaQxatlon Is provided to clients for at.
least 20 hours per week according to. en fndivtduenzed
treatment plan thai IrKludes a-rar)ge of outpstjent treatment
services and other ancillary alcohol and/or other dnrg
services.

2.3.1.5.

Z4.

High-Intensity Residential Treatment for Adults as defined as
ASAM Critarla, Level 3.5. This service provides residential
sutrstance ues disorder treatment designed to
IndMduats who require a more tntensfve level of service In a
structured setting.

Resideniial WUhdrewd Managem^ seArlcea as defined as
, ASAM Criteria, LeWl 3.7-WM a resideniial servtoe.
Withdrawal Management servtoes provide a combination of
clinical and/or medlcai servtoes utUized to statnOza the cCent
whDe they are undeigoli^g wlthdrewaL

Recovery Support Services

Z3.1.6.

MMchestBT Aloeflfan rtoMMMn Ccfflsr

9'>V<91Se&AMt.aU8aTD7

EtfHA

PBStSoTM

C«RtntarlnSiIi
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Now Hempshlro DcrpaitAent of Heolth and Human Safvlcee
Subetsneo Use Disorder Treatment eiuf Recovery Quppert Sorvfcee

Exhibit A

2.4.1. Upon spprova) of the Department, the Contractor may provide recovery
eupport servlcefl that wDI remove banlera to a cOent'e partldpalton In
treatment or recovery, or reduce or renwe threats to an tndMdual
m^ntalnlng partlctpatlon In treatment and/or recovery.

2.4.2. • The Contrador may provide recovery support services only In coondlnatlon
wfth providing et least one of the servtoes In Section 2.3.1.1 through
2.3.1.6 to e client. OS foBows;

2.4.2.1. Intensive Case Management

2.4.2.1.1. The Contractor may provide. Ind/vtduB) or group
Intensive Case Management hi aocordande
with SAMHSA TIP 27: Comprehensive Case
.Msnagement for Substance Abuse Treatment

(https://8tore.68mhsagov/product/inP-27-
Comprehensive-CasfrWanagement-for-
Substance'Abuse-Tre8tment/SMA1S-4215}
and wh!eh exceed the minimum case

.  ' management requirements for tlie ASAM
level of care.

2.4.2:12. The Contractor will provide Intensive Case
Management by a;

2.42.1.2.1. Certified Recovery Support
Worhef (CRSW) under the
supervision of a Licensed
Counselor or

2.4.Z12.2. A Certified Recovery Support
WOriter (CRSW) under the

aupervfslon of a Licensed
Supervisor or

2.42.12.3. Uoensed Counselor

2.S. Enrolling CQents for Seryfoes

2.5.1. The Cdnt/Bctor will determine eOglblBty for services In eooordanoe with-
Sedion 2.1ebovo and with Sections 2.62 through 2.6.4 below:

2.52. The Corttraetor must oomplete intake screenirtgs as foOows:

2.5.2.1. Have direct contact (face to face cornmunfcation by meeting
In person, or etactronlcally, or by telephone oortvefBallon) wfth
an Ir>dlvtdu8l (delink as anyone or a provlder) within two (2)
business days from the date Ilia! IndMpual'contacts the

' UtwhtttoAJDOhoQiniRelamrtOTCtrttf ElMmA CoitffidorMaill.

rvAeoisaoASci-euasTo? Pt8»4er2« 0,^ sQiMa



Nqw Nvnpshlrs Oepartmont of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Trsstmont and Rocovory Support Services

EihlbHA

Contractor for Subetanoe Use Oisforder Treabnertt and
Recovery Support tervlces.

2.S^2. Comptete an fniOa) Intake Screening within two (2) business
days from Ihe date of the first direct contact wHh the
Individual, using Ihe eUgiblllty module In Web (nfomiBtlon
technology System (WITS) to determine probability of bdng
eligible for aervtces under this contract and for probabmiy of
' having a substance use disorder.

2.5.2.3. Assess dIerttsMnoome prior to admission using the WITS fee
determinallon model and

2.5ZX1. Assure that cttents' tncpme trtformafion Is

updated as needeid over the coyrse of
treatment by asking clients about ̂  dianges
In tnoome no less. frequently .thw every 4
weeks.

2.S.3. The Contractor shaU comptete an ASAM Level of Care Assessment for at)
eervlces in Sections 13.1.1 through 22A.6 wfthln two (2) days of the Inlttal
Intake Screening In Sectfon 2.5.2 abovd using the AS! Ute moduta. In VWb
Information Technology ̂ stem (WTTS) or other method approved by the
Department when IhO Individual ts determined probable of being eligible for
eervtces.

2.5.3.1. The Cdntrar^ shall make available to the Department upon
request the data from the ASAM Level of Cere Assessment

In.Section 2.5.3 In a format approved by the Department.

Z3.4. The Contractor, shall, for aD services provided, Include a method to obtain
cllnlcai evaluations that (ndude 5 diagnostic 'Information and a
recommendation for a level of care based on Ihe ASAM Crfterta. published
In October. 2013. The Contractor must completa e clinlca) evaluation, fbr

■ each client:

2.5.4.1. Pftor to admission as a pert of Interim sendees or wfthln 3

business days following admission.

2.5.4.2. Durirtg treatment only when detarmlned by a Ucansed
Couraetor.

2.5.5. Tha Contractor must use the cUnlca) evaluations completed by a LIcartsad
Counsetor from a referring agency.

2.8S. The Contractor will either cPmplete cDnlcal evaluations In Section 2.5.4
above before adrhlsston fi£ Level of Care Assassmentfi In Secttori 2.5.3
above before admission along wHh e clinical evaluatfon In. SecOcn 2.6.4
above after admission.

MaxftitAAiBBttcttmRtritmuiQnCM^ BMflA CentradarMUft.
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New Hampshire Department or Health end Human Sorvlcee
Suhetenee Use Disorder Troatmcm end Recovery Support Sarvlceo

ExhiUt A

2J.7. The Contractor ahal) provide ella/We clients the substanoe use disorder
treatment services In. Section 2.3 determined by the dJents clinical

.  evaluatibn In Section 2^.4 unless:

2.67.1. The cfient chases to receive e service with a lower ASAM
Level of Cere: or

2.5.7.2. The service with the needed ASAM level of care is
unatellabte at the time the level of care Is dctennln^ In
Section 2.5.4, In which case the ctent may chose:
2.5.77,1. A service whh 8 lower ASAM Level of Care;

.  2.57.2.2. A service with the riexi ovaflablB higher ASWyi
■Level of Care;

2.5.77.3. Be placed on the waitTtst until their service with
\  the assessed ASAM level of care becomes

available as In Section 2.5.4; or
2.S.77A. Be referred to another agency in the dlenre

service area that provides the service with the
. needed ASAM Level of Care.

2.5.8. . The Contractor shall enroll eOglble cOents for eervlces In order of the
priority described below:
2.5.B.1. Pregnant women and women with dependent children, even if

the children are not In their custody, as long as parental rtghte
have rut t)een terminated, including the -provtsion of Interim
services wHhln the required 48 hour t^ (tame. If the
Cofrtractor Is unable to' admit a pregnant woman for the
needed level of care within 24 hours, the Contractor ^aO:

2.5.8.1.1. Contact the Regional Access Point service
provider In the dlenfe area to connect the diem
with substance use disordef treatment services.

2.6.8.17. Assist the pregnant woman with WenSfyirig
alternative providers jsnd vdth eooesstng
servloes with these providers. This asshtanoe
must Indudfl actively reaching out to Identify
provldere on the behalf of the cllenl.

2.5.8.1.3. Provide Intertm servloes unlD the epproprtate
1^1 of care beoomee available at either the
Contractor agency or an attematlve provider^
Interim servloes shall Indude:

Windita%Alc8Sflfl«nRilt<fetBtSonCer^ EMUA
aFA«HSa0A&ei«eU8STl]7 Pa9oecf24 Otta W1/18



New Hampshire Department of Health end Human 8orvices
Substance Uao Olsordor Treatment and Rocovory Support Sorvlcea

EjtfUbUA

2.5.8.13.1.- At least one 60 minute hdtvlduat
or group outpatient session per

week;

2.5.8.1.3.2. Recovery, aupport seMoee es
needed by the cQent;

2.6.8.1.3.3. DaDy cells to (he client to assess
and rttpond to any emergent

'  . needs.

2.6.83. IrtdivtdLQls who have been administered nalovone to roverse
(he effects of en opiold overdose either In the 14 days prior to
screening or In the period between screening and adndsslon
to the program.

Z5.8.3. (rtdlviduals v^th a history of Injection drug use Endudtng the
provision of Interim sovicesv^n 14 days. . .

2.5.8.4. Individuals with substance use and co-occurring mental
health disorders.

2.5.8.B: Individuals With Optold Use Olsordefs.

2.6.8.6. Veterans with substance use disorders

< 2.6.8.7. Individuals with substance use disorders who are Involved
with the crirrdnal Justice and/or chQd protection system.

2.6.8.8. Individuals who require priortly adm^ton at the request of
the Department.

2.5.B. The Comractor rhust obtain consent In aocxirdanoe with 42 CFR Fferi 2 fox
treatment from the cBent prior to receiving services for Individuals whoso
age Is 12 yeare arxf older.

2.6.10. The ContTector must obtain consent In oocordance with 42 CFR Part 2 for
treatmerrt from the parent or legal guardian when the dient b under the
age of twelve (12) prior to reoehfing services.

Z6.11. The Contractor must Include In the opnsenl forms bnguage for cli^
.  consent to share (nfermation with other soda! servtoe agendas Involved In
(he cflenfe care. Including but not limited to:

2.6.11.1. The Deparimenfs Division of Children, Youth end Families
(DCYF)

2,6.11-2. , Probation and parote

2.6.12. The Contractor shall rwl prohibit clients from reoeh/tng services under this
oontrad «4)en a client does not consent to information sharing (n Section
2.6.11 above.

MutotasteMooliolWnftolia&aaiOoflCater EMESA
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2^.13. The Contractor shall noUiy the cflents whose consent to Information

sharing In Section 2.5.11 above thai they have the ability to fesdnd the
corwent si any time without any Impact on servteea provided under this
contract.

2.6.14. The Contractor shall not deny servtoes to en adolescent due to:

2.5.14.1. Theparenfs InabBlly and/or unwillingness to pay the fee;

2.5.142. , The adolescent's deciaion to receive confidential servtoes
pursuant to RSA 318-8:12-6.

-  2.S.1& The Contractor must provide services to eOgibie clients who:

2.5.15.1.. Receive Medlcalion Assisled Treatment scrvtaee from other
providers such as a client's primary care provider;

2.5.15.2. Kave oo-oocurrlng mentt health disorders; and/or

2.6.15.5. Are on metotlons. and are taking, those medteatipns as
prescribed regardless of the das.s of.medlcBJton.

2.5.16. The Contractor must provide substance use disorder treatment services
separately for adolescent and adults, unless otherwise approved by the
Department The Corrtracibf agrees that adolescents and edutls do not
share the same residency space, however, the oommun'al paro euch as
kitchens, group rooms, and recreation may be shared but at separate

■  times.-

. ̂ 6. Waitlists

2.6.1. The Contractor will maintain a waftOst for bH clients and aU substance use
dlsofdef treatment servfoes tnchidlng the .ellgble cOents being served
under Ihb contract and dienis being served under another payer source.

2.62. The Contractor wlil,track the waft time for the ctente to receive seMces.
from the date of (nltiel contact In Section 2.&2,1 above to the data clients
ibst receiy^ subst^ce use disorder treatment servldes in Sections 2.3
and 2.4 above, other than Evaluation En Section 25.4

2.8.3. The Contractor will report to the Department monthly;

26.3.1. ■ Tbd average vral! tbne for aJ) cttents. by the type of servtoe
and payer source for aO the servtoes.

26.3.2 The average waft time for priority cCents tn Section 2.5.8
above by the type of service end payer source for the

. servtoes.

2.7. Asststanca with EnrolDngtn Insurance ffrograms

UvK»iOtaAlBOtaIIU)R«AttfUOo EitfMA
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Exhibit A

2.7.1. The Conlfadof must esslsl cflenis and/or their parenls or legal fluardians,
who are unable to secure financial resources necessary for Inftial entry Into
the progrem, wtlh obtaining other potential sources for payment such as;
2.7.1.1. Enrollment In public or prtvale insurance, Includino but rwl

limited to New Hampshire Medlcald programs within fourteen
(14) days after Intake.

2ii.. Service DcDvoryAcUvilles and Requirement#

2.6.1. the Contractor shall assess all clients for risk of ealHwrm-ai all phases of
treatment, such as at InlUal.contact during sweenlng, Intake, admission,

.  . dh-gotng treatment services and at discharge.

2.6^ The Contractor shall assess all cOents for wllhdrswal risk based on ASAM
(20^3) atarrdards at all phases of treatment, such as pt ir\itia) contact,

.  ̂urfng screfenlng, -Irdake. edmisskm, cn-gping treatment services end
stabilize Bli cfients based on ASAf\4 (2013) guidance and shalL
2.8.2.1. ProvWe stabitlzaUon sendees .when.a cOenTe leycd of risk

indicates a servloe with en ASAM tevel of Cere that can bb.
provided under O^-Contrad; tf e.cfient's risk fevel Indicates a
servftt with an ASAM Level of Care that can be provided
under "this conlrect then the Contrector shall Integrate
withdrawal management Into the cOenTa treatment plan and
provide on^goin^ assessment of withdrawal risk to ensure that

-  wfthdrawal (s,managed safely.

2322, Refer dlents to a facfllty where the services can be provided
when a cttenrs risk fndlcatas e service with en ASAM Level of
Care thai is higher than can be provided under this Contract;
Coordinate \Mih the writhdrawal management- services
provider to admit the client to an appropriate service once the
client's v^drewal risk has reached a level (hat can be
provided under-thb pontmcL and

2.8.3. The Contractor must complete Indlvlduallied treaimeni plans for ell clients
based on dlnlcal evaluaiton data within three (3) days of the clinical
evaiuation (In Section Z6.4 above), that address problems In aO ASAM
(2013) domains v^rWch lustlffed the cOent's adrntnance to a given level of
care, that ere In aocordanoe the requbements In Exhibit A-1 end that:

' 2,8.3.1. Include in afl IndMduarized treatmeni plan goals, ebjedives,
artd Interventions written in tenns that are:

2.8.3.1.1. specific, (ctea/ty defining what win be done)

2.8.3.1.2. measurable (including dear crfteria for progress
end completion)

MxncnettvAicaMtunRtntbtl&BSBoCctef EiKMA
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2.6:3.1.3. attainable (wtthln the. (ndMduaTs ability to
achieve)

2.8.3.1.4. realistic (Ibe reaources are avaOabto to the
Individual), and

2.6.3.1.5. timely <thls Is something that needs to be done
end there b a stated time frame for completion
that Is reasonable).

2.8,3JL Include the cSent's Involvement In Identlfylrtg, developing, and
prbrtlizlnQ goats, objecthres. and Interventions. _

2.8.3.3. Are update based on any changes in any ArnerfcanSodety of
AddJdlion Medldne Chterla (ASAM) domain and no (ess
frequently than every 4 aesstons or every 4 yveeks. wWchover
Is less freqtient. Treatment plan Updates rhuch Ihdude:

2.8.3.3.1. DocumentaOon of the degree to wHch the cQenl
b meetino treatmenlplan goals'and objectives;

■ - 2.8.3.3.2. Modification of earfsitng goals or addition of riew
; gpab based on changes In the cOents

functioning relative to ASAM domains and
tmtment goab and objectives.

16.3.3.3. The counselor's assessment of whether or not
the clleni needs lb move to a different tevel of
care based on changes In functJontng tn any ■
•ASAM domain and documentaUon of the

reasons for thb assessment

23.3.3.4. The signature of the cDent arkj (he counselor

. agreeing to the updated treatment pbin. or If
applicable, docurhentation of the cOenre refusal
to slgn.the treatment plan,

2.8.3.4. Track the cnanfs pr^ress retattve to (he specific goab,
objedives, andtnterveniions tn fte cCenfe treatment plan by
completing encounter notes In WITS.

18.4.- The Contrectsr'shail refer dients to and coordinate a dienfe' care wflh
other provtden.

18.4.1. The Oontractor shall obtain .In advance' If appropriate,
con^ts (rom the dient. Including 42 CFR Part 2 consent If
sppOcable, and b oompQance wllh state, federa) laws and
state.and federal rules, Indudlng but not GmltBd to:

y<oc&«arAiciaBbfliRitwtOB9BnCw<Br eama '
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2.8.4.1.1. Prfmary care provider and If the cTfcnt does rtol
.  have a primary care pfovidef. the Contredor..;^'^

win make an appropriate referral to one end
ooonlinate care wHh that provtder if appropriate

f  consents from the cUefit, Including 42 CFR Port
2 consent, tf applicable, are obtal;>ed In
ed\»nce In compliance with state, federal laws

end atflto arid federal rules.

2.8.4.1.2. . Behavioral health care provider when serving
dientfl^with co>oeoujring substance use and
mental health disorders, and If (he cDant does
not have a menial health care provUer, then the
Conlrector wU) make an appropriate referrBl to
one. and coordinate care wBh that provider ff '
epproprlate oonaents from theVcQcnIr Indudfng.
42 CFR Part 2 consent, If appllcatile. are
obtained In advance (n compliance with state,
federal laws and state end federal rules.

2.6.4.1.3. fdedlcatlon assisted treatmertl provider.

2.0.4.1.4. Peer recovery sopporl provider, ar\d If the cflent
V  does not have a peer recovery support

provider, the Contraclof will make an

epproprlate referral to one and coordinate care
- wllh that provider If appropriate coRserrts from
the cllertt. Including 42 CFR Part 2 consenf If
eppOcable, are obtained In advance In
compBanoa whh etste, federal laws and state
and federal rules.

2.8.4.1.5. Coordinate with tocal. recovery oommurdty
organizations (where'available) to brtr^ peer
recovery support prevlders' imo the treatment
setting, to meet wtlh cDents to describe
avaflable sendees and to engage clients tn peer
recovery .support services as a^ittcable.

2.6.4,1,8. Coordinate with case management servloes
offered by ihe dienfs managed care
organtzatidn or third party insurance. If
appllcabte. tf appropriate consents from (he
client, Including 42 CFR Part 2 consent, tf
aniQcabfe, ere obtained In advance In

MiiuruilM AtetiBtia fUhaUBtfon duttr EtfASA ■
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oompupnoe wllh state, fedem! taws and stale
and federal rules.

2.6.4.1.7. Coordinate with other eocfal service egertcles
engaged wtth ttte client, tnctuding but nca Eri^
to the pepartmenrs OMslon of Children. Youth
and Families (DCVF). probattonyparote, as
eppOcabte and ellowabie v^h consent provided

(  pursuant to 42 CFR Part i

.  2.a.4JI. The Contrector must dearly document In the cflenrs file If the
cCent refuses eny of the referrets or care coordlnatbn In
Section ̂ .6.4 above.

2.8.9. ' The Contrector must domplete continuing care, trertsfer, and discharge
plans for efl Servtoes In Section 2.3 that address ell ASAM (2013)
domains, thd are In accordence with the requirements In E)dilbit A-1 and
that

2.6.5.1. Inctude the process of transfeddbGharge planning at the time
of the client's Intake to the program.

2.6.5.2. Include et teast one (1) of the three (3) crfteria fior continuing
sentces when eddressing conUnulng care as follows:

2.6.5.2.1. Continuing Service 'Priterla A: the patient is
making progress, but has not yet achieved the
goals artlcutated In the IndMduatlzed treatment

ptah. Continued treatment at the present level
of care ts assessed as necasary to permit (he
.petterrt to conUnue to work toward his or her

irMtmenl goab; or

2.8.5.2JL - Ccrrtlnuing Senrlce Crfterfe B; The pat/ent Is not
yet making progress.' but has the capacity to
resolve Ms or her problems. HWshe Is acb'vety
wprtdng toward the goals articulated In the

Individualized treatmerrt plan. Continued
treatment at the present level of care ts

assessed as necessary to permit the patient to
continue to worli toward hlafher treatment
goela; and/or

2.6.5.2.3. Continuing Service. Crftsrta C: New problems
have been Identified that are appro^tely
treated .at the present tave) of.care. The new
problem or priority requires services, the
ffequency end Intensity of which can only safely

MmtmtirAlubflaimfMTtUBsSonCcntv 6MMA '
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be delivered by continued stay !n the cuirenl
level of- care. The level of care which the
patient Is receiving treatment Is therefore the

;  • (east tntenaJvfi tevet ot which the paUenfa
problems can be addressed effectively

2.8.5.3. Include at least one (1) of the four (4) criteria for
transferfdlscharge, when eddresslr^ transfer/discharge thai'
bictuda-

2.8^.3.1. ' Transfer/Discharge Crtterta A; The Patient has
achieved the goab articulated In the
IndMduaDzed treatment plan, thus resolving the
problem(8] that Justified edmissfon to the
preserit level of care. Continuing the chronic
disease management of the patlenfe condition
at a less Intensive level of care Is Indicated; or

2.8.5.3.2. transfer/Discharge Crtierte B: The patient has
been unable to resolve the problemfs) that

'  -Justldfid the admission to the present tevel of
care, despite amendments to the treatment
plan. The patient b determined to have
achieved the maximum possible benefit ffom
engagement In services et the current level of
care. Treatment at another level of care (more,
or leas Intensive) In the sarrie type of servtces,
or dbCharge from treatment b therefbm
' [ndlc8ted;cf

2.8.5.3.3. TransferfDlscharge Crtterta C; The pattent has
demonstrated a bcfc of capadfy due. to
dbgnostic or co-occurring conditions that limit'
hb or her abDrty to resolve hb or her
pmbIem(B). Treatment at a quaHtafively
different level of care or type of service, or
discharge from treatment, b therefore Indicated;^
Of

2.8.5.3.4. Trensfer/Dlscharge Criteria D: The patient has
er^edenoed an tntenslftcation of hb or her
problemfs), .or has developed a new
problemfs). and. can be treated effectlvefy at e
more intensive level of cere.

flFA«lMO*5O1.SUBaT07 Pigi»el24 MI/IS
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2.8.5.4. Indudo' clear documentation that explains why continued
servtces/lransfer/ or discharge Is necessary for Reooveiv
^pport Services.

2.0.0. The Contractor shall detiver bB services tn this Agreement using evidence
based practices as demonstrated by. mpeting one of (he following crtterta;

2.8.6.1. The service shall bo Inctuded as en. evidence-based mental
heetth end substance abuse Interventton on the SAMHSA

Evidence-Based Practices Resource Center
https://www.samha8.gov/ebp-resource-cenler

2.8.6.2. The services shall be published In a peer-reviewed journal
and found to have positive effects; or

2.8.6.8. The substance use disorder treatment aervtoe provider ahaO
be able to document the services' effectiveness based.on the
following;

2.0.6.3.1. Tte service Is based, on a theoretical
perspective (hat has validated research; or

2.8.6.3.2. 2. The aervtoe Is supported by a documented
body of knowledge generated from simitar or
related servioea that Indicate effectiveness.

2.6.7. The Contractor shall deliver servfoea tn this Ccntracl tn accordance with:

2.8.7.1. The ASAM CrBerta (2013). The A^ Crtterta (20.13) can be
purchased online through the ASAM wbslte st;'

httpi/Avww.esamcrltertaorg/

2.8.7.2. The Substance Abuse Mental Health Services Adrrtirtistrotion
(SAMHSA) Treatment Improvement .Protocols (TlPs)
BvaHable .a! httpi^tore.samh8a.Bov/1i8t/8eite6?nameaT(P-
Sertes-Treatment-lmprovemcnl-Protocols.TjPS-

2.8.7.3. The SAMHSA Technical Asalslanc© Publications (TAPs)
available at

http://8tore.samh8a.90v/list/sefles7name3TechnIcal-
. As8lstance-Publlcations-T/\PB-&pa8eNumberBi

2.8.7.4. The Requtrements In Exhibit A-1.

2.8. COent Education

2.9.1. The Contractor shaD offer to all eBglble cflents receiving saxvlcM under this
contract, IndMdual or group education on prevention.- treatment end
nature of: . ' ' .

2.9.1.1. Hepatitis CVinu.(HCV)

MncnMtoAtaMuDRihrtffidlDRCtntef GMWA CwnOQ/traut.
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2.9.1^ Human Immunodeftelartcy Virus (HIV)

2.9,1.3." Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD)

2.9.1:4. Tobacco Education Toots that Include:

Z9.1.4.1. Aseea clients for motivation in stopping the use
' of tobacco products:

2.9.1.4Z. Offer resources such as but not Qmited to the

Departmenfe Tobacco Prevention & Control
Program (TPCP) and the certified .tobacco
cessation counselors available through the
QuitUne: and

2.9.14.3. Shell not use tobacco use, In and of Qself, as
grounds for discharging clients from services

being provided under thb contract.
.  2.10. Tobacco Free EnvlrDniTwnt

2.10,1. The Contractor must ensure a tobacco^ee anvtronment by havtng policies
and procedures (hat at a minimum:

2.10.1.1. Indude the smoking of eny tobacco product, the use of oral
tobacco products or "apir tobacco, and the use of electronic

.  dei^s;

2.10.1.2. Apply to employees, clients and emptoyee or cHent vlBitore;

2.10.1.3. Prehlbii the use of tobacco products within the Contractor's
(acIUUes at any time.

2.10.1.4. Prohlbll the use of tobacco In any Contractor owned vehicle.

Z10.1.S. Include wtiether ornot use of tobacco products is pfohl^ed
outside of the tedOty on (he grounds.

' Z10.i.6. Indude the following }f use of tobacco products Is allowed
outside of the fadlity on the grourwls:

2.10.1.6.1. A designated smoking Brea(8) .which Is located
-  at least twenty (20) feet from the main entranoo.

2.10.1.6Z A3 msterlab used for smoWng In Ws area,"
tnctuding dgarette butts end matches, wm be
extinguished and disposed of In appropriate
containers.

Z10.1.6.3. Ensure pertodic deanup of the des^nated
smoking area.

itoiAitiBrAtooinQraRstMUtx&onCfitcr EiWtA Cettictt/tntefii
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2.10.1.8.4. If the designated emoMng area la not pfopeity
mafnlalned, It can be edmlnated at the .
discretton of the ContTBclor.

2.10.1.7. Prehibil tobacco uae In any company vehicle.

2.10.1.6. prohibit tobacco use tn personal vehldes when transporting
people on authorized business.

2.10.2. The Contractor must post the tobacco free envtronment polley In the
Contractor's fadlltles .and vehldes and Included lr> employee, cfieni, and '.
visltof ortcntatlon.

3; Staffing
9.1. The Contractor shal) mjeet the minimum staffing requlremerMs to provide the scope

of work In thfe RFA as fbOown:

3.1.1. At least orte:

3.1.1.1. Masters Licensed Aloohol and Drug Counselor (MLAOC); or

3.1.1.2. Licensed Alcohol and Drvg Counselor (LADC) wtto ato hqhfs
the Licensed Cllnlcd Supervisor (LCS) credertlaJ;

3.1^. Suffldenl staffing le^ls thai are appropriate for the services provided and
(he numtw of cCents served.

3.1.3. AO unUcensad staff provldtng treatmenL education and/or recovery support
Gcrvfces shall be undar. the direct supervision of a Qcensed supervisor.

3.1.4. No Boensed supiervlsor shall supervise more than twelve unlicensed staff
unless the Department has approved an aitemat/ve supervision plan (See
Exhibit A-1 Section 8.1.2).

3.T'.5. At least one Certified . Recovery Support ̂ rker (CRSW) for every 50
cflente or portion thereof.

3.1.6. Provide ongoing cQnical supervtsbn that occurs at regular Intervals tn
accordance with the Operational Requirements In Exhibit A-1. and
evidenoe based practices,'at a mlnlrhum: -

3:1.6.1. Weekly discussion of cases Wi^th suggestions for resources or
therapeutic approaches oo^erapy, and pertodlc assessment
' of progress:

3.1.62. Group supervision to help optbnkce the learning experience,
when enough candidates are under supervision:

3.2. The Contractor shall provide training to staff on:

32.1. Knowledge, skins, values, and ethice wflh specific appllcaUon to the ' \ ̂
practice issues feoed by (he supervisee; ■

ItodmHf Aleahoaw RtfuVCafloftOmx tjn»A eartradarWIUh.
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322.- ITw 12 core functions as deuribed tn Addiction CounseOnn
Competencies: The Knowledge. Skms, and Attdudes of Professional
Practice, available at http:/Atore.8amhsa.gov^roduot/TAP-21-Addlct{on-
Counseling-Competenc(es/SMA1S-4171 and

3^.3. The standards of practice end ethical conduct with particular emphasis
given to'the counselor's role and appropriate lasponsiblDiies, professlona)
boundBrtea, end power dyrtamlcs end appropriate Informadon securlly and
confidentiality prtetioes for hflndilng protected health' Information (PHI) and
substance use disorder treatment records os safeguarded by 42 CFR Part
2. . " I

3.3. The Contractor Ghai] notify the Department, In writing of changes In key personnel
and provide, wflhtn five (5) working days to the Deparlment. updated resumes thai
dearly indicate the staff member is employed by the Contractor. Key personnel are
those staff for whom at least 10% of their work time Is spent providing substance
use disorder treatment and/or recovery support servbee.

3.4. The Contractor shall notify the I^partment tn writing wflhin one month of hire when
a rmv adrrilnlstratpr or coordinator or any staff person essential to carrytng out this
scope of servbes b hired to work In the prograrri The Contractor shall provida a
copy of the resume of the employee, which dearly Indicates the staff member Is
employed by the Contractor, with the notification.

3.5. The Contractor ahaU notify the Depaitnent In writing \Mthin 14 calendar days, when
there b not suffdent staffing to perform all required eervloes for more than one
month.

3.6. The Contractor shall have policies end procedures related to student Jntems to
address minimum .couraework, cyertence and core competencies for those Interns
having direct contact wfth hdvtduab served by this contract AddiUorally. The*
Contractor must have student Interns complete an approved ethbs course and ar)
approwd oouTse on the 12 core fundbns as descrfbed in Addiction Counseling
Competencies: . The Knowledge, Skills, and Attitudes of Professbnal Practice in
Section 3.2,2; and appropriate Inforinatbn security and .confldentlailly practices for
handling protected heelth Information (PHI) end substance use disorder, treatment
records as safeguarded by 42 CFR Part 2 f^or to b^inning their Internship.

3.7. The Contractor shafl have unQcensed staff complete an approved ethba course and
an approved course on the 12 core functbns as described.In Addiction Counseling
Competencies: The Knoudedga, SklDs, and Atlliudas of Professional Practice. In
Section. 3.2.2. and Inform^n securtty and confiderdialiy preclbes for handling
protected health Infofmatlon (PHI) and substance use dbordor treatment records as
safeguarded by.42 CPR Part 2 within 6 months of hire.

MiAChMtvMniiBbniRettbltaSsnCMar EtfOBA CwOsdarbOb
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3.6. The Contmctor shall ensure staff recetves continuous educatton in the ever
changing field of substance use disorders, and slate end federal laws,*end rules
relating to confidentiality

3.9. The Contractor shall provide bvsenrice training to all staff involved In c8ent care
within 16 days of the contrast effective date or the staff person's start date. If after
the contract effective date, and at lead every 90 days thereafter on the foOowtng:

3.6.1. Tho contract requlmments.

3.9.2. AO other relevarti p'oilcies and procedures provided by the Department.

3.10. The Contractor ehall provide lr>>servlce training or ensure attendance at an
. .approved training by the Department to cBnlca] staff on hepatlOe C (HCV), human
immunodeficiency virus (HIV), tuberculoets (T8) and sexually transmitted diseases
<STDs)'8RmiaUy. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a Ost of trained

- elaff.

4. Facilltfes License i
4.1. The Contractor shall be licensed for an reslderttial services provided with the

DepartmenTs HeaBh FadStles Adminlst/atlon.

4.2. The Contractor shall comply with Uw sddlUona) licensing requirements for medlcslly
monitored, residential v/ithdrawa) management servloes -by the Department's-
Bureau of Health Fadiitlw Administration to meet higher facilities Dcensuie
standards.

4.3. The Contractor is responsible for ensuring that the fadlltles where services are
provided rneet ail the appOcable laws, rules, policies, and star^dards.

5. Web Informatlort Technology
6.1. The Contractor shall use the Web Infonnatlon Technology System (WITS) to reoord

ad cllerit actMty end cOenl oontact v^thln (3) days foOowbg the activity or contact as
directed by tfie Department

5.2. The Contractbr shall, before pro^big servfoes, obtain whtten tnformed cortsent
from the client staling that the client understands that

5.2.1. The WTTS system Is administered by the State of New Hampshtre;

5.2.2. State employees haw apopss to all. .information that Is entered Into the
WTTS system,'

5.2.3. Any Information entered into the WITB-systenv becomes the properly of the
State of New Hampshire. •

6.3. The Contractor shad have any client whose (nfOrmatlon te entered Into the WTTS
systefo complete 8 WTTS consent to the Department.

lteiermarAtaeq|OTRerBaguaoaC<<CDf eeiMA CentJtctefMOsli
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5.3.1. Any client refusing'to elgn the Informed cbnsent In 5.2 end/or consent tn
5.3;

5.3.1.1. Shall not be entered tnto the WITS system; artd

5.3.1.2. Shan not receive aervtoes imder this oontmct

-  5.3.1.2.1. Any cQotI who cannot receive eervIoeB under
.  this contrect pureuenl tp Section 5.3.1.2 ehaO

be assisted tn f)r>dlng altem^e payers for the

required services.

•  5.4. The Contractor agrees to the Infonnalion Security Requirements Exhibit K.
*  »

6. Reporting . .
5.1. The Contractor Shan report on the folMng:

6.1.1. National Outcome Measures (NOMs) data In Wrrs for

6.1.1:1. 100% of aDcOenta at admission

6.1.1.2. 100% of all cfisnts who are (fischarged because tttey have
completed treatment or transferted to another program

6.1.1.3. . 50% of afl cbents who ere discharged for reasons other than
those apedfled above In section 6.1.1.2.

6.1.1.4. ITie above NO)^ In .Section 6.T.1.1 through 6:1.1.3 iare
rntnlrqum requirements and the Contractor ahaD attempt to
' achieve greater reporting resulta when possible.

&1.2. Monthly end quarterly web based contract oompliartqe reitorts no tdterthan

the 10th day of the month following the reporting month Of quarter;

6.1.3. AO ctfBcaJ incidents to the bureau (n wrtuhg as soon as pc«slble and no
more Ihm 24 hours fodowtng the tncldenl The Contractor agrees that .

6.1.3.1. *Chtica} Inddenf means any actual or alleged event or

situation that creates a signtficant risk of substantial or
serious harm to physical or ment^ health, saf^, or weO-
belng. Indudlng but not Omtted to:

6.1.3.1.1.. Abuse;

6.1.3.1i Neglect;

6.1.3.1.3. ExptoItaOon;

e.1.3.1.4. Rights violation;

6.1.3.1.5. Missing person;

6.1.3.1.8. Medical emergency:

lOnmntBrAbDWltnRattbaMaoCertw EiNbSA C«ritncbr tnBib
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6.1.3.1.7. Restraint; or .

6.V3.1.8. Medical error.

6.1.4. All contact with (aw enforcement to the bureau (n writing as soon as
pos^ble and ry> more than 24 hours foBowtng the tncldent;

6.1.5. AO Mebia contacts to the bureau In wrltlhg as soon as possible end no
more th«m 24 hours foQowtng the incident;

6.1.6. Sentinel events to the Oepartmeint as fbOows;

6.1.6.1. Sentinel events shaO be reported when they Involve any
Indf^ual Is receiving servloes under this contract

jB.I.Q.2. Upon discovering the event, the Contractor shaO provide
Immediate verbal notification of the event to the tmreau,
which shall Include:

6.1.6.2.1.' The reporting IndVIduars narrm, phone numb^.
end egencyforganizaUon:

6.1.6.2.2. Name and date of 'binh (DOB) of the
lAdlv(du8!(8) Involved in the event;

6.1.6.2.3. Location, dale, end-time of the event

6.1.6.2.4. Descrtption of the event Including what. when,
where, how the event happened, and other
relevant Infofmation. as weO as the tdentiTication
of any other Individuals Involwd;

'  €.1.62.5. Wiether the poUoe were Involved due to a
crime or suspected atme; and

6.1.6.2.6. Tha Uentmcatlon of any media that had
repotted (he event;

6.1.6.3. WHhln 72 hours of the sentinel event, the Contractor shaD
submit a ccmpteted *Sentlnel Event. Reporting Form*
(February 2017). available • at
https;7Avww.dhh8.nh.gov/dcbGardocument8rreporting-f6nnptf
to the bureau

6.1.6.4. AddlUonal Information on the event that b .discovered after
riQng the form In Section 6.1.6.3. above shall be reported to
the OepartmenL in writing, as B becomes available or upon

.  request of IheOepartrnent and

6.1.6.5. Submit, additional Infonnatbn regarding Seddona 6.1.6.1
through 6.1.8.4 above ff required by the department; and

RFMrnsaoASCieuasTar pigasoaiu oii* soi/ie
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ai.6.6: Reportthe event In Sectlona 6.1.6.1 through 6.1.6.4 above,
as applicable, to other agenclea as required by law.

7. Quality Improvement
7.1. The Contractor shall participate In all quality tmprbvement activfUes to ensure the

Btartdard of care for cDents. as requested by the Department, such as. but not
limited to;

7.1.1. Pa/liclpation b etect/ont and Irv-person client record reviews

7.1.2. Partldpatton In site visits

7.13.., Participation in training and technical assistance actlvKies as directed by
•  the Department.

72. The Contractor shall morjllor and manage the utilization levels of care end service
array to'ensure services are offered through the term of the contract to:
73.1. Maintain, a cbnfilslcnl service capacity for Substance Use Disorder

Treatment end Recovery Svpbart Sendoes etatawlde by.
7.2.1.1. Monitor tha capacity such as staffing and other resources to

consistently and evenly deliver these services; aqd

73.1.2. Monitor no less than monthly the percentage of the ccntraot
funding expended relative to the percentage of the contract

\  period,that has elapsed, if there Is a dirreienoe of rrbre
1096 between expended furidcng and. elapsed tlrm on the
contract the Contractor shall notify the Department wflhin 5
days and submit a plan to correcting the discrepancy within
10 days of notfiying the bepartmenl

8. -Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity
6.1. In order to enable DHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal fritBgifty, the Contractor

agrees to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Statement
and Cash Flow Statement for the Contractor. The Profit and Lose Statement shall
Indude a bu<^t column aUowing to trodget to actual analysis, ̂ tements shall be
subrnltted within thirty (30) calender days after each month end. the Contractor wffl
be evaluated on the fbliowtng;

8.1.1. D^ of Cash on Hand:

6.1.1.1. DeSnltlon: The days of operating expenses that can be
covered by the unrestricted cash on hand.

6.1,1.3 Formula: Cash, cash equivalents end short term Irivostmenta
divtdsd by total operating expenditures, less
depredatlon/amorttzatlon and bv^dnd plus prtndpal payments

Mmnasttf AtooMZtmRiSitabSonCanlsr EiMMA Ceotredef WUds
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on debt divided by days In the reporting period. The short-
terni Investments es used above must mature within three (3)
months end should not IrKtude common stock.

6.1.1 .a. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall have enough
cash and cash eoulvalentfi to cover errpendltures for a
minimum of thirty (30) calendar days with no variance
allowed.

8.1.2. Current Ratio:

8.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of the ConlfBctof's total currant assets'
available to cover the cost of current UabQities.

8.1.2Z Formula: Total current essets divided by total cwrent
OabllBles.

6.1.2.3. ^ Rerfonnence Standard: The Contrsctor shell malrrtaln a
minimum curfcnt ratio of 1.'5:1 With 10% vartance.aDowed.

6.1.3. Debt Servloe Coverage Ratio:

8.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio IDuatretes the Contrector'o abflUy to
cover the cost 'of its current portion of fis (ong^erm debt

8.1.3.2. DefinWon: The ratio of Net Income to the year to date debt
service.

6.1.3.3. Formula: Net Income phis OepredeUonfAmortlzatlon
Expense plus lirter^ Expense dMded fay year to. date debt
ecrvfoe (princtpal interest) over the next twelve (12)
months.

8.1,3:4. Source of .Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial
Statements WentuyinQ current portion of long-term debt
payments (prfndpal end (r^tefest). ^

8.1.3.5. Pe/fomianoe Standard: The Ccntrectcr shall rTralnlEln a

minimum standard of 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.
8.1.4. Net As^s to Total Assets:

8.1.4.1. Rationale: Thlsraito b an Indication of the Contractor's abOily
to cover Its iiabOrtles.

8.1.4.2. DeHnltlon: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total
assets.

8.1:4.3. Formula: Net essets (total assets less total liabilities) divided
by total assets.

'kUndmttfAkaSflSimRBhiUBaBanCir^ EMMA ConlrKto wibi>.
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6.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contrsctor'a Monthly Financial
Statements.

6.1.4.5. P^ormance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a
mfnlmum ratio of .30:1. vkfith a 20% variance eUowed.

8.2. bi the event that the Contractor does not meet either

6.2.1. The standard resardbig Days of Cash on Harvt end the atarulsrd regarding
Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months; or

6.2.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity atandante
for three (3) consecutive montha» then .

62.3. The Department may require that the ContfBctor meet with Departrrrent
.stafftoerqriain the reasons that the Contractor has not met the standards. '

6.2.4. The Department may require the Contractor to submit a con^rehensive
corrective actton plan within thirty (30) calendar days' of notificaUon that ■
8.2.1 and/or 6.2.2 have not been met.

82.4.1. The ContrBctor Shan, update the odrredivo action plan at least
every thirty (30) calendar days unto oompOance Is achieved.

6.2.42. the Contractor shall provide Bdidjltonal informalion to assure
continued access to services as requested by the
Department, The Contractor shall provide requested
information in a tlmaframe agreed upon by both parties.

8.3. Tt© Contractor shall btform the Department by phone and by emaD wllhlh twnty-
fouT (24) houre of when any key Corjtractor staff learn of any aeSu^ or dkely
litigatton, Invosligetion. complaint, dairn, or transacttdn that may reesbnaWy be
considered to have a matertai financtal impact on and/or materlaUy impact or Impair
the abmty of the Contractor to perform under this Agreement with (he Departrrtent.

8.4. The montfily Batanoe Sheet, Profit & Loss Statement. Cosh Statement, and ofl
other financial reports shafl be based on the accrual method of acoounUng and

•  Indude the Contractor'e total revenues and expenditures whether or not generated
by or resulOng from funds prowfded pursuant to this Agreement These reports are
due within tfdrty (30) calendar days after the end of each month,

9. Performance Meaeures
9.1. The Contractor's contract performance shafl'be measured as In Scdlon 9.2 below

to evaluate that services are mittgatlno negative impacts of substance rnbtise,
Indudmg but net limited to the opioid epidemic and associated overdoses.

92. For the Oral year of the contract only, the data, as coBocied In WITS, wtjl be used to
Vie Department In determinhg the banchmarti for each measure'bdow. The

Contractor agrees to report data In WTTS used bi the following measures;

tl8atfiwttr/VeehBSgiWiisau<8nC<rt»r EieQflA Oostmflortafbl*.
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fi.2.1. Access to Servfces; % of dlenis accepting servtoes who recelva any
service, other than evaluation, wfthtn 10 of screening. ^

9.2.2. Engasement % of cCenta reoeMng any services, other than evaluaUon. on

at least 2'8ep8iBte days wtthin 14 days of saeenlng

' 9.2.3. Cflnlcally Approprtate Servloes: % cftents reoeMng ASAM Crtterta
Identiried SUD servloes (as Msntffled by Initial or subsequent ASAM LoC
Crtterta dstemdnatton) within 30 days of acreenlrtg.

9.2.4. ' Client Retention: % of currently enrolled clients reoeh/tng any type of 8U0
services, other than evaluation, pn at least 4 separate daya wfthtn 45 days
of Initial screening.

9.2.5.' Treatment Completiorc Total # of discharged (die-enrolled} clients
oompteting treatment

9i.6. Nattonal Outcome Measures (NOMS) The %^of cftenta out of ail clients
discharged meeting at least 3 out of 5 NOMS outcome cifierla:
0.2.6.1. Reduction In /no change (n the frequency of substance use'al

- discharge compared to date of first service

92.B2. Increase In/no change In number of IndMduals ernployed or
h school at date of lak seivtce compared to flr^ seivtoe

9.2.6.3. Reduction InAto change In number of Individuals arrested In
past 30 days from date of ̂st service to date of last service

9.2.6.4. Increase tn/m change In number of Individuals that have
stable housing at last service compared to first service.

0.2.6.5. Increase Irt/no change in number of Individuals partldpsting tn
community support services at last service comiipBred to first
service

MrKn«tcrMuh(enR»MiSi»OsnCemv EiT^A QemnetDf
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Exhibit A-1 OpcratlonaV Requirements

7T» Cormoctor GhaO oompty wtth the followlriB requirements:

ranges In ar>y of the feUowInfl:
1.1.1. Oftmcfshlp;

1.1^. Physical tocatton;

1.2X2. f^meUcrtiVnj the name ami qu3K^onso(1h.«r«ednti™
; 1.2X3. SiiaeofBppDcablalleensOTfoflhanejjjad^nl^^
1^3. When there te e ch^ imendmenl from the New Hampshlro

•1 lA • man a Conlracto discontinues a oontiacted pro8™m. «

■ ■ ■ •" to tmnsfet, discharBS », refer an cOente b^nfl served In the

the contracted program as required by secuons i^o
wflh thc'consert of the client.

2. Inspecttons. ' contractIheContractorsha^

3, a ,0, viataUort. o. contned

3?fTX^nW«tor to submit a ptan-O. oonectlon (POCV.
3.12. Imposlna a dlrectfid POC upon a Conlratlor.
3.1.3. Suspension of a contract; or
3.1.4. Rovbcatton Of a contract .

Vendor Name Contactor tnUals: —
RFA^ia60AS<rt'SU8ST ' Date:JS2ilfi.
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'32, When adminlstratKe remedies are Imposed, the department shad provide e wrftten
notice, as eppOcablfi, which:
32.1. Identffies each defictency:
32.2. Identifies the 8peclflcremedy(8) that has been proposed; and
322. Provides tlje Contractor with informallon regarding the right to a heerlng In

aooordance with Sdl-A and He-C 200.

32. A POC shaQ be developed and enforced In the foDowIno manner
,  3.3,1.,. Upon receipt d a notice of defdencles. the Contraotor shaQ submit a vrrttten

POC within 21 days of the date on the notice describing:
3.3.1.1. How the Contractor Intends to ocrred-each deficiency;
32.1.2. What measures will be put In place, or what systeih changes wfU be rnade

to.ensure that the deficiency does not recur and
3.3.1.3. The date by vrhlch ̂ h de^ncy shall be corrected which ahail be noister

than 90 days from the date of submission of the POC;
3.3.2. - The departrp^t shall review and accept each POC thai:

3.3.2.1. Achieves. oompOancewfth contract requirements;
3.322. Addresses all deficiencies and deficient pracdoes as cited In the (nspectfon .

report;
3.3.2.3. Prevents a new violation of contract requirements as a result of

Implementation of the POC; and
3.324. . Spaclflefi the date upon \^dch the defidencfes wO be corrected;

3.4. If the POC b acceptable, the department shaQ provide .wrttten notiRcaOon of acceptance
ofthePOC;

3.5. If the.POC Is not acoeptabta, the department shall notify the Ccntractcr in writing of the
•  reason for rejecting the POC;
3.6. The Contractor diaO develop and submit a revbed POC within 21 days of the date of

the v^en notiflCGtion In 3-5 above:.
3.7. The revised POC shall comply with 3.3.1 above and be reviewed In accordance with

322 above;
3.8. If the revised POC Is not acceptable to the department or b not 'subrn'med wtthfn 21

days of the d^ of the vetttm nolifiradcn In 3.5 above, the Contractor sl^D tre eubject
to a directed POCln accordance with 3.12 bebw;

.  3.9. The department shall verffy the Implementetlon of any POC that has been submitted
and accepted by:
3.9.1. Revlewfrig matartab submitted by the Contractor;
3.9.2. Condudtng a follow-up bisection; or
3.9.3. . RevtewtnooompBance during the nejd scheduled Inspection;

3.10. Verification of the Implementation of any POC shall only occur after the date of
oomptetlon spefclfied by the Contractor In the plan; and

3.11. If the POC or revised POC has not been Implemented by the completion dale, the
Contractor ̂ aQ be issued a dlrectad POC in aocordanoe vdth 3.12 below.

3.12. The department ahaD develop and Impose a directed POC that specifies corrective
ecUons for'ihe Contractor to tmplernent v^rv*

3.111. As a result of en InspecUon, deftdencfes were Wentlfied that requite Immediate
corrective action to protect (he health and safety of the dlenb or personnel:

3.122 A revised POC Is not submitted within 21 days of the written nottflsatlon (torn the
department; or

VendorNsme'
RFA-2bl9-BOAS-Ot'6UB8T flmitBrtnf biittala: *v
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3.12.3. A revtsed POC submitted has not been accepted.

4. Duties and ResponsibnitJes of All Corttradors.
4.1. The Contractor shaD comply with ell tederai, state, and local laws, rules, codes,

ordtnances, (ioensDS, permila, artd approvals, and rules promulgated (hercundar, as
applicable.

4.2. The Contractor shall mortltor, assess, and Improve, es neoessaiy, the quality of cere
and aervlce provided to dlents on an cr^golng t^s.

4.3. The ContiBctor shaO provide for the necessary quafined personnel. fecUHIes, equipment,
and suppDes for the aafety. maintenance and cperaUon of the Contrector.

4.4. The Contractor shaQ develop and Implement written pcOdes and procedures govemlns
•  Its opei^on end eB services provided.'

4.6. All policies and procedures shali be reviewed, revised, and trained on per Contrador
policy.

4.6. The Conlractor shaO: - '
4.6.1. Employ an edmlrtstrator responsible fbr the day-to^lay operation of the

Contractor;
A.B2. Maintain a current job description and minimum quaUfxalkins tor. the

adrrdnlstrstor, tndudlng the edminlslretof's authority and duties; end
• 4.6.3. Establteh, in veiling, a chain of command that sets forth the One of authority for

the operaUon of the Contractor ths staff pbsltlon(8) to be delegated the euthortty .
end respoh^nity to act in the admlnlstratoTs behalf when the administrator Is
absent

4.7. The ConUactor-shaQ post the following documents In a public area: •
4.7.1. A copy of the Contractor's poSdcs and proceduras ralaOw© to the Implementslten

of cQam fights and responslbDittes. Indudlng cflent confidentiality per 42 CFR
Part 2; end

4.7.2: The Contractor's plan for fire safety, evacuation and emergencies idcntrfyfng tho
location of. and access to aU (Ire exiis.

4.6. The. Contrector or arty employee shaD not falsify any documentation or provide falsa or
misleading InformaUon to the department ■ •

4.9. The Contrector shaD comply with all conditions of warnings and admlnlstrBlrve remedies
Issued by the department, and aO court ordere.

4.10. The Contrsotor shall admit and allow any department representative to Inspect (he
certined premlsas and ad programs and servli^ that are being provided at any lime
for the purpose of determining compCance with the oontred.

4.11.' The Contractor shalt . '
4.11.1. Report all critical ̂ cWenla and eentlnol evenb to the department In accordance

^vllh Erdilbit A, Section 20.Z3;
4.112. Submit eddhionBl informatjon if required by the depertment; and
4.11.3. Report the event to ether agendss as required by law.

4.12. The Contractor ShaD Implemeni poildee and procedures for reporting:
4.12.1. Suspected child abuse, neglect or explottaiion, In aoocrdance with RSA 169-

•  C20-3O;and. ^
4,122- Suspected abuse, neglect or opioitBlion of adults. In accordance \Mlh RSA 149-

F>19.

Vendor Nsmo
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4.13. The Contractor shatl report aO posiKve tuberculosis test results
offloe of dteeaee oonbol In accordance with RSA 141-C:7, He*P 301.02 and He-P

414 rdsldenllal programs, if the Corrtrsctor accepts a client who Is known to have a
"  disease roportsble under He-P 301 or en Inf^us dbeaw, w^teh Is any dlMSSo

caused by the growth of mlcroorBanlsms In the body which might or migm not M
contantous. the Contractor ehaD foltow the required prooeduree (or the rare of ̂

. cflents. as spedfted by the United Stales Centera tor Disease Contr^
2007 GuUeUne for Isotelibn Precautions, Preverrtlng Transmlsston of Infectious
Agente ln Healthcare Settings, Juno 2007. ' .

4.15. Contractors shaD Implement stale and federal regutetorts on ctot comraoroalily,tndueflnapnjvislons outlined In 42 CFR 2.13. RSA 172:8-0. and RSA 318-8:12; ■
■ • 4 16 A Ccntractof ehaD. upon request; prbvtde a client of the cflents 0"^^^ "

any with a copy of his or her cflenl record within the confines for 42 CFR Part 2.
4.17. The' Contrador shaO develop poDctes and SftS.,!!

Infonnatlon contained In dient records. In aooofdanco with 42 CFR Part 2, the Heaiin
Insurance PortaMity and Aocountabffiy Act (HIPAA). and RSA 316-8:10.

4 18 Ail rccords requtrod by the contrad shaD be legible, currant, eccurata and waliabte tothe departmenl during en mspectibn or Invcstflalloh conductrt b acconJanoo wnh
thIscontracL ^

416 Arty Contractor that maintains etectronlc records shaU develop wrtttcn poflcies^
■ procedures designed to protect the prtwai7..^..^lents and personnel that at a
mlr\imum.Include: ' .

4.19.1. Procedures (of backing Up files to prevent loss of data;
4.19i Safeguards (or malntflinlng the oonflderttlaffly of Informalton pertaining to clients

artd staff; and
4.19.3. Systems to prevent tampertng with Inforrnaton pertaining to cflents and staff.

4.20. TheContractof'asendee8ltc(6) Shalt .
4^0.1. Bo accessible to'a person with a dbabiEly using ADA eccesslbiBty and barner

free guWalincs pcr42U.S.C. 12131 at seq;
4.20.2. Havea reception area eeparalefromMng and tfeatmerd areas;
4.20.3. Have private apace for personal oonsultaflon, charting, treatment and social

acUvHles. as applicable; .' . . „ . ^ •
4 20 4 Have secure age of active and closed confidential client records; arrd4!2o!6. Have separate end secure storage of toxic sub^ncM.

421. The Conlrector ehaD establish end monitor e code of ethics for the Contractor and ksstaff, as wet! as a mech?nlsm for reporting unelhicaJ conduct.
422. The Contractor shaUmaJnIain specific poUcies on the following:

422.1. Cflent rigMs. grtcvance and appeals pcflclea and procedures;
4.222. Progresstvo dlsctoOne, leading to admlnlslratlve discharge;
422.3. Raffing end appealing st^ gitevan^
422.4. Policies on cflent alcqhol and other drug use while In treatrrttnt; • • .
422S. PoUdas oh cflent and employee emoWng that are In compliance wnh Exhibit A,

Section2.11; w-.nfc.
422.6. Drug-fieewoik|tioe policy and procedures,-biciudlng a requirement for the

d wrtttan reports of actions taken In the event of staff misuse of alcohol or other
drugs;

•RFA201MOAMt-SUBST
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422.7. PoDctes and procedures for holding a cGenl's posseesions;
422.8. Secure storage of staff medications:
4.22.8. A cOenl medication poQcy;
422.10.UrIne specimen boCectton, as applicable, that

4.22.10.1. Ensure that ooltectlon Is conducted In a manner that preserves client
privacy as much BS possible; end

422.10.2: Minimize falsfflcstton;
4.22.11. S^eiy and emergericy procedures on the foOowIng:

422.11.1. Medtoal cmeigenctes;
4.22.11.2. Infection control end untversal precautions. Including the uae of protective

clothing and devices;
4.22.11.3. Reportbjg employe Injurtes; . ,
422.11.4. Fire mpnlloilng. warning. cvacuaUon. end safety drtD poli^ and

procedures:
4.22.11.5. Emergency closings;
4 22.11.6. Postlrfl of the above safety and emergency procedures.

4.22:i2.Proocdures for prctecUon of cflcnt records that govern use of records. etOT^.
removal, conditions for release of informalion. and cbmpnance. wfth 42CFR, Part
2 end the Health Insurance PcrtaMlly and Accountebllity Asi (HIPM); and

422.13.PrDCedures retelcd to quality essurance and quality ImproverrrCTt.
5. CoDectlon of Fees. , > j

6.1. The Contractor shall maintain procedures regarding cpneettofls from cCent feea. private
Of pubDc Insilranoe, and other payers responsible for the dienl's finances; aw

5.2. At the time of screening and admission the Contractor ishal) prpvWa the client, and the
dienf8 guardian, agent, or personal represenlaflye. with a listing of ell known eppllcabte .
charges end Uentay what care and services are Included In the charge.

6. Cflcnt Screening end Denial of Services.
.  6.1. Contrndors Shan melntaln a record of all dicnt screenings, tncludlng:

6.1.1. The clienlname and/of unique dieni Identifier;
6.12. • The cOent referrel sourte;
6.1.3.' The date of InlUal contact frem. the cflent or refentng agency;
6.1.4. Thedaieofecreenlng; ^
6.1.5. The resWl of the screening. Including the reason for denial of senrtoes if

appCc^le; . „ „
61.6. For any client who Is placed on a vraltUsl, record of referrals to end coordinaTOn

with raglonaJ access point and bllerlm servtoes or reasori that such a referraJ
waanotnf«de; ^

6.1.7. Record of all cOent contacts between screening and removal from me wanust.

6.1.8. Date cflent v/as removed from the walUlsl and the reason for removal
62. For any dlenl who Is denied eervtoes, the Contractor Is responslblo for:

8.2.1. informing the cBcnt of the reason for denial . .
6.22. Attlsting the cflenl In Identifying and accessing appfoprtate avaQable treatment.

6.3. The Contractor shal) not deny services to a client scWy because the client
6.3.1. Previously left treatment egalnst the advice of Staff,
6.3.2. Retajaed from an earlier treatment

Vendor Name
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6.3.3l la on any dasa of medications,' Including but not limited to opbtes or
benodiaz^tnes; or

6.14. Has been dlagrv^ed wtth a mental health disorder.
6.4. The Contractor ahal) report on 6.1 end 6.2 above at the request of the department.

7. .Personnel Requirements.
7.1 . The OontFBctor shall develop a current Job descrtpUon for ell etaff. Irtdudlng contracted

staff, volunteers, and student tntems. wtilch shall thduda:
7.1.1. Job title;
7.1.2. Phy^l requirements of the poshton;
7.1.3. Education and experience requirements of the position;
7.1.4. Duties of the position;
7.1.5. Positions supervised; and
7.1.6. Tilte of Snmedlate supervtsor.

12. The Contractor shall devel^ and Implement poOcln regarding criminal bac^round
checks of prospective employees, wtilch shall, at a minimum, tnctude:
7X1. Requiring a prospective employee to sign a release.to allow the Contractor to

obtain hte or her ̂ mlnal record;
7X2. Requiring the administrator or his or her deslgnee to obtain end review a

- crfmlnal records check from the New Hampshire deparlmeht of safie^ for each
prospective employee;

7.2.3. CrtmJria) background startdards regarding the foOowtng, beyond whldi-shal) be
reason to riot hire a prospective employee in order to ensure the health, safety,
or well-being of c&ents:

7.2.3.1. Felbny convictions In this or any othier state;
72.3.2. Convictions for sexual assault, other vtolent crime, assault fraud, abuse,

neglect oreqploHallon; and
72.3.3. Findings by the department or any edmlnlstrstlve agency in this or any other

state fv assault fraud, abuse, neglect or exploitation or any person; and
7X4. Waiver of 722'above for gMd cause showrt

7.3. All staff. Inctudlrvg oorrtrscted staff, shad
7.3.1. Meet the edu'cadona), experiential, and physlca! quaSflcatlons of the ̂ ttion as

listed In their Job desalptlon;
7.3X ffot exceed the criminal background standards established by 7X3 aboua.

unless waived for good cause shown, In accordance vylth policy established In
72.4 above;

7.32. Be Ooertsed. registered or certfled as required by state statute and as
applicable;

7.3.4. Receive an orientation within the OrsI 3 days of work or prior to direct contact
with clients, which includes:

72>1.1. The Contractor's code of ethics. Including ̂ Ical conduct and the reporting
of unprofessional conduct; ' •

7.3.4.2. The Corttractcr's pcCdea on dtent rights and responslbintles and oomplaint
prooeduies;

7.3.42. Confldentblcly requtrcments es required by Sections 4.16 and 4.192 above
and dectlon 17 below;

7.3.4.4. Crfevance procedures for both clients and staff as requtrad In Section
•  . 422.1 and 422.3 above and Sectioni 8 below.

Vendor Name
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7^.4S. The duties and responslbllilies and the policies, prooedurea, end guldelirtes
of (he pos&Ion they were hired for.

7.3.4.6. Topics covered by both the edmlnlstrBtlve and personnel manuals; '
7.3.4.7. The Contractor's Infection prevention program;
7.3.4.6. The Contractor'a fire, eveeuetion. and other emergency plans whjeh outline

.  the responstbOrties of personnel In an emergency; end
7.3.4.6. Mandatory repodlhg requlremenle for abuse or neglect such as those found

In RSA 161-f and RSA 169-0:26; and
7.3.5. Sign and date documentation that they have taken part In an orientation as

dascrtbed In T.3.4 above;
7.3.6. Completa a martdalory annual In-servtoe education, which includes a revlaw of

all dements described in 7.3.4 above.
7.4. Prior to having contact wtlh clients, employees and ccntracted employees shaO: ̂

7.4.1. Submit to the ConbBctor.proof of a physical examination or a health screening
conducted not more than 12 months prlw to erripbymenl which Shan (hdude at a

• minimum the following:
7A1.1. The name of the examinee;
7.4.1.2. The date of the examination;

. 7.4.1.1 Whether or not (he examinee-has a contagious Illness or eny other illness
thai would eflM the examinee's ability to perform Ihdr job duties;

7.4.1.4. Results of a 2:6tep tuberculosis (T8) teat, Mantoux method or other method
approved by.tlie Centers for Disease Control (COO); and

7/4.1.5. The dated signature of the Uoensed health practaioner;
•7.4.2. QaaUowedtowork vrhlle waiting for the results 6f the second step of the TB test

vi^n the resuUe of the fN step are negative for TB; arvd
7.4.3. Comply wflh the requirements of the Centers for Disease Control GuUeGnes for

Preventing the Transmission of Tuberculosis in Health Feclihles Settings, 2005,
If the person has either a positive TB test, or has had direct contact cr potential
for occup^rtal exposure to Mycobactertum tuberculosis through shared air
spece with persMs wtlh Infectious tuberculosis.

7.5. Employees, contracted employs, volunteers and Indeparvdent Contractors who have
direct oontad vdth cfients who have a hisloiv of TB or a poshlve skfn test shail have a
syrnptomatology screen of a TB test

7.6. The Contracfor shaB maintain and store In a secure and ccnrRtentla) maruver. a current
personnel file for each employee, etudent, volunteer, artd contracted staff. A.personnel
(lie shaD Incfude, at a minimum, the foOowfng:
7.6.1. A completed eppUcaUon for employment or a rettme, Inchiding:
7-.6Z Identification data; and
7.6.3. Tha education and work experlenoe of the arnployee;

• .7.6.4. A copy of the current job description or agieemenl. signed by the Individual, that
tdentlifis (he:

7.6.4,1. Position title;
7.6/4.2. Qualifications and experience; and
7.6/4.3.' Duties required by the position;

7AS. Wrtiten'verlRcatlon thai the person meets the Contractor's quaOflcaiiona for the
assigned job description, such as school transcripts, certfficattons and Coenses as
appfoable;

Vendor Nme
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7.6.6. A Bigned and dated reoond of ortentetlon as required by 7.3.4 ebove:
7.6.7. A 00^ of each current New Hampshire Coense, regbtration or ccrtiftellon In

hratih care field and CPR certification, if applicable:
7.6.8. Reoords of eereonlng for communicable diseases resutts required In 7.4 ebove;
7.6.0. Wrtiten performance "apprelsaJs for each year of employment Including

description of any oofreetive actions, eupervblon, or training datenrdned by the
person's supervisor to be necessary;

7.6.10. Documentation of annual {n<6erv)oe education as required by 7.3.6 above;
7.6.11. Informatten as to the general content and length of en continuing education or

educatbna! programs attended;
7.8!l2. A elgned Btatemert acknowledging the receipt of the Conttoor's pdlcy setting

forth the cilenfe rights artd responslblBles. Including oorrfldentlaRty
requirements, and acknowfedglhg trelntng end implementation of the poQcy.

7.6113. A statement, which shall be signed at the time the Initial offer of emptoymentls
made and then annually thereof. etaUng-that he or she:

7.6.13.1. Does not have a felony conviction In this or any other state;
7.6.13.2. Has rwt been convicted of a sexual assault, other vfolent crime, a^uh.

fraud, abuse, neglect or exptoitatlon or pose a threat to the health, safety or
well-being of a dient; and

7.6.13.3. Has not h^ a finding by the department or any edmlrilstratlve agency bi
this or any other st^e for assault, fmud, abuse, neglect or exptoitatlon of
any person; end

7.6.14. Documentation of the cIminaJ records check and any waivers per 7.2 above.
7.7, An (f^dMdu^ need-not resdtsdose any of the mattere In 7.6.13 ar>d 7.6,14 above If.tho

documentatbn is available end the Gontrector has previousty reviewed the maiartal end
granted a waiver so that the Individual can continue employment.

6. CQntoal Supervision.
6.1. Contractors shall comply .with the following clinical .supervision requirements for

unOcensed counselors:
8.1.1. AO- unlicensed staff providing trestmerrt, education and/or recovery support

. services shall be under the direct supervision of a Dcensed sup^lsor.
8.12. No Qoensed supervisor shall supervise more than twelve unlicensed staff unless

the Department has approved an attematlve supervision plan.
8.1.3. Unlicensed counsetors sheD recehre at least one hour of supervision for every 20

hours of direct client contact:
8.1.4. Supervision shall be provided on en individual or group basis, or both

depending upon the employee's need, experience and sklD level; '
6.1.6. Supervlsldn ehd) tnchrde followtng technlqiles:

6.1.6.4. Revtew.'of case records;
8.1.62. Obser^tionofintBrBCtfonswnhcllentB;
8.1.5.3. Sidn devatopment and
8.115.4.. Review ofcase management Mtlvltles: end

6.1.6. Supervisore shall malrrtaln a-log of the supenrlslon date, duration, content and
who was fiupervtsed by whom;

8.1.7. IndMduats licensed or certified shall receive supervlston fn aocordanoe wfth the
• requirement of thdrBcensure.

0. Ctlnlcaf Servfc^
VendorNama
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0.1. Eech Contractor shall have and adhere to a cOnlca! care manual which Includes policies
and procedures related to all c&nlcal services provided.

9^. AD cflnlcal servtoes provided shall:
0.2.1. focus on the client's strength's;
d..2^. Be eenslttve end relevant to the-dlverat^ of the enents being seAred;
9.Z3. Be client end ̂ mlly centered;
0J2.4. Be trauma Inform^ which means deslgrted to acknowledge me Impact of

violence and trauma on people's Gves and (he importance of addressing Iraurha
In trealmenl; end

9.3. Upon a client's admission, the Contractor shall conduct a cOent orientation, either
tndl^ually Of by group, to Include the foOwdng:
9.3.1. Rules. poDcles, and procedures of the Contractor, program, and fadityl
913.2. Requiremenis for sucoessfuOy completing the program:
9.3.3. The administrative discharge poQcy and the grounds for edmlrUstratlve

discharge;
9.3.4: AD eppDc^le taws regarding confidentlainy. Including the Dmlts of confidentiality

and mandatory repotting'requirements; and
9.3.5. Requiring Ihe cOent to sign a receipt thst the ortentaUon was conducted.
0.3.6. Upon a cUenfs admission to treatment, the Contractor shall conduct, an

- HIV/AIDS screenln9; to tndude:
9.3.7. The pfDvlsbn of Information;
6.3.8. Risk assessment;
9.3S. Intervention end risk reduction educatlon.'and
*9.3.40. Refenal for testing. If appropitale, Within 7 days of edmlsslon; •

10. Treatment and RehablOtaUon.
10.1. A LADC or unl'rceiised counsetor under the supervision of a LAOC dtaO develop and

maintain a wrtllen treatment plan tor each cTtent (n accordance with TAP 21:
Addiction Counsel^ Competencies available ■ at-
httpy/6tore.samhsa.Qov/)istteeTfe87name=Technical-As8lstance-PubBcattons-TAP^
&pageNumbefBi wttich addresses el) ASAM domains.

10.2. Treatment plans shall be developed as follows: •
10X1. Within 7 days'foiiowing admission to any restdenltai program; and
10.2X No later than the thlrd^sess'ion of an ambulatory treatment progrem.

10X Indtvidual triealment plans shall contdn, at a minimum, the foUowtng elements:
10.3.1. Goab, objectives, and Interventior^ written In terms that ere specific,

measursble. attatnable. reaDstic end tbndy.
10.3.2. Identifies the redplant's dcntcal needs, treatment goals, and objectives;
10.3.3. IdenUfias the cOenfs strengths and resources for achlevtng goals and ol^ectives

'  In 10.3.1 above;
10.3.4. Defines the strategy (or providing servtces to meet those needs, goats, end

objectives:
10.3.5. Identiflas referrat to outside Contractors for the purpose of achieving e specific

goal or objective when the service cannot be. delivered by the treatment
program;

10X6. Provides the alterfa for terminating specific interwntions; and
10.3.7. Indudes specification end description of the Indicators to be used.to assess the

IndMduars progress.

VendorNsme ' , ' >^5^^
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10.3.6. Documentation of partlclpallon by the c6ent In the treatment planntng process or
the reason why the cCenl did not partldpaie; and

10.3.6. Sisnatures of the cOent and the counselor agreeing to the beatment plan, or if
appriqabte, documentation of the cllenfe refusal to sign the treatment

10.4. Treetment plans ehaS be updated based on any changes In any Amerlcsn Sodoty of
Addiction Medbtne CrHerfa (ASAM) dom^ and no less frequently than every 4
sessions or every 4 weeks, whtehever Is less frequent.

10.5. Treatmeril plan updates ehaH Include:
10.5.1. Documenlatim of the degree to which the dlent is meeting treatment plan goab

and objectives; ■
10.6.2. Modification of ensling goals or addition of new goats based on changes In the

cQents functioning relative to ASAM domalro and treatment goals and
oyectlves.

10.5.3. The counselc^s assessment of whether or not the client needs to move to a
'  different level of cafe based on changes in functioning In any ASAM domain end '

documentation of the reescns for thh assessment;
10.5.4. The signature of the cQent and the counselor agreeing to the updated treatment

plan, or If oppOcable, documentation of the cOenfs refusal to sign the treatment
' plan.

10.6. In addiOon to the IndNMuabed treatment planning In 10.3 abovie. eS Contractors
shaO provide cQent education on: '

.10.6.1. Substance u» disorders:
10.6.2. Relapse prevention;
10.8.3. Infectious diseases assocleted-wilh Irijedlon drug use. thcludlng but not (imtted

to. HIV, hepatitis, and TB;
10.6.4. Sexually transfnlRed diseases;
10.6.5. Emotional, physical, and sexual ̂ use;
10.6.0. Nioollne u.se disordef and cessation options;
10.6.7. The Impad of drug and alcohol use du^ pregnancy, risks to the fetus, end the

Impoftanoe of trrfonnlng medical practitioners of drug and oioohol use during
pregnancy

10.7. Group education and counseling
10.7.1. The Contractor shall maintain an outline of each educational and group therapy

session prodded.
10.7.2. AD group counseBng sesSfone shaD be Qm&ed to 12 clients or fewer^per

counselor.

10.'8. Progress notes
10.8.1. A progress note shaO be completed for each Individual, group, or family

treatment or educatton session.
10.6.2. Eactt progress note ShaO contain the following components:

10.6.2.1. Date, Incfuding self-report observations, ^terventio'ns. current
Issues/stressors, functional irr^rabment Interpenonat behavior, motivation,
and progress, 88 it relates to the current treatment plan;

10.6.2.2. A&eessmern, tndudtng progress, evaluation of intervenllon. end obstacles
or barrtera; and

10.6.2.3. Plan, tncludlnB tasks to be oompleted between eesitons, objectives for next
aesston. any reoommended changes, and date of next session; and

Ventior Nsmb
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10.0. .Re^enttal proorams shali malritain a deny shift chanae log which documents such
things as client behavlbr and slgniftcam events that a subsequent sWft should be
made aware of.

11. Clleht Discharge and Transfer,
11.1. A client BhaO be discharged from a program tor (ha foltowlng reasons:

11.1.1. Program completion or trensfar based on changes In the dlent'c functtonlno
relative to ASAM cffteri^

11.1.2. Programtertr^atkm.Including:
11.1.2.1. Administrative (fischaige; '
11.1.2.2. Non-corrvllartce with the program;
11.1.2.3. The cflent left the program before completion against advice of treatment

.  staffi-and
11.1.3. The dtent Is Inaccessible, such as the cOent be^ Jailed or hospltalfaEed; and

11;2. In aO cases of cBant dlscharge or transfer, the ooimselor shaD complete a hacratlve
discharge summary. Including, at a mWmarrv

11.2.1. The dates of sdmlssion.and discharge Or transfer;
11.2.2. The cDcnfs psychosodal subatartoe abuse htetory and legal hbtory,
11.2.3. A summary of the cDenrs progress toward treatment goals In all ASAM domains;
11.2.4. The reason for discharge or transfer;
11.2.5. The diertfs OSM 5 diagrtosls and summary, to indude other assessment testing

completed during treatment;' - .
,  11.2.6. A summary of the cCenrs physical condlUon at the time of discharge or transfer

11.2.7. A continuing care plan, hdudlng aOASAT^ domains;
11.2.8. A determination as to vmefhcr ths dtent vyouW be eligible for re^dmbsldn to

.  tfcalimenl.lfappDoabte;end
11.2.6. The dated signature of the counselor completing (he summary.

11.3. The dtecharge sumnury shall be completed:
^ 11.3.1. No latw than 7 days fbOowIng a dlenfs discharge or transfer from the program;

Of ■

11.3.2. For wfthdrawal management services, by the er>d of the nerrt business day
fbUowir^ e cQenfs discharge or transfer from the program.

11.4. When trarwferring a client, either from one level of care to another wfthln the same
certUled Contr^or agency or to another treatment Contrador, the oounselof shaD:

11.4.1. Complete a progress note on the cfienfs treatnwri and progress towards
treatment goats, to be included In the cQenfa record; and

11.4.2. Update the dtem assessment and treatment plan.
11.5. When transterring a cCenl to onother treatment ContiBdor, the current Coittractor

. Shan forward copies of the following iriformatfon to the roceMng Contractor, only after"
a release of confidential Information Is signed by the client

11.5.1. The dlscttarge summary;
11.5:2. Cflent demographic InfofTnallon. Induding the dtents name, date of birth,

address, telephone number, and the last 4 digits of his or her 6oda] Securfiy
number; and

11.5.3. A dlagnosflc asseasmant statement and other assessment Infcrtnatfcn
tndudlnig:

11.6.3.1.TBtsstresults;
^  11-6.3.2.ArB00fdpflhecflenrstiea1menthl6t0fy;end
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11.5.3.3. Eiocumchiatton of any oourt^ndated or egency-raoommenddd toitow-uo
'  treatment

11.6. The counselor ehal) meet with the cftenl et.the time of discharge or tranafer to
establish a continuing care plan that:

11.6.1. Includes reoommendeitens for continuing care in en A8AM domains;
•  ' 11.65. Addresses the use of eelt-heip groups Including, when Indicated. fecDItated eelf-

help;end
11.6.3. As^s the cflent (n making corrtect with other agencies or services.

11.7. The counselor shall document In Ihe.cQent record (f and why the meeting In Section
11.6 above could not take place.- ^ .

11.0. A Contractor may administratively discharge a cllerrt from a progrem only ff:
11.8.1. The cOenVe behavior on progrem preniebs Is abusive, violent, or iQegal;
11.65. The cOent Is ndO'Compll^t li^h prescription medlcaUqns;
11.6.3. CDnlc^ staff documents therapeutic reasons for discharge, which may indude

the diwfs continued use of Utal drugs or an unwOnngness to teDow appropriate
cQnical Interventions; or . ^

11.8.4. The client violates program rules In a manner tttat is oonslsieni whh the
Contractor's progressiire disdpKne policy.

12. Olcnl Record System.
12.1. Each Comractor ehall have poQdes and procedures to Implement a comprehenstwe-

^  dtent record.system, In cither paper form or electronic fbrm, or both, that compiles
with thtt secfon.

The cflcm record of each dlent senred shall csommurtcats information In a manner that Is:
12.1.1. .Organized Into related sections with entries In chronobgical order;
12.1.2. Easy to read and underhand;
1Z1.3< Complete, oontainlrig aO the parts; and
12.1.4. Up-t^ate. iTKludlitg notes of most recent contads.

12.2. The.client record shall Include, at a minimum, the foOowlfM oomponents, organized
as foQows

1Z2-1- First section, Intake/InQial information:
125.1.1. Identification data, Indudlng the dienfs:

125.1.1.1.Name: •
12.2.1.15.Dateofb(rfh:
12.2.1.1.3. Address;
12.2.1.1.4. Telephone number; and

.  125.1.1.6. The last 4 digits of the cDent'sSodal Security number;
12.2.1.2. The date of adml^rx
.125.15. If either of these have been appointed (or the client, the name and address

of: ■■

125.1.3.1. The guardian: and
12.51.35. The representative payee;

125.1.4.Thft name,.address, arid telephone numtrer of the person to conl^ In the
event of an emergency:

125.1 .S. Contad tnformation for the person or entity refenfiig the cTient for senrlcaa,
asappOceble;

^  125.1.6.The name, ̂ dress, end telephone number of the prtmary health care
Cdntractor.
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12.2.1.7.The name, eddress. and telephone number of the beh^pral health care
Contractor, tf appneabte;

12.2.1.6.The namd and address of the dienfs public or prtvale health Insurartce
Contractpr<6), or both;

12.2.1.9. The cnenfe reil^lous preference, tr any; .
12.2.1.10. The cQenfa pereonet health hMory,
12.2.1.11. "The ORenrs mental health history;
12.2.1.12. Current medlcfilions; .
12.2.1.13. Records end reports prepared prbr to the cUent's current admission snd

determined tiy the counselor to be relevant; and
12.2.T .14. Signed receipt of notification of client rights;

12J2.2. Second section, Screenlng/Assessment/Evaluation:
12.2.2.1. Oocumentalion of el) etements of ecreenlng, assessment and evaluation

•requbed by Exhibit ̂  Secdons 6 end 10.2;
12.2.3. ThW section, Treatment Planning:

112.3.1. The (rtdMdual treatment ptan, updated at designated intervals In
eocordance with Sections 10.2 -10.5 above; and

12J^.3.2. Signed and dated progress notes and reports from ad programs-tnvolired,
as required by Sectlon i 0.6 above; . ■

12.2.4. Fourth section, Olscharge Planning:
12.Z4.1.A narrative discharge summary, as required by Sections 112 and 11.3

above;
122.6. ..Fifthsection,Releasesoflnfomiatlon/Ml^liaripoua;

12.2.5.1. Release oMnformaticn forms oompnant with 42 CFR, Part 2;
. 122.52. Any oorrespondence pertinent to the client; and
122.5.3. Any other Infonnation the Contractor deems slgrtlRcanl

12.3. If the Contractor utiOzea a paper format client record syirtem, then^the sediorts In-
Section 123 above ahaQ be tabbed sections.

12.4. If the Contractor utUtzes an etedronlc format, the sedbns.ln Section 12.3 above shall
not apply provided that all Information Qsted In Section 123 above b tnduded tn the
etectronloreoord.

-12.5. Ail cOent records maintained by the Contractor or Its aub-Ccntraetors. tnchiding paper
files, fecdmSa transmissions, or electronic data transfers, shaO be strictly oohridarrtlai.

12.6. - AD confidential toformatlon shaU be maintained wtthin a secure storage system at aO
tirhes as foOows:

12.6.1. Paper racords and external electronic storage media shall be kept tn locked file
cabinets;

12.6.2. AD electronic fdes shall be password protected; and
• 126.3. AO corrfidentla] notes or other matertab that do not require storage shall bo

shredded Immediately ofter use.
12.6.4. Contractors ahafl retain cBsnt records after the discharge or transfer of the cRent,

as follows;-

126.4.1. For a minimum of 7 years for an adult; and
126:42. For a minimum of 7 years after age of majority fbr chOdren.

.12.7., In the event of a program closure, the Ccntractor clo^ Be treatment program shafl
arrange for the oontlwed management of ell client records. The closing Contractor

VendorNsmo
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- Bhell notify the department In writing of the oddrese where reoorda be etored end
specify the person manegtng the records.

HQ. The closing Contractor shall enartge for storage of each record through one or more
of the followtng measured

12.Q.1. Continue to manage the records and give-written assurance to the depertment
that It wQt respond to authorized requests for copies of dlenl records !^lhln 10
working djays;

12.82. Tranter records of oDents vyho have -given written consent to another
Contractor or

12.8.3. Enter Into a lirrAed service organization agreement with another Contractor to
store ̂  manage records.

13. Medication Services.
13.1. -NoadministrBtlonof medlcattons, including phystdan samptes, shall occur except by

.  a licensed madlcaipractrtipner working wBhIn their scope of practice.
13.2. An prescription medications brought by a diant to program shall be in their orig!r\a)

containers and legibly display theTollowlng infonmailon:
132.1. The cflent'a name;
1322. The medicalion name and strength;
132.3. The prescribed dose;
132.4. The route of edrhlnlstration;
13.2.5. The.frequencycfa^ntstr^oniand
13.2.8. The date ordered.

' 13.3. Any change or dtscontinuatfon- of prescription medications shaQ require a wrftten
order from a ticerised practitioner.

13.4. AO prescription meidlcatlons. with the exception of nftroglycerin, epli>en8. and rescue
Inhere, which may be kept on (he dlenTs person or stored iri the cdenfs room. shaS
be stored as follows:

13.4.1. AO medicaUons shall be kept.ln a storage area that Is: '
13.4.1.1. lookedandacoessifaieQnlyloauthortzed personnel;
13.4.1.2. Organized to aQow correct Mentificatlan of each cOenfs msdicatlonts);
13.4.1.3. Illuminated In a manner sufTident to aOow reading of all medication tabeb;

and .
13.4.1 A. Equipped to maintain medication at the proper temperature;

13.42. Schedule I) oontroQed substances, as defined by RSA 318-8:1-b, shall be kept In
a separately locked compartment withtn the locked medication storage aiaa and
accessible only to authorized personnel; and

13.4.3. Topiccd Oqulds, cfntments, patches, creams and powder forms of products shaQ
be stored In e marmer euch'th^ cross-oonta^lnation wfth oral, opti^ ophthalmic,
end parenteral products shall not occur.

13.5. Medication belonging (o personnel shall not be accessible to cflente, nor stored with
cilent medlcatlori. .

13.6. Over-thftcounter <OTC) medicaUons shall be handled In the foUovring manner.
13.8.1. Only original, unoperied oontabisrs of OTC medicatloris shaQ be aliowed to be

brought mta the program;
ll62. ore medlcaten shall be stored In accordance with Section 13.4 above.

Vendor Name ^5^
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13.6.3., QIC medication oontatnem ehall be marked with (he name of (he client using the
medication end taken (n aocordance wtth the directlone on the medlcatbn
container or as ordered by a Qoensed practltoner;

13.7. AD medlceQons seS-edmfnistered by a client, with the exception of nHroglyoerln. ep^
pens, end rescue Inhalers, which may be taken by the dtent wfthout supervtalon,
shaO be supervised by the program staff, es follows:

13.7.1. Staff shaO.remind the cOent to take the corned dose of his or her medlcellon at
the correct time;

13.7.2. Staff may open the medicatton container but shall not be penntted to physteelly
handle tlW medication Hself In any marmer,

13.7.3. Staff shaD remain wUh the client to ob^rve them taking the prescribed.dose and
- type of rnadicatlon;

13.0. For each medication taken, staff shall document In an (ndrvtdual client medication log
the foUowIno:

13.6.1. The medication name, strength, dose, frequency end route of edmlnlstrBtton:
13.0.2. The date and the time the medicetlohv^ds taken;
13.6.3. The signature or Identifiable initials of the person supervising the taking of saJd

niedlcadon; end .
13.6.4. The reason for eriy medication refused or omitted.

13.6. Upon a cQanfa discharge:
13.0,1. The cCent medcatlon bg In Section 13.8 above shafi be Included In the cQenfa

record; and . . '
13.9.2. The client shall be given any remaining medicatton to take with him or her

14. Notice of Client Rtghts
• 14.1. Programs shall Inform clients of their rights unde.r these rules in deer,

understandable language end form, both verbally and In witting es foQowa:
14.1.1. Applicants, for aervtoes shaS be inform^ of their rights to eveluafions and

acoesa to treatment;
14.1.2. CQents shall be advised of their rtghts upon entry Into any program end at least

once a year after entry;
14.1.3. Inlllal smd annual notlflcallons of cOent rtghts In Section 14 above.sh^ be

documentad In the dlertfs record; end > ' -
14.Z Every program within the service de^ery system shall post nottoe of the r^hia, as

(otlows:
141.1. The notice ShaO be posted contlnuousty end conspicuously;
14.21. The notice shaO be presented In dear, understandable language and form; and
14.2.3. Each program and residence shall have on the premises complete copies of

rules pertaining to dlent rights that are svallable for cOent review.
15. Fundamental Rights.

16.1. No person receiving treatment for a substance use disorder shall be deprived of any
leg^ right to which all citizens are entitled eotely by reason of that person's
admtss^ to the treatment services system.

16. Personal Rtghts.
16.1. Persona who are appltonts for services or clients In the servloe delivery system shaO

be treated by program staff wtth dignity and respect at aD times.
16.2. Clients shafl be free from abuse, neglect and exptoltstton Indudtng, at a minimum,

the (bitowtng:.
VendofNams •
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16^.1. Freedom from eny verbal, norvverte), mental, physlceJ. or sexual abuse or
neglect;

16.2^. Freedom from the Intenltonal use. of physical force except the minimum force
necessary to prevent harm to the cOent or others; end

16.2.3. Freedom from personal or financial exploii^on.
16.3. • COentfl shall have the right to privscy.

.  17. Client ConWentlaifly
17.1. All ConiractoTB ̂ aO adhere to the confldentJaBty requirements in 42 CFR part 2.
17.2. In ca^ where a CDenl, attorney or other authorized person, after review of the

. record.-requests .copies of the record, a program shsU make* such copies available
free of charge for the first 25 pages ard not more than 25 oents per pc^e thereafter.

17.3. If a minor age 12 or older Is treated for'drug abuse wflhout parental consent' as
authorized by RSA 318:B12-e, the following shall apply:

17.3.1. The minor's signature alone shall authortze a disclosure; and
17.3.Z Any ffisdosure to the minor's parents or- guardians shall require a signed

au^dzation to release.
IB.CQentOrtevanoes

10.1. Clients Shan have the right to complain about any matter, Including any alleged
Elation of a right afforded by these rules or by any state or federal law or rule.

162. Any person shaB have.the right to complain or bring a grievance on behalf of an
Individual cfient or a group of brents.

16.3. The rules govemtng prooedures for protection of dient rights found at He^ 200 shall
apply to such oompt^ts and grievances.

19. Treatment raghts.
19.1. Each dIent shaD have the.right to adequate end humane treatment, Including:

,19.1.1. The r^ht of access to trealmenllncluding:
19.1.1.1. The right to evaluation to determine an applicant's need for servioes and to

determine which programs ae moist suited to provide the services needed;
16.1.12. The rlght to provlston of necessary services when those servfoes are

avallabte, subject to the admlsston and eiigtbliity poQcles and standards of
each program; and

19.1.2. The r^ht to quelUy treatnlent Indudino!
19.1.Z1. Services provided In keeping wHh evidenoe-based cUnlca) and profeasiona!

standards appQcabla to. the persons and progi^s proving the treatment
end to the condtlions forvdil^ the client is being treated;

19.1.3. The right to receive sermon. In such a manner as to promote the dfenfs fiiD
participation In the community;

19.1.4. The to receive sO services or treatment to which a -person b entitled In
acoordan.ee v4lh the time frame set (brih In the cUenfs Individual traalmwrt plan:

19.1.5. The right to an Individual treatment plan dev^ped, reviewed and revised in
accordance with Sections 10.1 - 10.5 above whl^ ̂ dresses the dienfs own
goals;

19.1.6. The right to receive treatment and sendees contained In ah IndMdua! treatrnent
plan ̂ signed to provide opportunities for the client to participate In meardngful
activities in the communities In which the cUent Dves and works;

vendor Nsme '
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10.1.7. The right to ecrvtee and treatment In the least restdctive atemettve or
envlronmont necessary to achieve the purposes of freatment Indudinq proBroms
which loeGt restrict

10.1.7.1. Freedomof movement; end .
10.1.7.2. Padletpetlon In the community, while providing the level'of Gupport needed

■  bythccDent;
19.1.0. The righl to be Informed of eO significant rfsJta, benefits, eide effects end

aUemathre treatment end services end to glw consent to any treatment,
placemen! or refenal foOowIng an Informed decision such that:

10.1.8.1. Whenever possible, the consent shaD be given in writing; end
10.1.8.2. In 80 o9ter ce^. evldenoe of co^nl shaD be documented by toe program

end shall be witnessed by at least one person;
19.1.9. The fight to reftjse to partidpate In any form of expertmenl^ treatment or

research;
10.1.10. The right to be fully Informed of one's own dtagrvosls end prognosis; ■
19.1.11. The fIgW to voturrtsry placement Including the right to:

10.1.11.1. Seek changes In placement, servfocs Of treatment at any time; end
19.1.11.2. Wdhdraw from any form of votuntary treatment or flom the saivlce-

delivery eystem;
19.1.12.The fighl to services which promote trslependenoe Including services dlrectrt

.  toward:
19.1.12.1. ERmlnating, or redudng as much as possible, the cGenfs needs for

• continued services and trestment; and
•19.1.12.2. Promoting the abBity of the cOents to function at their highest capacity and

es Indep^ently as possible;
19.1.13. The r^ht to refuse medlcstion and treatment;
19.1.14.The right to referral for medical care and • treatment Indudfng, If needed,

assistanoe lit finding such care in a timely manner;
19.1.15. The fight to consultation end second opinion Includtng:

19.1.19.1. Al the cDenfs own expense, the consultative cervices oh
19.1.15.1.1. Private physicians;
19.1.15.1.2. Psychologists;
19.1.15.1.3. Licensed drug and aloohot counselors; end
19.1.15.1.4. - Otlier health prectitlonerB;ar^

10.1.15.2. Granting to such health p/a^tonera reasonable accesa to the cQant as
required by Section 10.1.1$, In programs'and eHov^ such pr^Hlonere
to make reoomfflendaUons to programs regarding the servloes and
treatment provided by the programs;

19.1.16. The flgW, ttoori request, to have one or more of the followtng present et any .
beatment meettog requiring dlont partlctpstlon and informed dedsto^maldna:

18.1.18.1. Guardian;
19.1.16.2. Representative;
10.1.16.3. Aftorney;
10.1.16.4. FamOy member; '

■  ■ ■• 19.1.16.5. AdvDGBte:or
10.1.16.6. Consultant; and

Vendor Nsme
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• ■''•■'.•"•J'U "BM to freedom tram restreht IncludlrtB the right to be Bee Bom sectusicr
.. P'VBlcal, mechanical Of phamiaeoiooteal restralnl.

19.3. ehoD. whenovcf poflslble. maximize the decision-making authorfty of the
followtnfl provisions shall apply to clients for

ID ouardlsn hu been appointed by a court of comprtent jurtsdicllon;The pr^ram shall ensure that In the course of scrvtee provision, the ouanjtanarri^ persons Involved In the provision of servloe ere made aware of the
cilenfB views, preferences end es^lons;

Bhan only rnake decisions that are wtlhin the scope of the powers sd
•  . 'f'the guafdtanshlp order Issued by the court;

fluardianship order from the guardian
l a AA 2 ^•"Wteclienfe record at the program;Brtse rê  to the provlston of services end siip^ which ere

■  oSSten^r!^^ as set forth In the
I  ® c#iolce-end preference relative to those Issues'

■  0i*ar<llan'e authority Is expanded by the court to lnctude
to prcvcni a guardian from

iD A?f^ ^2^ der^lorwmaWng eulhwily granted by the coUrt Includfng:19.4.5.1. R^Ing wdh the guardian the Dmtts on his or her dedslbn-maklno
■eutnority: and • "

Ihagw^' "" "»® =«"< thatappolnlBd
BtJardtan ,sh^ take Into

4D4tD 2^^^®^®®'^*!)®^®^'P'®'BrenDesandasplT8ltonsofthectIen!: •9.4.9. JJJB P^ram shall tato such steps as ere necessary to prevent a guardian froiri"
acting In a TOnner thai does nol further the best Interests of the dlent anl if
neoeswy, bring the matter to. the attention of the court that appolnled tte
guardian; and .

®  between the program and the guardian, the^^rem ̂ 80 inform the guardian of his or her rfght to bring the di^e to the
.20. Termfrratton^ sS^ '

on terminated from a Contractor's service If tto cCentthreatens to endanger other cfienls or staff/or engages In illegal
oA.n ®®®^o"^P"»PCrtyofthepfogTBfn; ®
201 0 he Of she Is reoeMng;W.IJ. egree with the program on a mutually acceptable drerw of treatment20.1.4. RefuBM to pay for the services that he or she Is receiving despHe havlrn tl»

finandaJ resources to do so- or '*»»»»« rwvir^ ir«

^ear^^ the feet that the dtent is or mighl be eligible for such
Vendor Name
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20.2. A tennination from a Contractor'e services shaD not occur unless Ihe program has
given both wrHteri and verbal notice to tho cDonI and cDent'o guardian, If any that:

20.2.1. Olve the effective date of tarmlnation;
20.2.2. List the cOnlcaJ or management reasons for lenninatlon; and
20.2.3. Explain the rtghts (o appeal and the appeal process pursuant to He-C 200.

20.3. A Conbactof shall document In the record of a cQent who has been terminated thai*
20.3.1. The cQent has been ftotirifid of (he termination; and
^.3.2. The termtnatldn ttas been approved by the progr&m director.

21. Client Rights (n Residential Progrsma.
21.1. In additton to the foreg<^ rights, clients of resldenllal prograrns shall also have the

foOowfng rights:
21.1.1. The fIghMo a safe, sariltary and humane living cnvlfonment;
21.1.2. TheHghltoprtv^olycofnnnjnlcatewithother8.,lhcludlng:

21.1.2.1. The rtghl to setid and receive unopened and uncensored oorrespondertoe;
21.1.2.2. The r^ht to have reasonable access to telephones arid to be allpwad to

make and to reoefva reasonable rtumbers of telephone. caDs except that
residential programs rriay require a cCenI to reimburse them fax the cost of
any caDs made by the dlent;

21.12.3. The rtghl to recefve and lo refuse to receive visitors except that resldantlal
programs may Impose reasonable restrfctions on the number and time of
vlslla In order to ensure effective provision of eervlces; and

21.1.3. The right to eng^ In social and recreational activities Including the provision of
regular opportunities for clients to engage In such activities;

21.1.4. The right to prtvacy, Including the iWlowtng:
21.1.4.1. The rtgW 4o courtesies such as ImocWng on dosed doors before enledng

and ensurtng privacy for telephone caSs and vblts;
211.4.2. The right to opportunities for pereonal interaction In a prfeate setting except

that any condud or acttvlty whleh to'lDegal shafl be prohibited; and21.1.4J. The rtghl to be ffae flom searches of their persons and possessions except
In accordance with appHcable constllutlona) and legal standards;

21.1 .S. The i^ht to IndMdual choice. IrKliidlng the following:
21.(.S:! The right to keep.end wear their own clothes;
21.1.6.2. The right to space for personal posesslons;
21.1.5.3. The right to keep and to read materials of their.own choosing;
21.1.5.4. .The right to.ke^ end spend their ovm money; end
21.1.5.5. The right not to work arxl to be compensated for any work performed

•  except that:
21.1.5.5.1. Cflents may be required to perfarm perBonal housdteeping taste

within the dient's own immediate Ovlng area end equitably share
housekeeping taste whhln the oommon areas of (he residenoe,

. without oompenaatlon; and
2l.1.6.5.z .CDeftts may perform vocational learning taste or work required far

the operation or malntenanoe.of a resldenUal program, if the work b
corbbtent with their tndivldua) treatment plans end the client b
compensated for work performed: and21.1.6. The right to be reimbursed for the tote, of any money held In safekeeping by the

residenoe.
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2U.

21.3.

21.4.

21.5.

21.6.

^thlng In Section 21 ehaD prevent a residence from havtng ponctes oovemlng the
behavtorofiheresldente. »r »
CGents ehpn bo {nformed of eny houM poflcles upon edmlesbn to Iho residence.

pondes shall be pasted artd such policies shaH be In conformity %s(tih this
oecnor).

House poOctee shall be periodically reviewed for compliance with Ihb secllon In
connection with quality assurance Site vl^s.
Notwrtthslanding SecUon 21.1.4.3 above. Contrectora may develop poUcIes end
prooedurcs that albw searches for alcohol pnd ffitea drugs be conducted;

2.1.6.1. Upon the cllenfs admlsston to the program; and
21.6.2. If probable cause exists, Including such procrf as;.

21.6.2.1. A posdlvB test showing presence of alcohol or IDegai drugs; or
21.6.2.2. Showing physical signs of WoJdcatlon or wlthdrawBl.

22. State and Federal Requb^ents '
conflict In the requirements feted below, the

appDcule Federal, State, and Local regulallons. rules end requirements shall
comroL The requirements specified below are provided herein to tncrease the
Contractor's compQartce. ^ .
The Con tractor agrees to the foQowlrrg state end/br federal requtrements for Program
r^utroinents for specialty treatm^t tor pregnant and parenting women;.
21.2.1. The program treats lhe famHy as a unit and, therefore, admits both

worrwn end their children into treatment, If appropriate.'

22.2.

21.2.2.

21.i3.

21.2.4.

21:2.5.

20.6.

21.2.7.

21.Z8.

The prograni treats the family as a unit and, Ihereforo, admits both vwmen
and their cNbtren Into trealmenl. If appropriate.

The pfogram provides or arranges for pfimary medical care for women
who teoelving substance abuse servicos, Including prenatal care.
The -program provides or arranges for child care with the women ere
reoeMng servloes.

The prpgram provides or arranges for primary pedlatrlc cate for the
women's children, tnctuding Immunizations.

The program provides or arranges fox gendef-spocWc substance abuse
treatment and olher therapeutic imerverttlons for woman that may address
Issues of relationships, sexual abuse, physical abuse, end parenting.
The program provides or arranges for thexapcutlc Intervamtons for children
In custody of women In treatment wtfeh may, among other things, address
the chBdrana developmental needs and their Issues of sexual abuse,
physical abuse, and neglect

The program provU.es or arrarrges for suffldenl case rnanagament and
Iranspoxtatton servtoes to ensure that the women and their chD^ have
aoc^ to the servtoes described above.
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22.a. ^ge tor acUvfltes to essfet the dlert In finding and engaging In a service'
eir H*® *0 ®" approprtate
IS ° ®ervlcfi provWer. setting up appointmenta for(tola thoM providers, and assisting the client wHh eKendIng appotntmerrts with

ine sen/ice provider.

l*lf federal requtrementa for aDpipgrams In this ContrBct as foQows:

SSH*'" ̂  Pf reaching 90% of capacity, the program notifies the state thatutm capacity has been reached.
22.4.2. The pfogram admits each Individual who requests and is In.need pf treatment tor

tntrwnous drug abuse not later than:
22.4.2.1.14 days bft^ rnaklng the request: or
22.4.2.2.120 days If the program has no capacity to admit the individual on the date

^  of the request and, within 48 hours after the recjuest, the' program makes
Intonm aervtees available unin the WMdual Is admitted to a substance'•
abuse treatment program

r? services that Include, at a minimum, the followlng:22.4.3.1. Counsefing and educatton-about klV and Tubercuiosis (TB). the risks of
ne^le-eharing. the risks of transmission to sexual partners and Wants and
steps that can be taken to ensure that HIV and TB transmlssfon does not

22.4.32. Referral for HIV or TB treatment services, if nacessary22,4.3.3. Individual and/or group counsefing on the effects of alcohol and other drug
use on t^ fetus for pregnent women and referrals for prenatal care fbr
pr^nant women

Hi® program has established a waiting list that Includes a unique patient.identlfer ̂  each Injecting drug abuser seeWng treatment, Including patienta
mceMng Intertm servloes vmQe awaiting adrhlsslon.

22.4.6. The program has a mechanism that enables It ta*
22.4,6.1. Maintain contact with Individuals awaiting admission
22.4.62. Admit or transfer waiting list cfierrts at the earliest possible time to an

^^opfl8le^treatmem program within a eervtee area that Is reasonable to
thedicnt

22.4.6.3. The program takes dients awaiting treatment off the waiUng Ost only when
one of the-fbOowIr^ condlUons exbt
22.4.52.1. Such persons cannot be located for admission Into treatrr\brt

. or

22.4.5.3.2. Sud) persons refuse treatment

22.4.8. The program carries out artlvtiles to encourage indWduals In need of treatment
servtoes loundefgo treatment by" using sdentificaOy sound outreach models

. euch as those outOned below or. if no such models are appQc^le to the local
situation, another approach which can reasonably be expected to be an effective
outreach method.

22.4.7. The program has procedures for
22.4.7.1. Selecting, training, and supendslng outreach workers.

Vendor Neroe •

RFA201MOAS.01-8U8ST ^5&
P80O2tof24 Conl8Ctarl;^J3^_
•  D8tr_eaiafl



New Hampahfre Department of Health and Human Servlcoa

Exhibit A-1 OperationBl Requtrirrents

an** folkwrfng up with hlph-risk substance^sem. and nelghbortwod resWanta within the oonatralms
of Federal and State confldentlanty requirement®

22A.73.^^\nq^Ttf)6t9 among Injecting drug abusera about the relatjonshia
99 Ay A InJ^np drupebuse and comrnunlcable diseases suCh as HIV22.4.7.4. Rwm^ding steps that can be taken to erwuro that HIV transmteslon

.woes not occur.

ananBcmenls with other pubOc a nbi«toft

22.4.6.1. Counseling the Individual with reaped to TB.
■  Individual has bCM Infected wtthmy^^a TB to determine the appropriate form of treatmchl fOr the

22.4.8.3. PfovIdJ^ for d* referring the IrxJivIduab. infected by mycobacteria TB
•  . appropriate medical evaludion and treatment.

'  ̂ ̂  program on the basis of lack of capacity, the
99A 4n 52?^"* cfienis to other provldera of TB eervlcea.
'  procedures that aree^bDshed by the Department to prevent Ihe transmlsalon

or TB and that address the foQowtng:.
22.4.10.1 Screwing ̂ nts and Wsntilicatton of Ihosa IndMdualB who are at hloh

risk of becoming Infected. **
22.4.10:2. l^etlng all reporting redulrements while adhering to Federal end
-yoAAfi« ?® conWcntisDty reqdrementa. Including 42 CFR part 2.22.4.10.3. management ectlviUfts to ensure that IndMdials receive such

services.

22.4.10.4 ■ The program reports at! individuals wtth ectivG TB as required by State

22.4.11 gh^ preference in admission to pregnant women who seek or are
would benefit from Block Qrant funded treatmenl services:

^ .i 4 - ̂  program gives preference to dlents In the foliowing order
22.4.11.1. To pregnant and lr\|ecting drug userefdst
22.4.112. Toother pregnant substance users second.
22.4.11.3. To other iryectir^ drug users third.
22.4.11.4. To aO other individuals fourth.

22.4.12.The pfogmrn refers aD prastttnl WDmen to the State when the progrem has

22.4.13.The profl^m makes available .Interim servtoes within 48 hour® to prennant
v> A 4AIJ!?"®" cannot be admitted because of lack of capacity.22.4.14. Theprogrem rrtekes continuing education In treatment services avaOable to

cmpioyees who provide the services o^cwawc lo

InsPPloprtafe

Vendor Name
RFA-201MOAS4)1-SUBST
Page 22 of 24 contaaorlnffla»;_J^
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Exhibit A'1 Operatfonaf Requirements

22.4.15.1. I8 In compliance, with all Federal and State oonndenllaray requlrementa
lnctudlng42CFRpart2/ » i

22.4.15.2.. Incli^ pfovlstena for employee education , on the confWenUalJ^
fequfremertts and the fad that disciplinary action may occur upon
Inappfoprlate dlsdosuie.

22.4.ie.pre p^ra^does not expend SAPt Block Grant funds to provtde Inpatlcnt
hospita) eub^ce abuse services, except In cases when each of the followlna
conditions Is met:'

22.4.16.1. The IndMdual cannot be effectively treated In a comrnunity-basad herb
hosphal, resldentlBl program.

22.4.16.2. The daDy rate of payment provided to the hospital for providing" the
services does not exceed the comparable daDy rate provided by a
convnunRy^based. norv-hospSal, residential program.

22.^.16.3. A physldan makes a dctermlnatton that the foUowIno conditions have
been met . • .
22.4.18.3.1. The primary diagnosis of. the IrwlMdual Is substance abuse .

. ̂j^Jh^hysldan certifies that (act
22.4.16,32. The Individual cannot be safely (reined In a communliy-

hased, norv-hospftal, residential prc^ram.

. 22.4.1B.3.3. The service can bo" reasonably expected to Improve the
person's condition or level of functioning.

22.4.16.3.4. The hospttaUtasfid substance abuse program follows
riational standards of substance abuM professbnel practice.

22.4.16.3.5. The service Is provided only lo the extent that It b medically
necessary (e.g.. only for those days the! the pattern cannot be
safely treated In communlty-based. nor>^ospllaI, residerilla!
program.)

22.4.17.The pogram does not expend Substance. Abuse Prevcnttan and Treatment
(SAPT) Block Grant funds to purchase or Improve land; purchase, construct, or
permanently Improve (other'than mlnar remodertng) any buUdhg or other fadltty
or purchase maior msdlCBl equipment.

22.4.18.The program does not expend SAPT.Block Grant funds to satisfy and
requtrement fbr the expenditure of rtorvPederal funds as e condition for the
receipt of Federal funds.

22.4.19.The program does not expend 8AFT Block Grant funds to provide flnandaJ
^ it ^®ar»etoany entity other than o public or nonprofit pdvale wiity.22.420.^8 program does not expend SAPT Block Grant funds to make paymente to

Intended rectptents of health services.
22.4J1.The pogram does not expend SAPT Block Gran! funds lo provide individuate

with hypodermic needtes or syrtrtges.
22.42a.The program does not expend SAPT Bock Grant funds to provide treatment

senrlces In penal or corrections mstmittons of the State.

Vendor Name

Consetowacl,:
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Exhibit A-1 Operational Requlremients

22.4^3.The program uees the Block Grant as the 'paymeni of last resorf for servtces fer
pregnant women and women with, dependant chDdren, IB eervices, and Hh/

,  Senrtoae end, therefore, makes every reasonabte effort to do (ho foltowhg; •
22.4^3.1. Collect netrhburaement fbr the coste of providing auch aervfces to pereone

entttled to Ineurance bcncfita under (he Social Security Act Indudlna
programs under tHIe XVIII end (lUe XIX: any State compensation progrant
any other public.assfstanoe program for ihedl^ expenses, any gram
progrem, any prtvate health insurance, or any other benefrt pfogram.

22^23.2.-Secure from patients of cllento payments for services In accordance wllh
thdr abDIty to pay.

22.4..24.Th8 Cofttractof shaff.wmply wItivblrRievant state and federal laws such as but
not Ihnted to:

22^.24.1. The Contracfor shafl^ upon the dlredion of the State, provide court-
ordered wluatlon and a sliding fee scale (In ExhlbR 6) shall apply and.
submission of the court-ordered evatualion and shaB, upon the dbccflon of
the State, offer treatment to those IndMduais.

22.4.24.2. The Contractor ahaJl cpnipV with the tegal requirements governing human
subJecTe research when cortsWertng research, Including research
conducted by student interns, using Individuals aenred by this contract as
Eut^acts, Cbnl/adors must inform and receive the Department's approval
prior to Inltialtng any research Invotvtng subjects or participants related to
this contract The Department reserves the right at Qs sole discretion, to
reject any such human subjed tosearch requests.

22.424.a.-Contr8ctOfS shall comply with the Oepartmonrs Sentinel Evortt Repoidno
Pcttiy.

Vendor NtmS "

Contactor
p«8«j4o»s4
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Pavmenj

Contractor an amount not to exceed the Prfoe Umltattcn,
BIock 1.8, of the QeneiBl Provisions, for the services provided by the Contractor
pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. . This Agreement Is funded by;
2.1. New Hampshire General Funds;

2.2. Oovemof's Cdmrhlsslon on Alcohol ertd Drug Abuse Prevention,
• Treatment, and Recovery Funds;

2.3. Federal Fun^ the United States Department of Health and
Human Servtees. the Substance,Abuse and Mental Health Senrices
Admintetration, Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block
GranUCFDA #93.959); and

2.4. The ConlTBctor agrees to provide the servloes In Exhibit A. Scope of
Services in compliance with federal funding requirements.

3. Nan Relmbursemeint for Services ; ' '
3.1. The State will not reimburse the Contractor for services provided

through this contract when a client has or may have an alternative
payer for services described the Exhibit A.Sbope of Work, such as but
not limits to:.

3.1.1. Servtees covered by any New Hampshire Medicald programs
fbr clients who are eligible for Now Hampshire Medlcaid

3.1.2. Services covered by Medicare for dlcnts who are eligible for
Medicare

3.1:3. Services covered by the cTienfa private !nsurer(8) at a rate
greater than the Contract Rate in Exhibll B-1 Service Fee
Table set by the Department

• 3.2. ■ Notwtthstartding Section 3.1 above, the Contractor may seek
relmbura^ent from tfte State for services provtdod under this contract
when a client rweds a service that is not covered by the payers listed In
Jetton 3.1.,

4. The Contractor shall bill and seek relmburaemeht fbr actual services dellvei^ by
fee for servtees In Exhibit B-1 Service Fee Table, unless otherwise stated.
4.1i The Contractor agrees the fees for servtees are aU-lndusive contract

rates to deliver the servloes (except for CGnteal Evaluation which Is en

MmehuWw AtahoBsm RfltiiiStsSon Ceniar &MbaB VVndoitoib_j^L
RrA-aai«QAM»^BST^ p.9oiar« OAjaitU-
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Exhibit 9 .

actMty that Is bnied for separately) and are the maximum fillowable
charge calculatinfl the amount to charge the Department for servfces
delivered as part of this j^reement (See Section 5 below).

5. Calculating the Amount to Charge the Department Appllcabte to All Servtcea In
Ejdiiblt B-1 Service Fee Table.
6.1. The ContrBClor shall;

6.1.1. Directly bid and receive payment, for eervtces and/or
,  transportation provided under this contract from pubDc and

private hsurance plans, the clients, and the Oepartmeht

5.1.2. Assure a billing and payment system that enables expedilBd
pnooesslng to the greatest degree possible In order, to not
delay a cflenfs admittance into the program ■ arxi to
Immediately refund arty overpayments.

. .. . Maintain an accurate accounting arid recordp for all serviMs
Wiled, payments received and overpayments (Hany) refunded.

5.2. The Contractor shaill determlrte.and charge accordlrtgly'^for servfoes
provided to an eligible client under this contract as follows:
5.2.1. First Charge the cOenfs prtvate Insu^ce up to the Contract

Rate. In Exhibit B-1, when the Insurers* rates meet or are
lower than the Contract Rate In Exhibit B-1.

■ 5.2.2. Second: Charge the dienl accoMIng to Exhlbtt B. Section 7.
Sliding Fee Scale, when the Contractor determines, or
antlclpalOT that the prtvate Insurer will not remit payment for
the toll ariiount of the Contract, Rate In Exhibit B-l'.

5.Z3. Third: If..any portion of the Contract Rate In Exhibit B-1
remains unpaid, after the Contractor charges the dienfs
Insurer (If appPicable) and the.cltant, the Contractor shaD
charge the Department the balance (the Contract Rate In
Exhibit B-1. Senrlce Fee Tablo less the amount paid by private
Insurer and the amount paid.by the client).

5.3. The Contractor agrees the amount charged to the dlent shall not
exceed the Contract Rate in ErmiWl B-t, Service Fee Table multiplied
by thd pOffBspondlng percentage stated In Exhibit B. Section 7 SBdlng
Fee Scale for the clients appOcabie income level.

MxndtertffAtohgflOTRoriaMBiflooCcn^ ■ Vtoeorw».j;^^
tVMOWSMCiSxaST^ pggaltffl Cto Ml/IB
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5.4. The Contractor win assist clients who are unable to secure financial
resources necessary for Inidal ent7 Into ttie program by developing
payment plans.

5.5. The Contractor shall not deny, dej^^r discontinue services for enrolled
clients who do not pay th8ir!:.feVs In Section 6.2.2 above, until after
working with the diem as In Section 5.4 above, and only when the dient
falls to pay their fees wdthln thirty (30), days after being tnformed In
writing and counseled regarding finandal responslbiltty and possible
sanctions induding discharge {rom treatment

5.8. The Contractor will provide to cflenls, upon request copies of their
fInandaJ accounts.

5.7. The Contractor shall not Ct^rge the combination of the public or prtvate
)r\6urer, the client and the -Oepartment an amount greater than the
Contract Rate In Exhibit 8-1.

5.5. In the event of an overpayment wh^n, the combination of aD
payments received by the Contractor for a given service exceeds the'
Contract Rate stated In Exhibit 8-1, SeivlGe Fee Table,' the Contractor
shaO refUrtd the parties in the reverse order, unless the overpaymem
was d.ue to insurer, dlent or Departmental error.- •

5.9. In Instances of payefr error, the Contractor shall refund the party who
erred, and adjust the charges to the other parties, according to a correct
application of the.SIiding Fee Schedule.

5.10. In the event of overpayipent as a resuH'cf billing (he Oepartmerrt under
this contract when a (hind party paysr would have covered the servtoe.
the Contractor must repay the state In an amount and within a
tlmeframe agreed upon between the Contractor and the Department
upon Identifying toe.error.

6. Additional Billing Information; Intensive Case Management Services;
6.1. The Contractor shaD charge In accordance with Section 5 above for

lntensh« case management ur*def this contract only -for clients wtw
have been admitted to programs In accordance to Exhibit A, Scope of
Services and after blUIng other public and prfvate Iraurance.

6.2. The Oepartmern will not pay for Irttensrve case managemertt provided to*
a cflent prior to admission.

MsncMs/AicohafismrUhiemsSoflCtntsr EittOS VcnUsrtiatii

RFfctfitjeowoi-sussT^ PBstscre r»itt wi/is
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6.3.

7.

The Contractor wiU blU for Intensive case managennent only when the
aenrtce b.aulhortzed by the Department

SOding Fee Scale
7.1. • The Contriactor shall apply the eliding fee scale In accordance with

Exhibit B Section 5 above.

7.2. The Contractor shall adhere to the sliding fee scale as followa:

Percentage of Client's
Income of the Federal
Poverty Level IFPL)

Percentage gf
Contract Rate In
Exhibit B-l to

Chame the Client
09^136% 0%

•  139%. 149% 6%
150%. 199% 12%
200%. 249% 25%-
250%. 299% 40%

300%-349% 57%
350%-399% 77% • .

7.3. The Contractor shall not deny a minor child (undw the age of 10)
services t>ecau^ of the parent's unwliringness to pay the fee or the
minor child's decision to receive confkfentla) services pursuant to RSA
3ia-B;12-a.

Submttlir>g Charges for Payment
0.1. The Contractor shall submit blOirtg through the Website Information

Technology System (WITS) for services listed fo Exhibit B-1 ^rvlce
Fee Tablo. The Contractor-Shan:

8.1.1.

6.12.

6.1.3.

8.1.4.

\

Enter encounter note(s) Into WTTS no later than three (3) days
a^er the date the service was provided to the client

Review the encounter notes no later than twenty (20) days
following the last day of the billing month, and notify the
Department that wcounte; notes are ready for review.

CpfTbct errors, If eny, In the encounter notes, as Identified by
the Department no later than seven (7)' days after being
notified of the errors end rwtify the Department the notes have

■ l»een coirected and are ready for review.

Batch and transmit the encounter notes upon Department
approval for the bluing month.

Maneheatw McaWtam RetabOastton C^r

RTA^mMDASCl-eUSST^ Rie*4afe
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10.

Exhibit B

; 6.1.5. Submrt-Beparate batches for each billing month.
8.2. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after sixty (60)

days of the last day of the bUlng month may be subject to norii)aymenL
6.3. To (ha. extent possible, the Contractor shall bDI for services provided

under, this contract through WITS. For any aervfcea that are unable to
be billed through WITS, the contractor ahall work with the Department
to develop an alternative process for eubmitting Invoices:

"le pfogtam shall cortinue tooperate at tuD capacity at no charge to tt* Department for the duration of the
conract pertod.

Funds In this contract may not be used to replace funding for a program already
rundod from another source.

11. The extractor will kefep detailed records of their activities related to Department
funded programs and services. .

12. Notwltiista^lng anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement rnay be wtthheld. In whole or (n part In the event of
non^mpllancG wtth any Federal or Stale law. rule or regulation applicable to the
servloes provided, or if. the said aervloes or products have not been sattafactbhly
.completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement

13. Contractor wfD, have fbrty-five (45) days from the end of the contract pertod to
s^fTUt.to the Department final Invoices for paymertt. Any acljuatmenls made to a
pnor involoe will need to be acoomparfed by supporting documentation!

14. LImttattons and reetrtctiona of federal' Substance Abuse Prevention and
Treatment (SAPT) Bloqk Grarrt funds:
14.1. The Contractor agrees to use the SAPT funds as the payment of last

resort

14^2. The Contfador agrees to the followfng lUndlrtg restrictions on SAPT
•  . Block Grant ejtoenditures to:

14.2.1. Make cash payments to intended redpients of substance
abuse services.

14.2.2. Expend more than the arnouni of Block isranl fUrtds expended
In Federal Fjscal Year 199i for treatment services' provided In
penal or oorrectionaJ institutions of the State.

14.2.3. Use any federal funds provided under .this contract for the
purpose of conducting' testing for the etiologic agent te
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I • t

Human Immunodefidency Virus (HIV) unless such testing Is
accompanied by appropriate pre arvJ post-te^ counseling.

14.2.4. Use any federal funds provided under this contract for the
purpose of conducting any form of needle exchange,-free
needle programs or the distribution of bleach for the cleaning
of needles for intravenous drug ebusers.

14.3. The Contrador agrees to the Charttabte Choloe federal statutory
provisions as follows:

Federal Charitable'Choice statutory provisions ensure that
religious org^lratlqns are able to equally compete for Federal
substance -abuse fimding administered by SAMHSA, wfthoul
Irnpalrfng the religious, character of such organizatfons and
without diminishing the religious freedom of SAMHSA
benefidarfes (see 42 USC 300x^5 and 42 CFR Part B4Bnd
Part 64a; 45 CFR Part 06, Charitable Choloe Provisions and
Regulations). Charitable Choice statutory provisions of the
Public Health Sen/Ice Act enacted by Congress in 2000 are
applicable-to the SAPT-Block Grant program. No funds
provided dlre^y SAMHSA or the relevant State or local
government to organizations partidpeUng In appncable
programs may be expended for Inhcfently rellgtous activities,
su^ as .worship, religiDus fosfruction. or proselyflizatlpn. If an
organization conducts such activWes. it must offSr them
®®P®rately, In time or location, from the programs or services ■
for which It receives funds directly from SAMHSA or the
relevant State or local goveirnment under any applicable
program, and participation must be volunta^ for the program

-  beneHdaries.

MtfttftetlerAlcahsflsmRehibmutbnCeoiB/ EriAae yipffnr
RftWaiMIUS01.CU88T«7 .. Mifia
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Service Fee Table

1. The Conlmct Rales In the Table A are the marimum aUowaWe charge used In the Methods
for Charging for Services under this Contract (n E;d^IbK 8. '

Table A

Service

Comraet Rater
Uaxtmuro Allowable

Chame Unit

Clinical Evaluation $275.00 Per evaluation

IndMdua) Outoatient $22.00 ISmin

OrouD Outpatient 38.60 16 rrtn

Intenatve Outpatient. $104.00

Per dayi cniy on those
days when the client
attends IndMdual and/or •
gmu> counseling '
associated wHh the
prooram.

Partial HosottAnmifon $223.00

Per day. end crdy on those
days-when the diem
attends Indh/tdual artdfor
group counsell^
assc^sted with the
propram.

High-Intensity ResUenttal Aduft,
(exduding Pregnant end
Pprenting Women), tofcOnlcal
services and room and board $164.00 Perdav

MedicaUy Monitored Inpstient
Withdrawal Management (ASAM
Level 3.7 WM) $215.00 Per dav -.
Recovery Sup^c^ Senrtoes:
(ndMdual Intensiva Csse
Manaoement $16.60 ISmln
Recovery Support Services:
Oroup Intensive Case
Manaoefflent- $5.60 16m!n

Umbatcr AIgbMIbq ftshiMtuson OwScr
RM^M0ASei4UaST-e7

EtfiUB-r

Ptaeiori
ConstetDfWUt,

Oste.
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SPECIAL PROWfitnHy

Corar^ij^DBSllons: The Contractor covenents and eorees that an (unde reeaivftd hw th* r—i.,. i...

"• Oi» Comiiicto, h.r.by cowna^and

'E state Uws: If the Contractor to petmltod to determine Ihe ellcilbnitv

.  SSSS a™* SUSTa""

^  deternilnatlons shun be made on torme pmvSded by*

'' ih^t^nolJon tormi reqiM by the Oepartmert. ihe Conbactorredplent of eervtoes hereunder. which fDe ehafl toctude afl
®" elpIblDly detemilnation and euch other Infbrmatlan as the •

J , D^Poiwehi wtlh flO (bnwi and documarrtatlonregarding eflgtbUity determlnaSons that the Departmehl may request or require

SJSiS haw e rfght to a fair hearlrrg regandtog (hat determlnaltoA.The
SiaQSSte?ei!L^)!?in* ̂  !S®* oppDccnteforeervtcea ehaU be permitted to fin cut

^ b. totona^. a, hun«, dB« to a tol,

^P®'"™®*®'®5™»*^'**»«bmachctftN»Contrsdtoe(w^
■ Pi'?'' ̂  behalf of the Conlmctor. any Sub-Contmetor or

toSd tn^IuM^Ow p^rmenco of (he Scope of Work detaUed In Bdilbtl A of thi* ■
d^nSLJ{E>f!ili2L iJiiL eutwwntreo or iub-egre.ement D It isemployment of any kind were offered or renhed by
enyofRclals.omcerf.emptoyeeeora8efrtsofiheCflnlracforofSub-Ccntractor.

'" Nohilhitandlng ar^rthtog to (he oontraiy contained In the Contract or h any
hereto, (hat.no ̂ ents wfli be made hereunder to reimburse (he Controctor fbr costs tocuroi fbr

^  *® °7 P"®' *® »*® Eftocfi« Date of (he Contract
Pw?! ^ expense# Incurred by the Cenimdor tor any seivlces proulded

wrvloes or (except as otherwise provided by thefegmedons) prior to a determlnetlon that the IndMdual Is eOglble fbv cudt services.

'  anything to Ihe contrary contained In the CflnbBOl.noth!righereh cwtalned shbfl be deemed to obffgele or require the Oepartmert to purchase eervteet

iSS! ™ the Co?SU^a ratertMonato and necessary to assure the quaTrty cf such servlee.-or at a
S2f!i?2 ttef^ charged by (he Cortrector to ineWe IndlvlduaU or other third partythe term of this Contract or after recehrt of the ̂ l .

?• determine that (ha Controctor lus used .reimburse Hem of expense other then such cfiUi. or has'received payment
charged by the Contractor to tneOglble Individuals

or other Wrd party flinders, the Depaflmerrt may decl to: »«i- * u««

BmaQC-epoOUPronOJons c<msdezWBtii
taatfu

Q«t» aai/tp
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7.8. Demand rDpayment ol the emu paymert by the Conbactor In >ahlch evcm la&ma to make
eutfj r^yment ahall coneCtute an E)«ni of Oetauli hereunder. When the Contractor ta
pem^d to dctcrmtr* the eOglt^fity of tndMduala for servlcai, the Contractor Mreea to

tha Department for ell fund# paU by (ha Department to the Contrector for servfces
provMrt to wy MMdual who Is feund by (he Department to be tncQoible for eueh acrvloes'at
any tlmo durinfl the ported of retenaon of records estabDshcd herein.

RECORDS: MARtfTENANCE, RET0«mON, AUDfT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTlALTrY;

MaIntonanc®ofRocordi:ineddHlootothoeJl0lbnfiyreconls-8pccmedobove.thoCcnb8etof
flpwe to maintain the foOowlrtg reconts durlffl too ConOoct Pcrfod*8.1. Ftol Records: booka. records, documents end otter data evtdenebg and refiedinfl aO costs

-^otheraKpeftseslnoirTedbytheControctorinthepeffdrmonceoftheContrad end all
^ wllacted by the Conlractof during the Controct Period,"saW records to bemainlgrsed m eocorderrce WBh accounting procedures end pradfees which lufBctenfty and

f 75$ ei^nsei, and which ̂  eceeptsble to the Department and(olncude, without Qmitatfen. efl ledgara, books, reconds, end ort^iai evldcnco of costs auch as
pUTchase.regulafiions and crflere. vouchers, roqulsWons fbr matertals. Inventorias, valuaUona of
IMdndoortfrtbuttora. labor tim^ cards. payroOs, and other records requested or required by ite "
Department.

SA Statistical Records: Stafatl^ enroOmcnt sttersdancB or ̂sfl rgenids far r^ctplyrd of
servfm durtng (he Contrect.Pertod. which records shall Incfude an records of application and
eOgtblSty (Including aO fonns required to determine eOglbnify tot each such redptehO records
reganljng tho.provlston of servfces ond all Invoices submitted to the Department to ̂ tn
psymett fbr such servtoes.

6.3. Medical Records: Where .epproprtate end as prescribed by the Oopwtmert reguIaOons, tha
Cofttraetor shall retain medical records on each paOenl/teelpien! of services.

8. Audit: ConiTBctor shall submit en enrrual audit to ihe Department within 60 days alter tha closo of the
.a^tey Csea) year. Jt Is recommended thbtthe report bo prepared In eocoidance with the provt^nof
^0 frianagcment ond Budget Clnailar A-t33. "AudUs of States, Local Oovemmenls. and Non
Profit Organtttllons' and the provtslona of Gtandirds tor Audit of OovemmentaJ Organtiattons. •
Progrems, AAhrtbas end Functions. Issued ̂  the US OenoreJ Aocou/rtlnB OfSco (QAO standards) as
they pertain to AnondaloompQanco audHa.
9.1. Audit end Rm^ew: Du^ the term of thb Contract end the period for relarttlon hereunder (ha

pejartment. the Urrted States Department of Hoatth end Human Services, and any of their
designated rcpresentatlvee shaO have eoeen to aO reports ate records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audlL oxamlnailon. exoerpts and irerucrtpto.92. Audit UabOIdas: In addRten to and not In any way In nmftatlon of obDgetlons of the CcntracL ft Is
understood ate egreed by the ContrBctor that tha Contrector shaO bo hcW liable tor any stata
Of federal audit exoeptorts ateyiafl return to the Department, eO payments made under the
Contract to which exception has boon token or which have boen dlsaDowod because of such en
excepbon.

10. Confidormattty of fteeords: M hlbrmaton. repofta. end records maintained hcrounder orcbDected
w^conneetlon wflh the pcrfermsnce of the servfcai and the Centred shall be confidential end shaQ not
te disdosod by (ho Contrader, provided howxjvcr. that pursuent to stato taws and the regutatfams of
ihoOepamnent regerding the use and dtodosuro of such Infbrmatlon, dlsctosuro may bo made to
puwc offwah requtrtng such brfofmatten In cormectlon wHh ihelr offlclat duties and fbr purprnfls
obectly oonrteded to the admlrtfstreOon of (he services and the Contract; and provided further, that
tftewo or disclosure by any party of any Information concerning a reddcnl fbr any purpose not
dre^connec^ with tha edmhlstrBtlon of the Department or (ha CcntroclDrts respoftsIbPtffo wflh
roipect to pupdased oorvtecs hereunder ts proMMlad except on written consent of tha reetelent Ms
Bttorrroy or guardian. ^

EOiQiO C - fipadi) PnntiloRS Censncler biltilit

PMtdS "• Daw wtne
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contained herein the cover^arrta and conditions contained tn
the parasrepn ehau aurvlva the lennlnaiicn of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

liderim Rn^ial Reports: VVWBcn Werim Gnancfal reports containing a detafled desofpilon of
as ̂ ts and ran-eUowable expenses mcurred by the Contractof to the date of the mpoil end

^  Information as shaD be deemed eaUifaetOfy by the Oopartmoit to

11.1.

• . » " »—• • V t0i«wiM«s «~«9^rvita •tiwi HQ QUC

^  torn01 w» Contract The FIrtal Report ehafl be in a fbrm eattstactory to the Department and shall
contra eununaryslaterneni of progress toward goals end objectlvea stated in the Proposal
end other Informabon reqtdred by the Department •

12. C^iotten of Seivl^ DitaUowwtce of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
^i^^vtded for in the Contract and upon payment of the prtce-Omflatlon

K SfS tf* Conbad.and ail the ottfgatiohs of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as
-2? ̂rr* ere to be performed after the end of the term of this Ccniract and/or

Fb^ the Deparbrrent shaD disallow any experrsea claimed by the Contractor as
^ hereunder the Departmert ihal) retain the right at Its rflocreUon. to deduct the amount of such
ei^scs as are dlsaliowed orio recover such sums bom the'Cofttractor.

13. C^Ub: All do^wls, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
A^^sutting frtmi the performonee of.the services of the <>>ntrad ihaD ihdude the IMmvtna
13.1. The preparaUon^ tWa (report, document etc.) was financed.under a Contract with the State

2. lE'eSrS?®' Health and Human Services, with funds provided bi partby the state of Now Hampshfre snd/or such other funding aources as were avaSatto or
required, e.fl., the United States Department of ̂ llh and Human Sevfces.

14. Piter Appfovit and Copyrtght Ownership: All materfali (wrftten, vtdec. audio) produced or
under the contred shaD haws prior approval from 0HH8 betere prtnthfl. production

P  copyright ownerehtp for any and all origlrwJ matertalspnaduced. Indudrng. but not limited to, tmchiees, resource dlfectortes, proteoois cy guidelines
pwtere.«reports. Corwactpr ehd not reproduce any materfah produced under the ccntr^ without
prior written approval ftam DHH8.

16. ̂ eratiM of Failles: CompOance with Laws end Regulatiom: In tf« operation of arty facDJUes
terprMdmg seivlm, the Corttractor shaD comply with aO lews, orders and regutaUons of federal
state, county and munlripal eubtorflles and wRh any direction of siy Pubfic Offlcer or offteers
pumuant to wfjh shall Impose an onlcr or duly upon the contractor wfth respect to the
25lS«?J; provlslw of 1^ services a! such facility. If any governmental flcensp orfof Ihe operation of the aaid fsclEty or the performawa of the said servtoes,
ftocontra^r wfD procure said fleense or permb. and win at aO ttnei comply with the terms and
wttfCw ̂  es^ sudt Dcensfl cr permit In connection Wth the foregoing requt/eirvents, the
contryty hemby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Cohtract the fadliUea ehaO

S!"i5ir? ̂rytes. orders, regions, end requirements of the Stale Office of the Rro Uarshai and^ tô nre ̂ctecQon agency, end shaD be In confermanco with tocei buQdlng and rontng codes' bw
Bws end regulations. « /

IB. Plan (EEOP): The Coptreetor wlD provide an Equal Emptoyment

.  received a ahgle award of $600,000 or more. tftheredpleninedelvesSZti.OOOormoreandhastiOor

E*MMC~6oerf»iPro*talcm Con6idcrliflldi_^^L—
Dst* nairra
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^  ® «" EEOP Certfflealton Fom. to (h,
wSIfeS^ISsf^nT!^ 5JL #1 receiving tew than^5.000, or pubUc grantDes
PCrtorSiM!^.? o' tf'o amount of (he otvard, the fodplenl wtD provide onEWP CortWcatlon Form to (he OCR cert%lrtg it Is no) required to submtl or maintain an fpap Kim

ffiOPreolS^ nwJIcal and eduaUonalInaOiuDona are exempt froni the ■' *Hop f to Bubn^a cartificaiton torm to Ihe OCR to claim (he exemptisnEEOP Certfflcatlon Forma are evaSabJe at htlp7Aiuww.oJp.uBdoy8bout/oerfpdlWcertpdf.
17. Umted ̂ Qsh Proflc(eney (tEP): As clarlfted by executive Order 131M, tmprovlna Aooass to

^  Prpndency. and reiWDng agertcy i>!£Si"Sa^ odflln,  dbortrnmaflon IncWea discrtmlnation on the basis of DmBad Enolbh proflclency (LEPJ To enaum
Si Streeta Act of 1086 and Tnie Vl'cf the CMlRlgh^ Ad of 1664, Conlractore must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP penons hava
meadngfbtaocetitoB&progmma. « «"-cr jwww nava

^Enhanccmaot of Contractor EmpWyooWhlatleblowofPrDtocUonn: The
^R?ioiT^X

COWTRACTOR Employee WK1STUE0LOWEHR(0MTB ANDREQURCMEMrTo(NTORMEMPl,6yEE8OF. .
WwsTVEBiowER Rights (SEp 2013)

be wbjecl (o the whlaUebltnvar rfghti
iu/RT ^ Contrador empbyee.whlstlebtowerprotectioRsestablished at112^15*^ F>W SmJT Nallonel Defense AuthoftzoBon Act far Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L

.  (b)^e Comrwtw s^D Inform ds employees In wrtHng. Irt the predominant lanouaoe of the workforce
endprotedIonaunder4( y.S.C. 4712. as described In aedlon

3.608 of Ihe Federal Aoqulsflten Regulation.

■  <c)Jb^^ctpr ehaP Insert the aubstance of thb dause, Indudlng mis paragraph (c) In adsubcontractpvorthetimpDfladacquWBofithreshold • k* t./.incij

16, ai^pontiactoia; DHHS rooognltes Ihel the'Contrador may choose to use subcontredors with
pror expose to p^orm certain health care eervicee or tunctiefts for efficiency or convenience,
w (he Contractor ehaQ retain the responsibility and acoowitabHIty for the ftincfionfs). Prior to
Kl£S22!l®?iJSi" ̂  ®®'^bBctor ehaO evebiate Ihe subconlractorie ebOHy to perform the delegated

_? acoonipOshcd through e written agreement that tpeoTies acOvltles end reocrtiraend prevtdee for revoking (he detegeflon or Imposing urSottrl If
edequetc. ̂ oontractDn are subjed to the same ooiriracfoel

SSilteM Contractor is responelbla to ensure eubcontractor comprtaiKo
iftf" a hmcton to e subcofltractor. 6» Confracibr shad do the following:■uboontracbr's sbinty to peffarm the actMttes, before delegating
19.2. Have a w^negreemtnt with the eubcontractor that spedftosadMUes end repoftino

.  'wpwwfflDntea.endhoweaftctlonsAovocafanwtnbertienegcdHtheeubcontredof's
. pe^ence la wt edequste10.3; Wonbof the subcontractor's performence on an ongoing basis •

EMiOBC-SpKUnTKblom CsflSidorlnntBlt

DkM Ml/lfl
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19^. Provide to DHHS an annual achedule McnUfyinfl bQ subcontractors, delegated functions and
.  reiponslpiJiues. and when the'subeonlfacter'e perfofmanoe wOJ be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at Its dFseretion, review and approve all subcordracte.

IMho Conb^r Wertlfles deficiencies or areas fbr Improvemenl are Wentificd. the Contractor atoIJ
take conedlve action.

DERNmOKS
As used In the Contrecl, the foOowtng terms shall heve the fofiowtng meanings:

Indirect (toms of expense determined by the Oepartmertt to-be
sj^Sl^aww'^^we^eftdaocounttogprtndpIee establlshed-tn accordance

with state and federal taws, r^utodons, rulei end orders.

OEPARTM^n*; NH Oepadmenl of Health and Human Services.

RNANCj^ MiWGEMBtT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of (he Contractor Manual which Is
Marvagcmsnl OuWeflnes" and which ccntalns the regulations governing the flnartcla)

acbvttto of comracto; agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds. .

■  eppilcabla. shsQ mean the document eubrnmed by the Contrector on a form or formsrejuw by (he Departmenl and containing a dascrlpOon of (ha Services to be provWed to eBgible
individuals by the Contractor In accohlsnce with the tetms and conditions of the Contract and settlna torth
the total co« and sources of revenua for each servtoe to be prnvided under (he Contract

servloe that the Cortractor b to proidde to eflglble Individuab hereunder. shall mean that
perlM «time or that spedtled acfivfly determined by the Department and specffied in Eidilbjl B of the
Contract

FED^L^TATE LAW: Wherever federal or state taws, fegubttons, rufea, orders, and poOdes, etc. are '
referred to In the Contract, the said refercnoe shall be deemed to mean ell such law®, redulations etc. as
they may be amended or revbed from the time to time.

dONT^TOft MANUAL- ShaPmean thai document prepared by the NH Department of Admbdslrebve
®^®Wn9 a cofhp8atten of all regulatJona promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire

^mbibtratlve Procedures Act NH RSA Ch 541-A. tor the purpose of tmplemenOrw State of NH and
toderalrjcgulalionapromulgBted thereunder. "

OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantaeS (hat funds provided undcrlhb
.Contract m rt^ supplant any existing federal fUnds avallabte fbr these services.

E>MMC»6petI|}PmWDni CentrBOer InlStls

PteaSofS om 6/aiHfl
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TP PEHPRAL PRQVTSIQWH

PMvUtom Of W, coofrM. Conffllooal Nslu™ of As-oemcni U>

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Nrtw^^ provlstan of We Agreemcnl to the eantrary, eO oUloaQohi of the State

"" Cf P«>'=nt.Tv5So W (n tS?AflreeTO/tl are eontlftgenl upon conSnuod approprtsiton or dvanabSliv of fuMfa
»PP«iprt«U=ri?vallabl!«y'rt"

Of ojceojOve eetfon that rdducee. eUmlnfltas. or othen«t»
■  '>^"9 to IWt Ajreemont aS tto SoSTrt
IS?to toSfS 1®*^- •" or In pat m no ownl JS^Pie

" Oftooptoied or evsOoble Aindo In
SSJJSS' " of opprtipttotof or avai!atal« ftmds, lh»

sw! POymemuiM su« lUndi beoomo aretoble, If aw,. TheWffleejtfD have the rfght to reduce, termlnaieNof moddy aervtces under this Aoremeni
the i^nfraclor noUee of such reduction. tarmlniiUon or modncstton.

A  ?t^!j required to transCer funds from any other source or account into ih#

accourd, In the event funds are reduced Of Uftavailabte. "

'■ "" oP-top »»
10.1

s.

■??* <P» Ajwmart a any dm. fo, any raaibn, al tha tola dlicrellon of

lenninaiten. the Contractor shaQ. Mimin 15 days of rwttco of early
iJrJS?. ® Transilfcn Plan for saivlns under the

Pfosem ahd Mure needs of cQentsreceh^g ecrvtoos under the Agree^nl and aatabOshM a process to meet those needi
IISItSII??*' l!l!!L*l^? Slate and'shaO promptly provfda deta&edInchJdJng, but not DmBed to. any (ntormaUon or

^ ^ termtnalion of (he Aereement and Tnmsllten Ptanengdng communication and revtstons of the Transliton Plan to Oia State as

Aflfoement (ndudlnB bui not limited to cflenta reoervtnatmnsltonod to having services deHvered by anoOw^
^  Contrector shaQ. provide a procaw MunWemipteddellveryofsafvtaeslnlhaTrBnsJIIonPtan.

<*""• »"*' »*««««> ImWdualiabout Iho bartsldm The Contractor shoa Irtctude (he proposed commurdcaSone h fta
TranstbonPtanetibrnWed to (he State OS described above. nnujrranwns n ua

^r^IS ^"tract for up to tm (2) eddiUonal
15M^.i§owmr,2S:^LX2?un^'''^ -f toote. omf

10.2

10.3

10^

ErdifcflC-i-lMxiemieSUndsidPnwdbm Cwusder ttflsb
cuaooftmn p>Mi.rfi^  PiflSKSl Olte SQ1MS
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^ATIPN RE<?ANDIN6 PRUS^EE WORKPLACE REQUIRB^EMTfi

8S«w to comply with the provfsbni of
U???oV^ Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 1WWW. Title V, Subtiljo D;41

1 ilSSi n Contractef'o repmaertatlvo, eo kfentifted In Sections1.11 find 1.12 of the OencfelPirovblons execute the WlowhgCertincallon:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR QRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

JI2 SSt2I25i!1 "ealth and human services . contractorsus DEPARTWEMT op education - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTWEMT OF A^CULTURE -CONTRACTORS

fmplemenllng Sections 5161-61^ of tho Oru9+fee
.WortptoeA^ieSBCPub.L lOtWSO.TWe V.8ut>(JUeO;41 U.S.C.701«!#eg.) ThoJamsrvai

" P«^ " o«l»» May2B, 1990 Feileral RggMer (pagea2t68W1691)j^Bnd regubo ccrtffteefion by grenlecs (et^d by Inference, su&^ramees ertf ®ut>.
^5^ "7^ I? "?*]!'*"'" ® «lfV9-free workptaco. Section 3017.e30(c) of the •

IS!^ (and by Infb/enco, fuiflranteea and tub-oontraclom) that Is e State
H.TSi Department In each federal flscol year in Deu of certflcatee for

^  cerlWeabon. The certificate let out below t» amiJal^pmMm^^teti^whlchfeCaneobplaoodwhentheeaencxewBrdslheflrart. Felte
i  ccrtlficatfon ihaO bo srounda for suspension of p^ments. euspmlon ortê i^oforanb.orBovemmertyMewspenslonwdebamierit Owtractom uiinfl thh forni should

Commfasloner
NH Departmenl of Health end Human Services
129 Pleasant Stroet
Concord, NH0330l<660d

1. The grantte certifies that ft wlO or wID continue to provide Bdnis-freo workplace by:1.1. 2;ww^ a atetament notifying ernployeeslhot the unI«wfWma7wtocturo,<ttblhutton
dBpefttlng. possession or use of a controlled sub^ce Is-p/ohlbfled tn the mantee's '

■  •pacfiyrtg the eetlons that wQ| be taken against employees for vtoUCon of such
pronibAiorv

awareness program to trrform employees eboulIi1. The darrgeri of drug abuse In Iho workptaee:
.1i2i The granteeCepoJcy of maintaining a drug^ee workplace-
1.2.3. ^y avaHaUe drug ceun^ng. rehabOltatton, and employee assUtance programs; and
1.Z4. The penelOee that may be Imposed upon emptoyces tor dnig abuse vtotaUons

occuntng In the wortcplaoe;

Ma^ It a re^^cmeni that each employee to be engaged In the performance of (he gmm be
gven a copy of (he staiemertt required by paragraph (a);Noting the employee In (he sJaterrtent required ij pamgreph (a) thaL et a condaioo of
emptoyment under the grant toe empfoyee wOl
1A.1. Abtda bf the terms of (he statement; and
1.4.2. Nrtiy the emptoyar ht wrfflng of hii or her convlclion fbr e vtolafton of a crtmhsl drun

swute oocuning tn (he worttotoce no later than fNe caiendnr days after such
.conwctton:

1.3.

1.4.

NoWytog^ agsn^ In edSng. wtthin tsn calendar days after rbcdvlng notice under
g^pflf^ph I 4,2 an employee or otherwise receh^g actual rwtlce of cuch eorrvtetloa
fc/npwirere « corwlctad employees must provide notee, frtttodlng posQIon Ulto. to everv eranl
cdflnr on whose grant acto^ the convtcted employee was wcrktng. unless (he Federal agency

0- Os^Mltanrc^ifyia Orcj Pm
"  PewVeia Dito_5Qiflfl_
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has deslflnatad a Mntra) point for the receipt of euch noUcea. Notke shall (ndude the
(dsnUficellon numberta) of each eRocted gmni;

1.6. Teklns one of the following actons, within 30 calendar daya.of roceMng notice under
cutoaragraph 1.4:2, with reaped to any employee who la to convicted'
1.6.1. Taking appropdate personnei acUon ogahst auch an employe, up to and Including

tennlratlorx consistent vi^lh the fequlrements of (he RohabOnaUon Act of 1973, as
amended: or

1.6.2. RequMng auch employee to participate teUsfectorDy In a dnig ebute astlstanee or
rehabilAation pragram approved for auch purposes by a Federal, stato. or (oca! health,
taw erdorcement, or other appmprtete agency:

1.7. Making a Qood fallh offbrt to conltnue to makUBln a drug.rreevwykplaee through
.lmplem€nt8«0ftdfparBgr8pha1.1,1.2.1.3.U, 1-6.and1je. '

2. The grantee rnay Ins^ In the space provided trelow the ilte(a) -far the performance of work done tn
connecCon wtih the epeclOc grant

/

Place of Performaneo (afreet addreas, city, courrty. state, alp code) (tot each loceilon)

Chedi a If there are woffcptacea on nie that ere not UentHled here. '

Contractor Name: Manchester AloatiaBam RehaldjUtlon Center

6/3i/ie

•0#le Name: Bin Treahor
Tdto: CfO

.kT'&MMO-Cercne»ttcnc«sirtlne(kueFrte CcAiraderbttit>_^_'^_
Wbiladaee RaqiAtmtnb

QMMonwM pjgoiara WIflQ
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CERTinCATlOW REQARmMQJ.QBBYn<0

Id ®' Provtetoris Bgrnes to eofflply witti the pnnlifons of
?f?a c ?M9 OuWanw *» New Resmcttons on Lobbylns. ami

^  ̂ to hove the Cefttractofe repreaenteUve. oe IdemMed In 6ectiane 1.11and 1.12 of the OcnefolProvblons execute the fotowlnQCertiflcottorv:

MO health and human services . CONTRACTORSUS DEPARTMENT Op EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AORICULTURE-CONTRACTORS

ProsraniB (indicate applicable program covered);
'Tempomry Assistance to Ne^ FsmiDes under Title iV-A
•Ch2d Support Enforcemenl Pfogmm under Title IV-O
*SoeLaS Servlees Block Qrenl Program urtder .Title XX
•MedJcald Program under TWe XJX
"Conwu/Tdfy Services Stock"Grant under Title V!
•ChOd Care Devatopmeni Block Grant under Title IV

The umte/tigncd certifies, to the best of hb or her knowfcdgo artd beltof, that

1. Np Federal awprtflted funds have been paid or vA be paid by pron behalf of the undcrilgrted. to
any person tar Ir^nctng or ettempCng to tnfluenco an o^r or employae of any aoency, a-Member
^w^s,OTp^fo(^ployeeofCons«M,cronempWyeeofeMeTTib8rofCongre£Bln '£^nmDon wtih the jvwrfing of any Federal contrsct, conUnue^, renewal, amendment or
rnodincBWn of any Fe^ral contract, grant, ban. or cooperative agreement (end by specfflc mention
pufrgrantee or suthcorrtroctor}.

I

2. If «y o^.than FederaJ opproprtaled funds havo been paid or wtD be paid to any person for
Wwen^O or at^ptlng to Wtuence an officer oremptoyee of any agency, a Member of Conorest.

c!!jiZy 0^ pf CongraM. or an employee of e Member of Congreat In connecltan wtlh thbFeoera Mmmo. gmrrt. ban, or cooperallve ogreemew (and by ipectfc mantbn stdi-arBniee or aiA. '
undersigned shall complete and submQ Btandard Form LU, (DIsdosure Form to

Report Lobb)^. In acMrdanee wbh Hi instn«tlonj. attached and Identified as Storrfard Ejrfitolt EH.)

3. ^under^nod shall require thai the language of ffris certtCcatlon be tnduded b ihe award
document br sub-awards at al] fieri (Indu^g subcontracts, tub^fanta. and contncts under granto
bens, aitd cooperotNe cgreemerrti) and that aO sutHedplenb shall certify and disclose accordingly!

This c^fiestton Is o material mpreuntBllon of fact upon which reliance was placed whan this traniacfion
fflMo w erSered Wo. Sitomlssion of thb certlfleallon b a prerequblte for maWng or entsrtna bto thb

bawctobnpyed b^^n 1362. Tfile 31. U.S. Code, Any pemon who fsfis to file toe requlrad •
ceitftc^ shall be sublet be dvfi penalty of not leu than Stp.OOO and rwt more Ihart 5100.000 tar
.each such failure.

Contractor Name; Manchester Alcoholism Rehsblititton Center

8131/18

NameiEltoTfoonor
TWrCFO

EdA&e-Ce/OeaIkinReg«idIaaU)tiO|rtna CBntmct&rMMi
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Eihlbit P

CpHnPICATION HBQARPIMQ DEBARMBIT. SUSPEWStOW
AWaOTTtiER RESPONSIBiUTYfyiATTERa

![ Pfovbtons agrees to comply wtih the pnivtabni ofBroc^hwOmce of the Prealdenl. Sreculfve Order 12540 end 45 CFR Part 76 reoardlnfl OehamtenL
Suspefu^ and O^r ̂ponablDty Mattero, end further agrees to have the Contmctor'e

ai fdenUfied In Becfioni 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provfelona execute tha feOowlnB

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

^ prospective prtmarypardclpard Is prevUmg the

^ IT'JlSS P«»*rtde Ihe certWcaUon mqirirad betov will riot necessarfly rotuS In derdaJ
S2SS2!f i* trwsarton. If r^ecessary. the pmapecUve partldpani shall aubrnR ano^etlw of why R cannoi provide the cerlKcaliort. The ccrtWcalton or explanation vyfll he
cmidered (n c^n^fion with the NH Department of Heafih and Human Servte' (DHHS)
determrat^ whether to enter:into this transaction. However, faJhire of the prospecWe prtonary

SusSSS^cJm ® Of on esplanaUon shall dhquaSfy such person from partlclpaUon In

*jeft DHHS ddermtned to enter Into this transaction. If (t is later determined that the prospective
PrfZ rendered an erroneous certification. In addition to other remediesovalJaUe to 9ie .Federal Qovemmenl. DHHS may l^lnale this transactJen for cause ordefdult

4. The prt^cUve pftn^ partlelpan! shaO provide bnmedlate wrttten notice to the DHHS ao^cy to
SS?! (contract) Is sutimmcd If at any tbne the prospectNe primary participant teams. •raira^ntotion vos erroneous whan aubmlBed or has become eirorteous by reason of changed

covered transaction.'•prtnclpal/'prepoaaf end^untarBy exuded, as used In this dause, have Ihe meanings set out In tha Definfiions arid
t^.ver^Mc^i of the rules bnptemcnUng Executive Order 12649; 46 CFR Part 76. Seethe
anached deflnitlonS. .

6. Thepro^edhre primary participant agrees by siArrftllng this proposal (controcO that, should fte
banaacdon be entered inlo. ft BhaO npt knowtngly enter Into any lower tier covered

nansacton^ a pe^ who Is debaned, suspended, declared IneCglbte, or voluntarily exduded "
bom parddpalion In tWs eowred transaction, unleai authorized by OHHS.

DetennefMuspenslon. Inellg&rlUty and Voluntary Exclusion •
modWcotion, In all lower tier covered

tranaacnona end In afl soGchadons for lower tier covered bsfttactima.

®* ■5?'®'®^ bensacdon may rely upon a certrficadon of a proapecOve partdpan! In a(hrtlib notdebaired, suspended, tnellglbto.or tnvdunforily exduded
naMdon. unlesa It knows that the certification b erreneoua. A parddpant mayd«J^the rrtethM and frequency by vdilch It determinef the eligibility of tta prtndpab. Each

parddpant may, but b not required to. cheek the Ncnprocuremerd Ust.fof oxctuded pertles).

''' bw'^8oih9 «h«D bo construed to regufre eatabOshmenl of a tyatem of recordsIn order to render In good fB«h the eertiOcaOon required by ihhdaiite. The knowtedge end
ErtiM F -CertBcsiien R»s«dtne Ort«n«nl. Suiponitgn ConbsctDr InDbb ■

A* OJhc* RwpofolbBy —_
PSBslsfJ o»u> anins
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EihlbltF

InfcrmaUon of a particlpaAt U not required to exceed thai wWch I# ftwmaOy poaaoued by a erudcrrt
pmon In the ordinary eoureo of builneift deeOnQi. '

10. Except for tranjacllone euthodzed under pemyeph 6 of (heee InilAicttew. If e parHetpani In a
cwwed knowingfy enter* Wo a tovwr tier covered franeaction with a poraon who Is
ftwpw^^borred, frwOgWo. or vofuntartly excluded from partJdpaiJon in this transadJon, In
aadiSofl to rwdies avaSabte to the Federai oovermenl OHHS may tomlnaia thb trensadlon
fOr cause or defftUit.

PRIMARY COVERED TKANSACTIONS
11. T^prapecUve prfmory parttdpam certlftes to the beat of its knowledge artd belief, that R and its

■  prtndpals:
eranc4preientlydebarred, suspended,proposedfbrdebarment,declaredtrteBglble,or
jmiuntanly excluded from coviued tronsacUons by any FederaJ department or agency

® three-year p^ preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or hada cMJJudgmenl rendered against them for commission of fraud or a cflmlnal offensa h
connoctten y»fthx>btalnln0f attempting to oUaIn, or parfcrmlng a public (Fcdcrftj, Sfete or iocaO
trowtton or a contract under bpubSc transacdpn; vtelaton of Federal or State antltwst
statutes Of commtoiten of emb«ilemonl, theft, forgery, bribery, fdhlficatlon Of destruction of

. records. maWng false atatements, or rccoMng stolen property;11.3. m not presently tndlctad for otherwlso crtmlnally or cMBy charged by a govemmertal entity
^  commission of any of the offenses enum eraled In paragraph (l)(b)

of this certifsaUon; and '
11.4, have not wQhln a three-year period preceding Ihfa appficaUon/proposal had one or more inrMlf

-  transaeCons (Federal. State orloca!} terminated for causa or dofeuH

12. Where the prospecthre primary participant Is unable to certify to any of ihe statements In this
cartifteatlon. auch prospKdvo parttolpant Bhafl sttach an eJtolanatlon to this proposal (cantract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. mdjubm^BIng this lower Uer proposal (oohtraet). tha prospeeOtre lower Oor parfldpant as

defined m 46 CFR Part. 78, certMes to iho b.est of Rs knoMdedgo and beDaf thal U and It# prtndpals:
13.1. are not preaerrtly debarred, suspended, proposed for dehamterrt. declared Inedgaile.w

voamtartly excluded from partldpaQon In this trensacOon by any federal daparbnent or t^ey.
13 whero the proipedhre lower tier partldpanl b unable to eertJiy to any of the above, avdi

prespecUva pertidpant ahall etta^ an exptanatlon to thb proposal (eontrscO.
14. The praspecthre tcmer tier pertlclpani further egreet by etfomUtlng this proposal (contracQ that R will

^  tn^de this dause entttled •Certification Regarding Dobarment, Suspension IneDglbllUy and
Vdunta^ Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Tmnsactlons.' wtlhout modlflMtlon In allfowor tier covered
transactions and In aD soOcflatlons for lower tier covered franaaetlons.

Contrsdor Name: Msndtester Aieohoasm RehtfMBaUon Centar

.gam
Oato NametEOnTroanor

TWerCFO

BtfaWF-C«rBtafl#ftRist(«BoOrt«na«m.aut®ftnlQn ContraeloTfctfMi
AnaOQerRHponsibStyManm
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UteutBFMFWTS PEPTAfmHn jp
WH1STL£9L0W6R PBOTECTmUi;

Of ies8 (« U.6.C. Seeltoti J78M) Ktilch ̂ NbU
loij? 'hlo olofulo Iram Oliotralnallno. eW«r In emptoymail mcScn or In

o**". »S8!on, naltan.1 ol^8l^ and ««. The Act.. fP^escotowdptotlstopfod.ueeenE^aJEmptoyTnenlOppcrtuntifPlan:
• (he Juvento Jusfico Dellnquoncy Prevention Aclof 2002 (42 U.S.C. Sedlon 6672(b)) which adoota bv

RedplentB of federal (Ending unde/Sll
^ !7^ dbe^tnabng. e^er In emptoyment pmdloea or In (he delVery of servlcaa or

A  I'S®' "^ton/natlonal oilgfn. and sex The Act lncIudedE$u^cmplayment OpportunOy Plan requirements: * • ^ .

2000d. which prohibUa recipients of federal ftnandaJflssiatance Itom discrbnlnatlng en the basis of race, color, or naUona) odgtn In any program or aclMly);

Pw'^WUrecipients ofFedcral'rmandal

^  0^<«"Wniy. ̂  «0Wd to employment and tho defiverV ofaervfeci or benefits, h any pfogram or BcOvliy; . • .
^^rtcBio Disabilities Act of 1M0 (42 U.S.C. Scrtlona 1213t.54). which (BoWWls
^iaWT^ ̂  ensur^ equal opportunity for persons wUh disabinties tn emptoymcrrt, State and local

. government dervlcea, pubOc eccenmodaVons, eommereUI facDOiee. ar^ transportatfon;"

'"«!«). *Weh pnhmit.
olscrtmlnaoon on the basb of sex In federally assisted education programs;

C^rtnilretlon Ad oMff76 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106^. wtdch prohfbtti discdmtnaOon on the
baibef^hpmpams or adMBeareccMng Federal rmanctaJasabtanee. It docs not tndude
emptoyment dlscrfmlnador);

RegutoBons. OJJDP Grant Programs): 26 CJ^.R. pt 42OJ.S^De^ent of Jus^ ̂uiatlona - NondbcrlmlnBtlon; Equal Erhploymcrit OpporlunBy; Po^as
and ProD^msJ; En^e Order Na 1S27B (equal protecflon of the laws for tailh-based and communHy
or^nlg^fts^ Executhre Ordar No. 13559, which provide fundamental p/lndplas and pdlcwmakbig
ciftcita tor parUiershlps with fbSh-baicd and neighborhood organlzaOona:

^  (U'S. Oepartment of Justice Regutottarw - Equal Treatment for Fabh-Based
2?SSSf£' ^fc»»rerpTob^ 41 U.S.C. 54712 and The Nafioriil Defense AulhoilzaOon
c?k Year 2013 (PVb. L112-239, enacted January 2.2013) the Pflot Program forWhlUJebtowd ProtocUofta, which protcds employees agalrulreprisal tor certain wtilsQe btowtng octMUes In connection with toderal grants arid conlr^.

I?® *!? U a matcrtat representatton of fact which tollanee ts placed when theagerwy ajj^^ds the grant Fatso eertmcailon or violation of the certttcatlon ahaD be QfoSSster
Of peymenh,, ̂speniion or termlnatton of grentt, or government wide suspensim or

CMblO

lain*
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i  ̂ 6*81®. c Federe! or Sate edminbtrBtlve egeney makes a findino ofdla^haBon after a due process he^g on the grounds of race, ebtor, reDglon, nattonaJ origin or sex
^aifulD redptert of funds, the reetpterd wfll foAvart a copy of the finding to the Office iw CIvO Rlghn to
the eppDcaWe contracting agerKy or divtslon wtihln the Department of Heofih end Human Services, arid
to the Department of Health and Human Serviees Office of the Ombudsmart

The Cortradof IderrtfAed In Section 1.S of tho Oenere) Propone agroes by signature of the Contraetor'e ■
. repwiefrtBthre as Wentlftod In Sections l.-l i and 1.12 of the Oeneral Previsions, to execute tne feUowtna
certncatlorv

I. slgrdng and submlitlng thb proposal (contract) the Contractor egrees to comply wWi the provisions
tnotccted Bbove.'

CorTtractor Name: Uanchester AicohoSsm RehablBtaiion Center

(wma

0®®. Name: Bin Trainor
TBIerCPO

ContiMflr tnltah

«vm' •u«ia*iiii*iii ii
Pas«s«fs oitoWVte
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Exhibit H

CERTIflCATIOH REGARDtNG BflflRpNMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKP

PubOc law 105-227. Part C - Envfronmertal Tobacco SmoXo. also known es'the Pro-Chndmn Ad of 1994
(Ad), fequtres thai tmddng not bo permtted In any portion of pny Indoor facUty bwijed or teased or
contracted for by an enffly and used routlheiy or regularly'for the provision of health, day care, educaflon
or Cbrory eervioes to children under the age of 16, If (he servlcea ere funded by Federal progrBrra either'
dlradiy or through Stdo or tocal govommenta, by Fedpral grant eontrect loan, or loan guaranlee. The
taw doea nd apply to ehlldron'a saivtces provided In prtvolo r^deneea. facflHIea funded somy by
Medicare or Madieald fUnds, end portions of tecQlUet used for InpaUont dmg or oleohOi treatment Failure
to comply wHh the previsions of the law may ro«m h the impositJon of o civfl monola/y penally of up to
$1000 per day and/or (he Imposftion of an adnttnlstreSve cotepdanco order on the responsible entity.

The Controeter,Identified In Section 1J of theOoneralPro^ionsegreoa, byilyiatureoflhoCofrtrector'a
tepresentethro as hSentified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of IheOenerat Provtotons, to execute (he foOowing
certifleatton: . •• •• • •

1. By signing and vubmnung this contract the Contractor agrees to niaka reaeonable efforts to comply
wfth aQ appDcabta provlaions of Pubne Lew.•103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 18$4.

Contractor Namat Manchsstsr AicoboSim RehsbSutton Center

Oata Name: ESnTrBsmr
TWa:CFO

Edfl9H*C«rfDetfmRts3rtfng CareactDrtmisb
En*ecviwlti tebieoa tondts
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Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILfTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Tho.ContradorldentlfledtnSectlon 1.3 of (he General Provl^ons of the Agrieement agrees to
comply with the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with (he Standards for Privacy end Security of Indhridualty IdenttTiabte Health Infofmatlon, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to bustness assoclBtes. As defined h^eln, 'Business
Associate' shaD mean the Contractor end subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have eccees to-protected health tnformaoon under this Agreement end ^Covered
Entity* shaD mean the ̂ e of New Hampshire. Department of Heellh end Human Services.

(1) DeflnHIenc.
a. 'Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 pf Title 45,

Code of Federal Regutatlons.

b. 'puslne^s Aasoclflta' has the meaning given fiuch term In section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity'has the meanlnp given such term In section 160.103 ofTltie45,
Code of Federal Regulations. '

d. "Destenated Record Set* ahell have the same meaning as the term 'designated record aef
In 45 CFR Secflon184.e01.

•a 'Data Aqoreoatlen' shall have the seme tneanlng as the term 'data aggregation' In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care OpBraliona' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operallons*
In 46 CFR Sectlon1d4.601.

g. "HITECH Ad' means the Health Informalton Technotoov for Economie and Clinical Health
ApL TItleXlll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of.
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act pf 1996, PubDc Law
10^191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of IndMduatiy IdentHlatde Health
Information, 46 CFR Parts 160.162 and 164 and amertdments thereto.

L  Indtvlduar shall have the same meaning as the term 'indlvfduar In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and ehaO Include a person who quatifies as a personal representative In accordartce wtlh 45
CFRSection164.601{g).

'PrNacv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identraable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated imder HIPAA by the United States
Department of Heafih and Human Senrtoes. .

k. "Protected Health inftarmaftion' shall have the same meaning 89 the term "protected health
Information* (n 45 CFR Section 180.103, DmHed to the Information created or recehred.by
Business A&Bodate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

vm* Etffthi Cenvtda#lne«b__^^
NeiAbttumD Pfirtitflly Ad
Bialtttn Anft^b AsfMmnt
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Exhibit I

L 'Required hv Law* shall hsve the same meaning es the term tequtred by tsv/ in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. •fiecreterv''shall mean the Secretary of the Oepaitment of Health end Human Services or
-  his/her deslgnee.

n. *6ecurftv Rute* shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health tnforTTTstlon at45 CFR Part 164. SubpartC, andemendments thereto.

0- 'Ungecu red Protected Health fnfermBlion' moana protected health Inflarmiriton ihat te rv^
-  secured by a techrralogy standard that renders protected health infdrmation unusable,

unresdabto, or tndedpt^ble to unauthorized Individuals end Is developed or endorse by
a atandards davelopl^ organization that b sKredlted by the Amertcan National Standards
Instftute.

p.' Other peftnUlons • AD terms not otherwise defined herein shali have the meanmg
establish^ under 45 C^.R. Parts 160,162 end 184, as amended from thne to time, arul the
HITECH

/Act

(2) P-USiMJts Aasoclftto Use andPlscfasufe of Protected Health InformaHon.

a. Business Assodate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably rwcessary to provide the servtoes outlined under
Edilblt A of (he ̂ reement. Further, Business Associate, taduding but not limited to ell
Ks directors, officers, employees and ̂ nts, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of the Prfvacy and Saeurlty Rule.

b. Business Assodate may use or disclose PHI;
L  For the propv management and admlnlstratbn of ihe Business Assodate;
II. Asrequlred.byjaw, pursuant (0 the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; 0|r
Hi. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

-Entity.

c. To the extent Business Assodate Is parmltied under the Agreemerrt to (flsdose PHI to a
third party. Business Assodate must obtain, prior to making any such disdosure, (0
reason^te assurances from the third patty that such PHI will be held conOdentfally end
used or' further disdosed only as required by law or for (he purposa for viriilch It was
dlsdoeed to the third party; and (0) en agreement from such third party to notify Buslrtess
Assodate, in accordanos wHh (he HIPAA Prtvaoy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentlaray of the PHI,'to the extent n has obtamed
knowlecfoe d such breach.

d. The Business Assodate shall not, unless such disdosure to reasonably necessary to
provide senrlces under Exhibit A of the Agreement disclose any PHI In response to a '
request for disdosure on the basis that H to required by law. without first nottiyfaig
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has en ̂portunlty to ot^ecl to the disdosure and
to seek appropriate roOet If Covered Entllyob^cts to such disdosure, the Business

V1014 ■ E)MMI CemnctarlflSUli
HM&h bmjr«nc« routftly Ad
Mft«» AisedU* Ameement
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. .Assoctelo shall refroh from dlsctoslng the PHI until Covered Entity h^ extiausted ell
remedies.

e. tr the Covered Entity notifies, (he Bu^nesi Associate that Covered Er\Uty has agreed to
tie bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or secudty
safeguards of PHI pursuant to (he Privacy arid Security Rule, the Buslriess Associate
shall be bound by such additional resblctlons and shall not disclose PHI in vtotatlon of
such addlUonel restrleUons arvl shall abide tiy any additional seeurfty safeguards.

(3) _Q.b|lgationB and Activities of Bualness Associate.

a. The Business. Associate ahall nolHy the Covered Entit/s Privacy Ofncer tmmediatety
after the Business Associate becomes awar^ of ariy use or disclosure.of protected
health tnfbrmatlcn not provided for by the Agreemenit Including breaches of-urtsecured
protected health Inforrnallon artd/or any seeurfty tnctdent that may have an Impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Busfrtess Associate shall Immedlatety perform a risk assessment when It become
fiwars of any of the above sbuatlohs. The risk assessment shall tnetude. but not be
llmltedto:

o The nature and extent of foe protected health (nibrmation Involved, Including the
types of Identlfjers and the KK^ood of ro^entfficalbn;

0 The unauthortEod person used the protected health Information or to whom the
dbelosure was made;

0 Whether the protected heatth Information was actually acQulred or viewed-
0 The extent to which (he rfsh to the protected heaifo.lrifermation has been

mitigated.

The Business Assodale shaO complete the risk essessment withtn 4B hours of the
breach and tmmedtelcly re^ the findings of (he risk assessment In wrtting to the
Cdvered Entity.

0. The Business Associate shall comp^ with all sections of the Privacy, Securtty, and
Breach Nodflcatton Rule.

d. Business Associate shaO make available sD of (Is internal pdZdes and procedures, books
end records relating to the use sruj disclosure of PHI received horn, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered ̂ tity to the Secretary-for
purposes of detemdntng Covered Endt/s complldnce.wlth HIPAA ar^ the Prfv^ and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of Kb business associates that receive, use or have
ecc^ (0 PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restTMrions and cortdiUans on the use end disclosure ofRHI contained heietn. Including
the duty to return ordeetroy the PHI ad provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered e direct third party beneficiary of the Contmctor'e business
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who wOl be receMng

Wn* ■ EtfMt CortndarlrAWt
HttSx SuurmM Psrtitny AO
Siolnw AMadjto Aflrvvittnl
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purwant lo tWo Agreoment. with righto of enforcement and bdefrmiflcation from such
bus^ asepdatee who ?hall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the stsndart
contract provlstene (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and dteclosure of
protected health information.

f. VVrthin five (5) buslnesa days of receipt of a wrtaen request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall mate available during normal buslnese houre at Its offices all
reorts. books, agreements. poOclos sad procedures relallng to the use end disclosure
of PHI lo the Covered Entity, fbr purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Buslneee Assodeto'o compllanoo with the terms of the AgrMment

g. ^ 0) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shaU^jrovlde access to PHI In a Designated Record ̂  to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual In order to meet the
requirements under 45 CPR Section 164.524.

h. WSIWn ten (10) business days of receiving owrttten request from.Covwed Ent&.for an
amendment of pHI or a record about an indhrtdual contaff»d In e Designated Record
Set, the Buslnas Assoclata ShaO mate such PH) available to Covered Enthy for
amendment end Incorpcrate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfil! (to
obligations under 45 Cf^ Section 1 B4.526.

: I. . Buefnese Assoclato shell document such disctosures of PHI and Informetion retoted lo
such disclosures as would be required fbr Coiered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an eccopntlng of disclosures of PHI to accordance w'rth 45 CFR Sectton
164.628.

j, . Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written requ^ from Covered Entity tor a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall mate avaOabte
to Covered Errtity such Ihfbrmalton as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligaltons
to provide w accounting of disclosures w9h respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Sectlcn 164.528.

k. . In the eveirt any Indiytdua! requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
dlrecdv from the Business Associate, the Business Aasodate shall witoln two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shaB have tha

•  responslbflily'of responding to tonvarded requests. However, if toavartlng the
indhrlduays request to Covered Entiiy would cause Cowered Entity or the Business
Associate to viotale HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law end notliy
Covered En% of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Wdhln ten (10) business days of termlrieilon of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associaie'shall retufii p^destroy, as specified by Covered Enlky, bH PHI
received ftwn, or created of reitelv^.by the Business Associate In oonnectton with the

. Agreerrient and Shan not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHL If return or
destruction Is not feastole. or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to In
me Agrecmerrt, Business Associate shall continue lo extend the protons of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit fUriher uses and discfosures of such W4I to those
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeaslble, fbr so long as Bustoess •

CiHttl CcArtctartaStib
HAUniimirvwePentblssAd
eubiMt'Auecbto AgrMnMat
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Assodate maintains ouch PHI. (f Coverad Entity. In Its soia'discretion, requires that the
business Associate destroy any or an PHI. the Business Associate shall caitify to
Covered Entity that the PH) has been, destroyed.

(4) Oblteatloftt of Covored Entity

e. Covered Entity shaD notify Business Assodate of any changes or DmtlaUon(s) In Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals Iri aocbrdance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or llmitalion mey affect Business Assodate'e
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity ehal) prompUy notriy Business Assodate of any changes in. or revocation
of pemdsltlon provtd^ to Covered Errtity by tndMduals whose PHI may be used or
di^sed by Business Associate tinder this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section

.. 164.608 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c.. C^rered entity shall promptly rwttfy Business Associate of any restrtetions on the use or.
disclosure of PH) that Covered Entity hos agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such reetrtctlon may affect Business Assodate's use or disciasure of
PHI.

(8) Termination for Cauec

' -In addition to Paragraph 10 ofihe standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covert Entity may Immetftately termlfwte the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business A^ciate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Ej^IbH t. The Covered Entity may either tmmedlateV

. terminde the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Assodate to cure the
alleged breach wHhIn a Umeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entlly shall report (he
vlolaUon to the Secretary.

(8) Mlscettaneoim

&  DeflnWong and Reoutatorv References. All terms used, hut not ottisfwtea deflnftd hamtn,
shall hsve the same meaning as those terms hi the Prtvecy and Securtty Rule, amended
from 6me to Ome. A reference in (he Agreement, as emended to include Ihls Exhibit I, to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Sectfcn es In effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Coined Entity and Business Assodate agree to take such action as is
necessary to emend (he Ag^ment. from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the chenges in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
.Secur^ Rule, and appOcable federal and state law.

c. Data Cwnershte - The Business Assodats eckn(Mrle<^es that It has no ofwuerehlp rights
with respect to the PH) provided by or crested on behalf of Covered Enthy.

d. IntararetBtton. The parlies agra that any amblguliy in the Agreertient shall be resotve^
to permit Covered Enllly to comply with HIPAA, (he Privacy and Security Rute.

'V1914 GbSiOfll QonseittBf Mtei
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Segreflatlon. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the af^Qcetlon thereof to eny
poBonCs) or ctrcumalence le held InveDd, such InvaDdify sheO not effecf other terms or
condfttens which cari be oIvct effect without the invalid term or condition; to Ihb end the
terms end condlUons of this Exhibit i ore declared severable.

SHIYhfflV Provl^nfi In this ̂ Ibtt I regarding the use and dtoclosure of PHI, return or
doatructton of PHI, extenstona of the protections of the Agreement In eectlon (3) I, the
defense end Indemnification provldona of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
etandard tarms and. conditions (P-37). shall survive the termlnaUon of the Agreement.

IN WITNE8S WHEREOF, (he parties' hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

OepQdmenl of Health and Human Services

The State

Signature of

imeoTAuthc

feed Representative

Narne oTAuthortzed Representative

Title of Authgrtced Representative

Oats

htSftchaterAfeohoflOT RehsMttattpn Center
hteme of the Contmctoi:

inattffe of Authortzed RSIgndttffe of Authortzed Representative

BCnTicsnor
Name of Authorized Representative

CFO
Title of Authorized Representative

s/3vte •
Date

MOU CMQI.

Me«Ot bauraras Pntasny Ad
eudnau Anodili Asnemtm

PigsSefS

CentrsoerMSob
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PfflTWCftTIPN R^AWINQ THE FEDERAL RJMPINQ ACCQUNTABtUTY AND TftANfiPARgWCV
ACT IFFATAtCOMPLIANCg

T^FederalFundinfl AceountaMity and Transparency Act (FFATAJ requlrei prime oMtdees of IndMdual
FcdeiBljBmnts e^l to or greotef !t«n 926,000 and awarded on or aiter October 1,2010, to report on
f  ®wcu6ve compensallon and associated ftretmer aub-grants of 925,000 or mo« (heWCalawart.l# bel^825,000 but aubsoquentgrant modWceUoni rettiDIn o total award eou^ to or over
PS,OOQ, the ev^ b subject to the FFATA reporting requbamenli; as of (he data of the award.
In eocordawe wnh 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subavkord end Exeeutfve Compeneetisn tnformabon) the

• D^wtmemofHcaHhendHumanServlcaatOHHSjmustreportthefbUbwthDlnfbrmallontDfeny
subaward or cortrtwt award oubject to the FFATA reporting reqirlremente:
1. NamecdenSly
1 Amount of sword
3. Funding agency-
4. NAICS coda (or contracts / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source

,6. Award aiedescrlpttve of (he purpose of the (Undmg action
7. Locaiion of the entUy
8. ^tndple place of perfermance

.6.' Unique identinerortheeniiy (DUNS 0)
10. Total oempensaOpn and names of (he top Ova executive ft.

10.1. More than 80* of annual gross rovemioo are ftom the Federal government and those
revenues ere greater then S2SM ortnuaDy end

102. Compensation Infomjetlon Is not already available through reportng to the sec.

Prime grant redplents must submit FFATA required data by the erwJ of the month, plus 30 days In wtilch
(heowardorewrdarrtendmentlamade. '
The Contractor WcntiTied In Section 1.3 of the General Provtilons agrees to comply vrilh the provisions of
The Federal Funding Aecountabflfty end Transparency Act PubBc Law 109-282 ohd Public .Low 110-282,
.and 2 OFR Part470 (Reporting Subeword and Exacuthre Compensation Wormaton). end fiirther agrees
to have (ha ContractDr's reprasentatfve, as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of (ha'cjerteral Provisions
execute the foDowtng Certification: '
The betow named Contmctor egrees to provide needed brformaOon ss ouOned above to (he NH
Oepartmerrt of Hoanh and Human Services end to comply with eli applicable provisions of Die Foderal
Rrwnctat AccountabBlty and Troruparency Act

Contractor Nome: MsnchasterAloahoQsmRehabQstionOntBf

araina

oaie Nomsc ESrt Trvonor
Tn)e:CFO

EiWbfl J^Csit)Bc»l)gn RtfliitfnB Ow FtOifir Fund^ C<ntractarM8fti
AcmitfthWnty And TunipOTncy PA (TPATa) Ccwpboa ——

Pssouft Ptft
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EORMA

^  Pravbloiu. 1 eertily IW Utt ntfrna to (heOBOwDttodquesfonsBmtruoendBcajrBto.

1. The DUNS mjmber tor your emfly to: ̂WBSOg^

'■ IJSS m M P«ce<IIng com|>l.l«J fiscal year, tfto your txislnaa croiBanltatlanpercent w more of your annual anu revenue In U.S. federol ccfrtrocu. subSntmcto.
L™ (2) J25.000.000 or more h annualcuboootroctx, loans, grants, eubgrents, and/or

NO YES

If the answer to 02 above Is NO. stop h«e

ffthoentworlo02BbovplsYES;p(«a»eanswcflhefbltow(n9: •
3. Doe* tf«puWIc haw access to fnftjTmaUoo about the oompensrtton of the executfveetnvoarbustes « JBytojUoh through periodic reports IQed urtder section 13(a) or 1S(d) of the^urttles

U.S.c.76m(8), 7Bo(d)) or sectkul 6104 of the JntemaJ Revenue Code of

NO YES

If the answer to M above to YES. stop here

. H the answer to 03 above la NO, pleaM answer the fbtlowfng:
01 the five most hitfily compensated ofRcers In your buslnesa or

crganseoen ere as foUowa.*

Name:,

Name;,

Name:.

Name!,

Name:.

' Amount;

Amount,

Amount.

Amount,

Ambunt

t9M

E0iftaJ.C««gBcrtao RegMlne Ow f«4m) FtmAw
Aeommsay And Trsruprency Ad (FFATM CeaseMM

PipelefZ

CentrsdertneMi
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Exhibit K

DHH8 Information ̂ curlty Requirements

A. DeftnHiona

The foDowtng topme may be reflected and have the described meaning In Ihle document:

1. 'Braech* means the !om 'of cor^o),. oomprcmtse, unauthortzed disclosure,
unaulhortzed aoqulsitton, unBulhorized access, or any a^Qar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other then
authorized purpose have access or polentiaJ access to personally Identiflabfe
Information, whether physical or electronic. WUh regard to Protected Health

•  Intormation, * Breach" sh^ have the same meaning as the term "Breach* h section
■ 164.402 of Title 4$, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. Xomputer Securtty Incldcnr shall have the same me8nlr>g 'Computer Security
Incident* in section two (2) of NIST Publication 60041,.Computer Se^rity Incident'
Handling Guide, National Irutltute of Standards artd T^nciogy, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential InfermaOon' or "Confldentlai Data* means all confidential Inforpiatlon
disctosed by one party to ihe other such as all medical, health flnand^ publie
assistance benelfta and personal Information Including wflhoui llmltaijon. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Infermatlcm and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confldentlai Information also Includes any and bH Information owned or managed by
the Stale of NH • created^ received frorrt or on behalf of the Department erf Heafth and
Human Services (DHKS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
servloes - of which ooOectfon, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
stale'or federal taw or regulation. This Information includes,-but Is not Dmlted to
Protected Heallh Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Rnandal
information (PFIX Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security. Numbers (^N).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other ser^sttive Bnd confidently Infermalton.

4. "End User* rT>eans any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, suttoorrtractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or dertvative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract

6. "HIPAA* means the Health Insurance PortabiTity and Aocountabllfty Act of 1998 and the
regutatons promu^ated thereunder.

6. "Incident* means an act that potentially vldates an explicit or implied securtty policy,
which Includes attempts (elth& failed or suocesstlif) to g^n unaulhortzed ecceaa to a
system or fta data, unwanted disruption, or denial of servtoe, Uie unauthorized use of
a system for (ha processing or storage of data; arid changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the ownei'a knowledga. InstArction. or
oonsenL Incidents include the loss of^data through theft or device misplacement, lou
w ̂placement of hardcopy documents, and mbrouttng of physkal or electronic

V*. I rt Itfuiiw 04iHiW.e EedtftK CeteectorbQCb.
OKHS Hotimb'on '

SMufliy RtCulnmenti
Qtti MI/IS
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OHHS Information Security Requirements

man. aD of which may have the potenUal to put the data at rtsk of unauthortzed
access, use, disclosure, modlftoatlcn or destruction.

fjtwo/k or segment of a notwortc thet b
^  Hampshire's Dopenment of. Informettondeteoato- as a protected network (destgrted, tasted, end

ewro^d. ̂  means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
nwortc and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI PFl
PHI Of confidential DHHS date. v ypicu n. rn.

8. Infornotion'(or T|*) means Information which can be used to distlnflulsh
or trace an IndhrWuars Identity, such as thdr name, soda) eecurfly number, personal
mformatlon as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, blometrfc records, eta
° r / combined withdUwr persoiul or Wentifylng Informallon which Is linkedor iinkaWe Id a spadflc mdlvrdual. such es date and ptaoe of Wrth. mother's maiden
name, etc.'

9. "Privacy Rule" sh^mean the Standards for Prfvacy of IndMduaDy IdenilflaUe Health
hTferm^n at 45 C.F.R Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United"
States Department of Health and Human Services;

Information' (or "PHr) has the same meaning as provided In the

1M1M Irrformation' In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 46 C.F.R. §

Swurtty Standards for the Protection of Etecbonic
Prot^d Health Information at 45 C.F.R Part 164, Subpart C-. and emandmetds
tnereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health InfotmaOon" means Protected Health Informallon that te
nfll,6«ured by a technology standard that'renders Protected Health Information
unusa^. unreadable, or Indectpherable to unauthorized Irrdlvtduals er^ b
developed or endorsed by, a standards developing ornanlzatton that b accredlied bv
the Amertcen National Standards Institule,

t RESPOMSIBIUTIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. BushoseUseandDCsctosuroofConfldenltelinlbfmatlon.

1. The Conlractor must not use. dbdose. matntain or transmit Confidential Information
as r^nabV necessary ea outDnod under thb ContrecL Further, ConliBctor, •

mcfud^ but not Cml^ to at) Its directors, officers, employee and egente, must net
w, dbc^, matntain or bansmlt PHI In arty manner that would ianstitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Role.

2. The ConlrBctor must rwt disclose any Confidential Information In response to e

vi.ustupuata(MitL2ois ee*at('
I  OK>OMbrBaSon

Securtty RcQulranra
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reijueat for dlsdoeure on the basis that n Is required by law. in response to a
eubpoena. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunliy to
ccrwcnt Of object to the disctosure. ^ ̂

ILSSi® ^ Contrador that OHHS has agreed to be bound by additionalreatiictions over end above those usas or disclosures or security sefeguards of PHI
purnrent-to the Privacy and Securfty Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such

festrfctions and rrtust not disclose PHI in vlolahon of such additiona)
restrtctlons and must abide by any eddiilonal security safeguards.

4. Cotrtractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from dlsdoseid to an End
user must only be us^ purauant.to the tenns of tWs Contract

5. The Contractor agrees D WS Data obtained under this Cortlract may not be used for
.any other purposes thai are not Indicated In this Contract

da]a'\o the euthorired representatives
w OHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the tcjms.of this
Contract

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Appl^tion Encryption.- If End User b transmuting OHHS data containing
.Confidential Data between eppficatlons. the Conlraclor etteats (he applications have
been evaluated, by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
appDcatlon'e encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the Internet

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Oevloes. End User may not use computer disks
«uch as a thumb drfve, es a method of Irensmltllng DHHS

3. Eficiypled Email. End User may only employ email to transmll Confidential Data If
pfnail la gflpfYplep. end being sent to end being received by emoti addresses of
persons authorized (0 receive such Information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must-be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmlttod via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services. eUo known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting seryfces, sqch as Dropbox or Ooogle Cloud Storege. to transmit
Confidential Data.

e. Ground MaU Servlco. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via oerfiflod ground '
mail wnhfn the continerdal U.S. af>d when sent to a named IndlvWual.

7. ^Ptops a^ pD^ If End User b employing portable devices to transmll
confidsnual Data said devices must be encrypted end password-protected.

a Open Wiretess Network's. End User may not transmh Confidential Data via an open

Vl.UitupCtl*D«.OUeiS EM»K
OKHS Mbnatfon
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ivirefees nctwort*. End User must employ a virtual prtvete network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireleas network.

0. Remote User Communlcatton. tf End User Is emptoylr»g remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual prtvate network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's motjlle devlcc(e) or laptop fTorn wttlch tnformatlon will be
transmitted or'eccessed.

.  SSH FUe Transfer Protocol (SPTP), also known as Secure Rie Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit ConfldentlaJ Data, End w(D
structure the Folder and access privfleges to prevent Inapproprtate dteclosure of
Infomtatton. SFTP fotdere and sOtyfoWere used for transmlteng Confidential Data wfD
be coded fbr 24-hour euto^eletlon c^e (I.e. Confldentla! Data will be deleted evoy 24
hOUTB).

11. WlretesS Devtoe^ tf EtkJ User Is transmitting Cordldentlel Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to ̂ even! Inapproprtate disclosure of Informstma

GL RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Oontractof svtD only retain the data end any derivative of the data for the duration of thb
Contract After such time, the Contractor wIU have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form It may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract To this end. the parties must;

A. Retention ^

-  1. The Contractof agrees It wQI not store, transfer or process dale cofledBd In
connection wtth the services rendered under this ODntract outside of the United
States. This physical location r^irirement shad al^ 'apply in the implementation pf
cfoud computing, doud sanrlce'or cioud storage capabilities, arvf includes backup
data and OlSBater Recovery bcatidns.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper secu^ monitoring capablllUes are In
piece to detect potential security e>«nts that can Impact State of NH systenu
and/or Dapartmertt confidential Information for contractor provided systems,

3. The Contrador egrees to provide security awareness and educadon for Its End
Users In'support of protecting Department confidential Infomrntion.

4. The Contractor agren to retain aD electronic and hard copies of Confldentta) Data
In a secure location and identified fri section IV. A.2

5. Tha Ccntrador agrees Confldentia] Data stored In a Cloud must tre In a
FedRAMPlfHITECH oompllant sdutlon and comply with a!) applicable statutes artd
r^ulaUons regarding the privacy end security. AO servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operattrig systm. .the latest antlwtrel. entl-
hacker, entl-spon. ant^epyvmre. and anb-mahKare utilities. The envfronment as a

vcuitGp^oiaciois ee^K
OHMS MermsSBn
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whoIe» must have aggressive Intnjsion-detection and firewall protection.

*? ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
EnfriSfri!Sire^

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor wiD malntdn any Conftdenttal InforrnaUon on Bs systems (or Its
suiwntreclor aystcms), the Conlraclof wtll maintain a documented process for
segrely disposing of such data upon request or contract teqnlnatlon; and wOl
obtain written certiflc^n for ar^ State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or eriy subcontractorB es a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster'
reoowry op^atlons. When no longerin use, eteclronte media containing State of •

^ rendered unrcoovefabte via a secure wipe progrwnIn accordance wfth Industry^ccepted standarda for secure deletbn* and med*a
sanilttatibn. or olhcfv/ise phystcally destroying the media (ftr example,
degaussing) as described In NIST Special Pubilcdiion 800^. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Senftlr^n, National Institute of Standards artd Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce; The Contractor wOJ document and oertIN In wrttlno at
time of the data destruction, and ivllj piovtde ivrftten certification to the DepartmentupM request. The written ocftlfteafion wQ) include aO details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and vaMated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements wfll be jointly
evaluated by the Slate and Contractor prior to destruction. . '

t Unless otherwise specified, wlthjn thirty (30) days of the terrtilnatJon of this
Contrad. Contr8Ctor agrees id destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
seojre rrtethod such es shredding.

3. Unless otherwise spedfted, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
wntrect Contractor agrees 16 cempleiely destroy aS electronic Confidential 0^
by means of data erasure, also known as secure .data wiping.

rV. PROCEDURES FOR SECUROY

A. agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received urtder this Contmct and arw
dertvatlve data or files, as foflovre; •

1. Cojifr^of wlO maintain proper security controls to protect Department
Mnfaentla) Information cpnected, processed, managed, and/or stored in (he dcOverr
of corttracted services. ' . , .

^  rnalntaln poltetes and procedures to proiiri Department " ' ';?acormdOToal InformaUcn througtiout the Inforrriation fifecycle, where epdicabie; (from ^

Soeurfiy RoquVtmcmi
Pl9f8ofS tkiB fl/ims
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3. The Contractor wiD maintain approprlflte euthenticailon end access oonlrols to
contractor systems that coUecl, transmit, or store Oepartmenl confidential Informallon
where eppQcable.'

4. pje Contractor wtO ensure proper oocurlty monitoring capabDIUes ere In place to
•  detect potential eecurlN events that can Impact State of NH systems an^or

Oepartmenl confidenllal mfbrmatton for contractor provided systema

5. The Contractor wlD provide regular security mvareness end educalton for Its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential InformaUon.

8. If the Contractor wiD be sub-contracting any core functions of (ha engagement
• supporting the services fbr Slate of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of art internal process or processes (hat defines spedfte security
ejipcctatians. and monitoring compterwe to security requirements that at a minimum
match Ihosb for the Contractor, Including brewh notlflcaUon requirements.

7. The Contractor wffl work wUh the Department to sign and compty wfth aD applicable
State of Nev; Hampshire and Department system access arid authortzetlon poUdes-
end procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining end matntalnliQ ec^ss to any Oepartmenl system(8). Agreernents wID be
completed and signed by the Contractor end any appncet)(e sub-contra^rs prior to
system ecoess being authortzed.

6. If the Oepartmenl determines (he Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HlPAA Business Associate Agreonent
(BAA) wtlh the Department end Is responsible for maintaining compDancc v^h the
agreement . • •

9. The ContTBCtor vfll vwrk with the Department at Its requssi to complete a System
Management Survey. The" purpose of the survey is to enable the Dep^ent artd
Contractor to monitor for any changes In rfsks, threats, end vulnerabilities thai may
occur over the Dfe of the Contractof engagement The survey will be completed
annually, or an aitematB time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the errgagcmenl between the Oepartment arnf the Contractor ct>anges.

ia The Contrador will not store, knowingly or unlinowfngly. any State of New Hampshire
or Department data ofbhore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless

• prior, express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Offioe
leadership member within the. Department.

11. Date Security Breach UablDty. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly' take measures to
^Mnt future breach and minimize any damage or toss resulting from the breadi.
The State ehaO recover (rom the ContrectDr eS costs of response end recovery from
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Ihe breach] (ndudlno but not llniltfid to: credit monitoring eervtees, mailing cods and
costs associated wtih Mebslta end telephone caO center servl^ rteoessary due to
the breach.. . ' .

12. Contractor must, comply with aO epplieable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy, and eecurily of ConfWentla) Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the prtvaey and security of PI and PHI at a IcvbI and scope that Is not less
than the tevel and scope of requirements appDcabla to federal ̂ encies. Including,
but not fimtted to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (6 U.S.C § 5S2a) DHHS
Prjpcy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPM Privacy and Security. Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and, 164) that govern protections for Individually Uentlfiabte' health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agre.esto establish and maintain appropriate admlnlstrBtlve, technical, and
physical aefcguarrte to protect the confldenllailiy of the Contidcntiial Data and to
prevent unauthbrired use or access to It The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that b not (ess than (he tevel bnd scope of sccurtly fequtrcments
established by (he Stete of New Hampshire. Department-of lnlb/mat«n'Technotog^
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https7/www.nh.gov/dolt/Vcf^f/index.htm
for the Department of Informalion Technology pollctes, guWcilnes, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to malntalrt a documented breach notification and Inddert
response' process. The Contractor" wlil notify, the State's Privacy Officer, and

■ addltionaJ email addresses provided In this section, of any accurlty breach wfthln two
(2) hours of the time that the Ccntroctor leams Its occuftence. This Includes a
conTtdentlal infdrihatlon breach, computer security Inoldent. or suspected breach
w4ilch effects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems lhal connect to the
Stale of New HampsNre network.

15; Contradbr must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Conlrad to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perferm their official duties in connection wtlh purposes Identified In Ihb Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a comply with such safeguards as .referenced In Section IV A. above,
Implemented to protect Confidenttal Information (hat Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract ffom tosa theft or triadvertent disctosure.

b. .safeguard iNs Information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devloes/medla containing PHI, PI, or
PR are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emaOs containing Confidentla) Information only If encrvoted and being
sent to end being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive 8u^ (nformatJdn.
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■ e.. nmltdlsctoaure of the Confidential Intormalion to the extent parmiHed by law.
f. Confidential Information received under this Contrect and IndMdualty

Identrflable data derhred from DHHS Oats, must be stored In an area that (s
physically end techr)o(odlC8ny secure from access by unauthorized persons
dudng duty hours as weD as non-duty hours (e.g., door bdcs. card keys
biometrtc UenilRers. etc).

g. only eufitodzed End Users may trensrnll the Confidential Data, tncfudlng any
detlvailve filM conlafnmg personally Werillflable Information, and In aO cases,
such data must be encrypted at ad times 'when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required In sectionlV above.

h. In all other Instances Confidentlal Data must be mabttalnad. used and
disclosed using appropriate eeteguards. as delefmlried by a rlsk-based
assessment of the dreumstsAces Involved.

L  understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not tw
shared with anyone. Eruj Users wfll keep-lheir credential tnformatlon secure.
This eppjles to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party appQcatlon.

Contractor Is rwponslble for oversight end complJgrrce of their pnd Users. DHHS •
.  reserves the .right to conduct onslte Inspections .to nwnltof compliance with this

Dontrad,.Including the privacy er>d security requirements provided In herein. HIPAA,
and other appQcable laws and Fedarsl regulations until such time the Confidentlal Data
Is dlsposed.of In accordance with this Contract

V. LOSS REPORTING

■  ■"iV"V. •The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy OfTiaf. Infonralion Security Office
Program Manager of any Secuifiy Incidents and Breaches wfWn two (2) hours of the
time thai the Contractor tearns'ofthetr occurrence.' ,

The, Contractor mud (Urthcf handle and report Incidents end Breaches bvofvfng PHI (n
aocortoce with the agency's documented Inddent Handling and Breach f^Uficallon
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 30d. in'addition to. end
notwflhstandlitg, Cbrttractor'o compliance with aO appRcatle obDgallons and procedures,
Contractor's procefdures mud also sddress how the ContTBCtor wOl:
1. Identiiy Indents; '
2. Detemilne if personally Wenliflable tnfofmstJon b tnvolved in Inddints:
3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit Of P^7;
4. UenQiy and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incl^s

and determine rtsk-based responses to Incidents; and
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6. Determine whether Breach notification Is.required, and, if eo, Menlify appropriate
•  Breach notification mcthoda, timing, eouroe. end contents from amono different

options, and bear costs esGodated Vifih the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Imppcats PI must te addressed and re^ed. as
applicable, In aocordanoa wah NH RSA 3S9tC:20.

VI PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. OHHS contact for Data Management or beta Exchange Issues:
DHHSInformationSecurityOfnoe^dhhs.nh.QOV

B. OHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

OHHSP/tv8cyOfncer@clhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS.oontact for Information Security Issues:

OHKSinforTnatlonSecur1tyOffloe@dhh6.nh.gov

D. OHHS oontact for preach rroUftcattons:

DHH6lnf6rTnatJon8ecurttyOfnce@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSRrtv8cy.Ofncer@dhh8.hh.g6v

vi. List upditB OiPUtna GMAK
-OHHSM&irutSQA

SMtfttO AKUtiVBeiti
PiaaStft

CantritUrlnBib.

S/St/lfl '


